Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Special Licensing Sub Committee

MONDAY, 16TH DECEMBER, 2013 at 19:00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Beacham, Brabazon and Demirci

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2. URGENT BUSINESS

3.
It being a special meeting of the Sub Committee, under Part Four, Section B,
Paragraph 17, of the Council’'s Constitution, no other business shall be considered at
the meeting.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a disclosable pecuniary interest or a prejudicial interest in a matter
who attends a meeting of the authority at which the matter is considered:

(i) must disclose the interest at the start of the meeting or when the interest becomes
apparent, and

(i) may not participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must withdraw
from the meeting room.

A member who discloses at a meeting a disclosable pecuniary interest which is not
registered in the Register of Members’ Interests or the subject of a pending
notification must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within 28 days of the
disclosure.

Disclosable pecuniary interests, personal interests and prejudicial interests are
defined at Paragraphs 5-7 and Appendix A of the Members’ Code of Conduct.



4, SUMMARY OF PROCEDURE (PAGES 1 -2)

The Chair will explain the procedure that the Committee will follow for the hearing
considered under the Licensing Act 2003. A copy of the procedure is attached.

5. APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE AT LIVE NATION, FINSBURY
PARK, SEVEN SISTERS ROAD, N4 2AB (PAGES 3 - 300)

[Please note the event management plans have been attached from page 95
onwards for reference].

David McNulty Maria Fletcher

Head of Local Democracy and Member Services Principal Committee Coordinator

5™ Floor (Non Cabinet Committees)

River Park House Tel: 020-8489 1512

225 High Road Email: maria.fletcher@haringey.gov.uk
Wood Green

London N22 8HQ Friday, 06 December 2013



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HEARINGS

PROCEDURE SUMMARY

INTRODUCTION

1. The Chair introduces himself and invites other Members, Council officers, Police, Applicant
and Objectors to do the same.

2. The Chair invites Members to disclose any prior contacts (before the hearing) with the
parties or representations received by them

3. The Chair explains the procedure to be followed by reference to this summary which will

be distributed.

NON-ATTENDANCE BY PARTY OR PARTIES

4. If one or both of the parties fails to attend, the Chair decides whether to:
(i) grant an adjournment to another date, or
(i) proceed in the absence of the non-attending party.

Normally, an absent party will be given one further chance to attend.

TOPIC HEADINGS

5. The Chair suggests the “topic headings” for the hearing. In the case of the majority  of
applications for variation of hours, or other terms and conditions, the main topic is:

Whether the extensions of hours etc. applied for would conflict with the four
licensing objectives i.e.

(i) the prevention of crime and disorder,

(i) public safety,

(i)  the prevention of public nuisance, and

(iv)  the protection of children from harm.

6. The Chair invites comments from the parties on the suggested
topic headings and decides whether to confirm or vary them.

WITNESSES

7. The Chair asks whether there are any requests by a party to call a withess and decides any
such request.

8. Only if a witness is to be called, the Chair then asks if there is a request by an opposing party
to “cross-examine” the witness. The Chair then decides any such request.

DOCUMENTARY EVIDENCE

9. The Chair asks whether there are any requests by any party to
introduce late documentary evidence.

10. If so, the Chair will ask the other party if they object to the
admission of the late documents.

11. If the other party do object to the admission of documents which
have only been produced by the first party at the hearing, then the
documents shall not be admitted.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\1\9\A100035913\$drx02uf5.doc




Page 2

12. If the other party object to documents produced late but before the
hearing, the following criteria shall be taken into account when the
Chair decides whether or not to admit the late documents:

(i) What is the reason for the documents being late?

(ii) Will the other party be unfairly taken by surprise by the late documents?

(i) Will the party seeking to admit late documents be put at a major disadvantage if
admission of the documents is refused?

(iv)  Is the late evidence really important?

(v) Would it be better and fairer to adjourn to a later date?

THE LICENSING OFFICER’S INTRODUCTION

13.  The Licensing Officer introduces the report explaining, for
example, the existing hours, the hours applied for and the
comments of the other Council Services or outside official bodies.
This should be as “neutral” as possible between the parties.

14.  The Licensing Officer can be questioned by Members and then by
the parties.

THE HEARING

15. This takes the form of a discussion led by the Chair. The Chair can
vary the order as appropriate but it should include:

(i) an introduction by the Objectors’ main representative

(i) an introduction by the Applicant or representative

(i)  questions put by Members to the Objectors

(iv)  questions put by Members to the Applicant

(v) questions put by the Objectors to the Applicant

(vi)  questions put by the Applicant to the Objectors

CLOSING ADRESSES

16.  The Chair asks each party how much time is needed for their
closing address, if they need to make one.

17.  Generally, the Objectors make their closing address before the
Applicant who has the right to the final closing address.

THE DECISION

18. Members retire with the Committee Clerk and legal representative
to consider their decision including the imposition of conditions.

19. The decision is put in writing and read out in public by the
Committee Clerk once Members have returned to the meeting.

E:\moderngov\Data\AgendaltemDocs\3\1\9\A100035913\$drx02uf5.doc




odal Agenda ltem 5

LICENSING ACT 2003
Sec 24

HARINGEY COUNCIL

Agenda Item
Page No. 1

Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee on 16" December 2013

Report title: Application for a New Premises Licence at LIVE NATION, FINSBURY PARK,
SEVEN SISTERS ROAD, LONDON N4 2AB

Report of: The Licensing Team Leader

Ward(s) affected Stroud Green |

1. Purpose

To consider an application by PBS Licensing on behalf of LiveNation to allow Supply of
Alcohol, Plays, Films, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance and anything of a
similar description at the premises

2. Recommendations

21 (a) Grant the application as asked
(b) Modify the conditions of the licence, by altering or omitting or adding to them
(c) Reject the whole or part of the application

The Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the conditions or reject the
whole or part of the application unless it is appropriate in promoting the licensing
objectives.

Report authorised by: Eubert Malcolm

Regulatory Services Group Man.ager

Contact Officer: Ms Daliah Barrett -Williams Telephone: 020 8489 8232

3. Regulatory Committee summary

For consideration by Licensing Sub Committee under Licensing Act 2003 for a New
Premises licence.
4. Access to information:

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Background Papers

The following Background Papers are used in the preparation of this Report:

File: Live Nation

The Background Papers are located at Enforcement Service, Technopark, Ashley Road,
Tottenham N17 i




Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5

LICENSING ACT 2003
Sec 24

5. REPORT

Background

5.1

5.2

5.3

An application for a New Premises Licence, by PBS Licensing in respect of Live
Nation, Finsbury Park, Seven Sisters Road, London N4 2AB. The application is for
an indefinite license for a capacity crowd on 49,999.

Finsbury Park has two existing licences issued to other promoters that enable them
to carry out licensable activity within the park for a capacity crowd of 39,999 and
49,999 respectively.

The licensable activity being applied for are the Sale of Alcohol, Plays, Films, Live
Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance and anything of a similar
description at the premises under the Licensing Act 2003. Members are asked to
note that the submitted Event Management Plan (EMP) this document will become
the manual for events and includes: Event Management Plan/Noise Management
Plan/Acoustic Report/Security Plan/Risk Assessment /Crowd Safety Plan. The
submitted version only gives a general overview and does not at this stage contain
any event specific information within it.

The times being applied for are as follows. Premises Licence- APP 1

Provision of regulated entertainment: Plays, Films, Live Music, Recorded
Music, Performance of Dance and anything of a similar description

Monday to Sunday 1000 to 2300
Supply of Alcohol
Monday to Sunday 1000 to 2300

For consumption ON the premises

Opening Hours
Monday to Sunday 1000 to 2330

The layout plan for the event space is shown at App 1A

General-all four licensing objectives ,

The applicant is very experienced at organising and delivering large scale events
at various sites in the UK over many years and has a proven track record of
complying with all the licensing objectives

The licence if granted will be limited to a maximum of 5 event days in any calendar
year.



Page 6

LICENSING ACT 2003

Sec 24

5.4

5.5

A detailed Event Management Plan (EMP) will be prepared and finalised following
consultation with the statutory authorities and relevant agencies. The EMP will
include the provision of Risk Assessments; Fire Risk Assessments; Crowd
Management Plan; Alcohol Management Plan; Adverse Weather Plan and Noise
Management Plan.

Detailed pre-event meetings will be held with London Borough of Haringey Council
and the statutory agencies through the Safety Advisory Group (SAG) to ensure
that all bodies are satisfied with the planning arrangements

The applicant intends to demonstrate best practice in terms of crowd management
and safety.

Crime and Disorder

The applicant will contract a professional and competent crowd management
company who will work closely with the event managers, London Borough of
Haringey Council and the Metropolitan Police to manage the potential for crime
and disorder.

A detailed Crowd Management Plan will be prepared and finalised in consultation
with the SAG. Planning meetings will be held in advance of the events with the
London Borough of Haringey Council and other agencies to ensure that they are
satisfied with the arrangements for the prevention of crime and disorder.

A suitable entry policy will be adopted which will include procedures for the
searching of persons and their belongings on entry.

If required, ejections or refusal of entry will be carried out by licensed security staff.
The applicants will ensure that police support will be provided to further assist in
the prevention of crime and disorder and in case of emergency. This will be
achieved through planning and liaison prior to the event.

The applicant will require the contractor responsible for the bars to operate a strict
Challenge 21 policy and all bar staff will be trained to adhere to this policy.

Public Safety

Safety and emergency procedures will be detailed throughout the event planning
phase.

Specific risk assessments will be produced to ensure that all elements of risk are
addressed as far as reasonably practicable and suitable and sufficient control
measures adopted.

An agreed and appropriate level of emergency first aid and ambulance provision
will be on site throughout the events. This will include mobile FA patrols, the
levels of which will be determined by a medical risk assessment and HSG195.

A detailed fire risk assessment will be produced and suitable levels of portable fire
fighting equipment will be provided on site.

Prior approval will be obtained for the use of any special effects and relevant
health and safety information will be provided prior to the event.

The applicant will liaise with the London Borough of Haringey Environmental
Health Department prior to the events to ensure that the appropriate information is
made available in relation to food handling and hygiene.

A multi-agency Event Control Room managed by the applicant will be operational
throughout events.



Page 7

LICENSING ACT 2003

Sec 24

5.6

5.7

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Public Nuisance

The prevention of public nuisance will be managed through pre-event planning
arrangements and liaison with statutory agencies. The EMP will detail the policies
to address the prevention of public nuisance.

The applicant will contract a competent acoustic consultant who, in liaison with the
Licensing Authority will produce a Noise Management Plan specific to the event.
The acoustic consultant representative will be on site throughout the event to
ensure that noise levels are met.

Child Protection

Steps to address the protection of children will be identified in pre-event
documentation.

The Designated Premises Supervisor will ensure that all bar staff are trained and
fully aware and compliant of age verification procedures and requirements for
alcohol sales, for example, Challenge 21.

Age restricted films indicating nudity or semi-nudity will not be shown in the
presence of children.

RELEVANT REPRESENTATIONS (CONSULTATION)

Responsible Authorifies:

Comments of Metropolitan Police

The Metropolitan Police have made representation against the application and this
is attached at Appendix 2.

Comments of Regulatory Services:

Environmental Health —-Enforcement Response Noise Team

Have made representation to this application this is attached at Appendix 3
Trading Standards

Have made no representation to this application.

London Fire and Civil Defence Authority

Have made no representation to this application.

Planning Services

Have made no representation to this application

Comments of Child Protection Agency or Nominee

No representation made on this matter



Page 8

LICENSING ACT 2003
Sec 24

6.7

7.0

8.0

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

9.6

Licensing Authority.

The Licensing Authority has made representation against the application.
Supporting papers from TFL tube are attached also at Appendix 4.

Interested Parties

Various letters of representation have been received against this application from
residents and elected members from both Haringey and Islington. Islington
Council have also submitted a representation supported by Islington Police.
Appendix 5 )

Financial Comments
The fee amount applicable for this application was £24,100.00.
Licensing Officer Comments

Comments have been received from the Public Health RA, requesting that drug
intervention workers are used at each event. Live Nation have indicated that they
are able to have a person at the information point/s.

The NHS have also commented to say they will work with the promoter and feed
into the SAG meetings for each event.

Members are asked to note that reference to the SAG — Safety Advisory Group is a
group made up of the Licensing Authority, all the Responsible Authorities,
Haringey’'s Emergency Planning Officer, Highways Authority and Transport for
London. The Groups remit is to discuss the proposals put forward by the promoter
for each event in the EMP and make decisions as to whether or not the plans
submitted are satisfactory for sign off by the SAG.

Sub Groups will be able to meet with Islington /Hackney Council to discuss
specifics relating to proposed events that are then fed back into the main SAG.
This will include matters such as noise monitoring requirements, litter collection,
traffic management issues.

A number of the representation make reference to matters that arose from the
Stone Roses concert that took place earlier this year in June 2013. The event had
some negative publicity relating to public urination in the event space and also in
the local surrounding area. The event space had just over the specified amount of
toilets required under the Purple Guide Book.

There was a de-brief following that concert with the promoters, which is
customary. A wide and varied range of matters were discussed for improvement
and the evolving of the Event Management Plan for future events. A general list
appears below:

The public urination was the first matter discussed- other statutory bodies
discussed their concerns about this with the organisers and put forward ideas as
to what other measures can be considered for future events.



Page 9

LICENSING ACT 2003

Sec 24

The need for toilet provisions on the walk up to the entrance and at other points
around the external area.

Crime figures during the event- a break down was provided- mostly ‘theft persons’
type crime.

Medical incidents — types, what happened to the person- outcomes

Litter picking in the external area and ensuring rubbish will be collected and taken
away more efficiently.

Not allowing the concert goers to interrupt the use of the bus stop near Finsbury
Park Gate was also discussed. The promoters planned to not use FP gate and
had opted to have a point of entry further up on Seven Sisters Road, this brought
the concert goers into conflict with people going about their everyday lives of
shopping and trying to get on a bus from that particular bus stop.

The large crowds on Perth Road at the Faltering Full Back- the conflict between
concert goers and parents trying to get their children home at the end of the
school day.

The issue of the crowds staying outside the event area to drink at the local pubs
and make use of the retail businesses in the area was also discussed.

Egress of the crowd into Seven Sisters Road. Communication with customers as
to the areas of the tube station that will not be in use after a certain time on event
days.

Communication issues around the time to get the information leaflet out. Updating
the roads and addresses that this information will be delivered to. The amount of
information that will be sent out.

Egress and impact of the 10.30pm finish time and the ability for the tube to cope
with getting 45,000 people away from the Finsbury Park Area.

The loss of Wells Terrace entrance in the future and the impact this is will have on
concerts in Finsbury Park

Any complaints or feedback from neighbouring boroughs.

Actions being taken forward from debrief:

Better communication with residents and businesses in the run up to events in
future. Sending out updates that will give an indication of dates of when the Park
will be in use by a promoter, maps showing areas that will still be available, dates
to specify when the build will begin and areas that will be accessible. This
information will be progressive and the final proposals such as the traffic issues,
road closures complaints line etc will all be part of this process.

Promoter has been requested to not use entrance near Perth Road as a point of
ingress. Also requested to use FP Gate as the point of ingress so that crowds do
not conflict with other non concert goers.



Page 10

LICENSING ACT 2003
Sec 24

Toilets to be considered for specific points externally and also inside the park
entrance.

Promoter asked to factor in an increase in toilets within the event space also.

Crime measure will be looked at in terms of raising awareness around concert
goers about being diligent with their phones and belongings.

Litter collection in specified areas outside the park- roads to be discussed.

Liaison with Islington, Hackney, - Licensing department, neighbouring ward
councillors, Highways department, Cleansing and Noise Teams.

Early engagement with businesses. The impact of crowds standing at the pubs on
route to the park will be discussed directly with those pubs to find a solution in
terms of how the customers can be better managed.

Meetings held with TFL and neighbouring boroughs to discuss the plans around
Wells Terrace and loss of the area in the future.

9.7 Some of the representations refer to the amount of people that stood on the street

9.8

9.9

10.

consuming alcohol, and requests have been made for a no street drinking zone to
be declared. The question of whether to declare a no street drinking zone is not
under the remit of the Licensing Sub Committee to consider.

Some of the representations are requesting that the Park holds only a specific
amount of events and other restrictions that are not within the remit of the Licensing
Sub Committee to consider. There is also reference to the proposed area of the
park being outside of the ‘normal’ concert area, this issue is not restricted under the
Licensing Act 2003. The legislation requires the applicant to submit a plan showing
the curtilage of the premises license. The Parks Service as the Landlords may have
preferred areas to advise of to any potential promoter.

Premises licenses are normally indefinite licences under the Licensing Act 2003
unless the applicant/s has indicated that they wished to apply for a time limited
license. Any license granted in relation to Finsbury Park will not be able to be used
unless permission for the use of the park on the intended days has first been
agreed/granted by the Parks Service as the Landlords.

The MPS have stated in their representation that they will not be carrying out duties
around the stewarding of ‘tube queues’. The Police have been integral in providing
and facilitating the stewarding of queues as part of a safe egress plan for concerts
in the past. The MPS have now advised that they will no longer be accepting liability
for the stewarding of the crowd to the nearest transport hub, this will mean that the
promoter will need to ensure a robust crowd management plan will need to be
agreed as part of the their egress plan.



Page 11

APPENDIX 1 — APPLICATION



|

URBAN ENVIRONMENT
25 0CT 2013
Haringey : : For help contact
% Application for a premises licence REC;;EI_HEPNW oLN llcensi ingey.gov.uk
Licensing Act 2003 'rE.f:HHOl:A. ' : Telephone: 020 8489 8232
Haringey
* required Information
Section 1 of 19

You can save the form at any time and resume it later. You do not need to be logged in when you resume.

System reference

Your reference

Not Currently In Use

I This is the unique reference for this
application generated by the system.

Finsbury Park Music Events Licence

| You can put what you want here to help you
track applications if you make lots of them. it

Are you an agent acting on behalf of the applicant?

¢ Yes

Applicant Details

* First name
* Family name

* E-maii

is passed to the authority.

Put "no" if you are applying on your own
behalf or on behalf of a business you own or

C No work for.
|Rick |
|Latham I
lrIck.latham@llvenation.co.uk I
| Include country code.

Main telephone number _

Other telephone number l

[0 Indicate here if the applicant would prefer not to be contacted by telephone

Is the applicant:

(¢ Applying as a business or organisation, including as a sole trader A sole trader is a business owned by one

|

C Applyingas an individual

Applicant Business

* js the applicant's business ¢ Yes C No
registered in the UK with

Companies House?

person without any special legal structure.
Applying as an individual means the
applicant is applying so the applicant can be
employed, or for some other personal reason,
such as following a hobby.

* Registration number 02409911

* Business name

* VAT number

* Legal status

|Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd

If the applicant's business is registered, use
its registered name.

lce |lso7os7a0 |

Put "none” if the applicant is not registered
for VAT.

Public Limited Company

Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009 |



Page 13

Continued from previous page...

* Applicant's position in the

The country where the applicant's
headquarters are.

BEinaes H&S Co-ordinator
Home country United Kingdom
Registered Address

Address registered with Companies House.

* Building number or name |2nd Floor, 19-25 Regent Arcade House

*Street IArgyII Street
District IWestminster
* City or town |London

County or administrative area |

ESC s L= 4] bl ]

Include country code.

* Postcode M1 F7TS

* Country |United Kingdom |

Agent Details

* First name |Phi| I

* Family name ICrier |

* E-mail Iphil.crier@pbclicensing.co.uk |

Main telephone number |01 344 566764 |
|

Other telephone number I

[ indicate here if you would prefer not to be contacted by telephone
Are you:
(® An agent that is a business or organisation, including a sole trader

C A private individual acting as an agent

A sole trader is a business owned by one
person without any special legal structure.

If your business is registered, use its
registered name.

Put "none" if you are not registered for VAT.

Agent Business

* Is your business registered (& Yes C No
in the UK with Companies

House?

* Registration number 8472407

* Business name PBC Licensing Solicitors
*VAT number GB 160552920

* Legal status Private Limited Company

® Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 14

Continued from previous page...

* Your position in the business |D7rector I

= The country where the headquarters of your
Home country |Umted Kingdom ] business is located.
Agent Registered Address Address registered with Companies House.

* Building number or name |Compton House

* Street |79 New Road
* City or town |Ascot

|
|
District | |
|
|

County or administrative area |Berkshire

* Postcode |sLs 8Pz

* Country |United Kingdom |
Section 2 of 19

PREMISES DETAILS

I/we, as named in section 1, apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises
described in section 2 below (the premises) and |/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing authority
in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003.

Premises Address
Are you able to provide a postal address, OS map reference or description of the premises?
(C Address (C OS map reference (¢ Description

Address Description

Finsbury Park N4 - Events site identified on plan submitted with application within the public park in the London Borough
of Haringey with entrances on Endymion Road N14, Seven Sisters Road N14 and Green Lane N4

Further Details

Telephone number I |

Non-domestic rateable
value of premises (£) | I

" ©Queen's Printer and Controiler of HMSO 2009




Page 15

Section 3 of 19

APPLICATION DETAILS

In what capacity are you applying for the premises licence?
[J Anindividual or individuals

Alimited company

X

A partnership

An unincorporated association

A recognised club :
A charity

The proprietor of an educational establishment

A health service body

A person who is registered under part 2 of the Care Standards Act
2000 (c14) in respect of an independent hospital in Wales

2SN i [ 0 Y 0 O s R |

A person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part 1 of the Health and
Social Care Act 2008 in respect of the carrying on of a regulated

O activity (within the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital in
England

[ The chief officer of police of a police force in England and Wales
[T] Other (for example a statutory corporation)
Confirm The Following

= | am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves
“ the use of the premises for licensable activities
[ 1am making the application pursuant to a statutory function

O I am making the application pursuant to a function discharged by
virtue of Her Majesty's prerogative

Section 4 of 19

NON INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS

Provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate give any registered number. In the case of a
partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate), give the name and address of each party concerned.

Non individual Applicant's Name

Name |Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd |

Details

Registered number (where
applicable) R’240991 1 j

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc)

Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 16

Continued from previous page...

Public Limited Company

Address

Building number or name |2nd Floor, 19-25 Regent Arcade House —l

Street |Argy|| Street l

District |Westrn!nster |

City or town ILondon |
|

County or administrative area |

Postcode |W1 F7TS

Country |United Kingdom |
Contact Details

E-mail |UKHealthandSafety@llvenation.co.uk I
Telephone number 026 0093333 |

Other telephone number L |

| Add another applicant I

Section 5 of 19

OPERATING SCHEDULE

When do you want the
premises licence to start? I | / I I / | |

dd mm yyyy

If you wish the licence to be .
valid only for a limited period, | I / | l / I |
when do you want it to end dd . YyYy

Provide a general description of the premises

For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any other information which could be relevant to the
' licensing objectives. Where your application includes off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for
consumption of these off- supplies you must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the
premises.

Finsbury Park N4 - Events site identified on plan submitted with application within the public park in the London Borough
of Haringey with entrances on Endymion Road N 14, Seven Sisters Road N14 and Green Lane N4

If 5,000 or more people are

expected to attend the

premises at any one time,
state the number expected to

attend

Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 17

Continued from previous page...
Section 6 of 19
PROVISION OF PLAYS

Will you be providing plays?
(& Yes
Standard Days And Timings

)

No

MONDY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start :I End |:\ to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start End
start [ | End [ ]
WEDNESDAY
‘Start End
Start :' End l:‘
THURSDAY
Start End
Stor || i 0 e [BiEan]
FRIDAY
Start End
Start :' End :
SATURDAY
Start End [23:00
Start ':‘ End ,:
SUNDAY
Start End
Start ':‘ End :'
Will the performance of a play take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
C Indoors - C Outdoors (& Both include a tent,

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Theatrical performances, plays, mime and similar arts performances to take place outside or in temporary structures such as
tents

© Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 18

Continued from previous page...
State any seasonal variations for performing plays

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of a play at different times from those listed in
the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 7 of 19
PROVISION OF FILMS

Will you be providing films?
@ Yes

y)

No
Standard Days And Timings

AL Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start |:‘ End |:| to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start End
start [ | end [ |
WEDNESDAY :
Start End
Start I:I End l:\
THURSDAY ;
Start I:I End l_—__l
FRIDAY
Start End
Start ':‘ End ‘:]

. ©Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009

[y




Page 19

Continued from previous page...

SATURDAY
Start End
Start l:] End I:
SUNDAY
Start End
i) o
Will the exhibition of films take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
 Indoors  Outdoors (¢ Both include a tent.

State type of actlvity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Films and videos will be shown as part of performing acts or in between performances. The films and videos will be of an
appropriate nature to the age of the attending audience and will be played outside or in temporary structures such as a
tent.

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of film

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the exhibition of film at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 8 of 19

PROVISION OF INDOOR SPORTING EVENTS

Will you be providing indoor sporting events?

 Yes ¢ No

Section 9 of 19

PROVISION OF BOXING OR WRESTLING ENTERTAINMENTS

Will you be providing boxing or wrestling entertainments?

C Yes ¢ No

Section 10 of 19

PROVISION OF LIVE MUSIC

Queen's Printer and Gontroller of HMSQ 2009




Page 20

Continued from previous page...
Will you be providing live music?

(& Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDRY Give timings'in 24 hour clock.

Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises

Start :I End [:] to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY :

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

Will the performance of live music take place indoors or outdoors orboth? ~ Where taking place in a building or other

structure tick as appropriate. indoors may
( Indoors  Outdoors (¢ Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

The event organiser is providing temporary stages for the playing of live music which will include singing and instrumental
and may be amplified or unamplified. Sound levels will be agreed in advance with the local authority environmental health
department so as to limit the impact on the wider community. Rehearsals and sound checks will take place the day prior to
the event and on the morning of the event, timings of which will be agreed in advance with the London Borough of
Haringey Environmental Health Department.

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music

@ Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 21

Continued from previous page...

For example (but not exclusively) where the activlty will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of live music at different times from those listed
in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 11 of 19
PROVISION OF RECORDED MUSIC

Will you be providing recorded music?

* Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start :' End [:] to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start end
WEDNESDAY
Start end
THURSDAY
Start End
FRIDAY
Start end
SATURDAY

® Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 22

Continued from previous page...

SUNDAY

Will the playing of recorded music take place indoors or.outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other

structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
C Indoors ( OQutdoors @ Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

The event organiser is providing temporary stages for the playing of recorded music which will include singing and
instrumental and may be amplified or unamplified. Sound levels will be agreed in advance with the local authority
environmental health department so as to limit the impact on the wider community. Rehearsals and sound checks will take
place the day prior to the event and on the morning of the event, timings of which will be agreed in advance with the
London Borough of Haringey Environmental Health Department.

State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the playing of recorded music at different times from those listed
in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 12 of 19
PROVISION OF PERFORMANCES OF DANCE

Will you be providing performances of dance?

@ Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MOND2Y Give timings in 24 hour clock.

Start End [23:00 (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises

Start ,: End :' to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY N
Start End [23:00

® Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 23

Continued from previous page...

WEDNESDAY
Start End
st [ ] ed [
THURSDAY :
Start End
start |[EERN ] end [ |
FRIDAY
Start End
Start l:] End l:
SATURDAY
Star End
Start l:] End |:|
SUNDAY
Start End
Cosat[ ] end [ ]
Will the performance of dance take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
 Indoors ¢ OQutdoors (¢ Both include a tent.

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details, for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Dance performances to take place on temporary stages and occasionally off-stage, outdoors and in temporary structures
such as a tent.

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the performance of dance at different times from those listed in
the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

® Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Page 24

Continued from previous page...
Section 13 of 19

PROVISION OF ANYTHING OF A SIMILAR DESCRIPTION TO LIVE MUSIC, RECORDED MUSIC OR PERFORMANCES OF
DANCE

Will you be providing anything similar to live music, recorded music or
performances of dance?

= Yes
Standard Days And Timings

S

No

MONDAY S
Start End g:ﬁlgz)%?zlnndzgn?; ;irvcelc:jcekt.ails for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
start [ | End ) [ e e or The et
TUESDAY
Start End
Start l:] End l:
WEDNESDAY
Start End
St B Eh [
THURSDAY
Start End
stat [ | end [ ]
FRIDAY
Start End
Start |:’ End :I
SATURDAY
Start End
Startd [ | end [ |
SUNDAY
Start End
stat [ | End [ |

Give a description of the type of entertainment that will be provided

Entertainment of a similar nature to live and recorded music and dance performance

Will this entertainment take place indoors or outdoors or both? Where taking place in a building or other
structure tick as appropriate. Indoors may
 Indoors (C Outdoors ¢ Both include a tent.

® Queen's Prnter and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 25

Continued from previous page...

State type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further details,I for example (but not
exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

Entertainment of a similar nature to live and recorded music, amplified and unamplified, and dance performance

State any seasonal variations for entertainment

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for entertainment at different times from those listed in the column
on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

Section 14 of 19

LATE NIGHT REFRESHMENT

Will you be providing late night refreshment?
C Yes ¢ No

Section 15 of 19

SUPPLY OF ALCOHOL

Will you be selling or supplying alcohol?
(s Yes C No
Standard Days And Timings

MONDAY Give timings in 24 hour clock.
Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises
Start |:] End |:J to be used for the activity.
TUESDAY
Start End [23:00
WEDNESDAY
Start End [23:00

Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSQ 2009




Page 26

Continued from previous page...

THURSDAY
Start End
Start l:] End I:l
FRIDAY
Start End
star | B el ]
SATURDAY
Start -
Start [:I End |:’
SUNDAY
Start End
Start |:| End |____|
Will the sale of alcohol be for consumption: If the sale of alcohol is for consumption on
the premises select on, if the sale of alcohol
(¢ On the premises ( Offthepremises (" Both is for consumption away from the premises

select off. If the sale of alcohol is for
consumption on the premises and away
from the premises select both.

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non-standard timings. Where the premises will be used for the supply of alcohol at different times from those listed in the
column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the
licence as premises supervisor

Name .
First name rBrian |
Family name |Grew : |

Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 27

Continued from previous page...

Enter the contact's address

Building number or name :
street T

e

City or town ?

County or administrative area |

Postcode L‘
g )

21650 |

SESUE B SENN Ry SN R SRS ) WSS

Country

Personal Licence number
(if known)

Issuing licensing authority

(if known) ILondon Borough of Richmond on Thames |

PROPOSED DESIGNATED PREMISES SUPERVISOR CONSENT

How will the consent form of the proposed designated premises supervisor
be supplied to the authority?

(" Electronically, by the proposed designated premises supervisor

(¢ Asan attachment to this application

Reference number for consent If the consent form is already submitted, ask

form (if known) the proposed designated premises
supervisor for its 'system reference' or 'your
reference’.

Section 16 of 19

ADULT ENTERTAINMENT

Highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, or other entertainment or matters ancillary to the use of the
premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children

Give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the premises which may give
rise to concern in respect of children, regardless of whether you intend children to have access to the premises, for example
(but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films for restricted age groups etc gambling machines etc.

There are no activities or services of an adult nature connected with events. However, in view of safeguarding children the
following precautions will be made:

Funfair attractions (if provided) will exclude gaming machines

Bar and alcohol sales will require age verification (Challenge 21)

There will be no age restricted films showing nudity whilst children are present

Section 17 of 19

HOURS PREMISES ARE OPEN TO THE PUBLIC

Standard Days And Timings

Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Page 28

Continued from previous page...

NORA Give timings in 24 hour clock.

Start End (e.g., 16:00) and only give details for the days
of the week when you intend the premises

Start |:] End :’ to be used for the activity.

TUESDAY :

WEDNESDAY

THURSDAY

FRIDAY

SATURDAY

SUNDAY

State any seasonal variations

For example (but not exclusively) where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer months.

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to be open to the members and guests at different times from
those listed in the column on the left, list below

For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day e.g. Christmas Eve.

® Queen's Printer and Controller of HMSQ 2009




Page 29

Continued from previous page...

Section 18 of 19

LICENSING OBJECTIVES

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:

a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e)

List here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.

The applicant is very experienced at organising and dellvering large scale events at various sites in the UK over many years
and has a proven track record of complying with all the licensing objectives

The licence if granted will be limited to a maximum of 5 event days in any calendar year

A detailed Event Management Plan (EMP) will be prepared and finalised following consultation with the statutory
authorities and relevant agencies. The EMP will include the provision of Risk Assessments; Fire Risk Assessments; Crowd
Management Plan; Alcohol Management Plan; Adverse Weather Pian and Noise Management Plan

||Detailed pre-event meetings will be held with London Borough of Haringey Council and the statutory agencies through the
Safety Advisory Group (SAG) to ensure that all bodies are satisfied with the planning arrangements

The applicant intends to demonstrate best practice in terms of crowd management and safety

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

The applicant will contract a professional and competent crowd management company who will work closely with the
event managers, London Borough of Haringey Council and the Metropolitan Police to manage the potential for crime and
disorder.

A detailed Crowd Management Plan will be prepared and finalised in consultation with the SAG. Planning meetings will be
held in advance of the events with the London Borough of Haringey Council and other agencies to ensure that they are
satisfied with the arrangements for the prevention of crime and disorder.

A suitable entry policy will be adopted which will include procedures for the seatching of persons and their belongings on
entry.

If required, ejections or refusal of entry will be carried out by licensed security staff.

The applicants will ensure that police support will be provided to further assist in the prevention of crime and disorder and
in case of emergency. This will be achieved through planning and liaison prior to the event.

The applicant will require the contractor responsible for the bars to operate a strict Challenge 21 policy and all bar staff will
be tralned to adhere to this policy

€) Public safety

Safety and emergency procedures will be detalled throughout the event planning phase.

Specific risk assessments will be produced to ensure that all elements of risk are addressed as far as reasonably practicable
and suitable and sufficient control measures adopted.

An agreed and appropriate level of emergency first aid and ambulance provision will be on site throughout the events. This
will Include mobile FA patrols, the levels of which will be determined by a medical risk assessment and HSG195.

A detailed fire risk assessment will be produced and suitable levels of portable fire fighting equipment will be provided on
site.

Prior approval will be obtained for the use of any special effects and relevant health and safety information will be provided
prior to the event. ’

The applicant will liaise with the London Borough of Haringey Environmental Health Department prior to the events to
ensure that the appropriate information is made available in relation to food handling and hygiene.

A multi-agency Event Control Room managed by the applicant will be operational throughout events.

d) The prevention of public nuisance

The prevention of public nuisance will be managed through pre-event planning arrangements and liaison with statutory
agencies. The EMP will detail the policies to address the prevention of public nuisance.

The applicant will contract a competent acoustic consultant who, in liaison with the Licensing Authority will produce a
Noise Management Plan specific to the event. The acoustic consultant representative will be on site throughout the event
to ensure that noise levels are met.

Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



Page 30

Continued from previous page...

e) The protection of children from harm

Steps to address the protection of children will be identified in pre-event documentation.

The Designated Premises Supervisor will ensure that all bar staff are trained and fully aware and compliant of age
verification procedures and requirements for alcohol sales, for example, Challenge 21.

Age restricted films indicating nudity or semi-nudity will not be shown in the presence of children.

Section 19 of 19

PAYMENT DETAILS

This fee must be paid to the authority. If you complete the application online, you must pay it by debit or credit card.

Premises Licence Fees are determined by the non domestic rateable value of the premises.
To find out a premises non domestic rateable value go to the Valuation Office Agency site at http://www.voa.gov.uk/
business_rates/index.htm

Band A - No RV to £4300 £100.00
Band B - £4301 to £33000 £190.00
Band C - £33001 to £8700 £315.00
Band D - £87001 to £12500 £450.00*
Band E- £125001 and over £635.00*

*If the premises rateable value is In Bands D or E and the premises is primarily used for the consumption of alcohol on the
premises then your are required to pay a higher fee

Band D - £87001 to £12500 £900.00
Band E - £125001 and over £1,905.00

There is an exemption from the payment of fees in relation to the provision of regulated entertainment at church halls,
chapel halls or premises of a similar nature, village halls, parish or community halls, or other premises of a similar nature. The
costs associated with these licences will be met by central Government. If, however, the licence also authorises the use of
the premises for the supply of alcohol or the provision of late night refreshment, a fee will be required.

Schools and sixth form colleges are exempt from the fees associated with the authorisation of regulated entertainment
where the entertainment is provided by and at the school or college and for the purposes of the school or college.

If you operate a large event you are subject to ADDITIONAL fees based upon the number in attendance at any one time

Capacity 5000-9999 £1,000.00
Capacity 10000 -14999 £2,000.00
Capacity 15000-19999 £4,000.00
Capacity 20000-29999 £8,000.00
Capacity 30000-39000 £16,000.00
Capacity 40000-49999 £24,000.00
Capacity 50000-59999 £32,000.00
Capacity 60000-69999 £40,000.00
Capacity 70000-79999 £48,000.00
Capacity 80000-89999 £56,000.00
Capacity 90000 and over £64,000.00

The following credit or debit cards are accepted in Haringey:
Maestro - Mastercard Debit - Mastercard Credit - Solo - Visa Credit - Visa Debit (formerly Delta) and Visa Electron
We cannot accept liability if payment is refused or declined by the card supplier.

Due to end of day processing, this service will not be available between 10pm and 11pm every weekday evening (Mon- Fri).

Queen’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009




Page 31

Continued from previous page...

Users should note that any payments in process after the 10pm deadline need to be completed by 10.05pm

* Fee amount (£) 24,100.00

ATTACHMENTS

AUTHORITY POSTAL ADDRESS o
Address

Building number or name L

Street L
City or town l

|
|
District L |
|
|

County or administrative area L

Postcode |

Country IUnited Kingdom I

DECLARATION

. I/we understand it is an offence, liable on conviction to a fine up to level 5 on the standard scale, under section 158 of the
licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection with this application.

O Ticking this box indicates you have read and understood the above declaration

This section should be completed by the applicant, unless you answered "Yes" to the question "Are you an agent acting on
behalf of the applicant?”

* Full name I |

* Capacity I l

Date (dd/mm/yyyy) |

I Add another signatory |

One you're finished you need to do the following:
1. Save this form to your computer by clicking to file/save as..
.JoV. !

1 to upload this file and continue
with your apphcatlon

Don't forget to make sure you have all your supporting documentation to hand.

ITIS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION TO A FINE NOT EXCEEDING LEVEL 5 ON THE STANDARD
SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION
WITH THIS APPLICATION

~ Queen'’s Printer and Controller of HMSO 2009



ST | ST ST D S| SC rF S [ F D o VA M VO Bl S 1 SRS O TES N OO V) SR S | [ | A
§ 5 4 T rFage a2 .. © g H
b 53 :
1 = | 22 p 0
3 e -E& £86 = .
B2 gr.g % 328 -4
! : i i | @ 313 2l |
| £ : H ‘“ Bl 2uel®
o § 29 g(’)
5 % 8% o2 w 53
e 83 =2
E $3% =3 =
$ 3 3 : S8 s = s
- & q 2 855 wk Bg { o
RS e (38 | ®
fejils & x
z 2 5|
. g I
° J100er | MWL)
J g H ;o [E9).E| |2
! Pl s

i

-




Page 33

APPENDIX 2 — METROPOLITAN POLICE REPRESENTATION



Page 34

MPS representations to Licensing Committee

With regards to the application for an indefinite licence by Live Nation PLC,
the MPS would like to make the following representations to the Licensing
Committee, identifying polieing eoncerns and seeking various conditions to
be imposed.

Police Role

Policing is provided as a public service and is funded from central and local
taxation. The MPS will contribute to the safety of each proposed event by
membership of the Safety Advisory Group.

The MPS will provide a policing response to each event in accordance with
the core police duties, which are the prevention and detection of crime,
keeping the peace and protecting life and property. The MPS will not
perform ‘stewarding’ roles nor undertake the responsibilities of the event
organiser or other agencies, as these are not police core duties, unless there
is a formal request from the event organiser or other agency for Special
Police Services (SPS), which the MPS agree to provide.

Length of the licence

The MPS does have significant concerns about the grant of an indefinite
licence for events in Finsbury Park. Although we appreciate that significant
conditions are likely to be imposed on any licence granted in order to
address these concerns, we nonetheless consider that licensing of a number
of individual events might be more appropriate, and one that would enable
conditions to be tried and tested.

Some of the conditions proposed below might also be appropriate to
individual events but they are primarily proposed in relation to the indefinite
licence applied for.

Notification and Finish Time

The promoter should notify MPS of a proposed event no later than three
calendar months prior to the proposed date and provide an Event



Page 35

Management Plan (EMP). This period allows for adequate event planning to
be undertaken, including liaison between the event organiser, the police and
other impacted public agencies.

Details of artists booked to play at each event should be supplied no later
than three calendar months prior to the event date. This is to enable a
comprehensive risk assessment to be carried out. The MPS acknowledges
and respects that such information could be commercially sensitive and
agrees to take reasonable measures to protect any commercially sensitive
information.

We note that the promoter has asked for regulated entertainment to be
granted until 2300 hrs. Based on our experience of previous events of this
scale, the MPS would request that regulated entertainment Monday to
Saturday stops at 2230 hrs. This is because Finsbury Park is surrounded by
residential property, which would be impacted by late night dispersal, with
any associated crime, disorder and public nuisance. For events held on a
Sunday the MPS would request that regulated entertainment stops at 2200
hrs. This is because of the reduced ability of the transport network to get
people away on a Sunday night.

The serving of Alcohol should cease no later than 30 minutes prior to the
end of the event.

In any case the finish time PER EVENT must be agreed by the SAG at
least one calendar month prior to the event. This is to take into account
other events or travel issues that may have an impact.

Ingress and Egress

Ability to remove patrons quickly and safely from the area is crucial to the -
success of events of large scale in the Park. To that end the MPS would
require that for each event there must be a comprehensive and satisfactory
traffic management plan (TMP), including full details of ingress and egress
management. This must be agreed by MPS, LBH (and other impacted local
traffic authorities), TfL (as traffic authority and for Underground and Buses)
and First Capital Connect. Without the agreement of all parties to the
TMP one month before the event, the event cannot take place.



Page 36

The TMP must be supported by a traffic management order (TMO) which
will provide the lawful authority for all road closures and traffic diversions.
This must have been approved by the relevant traffic authority/ies.

Implementation, management and enforcement of the TMP and TMO must
be by adequately trained stewards. An event TMO may require these to be
CSAS accredited.

Sufficient and appropriately briefed and trained staff must be deployed to
manage queues at all transport hubs significantly affected by each event. The
locations and timings of these deployments to be agreed with the SAG.

Sufficient barriers must be provided in order to facilitate a safe queuing
environment and deliver patrons to the stations at a rate that the stations can
deal with.

The full cost of the TMP, including the TMO, staffing and barrier costs to be
met by the organiser/promoter. Any request for the TMP to be supported by
police officers, over and above the deployment determined by the MPS as
required to discharge the core policing duties associated with each event,
must be by way of a request for Special Police Services (SPS) pursuant to
Section 25 of the Police Act 1996. The MPS reserves full discretion to
refuse any request for SPS, and the TMP must not assume police support.

Crime, disorder and public nuisance

The MPS requires the promoter to work in partnership and make all
reasonable efforts to reduce crime and disorder. The MPS seeks the
following conditions:

- Patrons entering the event should be subject to an effective search as a
condition of entry; This may include the use of metal detecting wands and
‘search arches’ at ingress points. The level of search that patrons should be
subjected too should be agreed with the SAG after an intelligence
assessment.

- The organiser to provide pre, during and post event crime prevention
messaging through all available channels including social media and on-site
screens, this messaging to be agreed with the MPS and be given sufficient
prominence on site and on major ingress and egress routes;



Page 37

- There must be satisfactory stewarding and SIA accredited staffto deal with
all reasonable eventualities, to be correctly briefed so they can engage with
patrons in order to help prevent crime within the event footprint;

- CCTV should be provided and the ability to provide recordings of footage
in a removable format on site within a reasonable time. This footage should
be made available upon request of the MPS; as a guide the minimum
requirements for CCTV are as follows:

e (Cameras on the entrances must capture full frame shots of the heads
and shoulders of all people entering the premises i.e. capable of
identification.

e Provide a linked record of the date, time, and place of any image.

e Provide good quality colour images during opening times.

e Have a monitor to review images and recorded quality.

e Be regularly maintained to ensure continuous quality of image capture
and retention.

e Staff trained in operating CCTV.

e Digital images must be kept for 31 days. The equipment must have a
suitable export method, e.g. CD/DVD writer so that Police can make
an evidential copy of the data they require. Copies must be available
within a reasonable time to Police on request.

Where the MPS Gold commander for the event considers it necessary to
deploy officers overtly or covertly within the event space then the promoter
should make every effort to facilitate this.

Artist Behaviour
All artists should be made aware of their legal responsibilities not to cause

offence or incite hatred or disorder and be informed that their right to
freedom of expression is a qualified right. The police will not hesitate to take



Page 38

action where necessary and proportionate should their behaviour comprise a
criminal offence or give rise to an actual or imminent breach of the peace. If
the MPS intelligence assessment suggests that an artist is likely to commit
offences or cause disorder then the MPS will object to that artist performing
at the event. The MPS asks that the ability of police to say ‘No’ to an artist
be made a licensing condition.

Major incident and contingencies

The EMP should incorporate major incident plans and procedures. These
plans should address crowd safety issues, RVP’s, access by emergency
vehicles and arrangements for casualty evacuation.

The EMP should also include protocols for transference of control of the

event to the MPS Silver commander in the event of a major incident or any
incident beyond the capacity of the stewards to deal with.

The protection of children from harm

The MPS expects the promoter to operate a robust Challenge 21 policy with
regards to the sale of alcohol on site.

There should be sufficient provision by appropriately trained and accredited
staff to deal with any U18’s requiring assistance.

Andrew Underwood PS 90YR

Haringey BOCU



Page 39

APPENDIX 3 —ENVIROMENTAL HEALTH- ENFORCEMENT RESPONSE
REPRESENTATION



Page 40

Haringey Council

Licensing Consultation
To: Licensing Officer
From: Enforcement Response Officer (Noise)

Name of Officer preparing representation: Derek Pearce

Our Reference: WK266314
Date: 20" November 2013
Premises: Finsbury Park, Green Lanes, London, N4

New application by Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd

| would like to confirm that we have considered the above proposal with regérd to the
prevention of public nuisance on behalf of the Enforcement Response (Noise) Team &
would like to make representations to the Application

The operating schedule needs to adequately address the prevention of public nuisance.
We consider that the proposed operating hours are inappropriate due to the close
proximity of residential dwellings and the noise caused by patrons exiting the premises
and locating suitable transport home is likely to be detrimental to the residential amenity.
This may be exacerbated by the level of public transport available at the proposed closing
hours. This representation recommends that the following alterations/conditions to the
operating schedule:

Operating hours

1) That regulated entertainment ceases at 22:30 and the premises closes no later than
23:00.

Reason: A finishing time of 23:00 will not guarantee that suitable public transport will be
available. This could result in thousands of members of the public being stranded in the
immediate and surrounding areas causing a public nuisance. Advice should be taken
from TFL nearer each event date and an earlier end time agreed should TFL consider an
earlier closing time is required.

Dealing with complaints

2) A complaints book will be held on the premises to record details of any complaints
received from neighbours through the dedicated noise line and the action taken. The
information is to include, where disclosed, the complainant’s name, location, date time
and subsequent remedial action undertaken. This record must be made available at all
times for inspection by council officers

www.haringey.gov.uk/noise



Page 41

Prevention of nuisance from light

3) Security lights/tower will be positioned to minimise light intrusion to nearby residential
premises.

Stage areas

4) The Licensing Authority should be consulted regarding the siting of all stages in the
premises and agree on their location for all productions.

5) The Premises Licence holder / appointed noise consultant shall be aware of the
guidance contained in the Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts
and make use of its recommendations where appropriate to the circumstances of this
application.

6) Information provided to residents and businesses 2 weeks prior to the event must
include a synopsis of information about the event including dates and times based upon
the Premises Licence application, information on how it is intended residents will be
protected from excessive noise and details of a dedicated and live complaints telephone
line. The Licensing team will provide a list of roads specifying the required distribution list.
A draft of the letter to residents and businesses must be provided to the Haringey
Licensing team no later than 5 weeks prior to the event.

7) No sound checks shall take place other than on the day before the first day of the
event and no sound rehearsal shall take place except on the first day of the event. On the
day before the event sound checks shall not exceed 2 hours and on the first day of the
event rehearsals including sound checks shall not exceed 2 hours. Times of sound
checks and rehearsal to be agreed by the Licensing Authority.

8) Monitoring of the locations representative of the noise sensitive premises (indicated
below) must be undertaken by the appointed noise consultant on behalf of the Premises
Licence holder throughout the times where there is regulated entertainment of any kind
and readings / noise levels must be stored for subsequent reporting or disclosure to
appointed Licensing Authority representatives as they are obtained and upon request at
any time. A minimum of two persons must be available outside the park to monitor noise
levels and to provide a response to complainants.

9) Table of Approved locations representative of the noise sensitive premises likely to
experience the greatest increase in noise levels as a result of events held in Finsbury Park
N4 and permitted noise levels

Location Background Noise Level
[Hourly LA90] Notes
19:00-23:00hrs
Seven Sisters Road, N4 63 dB(A) Taken approx. mid-way

along park length.
Very busy main road-
traffic predominates.

Adolphus Road, N4 51 dB(A) Taken mid-way
between Gloucester
Drive & Alexandra
Grove.




Page 42

Runs parallel to Seven
Sisters Road- minimal
traffic - shielded by
medium rise flats.

Woodstock Road, N4 47 dB(A)

Taken at North bend.
Separated from park by
busy railway line - rear
bedrooms face park.

Stapleton Hall Road, N4 41 dB(A)

Taken 30m East of
junction with
Quernmore Road.
Residential - minimal
traffic - located on a hill
overlooking North side
of park.

Lothair Road South, N4 46 dB(A)

Taken 30m East of
junction with Alroy Rd.
Parallel to Endymion
Road.

Rowley Gardens, N4 49 dB(A)

Taken centre of
“quadrangle”.

On East side of park &
in middle of high rise
flats.

Sound levels at the representative locations

Sound levels should not exceed the above background by more than 15dB when
measured as a 15 minute Leq. The guidance of the Licensing officer representative will be

complied with by the Premises Licence holder in regard to sound levels.

General

10) A Noise Management Plan which is regularly updated in the run up to the event and is
a “Live” document will be made available to the Licensing Authority and their

representatives.




Page 43

APPENDIX 4 — LICENSING AUTHORITY- LICENSING REPRESENTATION



Page 44

Haringey Council

Licensing Consultation

To: Licensing Officer

From: Licensing Authority (RA)

Our Reference: Live Nation

Date: 20" November 2013

Premises: Finsbury Park, Endymion Road, London, N4

New application by Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd

I would like to confirm that we have considered the above proposal with regard to the four
licensing objectives on behalf of the Licensing Authority, and would like to make representations
to the application

The Licensing Authority are making representation against the application. We believe that
conditions need to be defined and included within any granted licence that will give safeguards to
residents and the Council in ensuring that the four licensing objectives are adequately addressed.

General matters:
The consent of the Licensing Authority must be given for the proposed event to take place.

Unless otherwise agreed with the Council, the total number of people to be
accommodated for the purposes of this Licence, in any event site at any one time shall
not be more than 49,999 (this figure must also include security, staff, catering concession
staff, performers and employees ). '

The tickets manifest must be shown to the Licensing Officer and a copy kept by LBH.

In considering the licensable activities being applied for and the times for these activities we
would make representation against the finish times requested.

We know from previous concerts in Finsbury Park that a finish time of 22:30 on Monday to
Saturday night, the hours for Sunday should be reduced to 22:00 for show down. These finishing
times will enable the crowds in attendance to access the transport system in order to make a safe
journey home.

No events will be able to continue beyond 10.30pm as this is also a factor of the hire agreement
and the current Parks Policy.

www.haringey.gov.uk/licensing



Page 45

The ability for public transport to be able to take crowds away from the concert area at the end of
the event is crucial to achieving the Public Safety and Prevention of Crime and Disorder licensing
objectives.

The times requested are supported by guidance from Transport for London on the feasibility of
getting customers away from the area.

The cessation times for the sale of alcohol should be 22:00 Monday to Saturday nights and 21:30
on a Sunday.

Live Nation will submit notification of their intention to hold an event in Finsbury Park by giving the
Licensing Authority and Metropolitan Police (MPS) 3 months notice before the intended event
date.

The plans, proposals and particulars submitted as part of the application shall be complied with,
in particular the final detailed Event Management Plan, including the associated Event Security
and Traffic Management Plans, must be agreed with the Licensing Authority, Councils Highways
Authority, Metropolitan Police and Transport for London (TFL) no later than 1 month prior to the
proposed event date.

There will be no changes to finalise agreed EMP 1 month before the proposed event.

Permission for any deviation from this agreed EMP must be approved by the Licensing Authority
before the license holder makes any alterations after this time.

The events shall be conducted in compliance with the Purple Guide Book for Safety at Outdoor
Concerts.

Good quality CCTV Coverage must be provided to cover the concert site and all entry/egress
routes to and from the concert site.

An agreed robust search regime must be put in place as part of the agreed EMP, that will ensure
the use of walk through security arches and the use of wands as well as pat downs and facilitate
the searching of bags and removal of any weapons/drugs.

The provision and erection of an integrated system of prominent temporary signage, dlrectlng
Concert Patrons to and from the Concert Site.

The locations of public toilets should be the subject of prominent directional sighage.

The provision of adequate Temporary Lighting to be shown on layout map. Emergency lights to
be turned on 1 hour before sunset.

The provision of adequate receptacles at each entrance to the Park for the storage and removal of
seized alcohol.

No additional licences for casual trading will be considered in any area in close proximity to the
Park on concert dates.



Page 46

The provision and location of any ticket sales booth for the Concerts must be agreed as part of
the EMP.

Upon request, authorised enforcement officers of the Responsible Authorities on duty in
that capacity: Licensing Authority, Environmental Health Team, Metropolitan Police
Service and London Fire Brigade, must be provided with security passes for full and free
access at all times to each and every part of the licensed area.

EMP to include a strategy to give crime prevention advice and assistance to customers against
theft, pick pockets, etc. There should be information points within the event space and at the
entrance to the park.

The Licensee shall ensure that no person below the relevant age shall be permitted to view or
participate in any performance subjected to age-related restrictions. Such steps to be set out and
agreed as part of the EMP.

A full list of proposed artists must be provided to the Licensing Authority and Police 3 months
prior to intended event date. Any artistes that are a cause of concern will be subject to a Form
H696 being completed and submitted to the Police. They will have the ability to say ‘No’ to an
artist that is not considered acceptable.

The Licensee shall advise the performer to refrain from mingling with the audience, especially if
there is a risk of an over-zealous audience. Any interaction with the audience must be pre-
planned and agreed with the Licensing Authority. If the performer wishes to come down from the
stage to interact with the audience, this should not be for more than 15 minutes for the entire
performance unless otherwise stipulated by the Licensing Officer. If necessary, the performer
must be escorted by sufficient security personnel. The Licensee shall also pre-select/limit the
number of audience who wish to go on stage to present perform with the performer. No
performer will climb any structure of the stage.

The Licensee shall ensure that performers do not sing or play any vulgar, obscene or banned
songs or carry out indecent acts or make any vulgar gestures, actions or remarks during the
performance. He shall also ensure that the attire of the performers do not offend the general
public, e.g., attire which expose the groin, private parts, buttock or female breast(s).

The Licensee shall ensure that the songs / acts performed do not offend or denigrate any race or
religion, demean, humiliate or insult the dignity of any section of the community.

The required number of designated disabled car park spaces shall be provided and shown on the
layout plan. Induction loops should be provided at customer service points. A platform for
disabled viewing must be provided to accommodate the numbers of wheelchair users and people
with disabilities attending the events (including their carers where appropriate). The platform
should have easy level access to and from the concert site. Dedicated toilet provision shall also
be located adjacent to the viewing platform. There should be an adequate number of
SIA/Stewards designated to assist in the smooth operation of all facilities in this regard.

The timings of events to be agreed to ensure that there is no conflict with nearby schools and
concert goers.

Any music in the hospitality areas will be played at background levels after the main showdown
times.



Page 47

Communication conditions

A plan of the area that must be leafleted by the promoter no less that 14 days before the event is
due to begin, this must be agreed with the licensing authority, Parks Service and Councils
Highway Authority This leaflet will have the information relating to any traffic management order,

complaints line information, times of rehearsals, travel information, Waste/Litter Management
Plan, vehicular access/parking restrictions, pedestrian access restrictions, preferred access
routes etc.

A community hotline as outlined in the Enforcement Response representation must be provided
and staffed by the promoter/or agency. This line must be in operation from 09:00 to midnight on
the day of each concert. The facility is for local residents/businesses to call in with any complaints
or concerns relating to issues surrounding the concerts. The community hotline number is to be
published in the leaflet circulated by the promoter.

A contact number for residents for complaints during the build up and break down periods is also
to be provided.

Complaints or concerns that cannot be dealt with by the promoter should be referred onto the
appropriate Agency or the Licensing Officer onsite. A log of all calls must be kept and should be
inclusive of name, address, telephone number, details of complaint, action taken, and any
resolutions/outcomes.

A copy of the log of calls and associated information must be sent by e-mail to the Licensing
Officer licensing@haringey.gov.uk following each concert. Figures on ejections from the event due
to drugs or excessive alcohol use and or anti-social behaviour must be recorded. A medical
breakdown will also need to recorded and given to the Licensing Authority on request.

A communication system must be provided to ensure the effective operation of the site
under both normal and emergency evacuation conditions. The Licensee must provide an
adequate incident control centre and a rendezvous point for the Police and other
emergency services.

There shall be a welfare point (or equivalent area) for the reporting and management of
lost children. The welfare point will be staffed by trained (and appropriately certified by
the Criminal Records Bureau) members of staff who will be in radio contact with the head
steward and the safety co-ordinator.

Waste considerations:

The Waste/Litter Management Plan contained in the Final Event Management Plan must be
complied with in full. The pedestrian routes into the park must be looked after by litter teams
during and after the Concerts. The specific areas will be: Station Place frontage on Finsbury Park
Station, Stroud Green Road from Morris Place down to junction with Seven Sisters Road. Seven
Sisters Road up to Manor House Station (including up to 150m into all side roads of Seven Sisters
Road). Oxford Road, Perth Road, Woodstock Road and Ennis Road. These areas must be litter
free by 6am on the morning after each Concert.

Neighbourhood Action Officers from Haringey Council will carry out ongoing inspections in the
areas outlined above on concert days and an inspection the morning following each Concert.

A sufficient number of easily identifiable, readily accessible receptacles for refuse must be
provided, including provisions for concessions. Arrangements must be made for regular



Page 48

collection. Public areas must be kept clear of refuse and other combustible waste prior to
and, so far as is reasonably practicable, during the licensed event.

An information point or points to be made available around the site for customers to report
concerns, lost phones, bags etc. Staff to be able to assist customers in contacting relevant
companies to block phones or to put a stop on lost cards etc.

Alcohol considerations:

The details in the final EMP relating to the Bars at the Events shall be complied with. The drinks
can only be dispensed in plastic/paper cups or plastic bottles. No glass or cans are permitted.
Appropriate SIA and stewarding must be in place at all times to ensure that no underage person is
sold or is consuming alcohol on the concert site. All bars must close by 22:00 on the night of each
concert / 21:30 on a Sunday night.

The name and contact telephone number of the Designated Premises Supervisor shall be
displayed in a prominent position on the premises, so that it is clearly visible. Each bar
should have a named individual managing the bar and this person must be Personal
license holder.

Bars will not be permitted to run price promotions, happy hours or other promotions
designed to encourage excessive drinking.

If mobile drink servers are to be placed in the crowd (MDS), they will need to be accompanied by
SIA approved officers throughout the event. We would prefer this service was not offered and
customers made to attend the bars to purchase alcohol.

SIA and Stewards

The provision of an agreed number of SIA and stewards at agreed locations outside the
environs of the Park as part of the EMP, to ensure guidance is being given and directing
concert patrons to the concert site both before and after the concerts.

All staff should be able to describe the provisions for disabled people’s access.

The Licence Holder shall employ sufficient numbers of stewards/marshals as required by
the size of the event as agreed in the EMP to ensure that patrons leave the premises
safely

SIA stewards and general stewards must be proactive in preventing public urination in and around
the park and must be fully briefed.in this regard.

SIA and general Stewards must be proactive and prevent large queues forming at sanitary
accommodation areas. They must assist in the diversion of spectators from these over-crowded
areas to alternative sanitary accommodation.



Page 49

Any queue which forms outside the premises shall be stewarded at all times to ensure
that minimal disturbance is caused.

The Licensee shall encourage patrons not to congregate outside the premises after the
event has finished.

Promotional literature and tickets will contain information regarding public transport
options and public conveniences and shall request persons to leave the area in an orderly
manner.

Publicity and signage shall be produced to provide access information in advance of the
event.

Sanitation.

The contact details of the supervisor for the sanitary facilities to be provided to the Licensing
Officer.

The provision of adequate portable toilet facilities outside the concert site. a. Each block of toilets
to be suitably located to serve the event goers both on ingress as well as egress from the event.
Toilets to be located :-

Between Finsbury and Stroud Green Gate

Between Finsbury Gate and Hornsey Tavern Gate
Between Hornsey Tavern Gate and Manor House Gate
South of the main cafe above the concert area.

1 e N

Egress.

Unless otherwise agreed, the Licensee must ensure an Egress Management Plan is
presented to and agreed by the Haringey Safety Advisory Group, or their authorised
representative, no later than 28 days prior to the event. Please note: The Egress
Management Plan may require the closure of Seven Sisters Road or other surrounding
roads with the approval of the relevant authorities. The robust management of this plan
may require assistance from the Metropolitan Police and costs associated with this will
be met by the promoter. Provision of policing requirements should be risked assessed
for each event.

For the avoidance of doubt the footprint of the concert will be viewed to include the areas
within the traffic management order. Other transport hubs away from Finsbury Park
station itself may require additional stewarding from the promoter Costs are to be met by
the promoter.

If the Egress plan requires the closure of Seven Sisters Road, agreement must be sought
with TFL-Roads.

The provision of an agreed number of SIA and stewards at agreed locations outside the
concert site to ensure concert goers do not exit the park into residential streets other than
via those exits detailed in the Egress Management Plan.



Page 50
Health and Safety

Adequate rigid barriers or fences designed to adequately resist right-angle and parallel
loads commensurate with probable crowd pressure must be provided around any stage
and other location where it is necessary to limit crowd pressure in the interests of safety.

Details of all marquees, tented structures and temporary structures should be provided
including emergency exits and signage, fire warning and fire fighting equipment.

Al fabric, including curtains and drapes used on stage for tents and marquees, or plastic
and weather sheeting, shall be inherently or durably flame retardant to the relevant British
Standards. Certificates of Compliance must be available upon request

Full structural design details and calculations of all and any structures to be erected
within the licensed area, must be submitted to The licensing Authority 3 months
beforehand. A certificate from a competent person or engineer that a completed structure
has been erected in accordance with the structural drawings and design specification
must be available for inspection prior to a relevant structure being used during the
licensed event.

Any moving flown equipment must contain a device or method whereby failure in the
lifting system would not allow the load to fall. All hung scenery and equipment must be
provided with a minimum of two securely fixed independent suspensions such that in the
event of failure of one suspension the load will be safely sustained

The Event Organiser, contractor and any staff employed thereof shall comply with the
Conditions of this Licence.

All functions relating to the setting up, the execution and dismantling of the event, the
licensed area and all equipment are carried out in accordance with the Health and Safety
at Work etc. Act 1974 and all related regulations, Codes of Practice and Guidance Notes.
The Promoter must afford all assistance for the necessary inspections relating to Health
and Safety both prior to and during the licensed event. All documentation required by the
Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 relating to contractors and employees must be
available for inspection by authorised officers at all times during the licensed event.

There shall be a welfare point (or equivalent area) for the reporting and management of
lost children. The welfare point will be staffed by trained (and appropriately certified by
the Criminal Records Bureau) members of staff who will be in radio contact with the head
steward and the safety co-ordinator.

Notification of any teams to be used related to the protection of merchandise must be shared with
the Licensing Authority. Such teams do not have powers to deal with street trading or counterfeit
merchandising matters outside of the licensed area.

The build up and break down time lines and changes to routes through the Park to be shared with
the Licensing Team and Park Service to enable the relevant dates etc to be passed through to the
public as part of the EMP.

The Licensing Authority reserves the right where it is considered that one or more of the above
conditions have not been met to its satisfaction the consent for the event will not be given.

Haringey Licensing Authority.



Page 51

Anderson Chanel

From: Barrett Daliah

Sent: 04 December 2013 12:19

To: Anderson Chanel

Subject: FW: Application for a New Premises Licence- Live Nation, Finsbury Park, Seven Sisters

Road, London N4 (WK/266314)

Importance: High

From: King Neal [mailto:Neal.King@tube.tfl.gov.uk]

Sent: 18 November 2013 15:24

To: Furlong Nigel; Crowson Darren (TPH); Kelly Mark (ST); Rys Elena (ST); Barrett Daliah; 'Irons, Steve (PC)'

Cc: Harris Nicole; Priestley Stephen (Events and Closures); Dickson Marc (Events & Closures); Meek Stuart (Network
Control & Resilience Manager)

Subject: RE: Application for a New Premises Licence- Live Nation, Finsbury Park, Seven Sisters Road, London N4
(WK/266314)

Importance: High

Hi Dale,

From a London Underground perspective it would be difficult for us to support 2300 hours
weekdays or more especially on Sundays and safely get everyone away from the event. As you
are aware, we have discussed finish times on many occasions as part of the planning process for
previous events and these proposed times seek to extend them by up to 60 minutes.

| would be happy to provide the figures that LU have produced surrounding event capacities and
train services in the Finsbury Park area in a more formal manner, but wanted to get this to you
before the deadline.

Regards

Neal King Dip EP MEPS
Network Contingency Planning Manager

Phone 020 7918 3890

Mobile 07764 650705

Fax 020 7918 0038

Connect 32517

Email neal.king@tube.tfl.gov.uk

P please don't print this e-mail unless you really need to

Keepirﬁ; London moving since 1863 §

al

From: Furlong Nigel
Sent: 18 November 2013 09:22
To: Crowson Darren (TPH); King Neal; Kelly Mark (ST); Rys Elena (ST)

i 1



Page 52

APPENDIX 5— LETTER OF REPRESENTATION FROM ‘OTHER PARTIES’



Page 53

Barrett Daliah

From: Bruce Kent [brucek @ uk2.net]
Sent: 21 November 2013 11:09
To: Licensing

Subject: Live nation application

Dear Haringey

As a local resident | wish to registyer my strong objections to the Live Nation application for a three day event in
Finsbury Park July 2014 with an alcohol licence up to a late hour at night.
There are already enough problems with alcohol in this neighbourhood and enough places where irt can be

purchased,.
We do not need other outlets especially in a context where bad behaviour may well be the result.

Bruce Kent

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 54

Barrett Daliah

Subject: FW: objection to Live Nation Finsbury Park license

Name and address is

Geoff Lowe And Norisah Abdullah

Kind regards

Geoff

From: Geoffrey Lowe [mailto:geoff.lowe@gmail.com]
Sent: 21 November 2013 17:34

To: Licensing
Subject: objection to Live Nation Finsbury Park license

Dear sirs

I'd like to raise an objection to this as I think the few concerts we have every year already bring the area
down, cause mess and destroy the park.

I can't see an obvious way to file an objection on the website.

Don't hesitate to get in touch should you have any further questions.

Kind regards

Geoff Lowe

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 55

Barrett Daliah

To: Barrett Daliah
Subject: FW: live nation application

----- Original Message----- o -
From: ms smith“[mailto:product.help.payphones@bt.com]

Sent: 21 November 2013 16:21
To: Licensing
Subject: live nation application

To licensing i wish to state concerns about the potential public nuisance caused by the
live nation events proposed in finsbury park, n4 previous events in the park have caused
residents in nearby roads such as woodstock road noise nuisance during the events and
despite noise oficers at certain events held in the park there has ben need to report the
noise as a nuisance i propose a restriction on the level of noise permitted at such events
monitered by official noise officers and for residents to be informed in advance of the
events and who to co*mplain to if need be during such an event also carefull consideration
of the location of loud speakers and tents etc that are generating music/ noise ie as far
away from residents as is possible eg se next email

2nd email whe2nd email when tents pumping out loud music and/ or speakers have been
situated on or near to the green space closest to woodstock road or near the skateboard
park or ara where basket bal is played near the cafe in the park this has caused alot of
noise nuisance2nd email when tents pumping out loud music areas in my view, i also think
that the current permitted decibel levels in public spaces in haringey is too high and
inevitably will cause noise disturbance in a public open space, on a public safety concern
potential alcohol issues and antisocial behaviour in or around the event and parking
issues and how late the events will go on for 1lpm seems late, see final email.

3rd 3rd email to continue, concerns about littering and general damage to the parks space
by any such events of a large scale and potential drud related issues alongside the
potential alcohol isues at such events please confirm receipt of my emails today
0n@7534385590 thankyou, do not think alcohol should be available uch events for public
safety issues, ms smith. 07534385590, leave a message to confirm your receipt of all 3
emails thankyou.

This email was sent from a BT Payphone. If you have any comments or queries on this

service please feel free to mailto:product.help.payphones@bt.com or visit our web site at

http://www.payphones.bt.com/

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 56

Anderson Chanel

From: Mike Ash [mike @ mikeash.co.uk]
Sent: 15 November 2013 11:03

To: Licensing

Subject: Re: Live Nation Finsbury Park

RE: Live Nation Finsbury Park application

Dear Sir or Madam,

Please record my objection to the above application on the grounds of public nuisance, and the prevention
of crime and disorder, and safety.

Large concerts of this nature bring great problems to the local area; the Stone Roses concert created an
unsafe atmosphere for the local residents where, for example, Stroud Green Primary School was used as
an outdoor toilet, and large numbers of drunken concert goers made the area unsafe.

The park is converted into a building site for the weeks either side of the concert. Large lorries and
construction machinery clearly do not mix with small children running around in the park. | have witnessed
a few near misses and it is surely only a matter of time before a tragic accident happens.

The loud noise of the concert while stopping at 11 ish, still ruins a weekend for those who live near the
event.

| would like to know why Live Nation no longer have their events in Hyde Park? If the council there
objected, the same principle should apply to Finsbury Park.

Mike Ash

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 57

Anderson Chanel

— — — — S
From: Barrett Daliah on behalf of Licensing
Sent: 21 November 2013 10:23
To: Anderson Chanel
Subject: FW: Live Nation Application

From: Rich [mailto:rich.gittins@yahoo.co.uk]
Sent: 21 November 2013 07:00

To: Licensing

Subject: Live Nation Application

Dear sir/madam,

I am writing with reference to the Live Nation application for Finsbury Park.

I object to Live Nation being granted their application on the following grounds:

The application shouldn't be up for consideration prior to the decision of the Finsbury
Park event policy being made as the application contravenes the current policy.

The map of the event area is much larger than that detailed in the proposed event policy.

The public meeting with Live Nation didn't allow sufficient time for concerned residents
to review the plans and make arrangements to be present.

An urban music festival shouldn't carry over onto a school day. There are many local
schools that lie in close proximity to Finsbury Park.

Many thanks for your time and your consideration
Kind regards

Rich Gittins

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 58

Barrett Daliah

From: Jamie [jamie.douglas@gmail.com]
Sent: 04 November 2013 09:57

To: Licensing

Subject: Live Nation Finsbury Park

Dear Sir/Madam

I am writing to object to the granting on an indefinite license for Live Nation to hold events in Finsbury
Park.

I believe this will create a disproportionate public nuisance.

All the events in the park are intrusive and create some level of nuisance. I am not opposed to them in
principle. But the addition of new potential events will create a spillover of disorder and nuisance.

Given how much space is being allocated to the license this will inevitably create potential for harm for
children in the rest of the park.

I would ask you to reject this application.
Best wishes

James Inman

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 59

Barrett Daliah

From: carrie@mikeash.co.uk

Sent: 15 November 2013 11:25

To: Licensing

Subject: Objection to Live Nation Finsbury Park application

Dear Sir/Madam

I am writing to express my strong objection to the licence application for concerts/events in Finsbury Park by Live
Nation.

| understand | need to list my objections in relation to your objectives, so these are outlined below.

The prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention of public nuisance

As was seen in the recent Stone Roses, crime and disorder increased over the weekend — there were some
attacks to members of the public reported (one | think involved a knife). Also levels of disorder increased
tremendously. Residents and a local primary school reporied several cases of festival go-ers urinating in gardens
and the school playground. This isn't the first time this has happened, and seems to be a (very unwelcome) by-
product of large outdoor concerts in an urban environment.

Public safety and the protection of children from harm

As mentioned above, large events such as the Stone Roses concert bring huge numbers of people, to a local area,
and violent behaviour increases, which is threatening to adults and children. Also, despite the speed limits put on
vehicles setting up, these aren't always kept to, and the large vehicles are not compatible with a leisure area where
young children come to play. | have seen near misses in the past, and when my children were younger | resented
having to keep them on such a tight leash to keep them out of danger from the huge vehicles, when usually I'd
been able to give them a relative amount of freedom when visiting the park.

| understand that Hyde Park have rejected Live Nation’s application, and strongly feel that Finsbury Park should
reject the application too.

Yours faithfully

Carrie Anker.

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Anderson Chanel

Page 60

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

My address:

marian broderick [mariansbroderick @ hotmail.com]
18 November 2013 10:44

Licensing

Re: Live Nationj application

Thanks
Marian

Sent from my iPhone

On 18 Nov 2013, at 09:38, Licensing <Licensing.Licensing@haringey.gov.uk> wrote:

Dear Madam,

Please can you supply your address to make this a valid representation.

Regards

Daliah Barrett

From: marian broderick [mailto:mariansbroderick@hotmail.com]

Sent: 16 November 2013 16:22
To: Licensing
Subject: Live Nationj application

Dear Sir/Madam
1 would like to object to the application from Live Nation for an indefinite premises licence for events.

The prevention of crime and disorder -

Where alcohol is served there is a likelihood of a minority of concert attendees becoming drunk and
disorderly, with attendant problems. The necessity for local police to concentrate on this area will
impact on the rest of the borough. There was a well publicized and well witnessed crowd fracas at the
last event, which impacted on the innocent people who witnessed it as well as the wider community.

Public safety ~

| witnessed mothers with small children and buggies unable to get safely across the park because of
the erection of hoardings blocking their way, and the increase in heavy vehicular traffic during set-up
and take-down. | also worry that those going home alone from events invariably have to go through
dark, wooded areas before reaching the better-lit main roads. This is not safe, particularly for women.



Page 61
The prevention of public nuisance -
| witnessed crowds pouring down Lothair Road after a similar event in the park, and pulling saplings
out of the ground and breaking off the branches of larger trees. | don't see why the same shouldn't
happen the next time there is an event, and when the crowds have destroyed all the trees, | expect
they will start on the gardens, and then the houses. '

The protection of children from harm -

The litter, mess, broken glass etc that is invariably left behind - and not promptly cleared by Haringey
Council afterwards, in my experience - turns the park into a festering, dangerous tip for the hundreds
of children who run around it, playing, and who oftert have nowhere €lse to go. The park being open
much later than its regular times will encourage side activities such as prostitutioh. This will lead to
more usedicondomsilving:around andibeing pickediup byvicurious:smallichildren:

Yours faithfully

Marian Broderick

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential, may be subject to legal privilege
and are intended only for the person(s) or organisation(s) to whom this email is addressed.
Any unauthorised use, retention, distribution, copying or disclosure is strictly prohibited. If
you have received this email in error, please notify the system administrator at Haringey
Council immediately and delete this e-mail from your system. Although this e-mail and any
attachments are believed to be free of any virus or other defect which might affect any
computer or system into which they are received and opened, it is the responsibility of the
recipient to ensure they are virus free and no responsibility is accepted for any loss or
damage from receipt or use thereof. All communications sent to or from external third party
organisations may be subject to recording and/or monitoring in accordance with relevant
legislation.

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 62

Barrett Daliah

From: Siobhan Stamp [siobhanstamp@googlemail.com]
Sent: 15 November 2013 18:18

To: Licensing

Subject: Licence application for Finsbury Park from Live Nation

Dear sir/madam

I wish to register my strong objection to this application. As a local resident, I am very concerned by the
impact on the infrastructure of the park, on personal safety for normal users of the park, particularly children
(who will be at the height of their use of the park in midsummer), on the wildlife of the park (particularly
birds who are in the middle of the nesting period), and on crime across the area surrounding the park. I
particularly object to a licence to sell alcohol for such long periods in each day, and to extend the area used
beyond the normal area of the park. I have a grave concern about the public nuisance that would be caused
to residents, particularly users of the Park and those who live in nearby streets. I think it would be a
dereliction of the Council's duty to grant any licence to last more than one event, and certainly not Live
Nation, who have caused problems to residents elsewhere. Granting of this license is not in the interests of
residents of Haringey.

Yours sincerely

Siobhan Stamp

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 63

Barrett Daliah

From: Mike Purser [mjpurser@hotmail.com]

Sent: 04 November 2013 16:10

To: Licensing

Subject: License Application from Live Nation for use of Finsbury park

I am writing to object to the license application from Live nation for an indefinite premises license for
events in Finsbury Park.

This is an inappropriate extension of usage which if granted will further add to the inconvenience to local
residents caused by noise and large crowds in the area. Previous experience of large events in Finsbury
Park over the last year has been poor, with an increase anti-social behaviour, disorder and violence seen at
such events, for example the Stone Roses concert. The inconvenience is not confined to the Park itself,
with congestion caused by large gatherings arriving and leaving events.

yours sincerely

M. J. Purser

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




as from:

email:

Page 64

SGRA

STROUD GREEN
RESIDENTS’ASSOCIATION

kit.greveson@ gmail.com

Licensing Team

Units 271-272

Lee Valley Technopark
Ashley Road

London N17 9LN

21° November 2013

Dear Sirs,

Re:

LIVE NATION (MUSIC) UK LTD.

On behalf of the Stroud Green Residents’ Association I would like to strongly voice SGRA’s objection
to the application by Live Nation for an indefinite license for provision of regulated entertainment and
supply of alcohol in Finsbury Park.

SGRA is objecting on similar grounds to its response to the application one year ago by SJM and is
basing these current objections on the appalling mismanagement of the Stone Roses concert and its
extremely negative impact on the park and the surrounding neighbourhood following the event thus:

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder / Public Safety

A large percentage of violent crimes, assaults and criminal damage are from offenders under the
direct influence of alcohol and/or drugs. It is acknowledged generally that crime is often a
problem in entertainment areas where alcohol is available for a large part of the day and
certainly into the late evening. With an audience of 49,999 the application to potentially supply
alcohol from 10.00 to 23.00 every day of the week could constitute a threat to public safety both
in the park and in the surrounding neighbourhood. These events attract a widespread following
by both ticketed and non-ticketed fans, leading to numbers far beyond those expected and to
control problems both within Finsbury Park and in the immediate vicinity. SGRA is also
concerned about the time it could take to evacuate such a large number of people (plus any
others not attending the event) from the park in the event of an emergency. Finsbury Park is a
popular local leisure facility heavily used by families with young children. The footprint of the
proposed event area extends right to the boundary of the children’s play area. This has severe
safety implications for family users in this area.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

SGRA members who live in close proximity to Finsbury Park experienced first hand the
disgusting anti-social behaviour last July during the Stone Roses live music event. Local
residents had to put up with fans urinating and defecating in their gardens and SGRA has
photographic images of men urinating into the local school playground. At a recent local
meeting a Metropolitan police representative explained to angry residents that whilst this
constituted a public order offence, it was impossible to police it as the offenders had left the
scene long before officers arrived to deal with them. This behaviour is intolerable and SGRA is
at a loss to know why Haringey Council would consider a potential repeat in 2014 by any



Page 65

events promoter. Although residents were led to believe that Haringey Council had agreed
robust measures to prevent these occurrences last Summer, the reality is that they are
impossible to control.

SGRA is concerned at noise pollution as the noise from these large-scale events is loud and
intrusive, not only during the concert itself but prior to the event during rehearsals and sound
checks. SGRA would also like to mention that Live Nation events had to move from Hyde Park
this past year following complaints from residents over the noise levels and nuisance. I have
heard first hand from many residents who have become resigned to the fact that the noise is so
intrusive in their homes and gardens that the only solution is-to spend the days of ‘the event
elsewhere. It is unacceptable that Haringey Council is again planning to subject its council tax
payers in this way.

Live Nation has been given permission to hold a 3-day music event from 4™ to 6" July 2104 in
Finsbury Park subject to obtaining an entertainments license. This will negatively impact on
school children as various local schools are in the immediate vicinity of the park and sound
checks for the event would undoubtedly be heard at the school unless scheduled in the late
afternoon/evening.

¢ The Protection of Children from Harm

SGRA is extremely worried about exposing young children to an environment where alcohol
and drug misuse could be harmful to them. A park is for families and for leisure pursuits and
large numbers of people who have had access to alcohol and drugs being present in and around
Finsbury Park during these events is of great concern to our members from the safeguarding
point of view.

There is a question around Section 7 of 19 (Provision of Films), viz ‘Films and videos will be
shown as part of performing acts or in between performances. The films and videos will be of
an appropriate nature to the age of the attending audience and will be played outside or in
temporary structures such as a tent’. SGRA would be interested the specifics of ‘an appropriate
nature’.

SGRA would like clarification of Live Nation’s description of the type of entertainment that will be
provided noted under Section 13 of 19 in the license application (Provision of anything of a similar
description to live music, recorded music or performances of dance), i.e. ‘entertainment of a similar
nature to live and recorded music and dance performance’.

SGRA asks Haringey Council to act responsibly and seriously consider the above objections and its duty
to Haringey residents under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. SGRA urges the licensing
committee to reject the application by Live Nation for an indefinite license for events in Finsbury Park.
The hours applied for by any promoter should be greatly reduced with all music ending at 22.00 and no
alcohol being sold after 21.30. Sounds levels should be strictly monitored and adhered to and no
rehearsals and sound checks should take place before 6pm on a weekday.

Yours faithfully,

Kit Greveson
MNhaier QOID A



Page 66

Anderson Chanel

From: Kit Greveson [kit.greveson @ gmail.com]
Sent: 21 November 2013 23:58

To: Licensing

Subject: Live Nation

Dear Sirs,

We strongly object to Haringey Council granting an indefinite entertainments license to Live Nation for
large-scale events in Finsbury Park on the following grounds:

We are concerned about crime and disorder at these events resulting from the misuse of alcohol and drugs.

Evacuating such a large number of people from the park in the event of an emergency could put many park
user in danger. We are concerned about public safety in this event.

We live very near the park and have experienced first hand the noise pollution from big concerts. We know
that neighbours had problems with audience members urinating and defecating in their gardens at the Stone
Roses concert last Summer and are concerned at this happening again. We find it unacceptable that
Haringey residents should be subjected to this type of public disorder.

Finsbury Park is used by families, many of whom do not have gardens for their children. We are worried at
the impact on these children when large numbers of often drunk and unruly concert goers are in the park
during the time when families are enjoying their leisure. We are aware that alcohol and drug misuse in rife
at these events and feel our children should be protected.

Kit Greveson and Gordon Hickie

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com




Page 67

By

Haringey

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club
Premises Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or more of the four "Licensing
Objectives” (listed below).

Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personal Details

Name... Mrs Yvette Rathbone .. .. . .

Address..."

Postcode.‘

Licence application you wish to make a representation on

You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

Application Number...................
Name of Licensee...LiveNation
Name of Premises (if applicable).. Finsbury Park

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect)... Finsbury Park

Postcode..N4... ... ...

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objectives.
Any representations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be considered
(please see Haringey Council’s leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).




Page 68

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates to.

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Given the increase in local crime statistics in June 2013, attributed largely to the 2
days of the Stone Roses concerts, the proposed 3-day event is not at all desirable
for local residents. Large scale events always attract an undesirable element, and
while I'did not personally witness drug-dealing, | know several local residents who
did.

Public Safety
See above re drug dealing and below re drunkenness.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance
During the Stone Roses concerts, | personally witnessed several acts of public

urination, including a man urinating against my elq?Ily_ ntgjghpoul;’a wall ig\l,broad oy
daylight, on a street frequented by children and families. There were also nur erous ”
instances of very drunk people on the streets. The increase in the number o people
in the area as a result of this proposed event is likely to have an equally unpleasant
impact on the local area and residents.

g NCEO LI

The Protection of Children from Harm

See above. A significant proportion of this event will be during daylight hours. Is it appropriate to
expose children to this sort of behaviour?

I,....\‘(.V.e.t.n.:'. ﬁ?.".‘?‘.’.n.e... ceieeeeeennn ..., hearby declare that all information | have
submitted is true and correct.

Signed: Yvette Rathbone Date: 20/11/2013

Please send completed form to:

The Licensing Team
Enforcement

Urban Environment
Units 271-272

Lee valley Technopark
Ashley Road

London

N17 9LN



Page 69

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club
Premises Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or more of the four "Licensing
Objectives"” (listed below).

Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personal Details

Name: ALISTAIR SMITH

Address|- (RN

Postcode: (S

Licence application you wish to make a representation on

You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

Application Number: Not Known ( Live Nation Finsbury Park)
Name of Licensee: Live Nation
Name of Premises (if applicable) Finsbury Park

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect). Finsbury Park

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objectives.
Any representations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be considered
(please see Haringey Council’s leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates to.




Page 70

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The Evening Standard (22/8/13) reported that the Stone Roses events in June 2013 led to
an eight-fold increase in crime and disorder in the Finsbury Park area. | quote:

“Mobile phone robberies, assaults and anti-social behaviour sent recorded crime figures
spiralling in the wake of the two gigs in June, according to official figures.

Fans of the band kickstarted brawls, urinated in nearby. streets and intimidatedilocal .
residents, while dog-walkers have complained that roads and parkland were still “sticky” for
weeks afterwards.

Recorded figures by the Met Police showed that there were 195 reported incidents in the
area during June , compared with 20 in May and 16 in April.”

Secondly, | have lived in Finsbury Park area for eight years. The only time | have ever been
offered drugs in the street was as | walked by the junction of Seven Sisters Road and
Stroud Green Road at about 4.45pm on the evening of the first Stone Roses concert.

Thirdly | know from people who attended the Stone Roses gigs that plastic glasses or urine
were thrown into the attendant crowds. Pretty disgusting in itself; but if large events of this
type attract that sort of behaviour inside a stewarded event there must be a risk to local
residents and the local environment of other acts of anti-social behaviour and vandalism

Public Safety

See prevention of crime and disorder above.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

The Stone Roses event in Finsbury Park in June 2013 was responsible for significant public
nuisance in the area. A specific example is around 500 people who congregated around the
Faltering Fullback pub in Perth Road on the Saturday night ( and a smaller but nonetheless
large number on the Friday night). People were seen urinating and defecating in gardens,
dropping litter and disrupting traffic flows. The license application which is linked to the
attraction of 50,000 people a day to the area cannot be seen in isolation from this
behaviour/nuisance.

Furthermore noise complaints doubled between 2008 and 2011 when Live Nation was
running the Wireless Festival in Hyde Park. | am concerned that this pattern will be repeated
if licensed events are held in Finsbury Park.

I would also add that the licensing hours of 10am-11pm seem excessive. The license
should only run from when the doors are planned to open which should not be more than
one hour before the first scheduled act. The license should end one hour after the final act
goes on stage.

The Protection of Children from Harm

According to the application to hire Finsbury Park for these events 6,750 children are
expected to attend on each night. Excessive alcohol consumption not only sets a bad
example but exposes these 13,500 children to increased risk of violence or inadvertent
crushing or harm.




Page 71

Finally, two points:

1) 1would add that if a license is granted that there should be no presumption that it
‘rolls forward’ to any subsequent events promoted by Live Nation. A review of the
July 2014 event should be held and any subsequent license applications should
take account of the evidence and feedback from this event.

2) If sufficient policing and event management, especially outside of the event area,
were put in place it would reduce some of my concerns. However | would personally
need to be assured that this was adequately resourced. This was clearly not the
case in June 2013.

|, Alistair Smith, hereby declare that all information | have submitted is true and
correct.

Signed: Not signed as sent by email but am perfectly preferred to sign if you really
need a signature!

Date: 21 November 2013

Please send completed form to:

Haringey Council Licensing Team
Technopark

Ashley Road

Tottenham Hale

London

N17 9LN



Page 72

The Friends of Finsbury Park

Manor House Lodge

Seven Sisters Road Patron:

London N4 2DE Jeremy Corbyn MP
Haringey Council

Licensing Team

Operational Services and Community Safety
Units 271-272

Lee Valley Technopark

Ashley Road

Tottenham

London

N17 9LN

20th November 2013

A

Notice of Application for New Premises License: Live Nation Music (UK) Ltd

As in interested party we wish to submit relevant representations concerning this application as well as
to make representations to the Licensing Sub Committee meeting. Noting that the licensing application
is a requirement for the Wireless Festival event to be staged in July 2014, the detailed grounds of this
representation are:

* That crime and disorder in the area has already proven to increase substantially during events
of this capacity (50,000) resulting from drunkenness and opportunistic street crime putting local
residents as well as event goers at risk. At last year’s Wireless Festival held in Stratford Park
there were two serious stabbing incidents resulting in near fatal injuries

* Road traffic and parking restrictions during events, and live music permitted from 1000
Monday to Sunday will constitute a public nuisance for both local residents and park users such
as schools. This nuisance is exacerbated by large crowds arriving late to catch headline acts as
well as urinating and defecating in residential streets.

¢ The proximity of multiple sound stages to hostels for homeless families along Seven Sisters
Road will be harmful to children by causing sleep derivation.

Yours faithfully

Douglas Palin
Chair

thefriendsoffinsburypark@gmail.com
A company limited by guarantee No: 4343874. Registered Charity No: 1104450. Registered office: as above



Page 73

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

Name: Lynn Percival
Address: 23b Ennis Road, London, N4 3HD
Contact details: lynn_percival @yahoo.co.uk, 07943 781737

Application Number: (not given on Haringey Council website)
Name of Licensee: Live Nation
Name of Premises: Finsbury Park

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing Objective it
relates to:

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

Large-scale events cause extensive disruption to the park and the local area and do lead to an
obvious increase in crime and disorder, which local residents have to deal with during and after
the events.

The recent Stone Roses gigs saw gardens and local primary schools used as toilets and
drinking areas. Many residents are not confident that the Council and police have put sufficient
measures in place to prevent this happening again at future gigs.

This license should not be granted until these issues are resolved satisfactorily and it shouldn’t
be granted until the new Events Policy has been agreed in line with the public consultation.

Public Safety

As an attendee, | can confirm that with 50,000 people the Stone Roses gig felt unsafe. There
were too many people crammed into a small space and | was nervous in case there was an
emergency. This was common feedback from attendees.

I’m not confident that this has been resolved and would not want to see more gigs of this scale
until I'm happy that the Council has taken steps to rectify this.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

An influx of 150,000 people to an area over 3 days will no doubt result in public nuisance. Local
residents will have to put up with thousands of drunk people arriving in Finsbury Park, hanging
around outside the festival site and leaving. They will be at risk of abuse, property damage — not
to mention the disruption to the travel plans of locals.

Park users will not be able to use the Park for up to a week before and after and events. This
causes huge disruption to people who need to use the park for recreation.

The Protection of Children from Harm

The Stone Roses gig took place on a school day and children at Stroud Green primary school
had to witness hundreds of people drinking and urinating directly outside their school (and
through the fence into the school).

This is not something children and parents should have to deal with and I'm not confident that
the Council has plans in place to prevent this happening in the future.



Page 74

We should be avoiding issuing contracts to large contractors like Live Nation until the above
issues can be satisfactorily resolved.

We should also be questioning why they are not returning to previous sites where they have
held events. What impact did their events have elsewhere?

I, Lynn Percival, hereby declare that all information | have submitted is true and correct.



Page 75

Haringey Council
Licensing Team

20 November 2013

Sent by e.mail

Live Nation - Finsbury Park — Premises Licence Application

Application Number..N/K
Name of Licensee........... Live Nation./ Rick Latham....

Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect)......Finsbury Park,

Dear Sir/Madam,

| am opposing the above application on the following grounds:

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each
Licensing Objective it relates to.

1. The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

This event will attract a lot of people (50,000), there are bound to be a lot of
people congregating outside the event who will not have tickets and who want
to hear the music which could lead to control problems both within the park
and in the immediate vicinity.

2. Public Safety

3. The Prevention of Public Nuisance

The area of the park where the concerts will be held is very near to homes on
Seven Sisters Road and within two hundred metres of homes in Woodstock
Road etc. From the experience of previous concerts, these homes will feel
the full blast of the sound, other streets in the area e.g. Oakfield Road,
Stapleton Hall Road, Lancaster Road will also be affected. The noise means
that local residents will have to keep their windows shut, this isn’t acceptable
during the summer.

In my case, though | live ¥ mile from the Park | can hear concert noise quite




Page 76

clearly because the house | live in is on a hill to the north of the Park. One of
the problems is that being on a hill there are houses further up the hill which
means that sound is reflected back so even going into a back room doesn't
provide relief from the noise.

There is also a large primary school (Stroud Green Primary) situated on
Woodstock Road i.e. within 200 metres of the park. As it is planned to have
the first concert on a sehool day (Friday 4™ July), the school will be subject to
a considerable amount of noise during the day, this is completely
unacceptable.

There are also people in the area who work from home who will be
considerably affected by the noise on the Friday.

In addition, local residents have in the past (e.g. after this years Stone Roses
concerts) complained of concert goers using front gardens in the adjacent
streets as toilets, dumping litter in the streets and making a lot of noise as
they exited the park.

If the Licensing Committee decides to Qrant a licence | would like to propose
that the following conditions be made:

1. That the sound levels should be considerably reduced from those
applicable in previous years.

2. That on school term days e.g. Friday 4'" July, no sound, including
sound checks and rehearsals, should be produced before 6pm in order
to allow Stroud Green Primary School to carry out its educational and
after-school activities in peace and quiet.

3. In order to prevent a nuisance to local residents the licence for
music should have a 10pm finishing time for all days.*

4. In order to prevent a nuisance to local residents the licence for the
supply of alcohol should have a 9.30pm finishing time for all days.*

(* These restrictions are proposed in order to prevent concert goers creating
noise in adjacent streets after the original planned finish time of 11pm. With
all of these events there is a tendency to overrun meaning that attendees
might not start exiting the event until some considerable time after 11pm.)

5. If the concerts overrun the licence will be revoked.

4. The Protection of Children from Harm

During the summer the Park is well used by parents and children for games,
picnics and relaxation. If the event area is off bounds then children will have
to seek play areas elsewhere e.g. the streets. So indirectly the event could
endanger children.




Page 77

| |

In addition there are a couple of points the Council, if not the Licensing
Committee, might like to consider.

1. Amount of time taken up by the events

For each of the events the organisers are allowed two weeks to set up and
take down, this is in addition to the actual event. This means that for each
event a considerable area of the park is effectively out of bounds to the
regular park users. This is not acceptable during the summer months.

Haringey Council are actively considering a policy which will increase the
number of events from 5 days a year at present to 18 days. The Licensing
Committee should consider the impact that this will have on local residents as
what might be acceptable for two events a year is not acceptable for six
events which are held during the summer months.

2. Amount of space taken up by the event

The plan provided by Live Nation shows their events as taking up a larger
area than that used for previous events. They will be using at least 40 -
50%"* of the Park. The area to be used is flat and is one of the most popular
parts of the Park being used for football and other games, plus picnics. The
rest of the Park is mainly sloping land, not suitable for games. (*If one
excludes the staff yard, the boating lake, the nursery, the running track and
the American football area, then approx. 40 - 50% of the remainder will be
used for the event.). This is not acceptable as it deprives the locals of the use
of this part of the Park during the summer months.

1,..Konrad Borowski........... ,hererby declare that all information | have
submitted is true and correct.
Signed:




Page 78

Anderson Chanel

From: Clir Alexander Karen

Sent: 20 November 2013 15:36

To: Barrett Daliah

Cc: Licensing; Karen Alexander (karen.alexander.haringeylibdems @ gmail.com)
Subject: Application Number WK/000266314 - Finsbury Park - Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd
Daliah

Please find attached (part of this email) my objection re the Finsbury Park application. Please can you
acknowledge receipt.

Regards

Karen

Karen Alexander
Liberal Democrat Councillor for Harringay Ward

karen.alexander2@haringey.qov.uk
020 8348 3892 / 07875 490055

Application Number WK/000266314

Name of Licensee LIVE NATION (Music) UK Ltd

Name of Premises FINSBURY PARK

Premises Address Finsbury Park, Seven Sisters Road,London N4 2AB
Representation by: Clir Karen Alexander, Harringay Ward

| write in my capacity of local councillor for Harringay ward. As Finsbury Park falls within Harringay ward | would
like to make the following representations on behalf of local residents who will be affected by the granting of this
licence.

The premises license is for an indefinite license to hold commercial music events (live concerts) in Finsbury
Park for up to 49,999 people per concert day. There is no time limit on the license and the proposed events are
to run daily from 10 am until 23:00 hours. The license calls for alcohol to be supplied during the same hours.
The organisers say in their license application that they will limit events to a maximum of 5 days per calendar
year.

I, along with residents are seriously concerned that the grant of this license will result in serious crime and
disorder issues. The Stone Roses concerts held in Finsbury Park over two days in 2013 (promoted by SJM) led
to serious disorder. Public drunkenness, offensive and dangerous behaviour by concert goers resulted in crime,
disorder and distress for local residents. Front gardens and even a school playground were used as urinals

Crowds arriving for the concert were organising themselves via social media and the police and security forces
were totally incapable of controlling the situation. It is not possible for police to control access to Finsbury Park
on these occasions in a way to ensure public safety is not put at risk.

The application by Live Nation sets out steps the promoters intend to take to prevent such crime and disorder
but | am unconvinced, despite Live Nations’ good intentions, that these proposals are workable.



Page 79

Insufficient toilet facilities also create risks for public safety and put residents at risk of harm from faeces and
urine. Parts of the park during the Stone Roses concerts resembled public sewers.

The broken bottles and glasses pose a very great risk of injury to the public putting their safety at risk for many
days after the concerts.

The noise and disruption caused to local residents by the proposed ¥oncerts will amount to public nuisance. The
promoters say they will test noise levels and employ an acoustic consultant. That in itself indicates the serious
likelihood that these concerts will create a public nuisance. The risk that residents will be unable to access or
leave their homes because of street drinking before, during and after the concerts is further evidence of the
potential for public nuisance.

Children use the park.inlarge numbers after.school in the summer.months, on weekends:andiin the holidays: In
addition Stroud Green Primary School is across the street from the pub which was at the centre of many of the
disturbances caused by the Stone Roses concerts in 2013.

In the park itself children are at increased risk of exposure to harm during and after the concerts. They may also
be harmed by witnessing the lewd behaviour and illicit drug taking so often associated with such events in
addition to the alcohol abuse. The promoters do not in their application refer to steps they would take to protect
children.

The park will be completely trashed by the thousands of extra people trampling over it and even after each clean
up, over the long term this will be detrimental.

Earlier this year Hyde Park had to have 150,000 square metres of turf laid down at a cost of £1.5million because
of the damage done last year as a result of concerts and bad weather - its too high a price to pay!

| urge you to reject this application.

DATA PROTECTION Whilst our counciilor will treat as confidential any personal information which you pass on, s/he will allow
authorised staff to see the information if this is needed to help and advise you and may pass all or some of this information to
agencies such as the DSS, Inland Revenue or the local council if this is necessary to help your case. S/he may wish to write to
you from time to time to keep you informed on related issues that you may find of interest. Please let him/her know if you do
not wish to be contacted in this way. Karen Alexander Liberal Democrat Councillor for Harringay Ward

karen.alexander2@haringey.gov.uk <mailto:karen.alexander2@haringey.gov.uk> 020 8348 3892 / 07875 490055



Page 80

LICENSING ACT 2003 - REPRESENTATION FORM

To make a representation in respect of an application for a Premises Licence or Club
Premises Certificate please complete the following form. For representations to be
considered relevant they must relate to one or more of the four "Licensing
Objectives" (listed below).

Please note all representations will be made available for applicants to view. If you
make a representation objecting to the application it is likely that you will be called
upon to attend a hearing and present your objection before a Licensing Committee.

Personal Details

Name...... ClirKatherine Reece...........cooovueiieieeieeiee e,

Address...Members' Room
Haringey Council

5™ Floor, River Park House
225 High Road

Wood Green

London .................

Postcode...... N22 8HQ

Licence application you wish to make a representation on

You do not need to answer all of the questions in this section, but please give as
much information as you can:

Application Number...... WK/000266314.......

Name of Licensee...... LIVE NATION (Music) UK Ltd.............
Name of Premises (if applicable)...... FINSBURY PARK
Premises Address (where the Licence will take effect)

Finsbury Park, Seven Sisters Road, London

Postcode...... N4 2AB

Reason/s for representation

Under the Licensing Act 2003, for a representation to be relevant it must be one that is
about the likely effect of the application on the promotion of the four licensing objectives.
Any representations that are considered to be vexatious or frivolous will not be considered
(please see Haringey Council’s leaflet Variations, Representations and Appeals
for Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificates).

Fill in reason/s for your representation in the space provided under each Licensing
Objective it relates fo.




Page 81

The Protection of Children from Harm

Children use the park in large numbers after school in the summer months, on
weekends and in the holidays. In addition Stroud Green Primary School is across the
street from the pub which was at the centre of many of the disturbances caused by
the Stone Roses concerts in 2013. Children could not leave school on the Friday
because of drunks in the street and the playground was used as a public lavatory.
Broken glass and bottles create further hazards. There is every likelihood that such
scenes will be repeated if this license is granted.

Inthe park itself children are at increased risk of exposure to harm during and after.
the concerts. They may also be harmed by witnessing the lewd behaviour and illicit
drug taking so often associated with such events in addition to the alcohol abuse.
The promoters do not in their application refer to steps they woutd take to protect
children although they made oral assurances that child safety was important to them.
The noise created by the concerts will also prevent local children getting the sleep
they need thereby causing potential harm.

l,...Councillor Katherine Reece........................ccoviiieviivinnn.. .hereby declare that
all information | have submitted is true and correct.

Signed: (W Date: Z{/u/fs

Please send completed form to:

Haringey Council Licensing Team
Technopark

Ashley Road

Tottenham Hale

London

N17 9LN



Page 82

The Prevention of Crime and Disorder

The premises license is for an indefinite license to hold commercial music events
(live congerts) in Finsbury Park for up to 49,999 people per concert day. There is no
time limit on the license and the proposed events are to run daily from 10 am until
23:00 hours. The license calls for alcohol to be supplied during the same hours. The
organisers say in their license application that they will limit events to a maximum of
5 days per calendar year.

Residents are seriously concerned that the grant of this license will result in serious
crime and disorder issues. The Stone Roses concerts held in Finsbury Park over two
days in 2013 (promoted by SJM) led to serious disorder. Public drunkenness,
offensive and dangerous behaviour by concert goers resulted in crime, disorder and
distress for residents of Perth and Ennis Road. Children attending Stroud Green
Primary School on the Friday were traumatised by drunks preventing parents
accessing the playground at pick up time and the playground was treated as a public
urinal. Crowds arriving for the concert (and those arriving just to be part of the action
without tickets) were organising themselves via social media and the police and
security forces were utterly incapable of controlling the situation.

The application by Live Nation sets out steps the promoters intend to take to prevent
such crime and disorder but residents have no faith, despite Live Nations’ good
intentions, in any such measures. The sheer numbers of concert goers and hangers
on, the accessibility of the site via public transport and the use of social media make
it impossible to police thus creating a serious risk of crime and disorder.

What happens within the park given the numbers of concert goers and the sale of
alcohol also create unpreventable opportunities for crime and disorder.

Public Safety

The mass of people descending on the park for the concerts covered by this license
application create insurmountable public safety issues. It is not possible for police to
control access to Finsbury Park on these occasions in a way to ensure public safety
is not put at risk. The experience of the Stone Roses has led residents to despair at
the thought of such gross violations of public safety occurring again. It was not
possible to control the crowds for the Stone Roses and there is nothing in the license
application to indicate that such scenes will not be repeated. It is not only the safety
of residents that is at stake ( including those not able to get back to their homes
because of crowds and blocked access points from the tube) it is also the safety of
those attending which is compromised. Once again the use of social media makes it
hard for police to control the crowds.

Insufficient toilet facilities also create risks for public safety and put residents at risk
of harm from faeces and urine. Parts of the park during the Stone Roses concerts
resembled public sewers. _

The inevitable broken bottles and glasses pose a very great risk of injury to the
public putting their safety at risk for many days after the concerts.

The Prevention of Public Nuisance

The noise and disruption caused to local residents by the proposed concerts will
amount to public nuisance. The promoters say they will test noise levels and employ
an acoustic consuitant. That in itseif indicates the serious likelihood that these
concerts will create a public nuisance. The risk that residents will be unable to
access or leave their homes because of street drinking before, during and after the
concerts is further evidence of the potential for public nuisance.




Page 83

Councillor Terry Stacy MBE, JP % I S LI N GTO N

Leader of the Opposition
Liberal Democrat Member for Highbury East o et

London N1 2UD

Licensing Team T 020 7527 2000
Units 271-272, Lee Valley Technopark W www.islington.gov.uk
Ashley Road

Tottenham

London N17 SLN
20 November 2013
Dear Licensing Team

Premises Licence Application by Live Nation: Finsbury Park
I am writing on behalf of the Highbury East councillors to object to the above application.

Although Highbury East ward does not immediately border Finsbury Park, Highbury residents
are directly affected by concerts in the park. They are deeply concerned about the
application, especially in light of the experience last summer with the Stone Roses concert in
Finsbury Park. We wish to make the following points:

Attendee numbers — we understand that Haringey Council’'s existing events policy sets a
maximum attendee number of 40,000-50,000 in Finsbury Park. The application by Live
Nation, however, removes any such limit and gives the impression that much larger events
are to be the norm.

It was clear from the Stone Roses concert experience last year that inadequate measures
were in place to deal with a concert of even that size. We believe that it was the first time
that an event of that size had been held in the park. Resident complaints included a
significant increase in anti-social behaviour and incidents of crime. Because Finsbury Park
station and nearby bus routes were overwhelmed by people getting to and from the concert,
a large number of attendees were displaced into Highbury. We are therefore fearful of the
potential impact of even larger events in Finsbury Park.

Frequency of events — the Emirates Stadium is currently host to Arsenal FC's home
matches, as well other championship and international matches. |n addition, the club also
has permission currently for concerts over three weekends in the summer. The club has now
applied to double the number of concerts meaning that Highbury residents will have 34
events at the Emirates Stadium during the year with all the associated knock-on impacts for
residents. The application to Haringey for increased events in Finsbury Park is planned for
exactly the same summer period. This could lead to a situation from late May through to
early July dominated by concerts at both Finsbury Park and the Emirates with no break and
an unacceptable level of noise nuisance and disturbance for Highbury residents.

The application states that events will last up to three days. Yet this does not include the
required time for setting up and taking down the concerts and the need for sound checks and
will extend the time required significantly. While we understand that the window for concert
operators is short due to the average British summer, this is also a time when residents want
to enjoy being outside in their gardens or local parks or simply have their windows and doors
open. This will be impossible for residents if their weekends are spoilt by noise from concert
preparations and the events themselves.

| —_



Page 84

Policing — it has come to light recently that the Metropolitan Police Service will no longer
police large-scale events such as football matches and concerts. This will in future be the
responsibility of Transport for London at stations and promoters at the events themselves.
This is an additional factor that needs to be considered when Haringey determines whether
the application is suitable and can meet public order requirements.

Alcohol consumption — the Finsbury Park area, bordered by three boroughs, already suffers
from a very high number of street drinkers and licensed premises. Islington Council has
recently introduced policies such as a borough-wide controlled drinking zone and a
cumulative impact policy for new and renewed alcohol licences for premises in the vicinity in
an attempt to crack down on the problems. However, we understand that Haringey does not
have such initiatives in place around Finsbury Park. Residents are therefore nervous that
any increase in the number of concerts in Finsbury Park will simply increase alcohol-related
problems on and across the borough borders.

Public safety/Transport network — the Highbury area already suffers adversely from the effect
of events at the Emirates Stadium. Because of the bottlenecks caused at the nearest tube
stations, attendees often walk through the area to the nearest alternative stations or buses.
There is no reason to believe that the same would not occur with larger-scale events in
Finsbury Park when concert-goers find access to Finsbury Park or Manor House stations
impossible and decide to cut through Highbury to reach other stations such as Arsenal,
Drayton Park or even Highbury & Islington and Holloway Road. Highbury residents are not
confident that this application for Finsbury Park concerts has in any way taken the impact on
the local transport network and related public safety concerns caused by station
overcrowding or closures into account.

Cumulative impact — as stated previously, Arsenal FC has applied to double the number of
concerts at the Emirates Stadium in Highbury. Islington Council turned down this licensing
application, but the club has appealed the decision. The issue will now go to a public enquiry
for determination. Islington turned down the application because of the cumulative impact on
residents of any increase in concerts in the local area and a petition signed by around 200
local residents opposing the proposals by Arsenal FC was presented to Islington Council.

The grounds on which Highbury residents have objected to the application for the Emirates
Stadium (increased levels of noise, anti-social behaviour, crowd numbers and impact on the
local transport network) would only be reinforced by any possible increase in concerts in
Finsbury Park.

In light of Islington’s decision and the grounds on which it the decision was made, we would
urge that Haringey also takes these factors into consideration and withdraws the proposal to
increase both the number of events and capacity. |f Haringey does approve this application,
there should at the very least be proper co-ordination with Islington Council and Arsenal FC
about events at the Emirates Stadium to ensure disturbance to residents is kept to the
minimum possible.

Rehearsals and sound checks — Highbury residents will also want to be reassured that the
additional time and noise levels required for any rehearsals and sound checks are factored
into Haringey Council’s consideration of the suitability of this application.




Page 85

We hope that these points will be taken into account and that the licensing application for
additional and larger concerts in Finsbury Park is rejected. If, however, Haringey decides to
allow these additional concerts, there must be proper cross-borough coordination, including
with Hackney over events in Clissold Park, to ensure there are no events within three days of
each other.

Yours sincerely,

/W/( (7

Councillor Terry Stacy MBE JP

Contact details:
Daytime message: 0207 527 3114
email: terry.stacy@islington.gov.uk

Surgery details:

The 2™ Saturday of every month at 11.00am
Central Library, 2 Fieldway Crescent, N5 1PF

The 4™ Tuesday of every month at 6.30pm at
Birchmore Community Hall, Highbury Quadrant Estate, N5 2TZ.



Page 86

Islington Council Public Protection
Licensing Act 2003

REPRESENTATION FORM FROM ISLINGTON COUNCIL IN RESPECT OF
APPLICATION FOR A PREMISES LICENCE FOR FINSBURY PARK BY
LIVE NATION

Your Name Jan Hart
| Job Title Service Director (Public Protection)
Postal and email address Islington Council

Public Protection
222 Upper Street
London
N1 1XR

E-mail: jan.hart@islington.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 7527 3193
Alternative contact: Becky Lowe on 020 7527 2614

Name of the premises you are Finsbury Park
making a representation about

Address of the premises you are
making a representation about

This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)
Please tick one or more-boxes
1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety X
3) the prevention of public nuisance X
X

4) the protection of children from harm

Background information

Islington Council appreciate the difficulties caused by the current financial climate and the
problems that this must present in maintaining Finsbury Park, which is a valuable asset to
residents of our areas.

However, this application, submitted by Live Nati-on, to be able to hold large live music concerts in
the park causes Islington Council concern.

As we understand, there are currently two licences held by different promoters to use the park for
larger events, primarily concerts, and this is now a third application which has been put in for
consideration.

The number of events that can be held under these licences is limited only by the events policy.

M:\Documents and Settings\cnecddb\Local
Settings\Temporary Internet
Files\Content.Outlock\ZBHYNTPW\Licensing Application
rep FP docG\Besuments-and-Settingsinialt

ISLINGTON




Page 87

| The numbers granted by the existing licences are currently set at 39,999 and 49,999 however ih?i
. application appears to remove this limit and set it to the available space, meaning far larger

audiences could be accommodated. ‘

|

The area around Finsbury Park is extremely busy throughout the year, given that it is a major
transport hub, and this is intensified when Arsenal play at home or hold events or there are events |
in the park. At present, the summer period does give some respite to residents but this is !
| jeopardised by concerts. Given that your policy restricts hire of the park over the school holidays |
and concerts tend to want te eperate during early summer, there could be a secenarie where the
period from late May threugh te early July'is domlnated by cencerts at b@th venues W|th no break

YP—— FERPTIV O T a———— _ i _

| Whilst events may last up te three days, the set-up, sound checks and break d@wn WI|| extend thls
| by a significant number of days en either side, prolonging nuisance. This is the time when
residents hope to enjoy their eutdeer space, especially the park — as well as being a eritical time

| for students who are studying fer examlnatllons

The Stone Roses concerts this year generated many complaints frem Islingten residents. The
| type of complaint ranged frem fights, public urination in the park and the surreunding streets,
| travel problems and even disturbed lecal residents with foul ]anguage inte the early hours.
|
I This was the first time that the park has been used for a 49,999 capacity event and it was clear
| that the arrangements in place could not contend with that number. There was significant
dlsplacement of the audience into Islington to access the transport system, showing that a far
more extensive operation to manage crowds, similar to that used for Emirates, would need to be
put in place should that capacity or greater be repeated. This also comes at a time when the
| MPS have indicated their intention to remove policing from queues at transport locations,
i meaning this will need to be addressed by the promoter instead.

:' The number of non-football events at Emirates are strictly controlled by the planning consent.

| You may be aware that we have dealt with a planning application to hold an additional three

| concerts at Emirates this year. We have refused this on the basis of the cumulative effect on
amenity for residents. Noise nuisance, disruption to their ability to use the transport system and
general anti-social behaviour associated with events are the primary reasons we have cited. We
would urge that you also take this into account and withdraw. your intention to increase both the
number of events and capacity.

We would like to see consistency with the agreed number of concert days at Emirates - which is
three - but given your existing policy, we would concede that 5 days a year across all three
licences would appear reasonable.

' We also note that Haringey has not used its ability to hold a licence for the park and has instead
| allowed individual promoters to hold them in totality. This differs to our own policy where the
| Council holds the licences for music and dance for each of its green spaces.

|
This allows greater control in events than relying on the hire conditions — for instance, stopping 1
events if noise limits are exceeded - and means that a separate licence has to be applied for if an |
| event-holder wishes to sell alcohol. Flexibility' comes from this and allows risk-based decisions to
be taken over capacities, stewarding, start and finish time etc. in line with the bands rather than
taking a generic approach.

We would ask the Council that they consider this to. maximise control and conS|stency as well as
" avoiding the need to challenge three licenses, if this licence was granted, in the event that there
| are unresolvable issues.

i The prevention of crime and disorder

The area bordering this application is part of Islington Council's Holloway Road and Finsbury Park

[xx-xx-05] : Page 2 of 6



Page 88

Cumulative Impact Area: This area features prominently in alcohol related crime datasets and the
three underground stations in the area are transport hub crime hotspots.

Islington Council has been working with partners and treatment services to tackle street drinking
in the area and although its intervention strategies have been largely successful in reducing the
scale of the problem, it is a recurring issue compounded by the fact that the area is saturated with
licenced premises. Whilst previous approaches to tackle street drinking in the area have focused
on dispersal and treatment, the Licensing Authority believes it is appropriate to consider the
supply of alcohol in order to minimise the impact of public nuisance arising from the consumption
of alcohol.

Islington Council’s expectation in this area is that only well managed venues shouid operate after
23:00 in this area. A combination of the economic viability of some businesses operating in the
area and the high turnover of proprietors has impacted on management standards and licenced
businesses operating in the area have made a disproportionate demand on the Licensing
Authority’s enforcement resources.

We would therefore request that with the current issues in this area and the Council’s experiences
before and after the concerts in July 2013 that the numbers of concert attendees and numbers of

concerts are limited to minimise potential crime and disorder and adding to islington’s Cumulative
impact in this area.

Islington Council therefore propose that should this be granted, it should be limited to a capacity
of 39,000 and be restricted to a maximum of 5 concert days a year in total within Finsbury Park.
Islington Council also request there be a condition imposed on the licence, if granted, that links
with the other licences at the park to restrict the numbers and capacities at these suggested
levels.

It should be noted that two concerts have already been announced for Finsbury Park for 2014.
These concerts are being advertised at 50,000 capacities, and this should be taken into
consideration when any decision is made on this application.

In addition, Islington Council has adopted a borough wide Designated Public Place Order,
(DPPO), sometimes known as controlled drinking zones, to deal with anti-social alcohol drinking
in public places.

The DPPO gives the police the ability to deal with alcohol related anti-social behaviour as it gives
them the power to confiscate alcohol or require a person to stop drinking in public if they are
causing a nuisance. The powers do not prohibit drinking in public places and can only be used
where the drinking is associated with negative behaviour.

The Council work with the police to ensure a targeted approach to enforcement. Haringey doesn’t
have a CDZ covering Finsbury Park and on concert days this can cause issues on and across the
borders of the borough.

We would expect that in advance of any concert it is advised that there are restrictions on drinking
alcohol in public in the vicinity of the park.

Public safety ' =

It is our view that more consideration needs to be given by the applicant to managing crowds
once they leave the event, including the need to have a detailed use and queuing plan for
Finsbury Park station, as it will not be a policing activity or priority at this time. We would ask that
this be included as a condition with an expectation that the applicant meets the costs of this. For
comparison, it is normal for Arsenal to fund stewarding between the park and the stadium when it
is used for spectator parking and to manage queuing at Arsenal station.

[xx-xx-05] Page 3 of 6



Page 89

| 2= R e Rt |
! There was considerable displacement of crowds for the Stone Roses shows, so we would expect

| the travel management plan to incorporate Arsenal Station into its foot print.
|

|

| Islington Council also have concerns about events being held in Finsbury Park at the same time

| that Emirates Stadium is being used. The application seeks to increase the capacity audience to

‘ 50,000 which will place a considerable additional strain on neighbouring transport infrastructure,

| especially at and around Finsbury Park Station. There arc significant safety risks associated with

| the proposals particularly in the post-concert period; The following issues are a majer concern for
; -Llslington Council: :

| particularly in the post-event period; .

- queues for Finsbury Park station spilling onto the roads and causing traffic delays and
congestion : =

- the possibility that congestion at Finsbury Park Station exceeds the telerable limit, when
TfL advise us that they will close the station. This could create a significant public order
issuie if spectators are left stranded, as well as disruption to the residents and businesses |
in the area that are not able to use their local station. ' |

It is critical that events are not held at the same time at both Finsbury Park and at the Emirates. If
this does happen the resulting strain on transport infrastructure in the area, and especially at
Finsbury Park Station, will create far greater delays to spectater travel at loecal statiens around
both venues than are currently experienced. This will have a major negative impact on the local
community, and for lengthy periods they will either not be able to use their local stations and
roads, or face lengthy delays if they do. Even if events are coordinated between the two venues,

| and not held at the same time, this creates a relentless stream of events over the summer period
which reduces or removes the respite period for the local community between the end of the
football season and the start of a new season. '

The prevention of public nuisance

Islington’s Pollution Projects Team has considered the application and object to the proposal but
this can be withdrawn if the following conditions are agreed. The Pollution Projects Team
recommends that all of the conditions proposed by LB Haringey's Enforcement Team are applied
to any licence granted, to prevent public nuisance. Also, due to complaints received in relation to |
previous events held at Finsbury Park, we seek that the following three conditions are applied to
control noise from sound checks and rehearsals:

- No sound checks shall take place other than on the day before the concert and on the day of the
concert and no sound rehearsals shall take place except on the day of the concert.

| - On the day before the concert, noise propagation and sound checks shall not exceed a total
period of 3.5 hours. On the day of the concert rehearsals and sound checks, the duration shall not
exceed 2 hours of which no more than 1.5 hours shall be sound checks on their own.

- On the days that they are permitted, no sound checks or rehearsals shall commence before
10.30 hours, and they shall not continue after 19.00 hours.

These conditions and controls are in line with the protocol used at the nearby Emirates Stadium. '-
The Islington residents near to the Finsbury Park site currently have the impact of Arsenal match

| days and concert events and would suffer from the potential cumulative impact of large noisy
crowds of people leaving the Finsbury Park site on days that would otherwise act as a quiet
period and respite from the football season. Feedback from residents has strongly voiced the

i importance of this period. The crowds are likely to be affected by Temporary Threshold Shift

| following listening to loud amplified music for considerable periods of time and their inhibitions

{xx-xx-05] Page 4 of 6



Page 90

and behaviour potentially affected by alcohol leading to high noise levels upon routes to and from
the tube stations. There is also the noise due to HGVs unloading and loading crowd
management barriers near to Arsenal and Finsbury Park stations late at night. Therefore we
would seek that no concerts are to take place within the summer holidays and school exam
periods. ’ :

All existing noise monitoring positions are situated in either LB Haringey or LB Hackney.
Therefore we seek that an additional noise monitoring position is to be sited within LB islington at
a location to be agreed with LB Islington's Pollution Projects Team.

In response to the issues around the concerts held in July 2013, Islington would also like to
require significant toilet facilities outside of the perimeter of any licence, with appropriate levels of
stewards to manage these facilities. Islington Council would also request that the number of
toilets inside the site be above the number specified in the purple guide, as previous experience
at this site has shown this number to be insufficient. We propose a 25% increase to be a
reasonable level. All these toilets are to be fully serviced and maintained, clearly sign posted and
all these facilities should be available for use throughout permitted opening hours of any granted
licence.

The protection of children from harm

Islington Council has concerns about the protection of children from harm should any event be
held in the parks which attracted significant numbers of unaccompanied children.

Should any event under a premises licence be aimed at a younger age group then we would
expect different arrangements to be in place than for an adult orientated concert.

Measures such as limiting provision of alcohol within the site, parent collection arrangements and
earlier finish times are to be considered in the planning arrangements for certain events.

In addition to measures suggested above, it would be expected that the event organiser’s ensure
that local licensed retailers will be visited by event organisers in advance of the event, advising
about the any event attracting a younger audience, and that they are reminded of their
responsibilities regarding under age sales.

Suggested conditions that could be added to the licence to in order for representation to
be withdrawn

¢ No sound checks shall take place other than on the day before the concert and on the day
of the concert and no sound rehearsals shall take place except on the day of the concert.

- On the day before the concert noise propagation and sound checks shall not
exceed a total period of 3.5 hours. On the day of the concert rehearsals and sound
checks the duration shall not exceed 2 hours of which no more than 1.5 hours shall
be sound checks on their own.

- On the days that they are permitted, no sound checks or rehearsals shall
commence before 10.30 hours, and they shall not continue after 19.00 hours.

* An additional noise monitoring position is to be sited within LB Islington at a location to be
agreed with LB Islington's Pollution Projects Team.

« The facilities for concerts to be limited to 3 concert days only in 2013, and a maximum of 5

[xx-xx-05] Page 5 of 6



days for any future year. S |

o The capacity of the licence be a maximum of 39,999. ‘

o The travel management plan to be extended to include Arsenal station.

¢ That the terminal hour for regulated entertainment to be a minimum an hour and half
before the last tube on ei,tuher the Vieteria Line or Piccadilly line in Finsbury.

e kormals c@nsultatlon toitakeiplacewiths Isllnmton andHackney.councils:and, theiMP&before«.L._i.,a_
any hire proposal is-agreed

|
|
¢ Islington residents and licensed premises in an area of the park to be agreed with !
Islington Council sheuld be netified of all large event dates, timings and arrangements |

: |

e A Safety Advisory greup te be held fer each event and the event management plan and
any associated traffic management erders agreed with Islington

|
e No large events to b@ held en days when Emirates Stadium is in use or there are major
events in Clissold Park

» Stewarding arrangements to be agreed and implemented to cover the surrounding area
including Islington transport hubs

o No more than 1 event on Sunday or Bank holidays
o Timings of sound checks to be agreed with Islington
o A senior Haringey officer available on site throughout the duration of any large event

o A complaints line to be available for the public to use throughout the duration of sound
checks and large events

* Any event aimed at a younger audience then a separate operation plan shall be submitted
for approval at the multi-agency Safety Advisory Group.

e Any young person found to be consuming alcohol, or suspected to be under the influence
of alcohol will be escorted by two staff to the designated welfare area for assessment by a
nominated Child Welfare Manager with involvement of external agencies as required.

Signed: Date: 20 November 2013

[xX-xx-05] ; ; Page 6 of 6



Page 92

Islington Licensing Authority
Licensing Act 2003

REPRESENTATION FORM FROM RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITIES IN RESPECT OF A

TEMPORARY EVENT NOTCE
Your Name Paul HOPPE PC 208N
Responsible authority and job Title | Police Licensing Team
Postal and email address 222 Upper Street, London N1 1XR

Paul.hoppe@islington.gov.uk

Name of the premises you are FINSBURY PARK
making a representation about

Address of the premises you are
making a representation about

This representation relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes

1) the prevention of crime and disorder X
2) public safety Ol
3) the prevention of public nuisance Ol

Background Information:

Apparently this is the third company who wish to
apply for a license to run events at the venue. This
venue is licensed for between 39,999 and 49,999
participants in a large, open space which is in very
close proximity to a large number of transport hubs,
the main one being FINSBURY PARK rail and tube
station.

Islington Police have read the Representation
made by Islington Borough Counciland fully
support the contents of this representation.

C:\Users\enefcca\AppData\Local\Temp\Temporary
Internet Files\Content.Outlook\OFGJ7756\Rep for
Finsbury Park.doc-e

[14-07-05] Page 10of 2

ISLINGTON




Page 93

Prevention of Crime and Disorder:

Islington Police fully support the representation made by Islington Council Public Protection.
There is a genuine concern for public safety of events run without the full support of all local
responsible authorities.

On 7" June 2012 the STONE ROSES CONCERT at the location attracted near to 49,999 paying
customers. This event attracted a number of complaints from residents around anti-social
behaviour, drug taking and drinking in the street.

The policing of such an event is not limited to the venue itself, but the surrounding road and
transport systems. In order to police the large number of customers entering and leaving the
venue within a very short period of time would be a considerable drain on emergency service
resources.

Islington Council has instigated a borough wide Designated Public Place Order (DPPO) to
combat crime, disorder and anti-social behaviour. However, policing this DPPO with such large
numbers of customers concentrated at the venue, especially when Haringey does not have a
DPPO which covers the venue.

Suggested Conditions to be Added to a License:

1) Dedicated stewards to control access/ egress into the venue.

2) Search procedures to be in place.

3) A dispersal plan agreed with all responsible authorities for the end of the event.

4) A full, effective incident reporting system for crimes and incidents within the footprint of
the event. All crimes to be reported to police as soon as is practical.

5) A full steward control of queues to transport hubs for at least an hour before the event
and two hours after the end of the event.

6) Stewards to assist customers within the last mile approaching the venue in order than a
police presence is not required, for at least an hour before and two hours after the end of
the event.

7) No off sales. No open containers to be taken out of the venue.

8) No events to take place when the Emirates Stadium or Clissold Park are in use.

9) Only one event per day.

Signed: Date:
[xx-xx-05] Page 2 of 2




Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95

[LTVE nnTlon]

FINSBURY PARK
MUSIC EVENTS

‘ Fins @
Seve & ad,
o 4

vV

EVENT MANAGEMENT

|||||||
00000000000




Page 96

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan LIVE nAaTIoN
CONTENTS

SECTION ELEMENT

1 Planning and Management 3
2 Venue & Site Design 5
3 Fire Safety 7
4 Major Incident & Emergency Planning 8
5 Communications
6 Crowd Management
7 Traffic Management
8 Structures
9 Barriers
10 Electrical Installations & Lighting
11 Food Drink & Water
12 Merchandising
13 Attractions & Activities
14 Sanitary Facilities
15 Waste Management
16 Noise
17 Special Effects
18 Camping %
19 Accessibility
20 Medical Provision
21 Information & Welfare™ >
22 Children Yy
23 Artists & Sho
24 Television &Radio o
. Legislation & Guidance 29

CURREN!T VERSION

| Issued at time of event

A
B V1
Issued at time of event
C _ V1
Fire Risk Assessment V1
E L towd Management and Security Plan V1
F Medical Management Plan V1
G Traffic Management Plan Issued at time of event
H Waste Management Plan \A|
I Noise Management Plan \Al
J Showstop Procedure V1
K Special Effects Issued at time of event
L ‘| Health & Safety Site Rules V1
M Alcohol Management Plan \'A
N Adverse Weather Plan Issued at time of event

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -2-



Page 97

Finsbury Park Musnc Events — Event Management Plan [LTVE n ':'T'Dn]
[Introduction R L S R s o)

The Finsbury Park music events, will be promoted and organised by Live Nation (Music)
UK Ltd (LN) who have extensive experience in staging similar events throughout the UK
and worldwide.

Events will consist of single-stage and multi-stage focus attracting a capacity up to 45,000
customers per day not exceeding 5 days within a calendar year.

This Event Management Plan has been provided as a supporting document to the:
Premises Licence Application and will be continually developed as planning for the events
progresses through the Licensing Safety Advisory Group (LSAG).

| Event Management Plan o, B ]

This document is intended to provide general information about the event, and also to
detail the management plans and actions of the organisers,with regard to public and
worker safety. The plan is a living document and as suoﬁ will be developed and detail
agreed during the planning stages with all relevant agengles or authontles

Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd will make every effort Io*ensure [:hat all |nformat|on contained
in this document is correct and cnrculated ql‘ndngst the relevant organisations and
authorities on a regular basis )

For further information please contact:

e

Paul Cook - A g
Group Head of Health, Safety and Securify \ -

Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd N & y 4
+44 (0) 207 009 3333 ) y 4
paul.cook@livenation.co.uk

& a

| 1S 5 SECTION 1 — Planning & Management

Manggement o{ ihe event

lee Na’ﬂbn {Muan) UK Ltd (LN) takes very seriously its responsibilities with regards to the
safety of its staft) ﬁontractors and customers. It will ensure, so far as is reasonably
practicable, at no time is any party put at unnecessary risk due to its actions.

To that end an experienced management team has been formed and these people are
detailed along with their responsibilities. Additionally Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd
undertakes to have detailed liaison with appropriate agencies including, but not limited to
The London Borough of Haringey and the Statutory Emergency Services.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -3-



Page 98

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan

|Lfve naTION)|

| Event Management Structure

John Probyn
Event Director
Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd

@

Hannah Farnham
“Event Manager
Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd

i

Jen-e Jones
Project Manager
Live Nation (Music) UK L

Paul Cook

H&S Manager

[

| Production Grew
Manager

DPS
All Stage All Site Bars &
Contractors & Contractors & Concessions
Stage Site Operations

Operations Operations

Event Safety
Support
Services;
Security
Medical
Fire

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -4 -



Page 99

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE nAaTion

Event Management Responsibilities

Event Director (John Probyn — Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd)

Responsible for overall strategic decisions concerning the management and operation of
the event including decisions concerning security and crowd management matters. In all
circumstances other than a major incident, the final decision is that of the Event Director.

Event Manager (Hannah Farnham — Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd)

Responsible for the overall effective delivery of the event. Also deputises in the absence
of the Event Director.

Project Manager (Jen-e Jones — Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd)

Responsible for the day to day operation of the event and its pre plannlﬁg, including liaison
with Site Manager; contractors and suppliers. Also deputises in the absence of the Event
Director.

Head of Security (Showsec International)

Responsible for the overall management of the security operation, and for strategic
decision making with regard to event security deployment. The Head of Security will liaise
with the Event Director and the Health & Safety Managerwfth regard to decisions affecting
crowd management and safety.

Site Manager - o 9
To ensure that all aspects of the site qurastructwe are bult to the correct specifications

and that during the event all site mfrastrugture ‘remalns jh place following local authority
inspections and to deal with any site related prbblems that may occur during the event.

Health & Safety Manager (Paul Cook lee Natign (Music) UK Ltd)

The Health & Safety Manager wlll be- rsSponélble for ensuring the implementation and
operation of all health & safe natters for )he event; including the planning; build; break
and event periods of the Event This incllides advising the Event Director of any issues,
which are likely to affect Ihe safety of staff; contractors and customers.

Production Manager*

To ensure thal aII stage actlwty is run to schedule and within the limitations set by the local
authority. \ _ p

Deéignated Premises Supervisor (Brian Grew - Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd)

To act as {he on ‘SIte Designated Premises Superwsor (DPS). To co-ordinate and
organise all bars‘and concessions on site ensuring that they follow respective statutory
and licensing requirements.

SECTION 2 - Venue & Site Design | |

Crowd Capacity

Area Number
Audience (including guest and VIPs) 45,000
Staff 1,000

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -5-



Page 100

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan ["YVE n FlTlDI'l]

Site Build and Break periods

The Site Manager will be responsible for all aspects of the site plan and site management.
They will ensure that a full build and break schedule will be available for each event; this
will be placed at Appendix B of this document.

Site Build Site Break

To be agreed per event To be agreed per event

Site Plans

The Site Manager will ensure that scaled plans of the event site afe ‘avaplable clearly
showing all structures, access and egress routes, audience areas and'facilities.. The plan
will have a grid reference system and be made available in sizes dictated by ‘the scale of
the drawing. A copy of the site plan is available at Appendix B of thls document.

Stages ¥ .
Full details of stage structures at the events will be detaliqd |n p]anmng documentation on
the lead-up to the event. \ .

screens and faced with a primary pit bar;:ler of standard A-Frame construction that is able
to withstand a minimum crowd pressufe of 5 KN/m?. The barrier system designs will be
decided following an assessment of the expected crqwd /prof ile and following confirmation
of artists. D,

All stages will be of standard construction with, fguppgls ?‘or lighting, sound and video
h

>

Where used, smaller stages may be': pbsi i0 u‘nd‘er cover within big-top style tents. The
available audience viewing areaswl[! beagre prior to the event by the London Borough
of Haringey and London Flre quade (LFB)»tg meet the audience capacities stated in this
document. B

Proposed Openlng ]'[mes 5%

z /

Evant Open to Pupllc 1000hrs

_ _\\\Bars Open 1000hrs
Mam Stage éptertalnment Finishes 2300hrs
“Bars Close 2300hrs

All Entertainment Finishes 2300hrs
Event Closed 2330hrs

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -6-



Page 101

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [ Live n QT'Dn]

SECTION 3 - Fire Safety | |

Fire Risk Assessment
A full fire risk assessment in line with the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 has
been carried out and appended at Appendix D of this document.

Build & Break Periods

During the build and break periods, the Site Manager in conjunction with the Health &
Safety Manager will ensure that there is sufficient FFE in designated areas along with
appropriate signage. Additionally all persons on site will be briefed as to the action to be
taken in the event of fire and be advised of the site assembly point. The Health & Safety
Manager will be responsible for calling the fire brigade as necessary.

Event Arrangements : :

During events, specialist fire cover will be provided by the event organlser thls will be
supported by the onsite crowd management team who have staff trained in the use of
portable FFE. Minor outbreaks of fire will be dealt with by the on-site team while any fire
involving a vehicle, concession unit or structure will be reported,to London Fire Brigade
immediately. Responding fire crews will be met at the deslgna}ed RVP and escorted to
the affected area. The on-site service will be deployed by fhe ECR Manager and they will
remain under his/her direct control.

Security will ensure that the respond,lng unlts from the fre brlgade are met at the

rendezvous point (RVP). . @ ) |

Number Grid Reference Location
RVP 1 TeCAP h '3-’l'6'b§:’_§breed for each event
RVP 2 TBG To'be agreed for each event

London Fire* B"ngade ‘w;ll be ln\nted to undertake familiarisation visits to site with local
attending crews) and" ofﬁcers fqr the purpose of understanding the layout and access /
egress routes on‘sKe b

\5 . '\ A
~ g - X . \
Emergency'Eijga_}culations

Flow rates are based on Guide 9 of the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005 of
108 persons per minute per metre moving through unobstructed exits over level ground.
The flow rates detailed below are specific to the licence plan and will be adjusted in line
with the capacity and layout of each event.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 = [k



Page 102

(LYve nAaTION|

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan

EMERGENCY EXITS
EMERGENCY EXITS
Gate No Grid Ref Location Width
X2 TBC East 10 Metres
X3 TBC East 10 Metres
X4 TBC North East 10 Metres
X5 TBC North 5 Metres
X6 TBC North | 10 Metres
X7 TBC North West _‘1\0 !jf;ilqzres
X8 TBC West 5 Mé‘trfg:s_.___
X9 TBC West 5 Metres
X12 TBC South East 15 Metres
Total Exit Width Available | O 80Metres
Discounting Largest Exit -Jjﬁf--i \_L ' 15 Metres
Remaining Exit Width i : D | 65 Metres
rEn);It'll:eC:el:"?nCl:LYteOVER 10 MINUTES”@_ {b?z[éans qu 70,850 persons

g

Total Emergen ERI( Qapa\p;’ty 87,200 in 10 minutes
(80 metre&x9 109 per,sqgs’ per minute x 10 minutes)

Less largest ex1t (X12 15 metres) leaves 65 in 10 minutes
(65Tnetces X ’IQQ persons per minute x 10 minutes)

Evgn ata ; d c-,e’d crgwd flow of 82 persons per metre per minute
\ f metres = 53,300 persons in 10 minutes
(60 m@ﬁ:es x 82 persons per minute x 10 minutes)

\ \

x_.\‘ E' y

Exit cab“asltle‘s s‘a:céd above are for the event site. Normal exit/egress strategy will be
made for exiting fromt the park including the removal of perimeter fencing etc.

_ SECTION - Major Incident & Emergency Planning |

Purpose of Emergency Plan

It is recognised that whilst the potential for a major incident to develop at a well-managed
music event is low, the consequences of such an incident are high. With this in mind, the
organiser and the emergency services recognise that pre-event planning will need to take
into account such an eventuality.

Based along existing major incident guidance and working practice, and taking into
account other relevant experiences, this document is designed to comprehensively detail
LNFPME EMP Version 1 -8-



Page 103

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LTVE n ':'T'Dn]
the roles, responsibilities and actions which are to be taken by relevant parties involved in
the management of the Finsbury Park Music Events.

Operation of Emergency Plan

Should an occurrence develop into a serious emergency or major incident, the initial
response will be coordinated from the Event Control Room (ECR) facility under the
command of the senior police officer present. Should the incident be fire or medically
related, the senior officer of the appropriate service shall assume command.

Transfer of Command

Once a major incident has been declared by any of the three Statutory Emergency
Services, or the site alert state has reached condition red (see below), the Event Director
or his agent will hand over control of the event to the appropriate agengy; this fact will be
documented in the event log and an event handover form completed. B N

Definition of a Major Incident NN

A major incident is any emergency that requires the implementation of speC|aI
arrangements by one, or all of the organisations represented in the ECR. It will in general
include the involvement either directly or indirectly of Iarg’é ‘nambers of people, but in
general the risk of a major incident at the Finsbury Park Musm Events has been identified
as: -

* Fire & ¥V
* Serious medical emergency a [ R
* Controlled evacuation due to suspected n*\c]dents (| 9, fire, bomb warnings etc.)
* Overcrowding - -

* Collapse of temporary structuresas -

* Catastrophic failure of permarient struc(uree

.\. "

In addition to the above, thek major lnCId 1tafplan also recognises that external major
incidents, beyond the contr" I of the gve management team, may result in special
arrangements being |mplemen‘tea ExampTes of these types of incidents are: -

 Off sitegmajor mcndent

Maijor irénspott distu ptlop

* Extremeslof weather £~

« Crowd disturbance not attributed to the event
“ICBRN Incident

g
\H‘.'\

Declaration of a Major Incident

Whilst every organisation has to assess the impact of every incident on their own
organisation and resources, with this event, a common agreement will be reached as to
who has the authority to declare a major incident which effects the show in general.

The common aims of all organisations represented in the ECR and reinforced in the major
incident plan are: -

* Preserve life
* Protect Property
* Safeguard the wider environment
* Ensure the safety of all staff and attendees at the event
* Respond effectively to any given emergency
* Reduce the impact on the local community
LNFPME EMP Version 1 -9-



Page 104

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [ ve n FlTIDn]
* Ensure a high degree of public confidence through professional conduct of all staff
* Restore normality

Event Alert State
To assist the ECR to monitor the site, it is intended to operate a simple three-tier system.

When raising the Alert State the ECR will use the relevant internal code word to notify all
radio holders.

GREEN indicates
There is a free flow of public both inside and outside the site. No problems reported.

AMBER indicates
Unusually heavy pressure on gates with no free flow and areas of crowd ¢ ensity over 0.3m?
per person in large areas or; there is a bomb threat, threat of fire or threaj | fbrpvgd disorder.

RED indicates b N

On advice from the Head of Security or Health & Safety Manager in consultation“with the
police that the situation warrants a red grading or a suspected explosive device or confirmed
serious fire, crowd disorder or structural collapse. A,

-

,r'___,-_r' ¥
The evacuation of the site would depend upon the area anﬂ‘-.ﬂe‘le infori‘i*l"é’tign available.
b N v

In the event that Condition Amber is declared, tie ECR nﬁ%‘}‘ag‘é'r”wiu activate the following

¢
plan. h ) |
\ Pl

h W .

1. ECR Manager will confirm with Polic}fﬁa {\ﬁéjfj'ﬁé'éware of the situation.

2. ECR Manager will advise the vent Diéc{)or, H&S Manager, Head of Security,
Event Manager and Heads of Department. ¢

3. The relevant area Secur-lcy“\ Mgrﬁ,‘fer” \ﬁ_!yimmediately go to the location as directed
by the ECR and co-or _igféte the |lnmcjd} é) Resources will be deployed as requested.

4. The Head of Security, Event Manager and Silver Commanders of respective
agencies will go g_i_r_.g._c__:_tly\éz:[:!;ge ECR facility and co-ordinate the operation.

5. All Supervisor__,f-’,bn'* h; Co| 'j___g;nand Channel are to maintain radio silence until

e ECR. Al radio holders on the Site Channel are to maintain radio

”’f_\.ﬁit-/l;l’stnﬁgpn from the ECR.

“be,advised of the exact area of the incident by reference to a

rid map.~

N Stand By" for all teams will be as per Standing Instructions.

Entry gates prepared for evacuation of the site. Dependent on the

38, at this stage the public will not be informed of any preparations, any
delay in admission will be explained as production problems.

9. The R.V. Points for Emergency Vehicles are to be manned and secured. Where
the incident is contained, "Condition Green" will be declared and all parties will be
advised using the "Stand-Down" code. Where the situation could become serious, a
"Stand-By" for condition Red will be issued.

Where the incident is considered as so serious as to force the cancellation of all or part of the
event, the ECR will make this decision and assume command of all resources on site. Heads
of Department will be informed and will direct all event staff to assist the Emergency Services
as requested whilst the situation exists. The Head of Security will ensure the following:

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -10 -



Page 105

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE n FITICII‘\]

1. All Exit and Entry gates prepared for evacuation of the site.

2. Designated R.V. Points to be secured for Emergency Services and Emergency routes
to be cleared.

3. Cordon to be established around the effective area, cordon boundaries will be decided
by the Head of Security.

4. Decisions made on available exit routes. Pedestrians to be directed away from the
threat and the Incident area to be secured.

5. Designated stewards to be positioned in evacuation control areas to inform and
manage audience.

6. Designated person to halt the show.

7. All staff to maintain radio silence until further notice.

DUE TO THE TYPE OF INCIDENT, THERE MAY BE A NEED TO DYNAMICALLY AMEND
THE ABOVE LIST OF ACTIONS. UNDER SUCH CIRCUMSTANCES, THIS'WILL BE DONE
UNDER GUIDANCE OR LEADERSHIP OF THE METROPOLITAN POLfGE i

.\. -.,

Kilo Codes

Should the alert state rise, then the ECR will notify all contractors and radio holders with a
location and one of the following Kilo Codes: - S5l

. Kilo 1 MEDICAL EMERGENCY

. Kilo 2 STRUCTURAL PROBLEM

. Kilo 3 EXTREME WEATHER

3 Kilo 4 FIRE

L Kilo § STAGE INVASION BY CROWD

L) Kilo 6 MAJOR CROWD PROBLEM

. Kilo 7 MINOR CROWD PROBLEM

. Kilo 8 SUSPECT PACKAGE FOUND

. Kilo 9 BOMB THREAT

. Kilo 10 LOST CHILD

s Kilo 11 POSSIBLE PERSONAL ASSAULT
] Kilo 12 SECURITY REQUIRED URGENTLY

Depending op, the dee of lncadent "certain crew and contractors, may start to make
preliminary agtion re jd;a/ ssist, should they be needed. For example, if there is an amber
alert due to a %tt ctu I pf@blp (K|Io 2), then the rigging team, under the direction of their
crew boss, may ssemblelin one location, and don on their climbing PPE to be ready for
depLSYment if redu ed

Emergency ‘Anht\;ur;cements

In order for all event staff to effectively carry out their duties in the event of a major
incident it is essential that all parties are aware when the alert state is raised. In the event
of a situation or incident that could lead to a major incident or evacuation, the following
message will be broadcast over the event PA and radio channels.

This is a warning that the alert state has been raised to AMBER. If the situation or
incident is likely to result in a part or full evacuation of the site, the following message will
be broadcast, following confirmation from the ECR.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -11-



Page 106

Finsbui Park Music Events — Event Manaiement Plan [ LIve nAaTIioN ]

This is a warning that the alert state has been upgraded to RED. All personnel should
stand by for further instructions on an evacuation of the site.

Emergency Evacuation Announcement
if a full evacuation is to be carried out the following announcement will be made over all
stage PA systems:

“LADIES AND GENTLEMAN THIS IS A SAFETY ANNOUNCEMENT. DUE TO
CIRCUMSTANCES BEYOND OUR CONTROL WILL YOU PLEASQ\VACA TE THE
CONCERT ARENA BY WALKING TO ANY AVAILABLE EXIT AS QﬁICKLYAND

QUIETLY AS POSSIBLE”. J, _\ <
a,: @
If the evacuation is to be contained to a specific area of the site. A local evacuatIOn of the
site will take place under the control of the head of security.

Stand Down PN

ff b ™
IF THE SITUATION IS CONTAINED THE FOLLOWING mE\SSAGE\\NlLL BE
BROADCAST

All personnel may then stand down unless ot érwlsemstr cted.
;;:1?/ \-“

2
4‘

_ ; place in a controlled manner, pre existing
authority to call an evacuatlogjg early understood by all concerned. This authority
does not replace any statutory'du held y any one organisation, however it is designed
aplic ___t_ion ,any decision. The evacuation therefore may be: -

gﬁ nIy
t ; tire site
Authority to evicl_ate

The respc;"’elr;l bl[[t\% r crowd management on site is under the direction of the Head of
Security an ational Security Managers. If a situation escalates to a full or part
evacuation of the venue, all production crew will be advised by their supervisors as to the
action to be taken. The decision to evacuate will be taken by the Event Manager or in her
absence the Health & Safety Manager this will be done in consultation with emergency
services and other agencies via the ECR time allowing. Specific attention should be
drawn to the following:

Show Stop Procedure

Stopping a show in the middle of a performance can some times create unexpected
problems such as crowd surges, violent behaviour or confusion and should only be used
as a last resort if a situation or incident can not be resolved whilst the show continues (a
copy of the show-stop procedure is appended to this document Appendix J).

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -12 -



Page 107

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [ ve nATIO n]
The Event will operate two types of show stop as follows;

Change in Operational State

If a situation or incident develops to the point where the operational condition for the event
is changed to Amber and the ECR have consulted with all parties and feel that the show
should stop, the person designated by the organiser as being responsible for stopping the
show is the Event Manager and in her absence, the Health & Safety Manager. Stopping
the entertainment on any stage may not mean that the whole site is to be evacuated as
the incident may only be contained to the area around that stage. However, if any part of
the event activity is stopped then the whole site is to be put on to Amber alert as a
precaution.

Immediate Stop required by Security
Each stage will have a pit supervisor who is in charge of the pit area in front of the stage.
In addition to this a crowd spotter may be positioned to observe the audience in the
densest areas and monitor anyone who may be distressed, injured or have falien down
and not resurfaced. If for any reason either the pit supervisor or the spotter feels that
someone’'s life is in immediate danger they will activate a pre-arranged show stop call with
the Stage Manager for that stage. Once this has happened, the Health & Safety Manager
and Head of Security will attend the incident and the ECR will @ssess the situation and
decide what steps are to be taken next. & -

A,

The show may only need to be stopped on a temporary _b%isis;*and all efforts will be made
to restart it as soon as possible following consult;:g_tjd’ﬁ by-the He@lth & Safety Manager with
the ECR. £l \

|

If the show is to be cancelled then this de"’&sipﬁ-{ﬁusg bé{-a’f joint one made by the Event
Director; Event Manager; Health & Safety Manager; Head of Security and the Senior
Police Officer on site at the event. If'the show has to be cancelled, particular attention
should be paid to the following: ' B Vv

4 '\__ 2 P .'\'} |
Isolation of power supplies [~ g
Ensure that the event PA sy 't_érns are{not required to assist with the evacuation of the

venue before isolating the supply.h,

Evacuation of Artist & VIP’s”

The evacuation of artists4nd VIP's and their entourage into a public area can be a hazard
in itself. The 'security feam working in that area will handle movement of the artists to a
safe place. | b 4

g \
Eva?ﬂhti@n-ﬂlgtl\iohology

The generé’lly-atpé_ﬁjable standard is that customers in a greenfield event site should be
able to be evacuated either completely, or to a place of safety within 10 minutes of a
decision to evacuate being made.

FULL EVACUATION

Once the ECR have advised that a full evacuation is necessary, it will be carried out as per
Standing Instructions. Further instructions will be given by the Head of Security or ECR
Manager as follows.

1. Decide on appropriate evacuation routes.

2. Place all radios and operators under the direction of the ECR.
3. Advise site medical staff.

4. Direct any enquiries for casualty information to Police Control.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -13 -



Page 108

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [ Lve n FITIDH]
. 5. Direct any press or media to Police Control.

6. Arrange for electricians to supply emergency incident lighting [as required].

7. Vendors not in the immediate danger zone will be instructed to remain with their units
in position.

8. No vehicle movement, other than emergency services, will be permitted.

9. The decision on which way to clear the site will be dependent on the location of the
incident. Staff will be deployed sweeping the site in one direction to the outer
boundary of the event. Grid refs will be provided.

10. Disabled patrons to be held in a place of safety until evacuation of the site is complete
by others.

11. Once the site has been evacuated, all gates will be closed and staffed by security. All
other staff will be instructed to report to their R.V. Points for accountability.

Emergency Plan Significant Locations

Incident Control Point ,
The incident will be managed from the ECR facility. If this position becomes unsur{able or
untenable the ECR will relocate to an alternative location to be decided.

Forward Control Point &
This will be established dependent on the location and nature of the m‘c;dent

Rendezvous Points

Number Grid Reference Location
RVP 1 TBC To B8 ag?eed for. éﬁch event
RVP 2 TBC 4P To be agrEed for each event

An inner cordon will be establlsh’éd arounc’l tt}bilmmedlate scene. The cordon will be used
to protect the initial area, taklﬂg into consideration of any hazards, the protection of the
responding agencies and prase]'yatlon ‘of‘any crime scene. It will also ensure access is
restricted to non- authonsed persons. The inner cordon will initially be maintained by event
security until the Long?ﬁ FII’B Bngé‘de are onsite.

Outer Cordon | V 4N ]

The Metropoh}an Po"qe will. 6stabhsh an outer cordon to facilitate the effective flow of
emergency vean\es to and from the scene. Whilst this will primarily be a police role,
assi’stance may he sought from event security personnel and stewards. This request will
be made walhe EQR

Media Briefing Centre

The onsite briefing area will be agreed upon on site if possible dependent upon location of
the incident and infrastructure available.

If no facilities are available due to the nature of the incident then the Metropolitan Police
will coordinate this.

Designated Hospital

The Ambulance Incident Officer from the London Ambulance Service (LAS) will determine
the hospital(s) to be used dependent upon local protocol and availability.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -14 -



Page 109

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE n F'T'Dn]
For Finsbury Park the main receiving hospital would be Whittington Hospital. Should this
hospital be unavailable for whatever reason, the Senior Ambulance Officer will determine

an alternative hospital and route to it.

Body Holding Area

If a body holding area‘is required this will be determined via the relevant on-site agencies.
Initially a temporary body holding area may be used until arrangements can be made to
activate the Resilience Forum Temporary Mortuary Arrangements.

Temporary Mortuary

If a temporary mortuary is required, The London Borough of Haringey Council will
establish this in consultation with the Coroner and the Metropolitan Police. It will be
established on the authority of the Chief Executive Officer as per the Resmence Forum
Arrangements. 5N

Friends and Relatives Reception Centre

A Friends & Relatives Reception Centre would be established by the Metropolltan Police
in consultation with the London Borough of Haringey Council and staffed by these
organisations and suitably trained voluntary organisations. dn the event of a Friends and
Relatives Reception Centre being established a dynamlo demsIon will be made as to a
suitable venue. - -

Casualty Clearing Station and Ambulance Clrc.l.i]t s
The primary area for the management of cas iles W‘ II be Ihe on-site medical centre
which will be resourced by a medical team mcludl first aiders and ambulance staff with a
number of other first aid posts identified around the site.£ In the event of a major incident
the on-site medical centre will be nomlnated‘asthe “Casualty Clearing Station” (CCS) and
the normal ambulance loading circuit; USed for tha 3afe and rapid extraction of casualties.
in the event that the on-site medical cen;re iSinot available to be used as the CCS then an
alternative location and facility ill ‘b&’ ncmlnafed by the Ambulance Silver Commander.
Due to the wide spread ar;d fqpen nature- ’of’ the venue no specific location has been
identified as a dynamic decision will be made which could draw upon an alternative on-site
location, an alternative-off-site" location or an ambulance service facility specifically
designed for thls purpés’e »

f y 4
Survivor Rece tion Cepfre Iy
A Survivor Re\oe tion" Centré might be established and run initially by the emergency
servjees until thq ondon\Borough of Haringey Council becomes engaged in the response
and ‘asslimes the \Iéad role. In the event of a Survivor Reception Centre being established
a dynamic’ dagsw(l will be made as to the suitable venue.

Emergency Plan Roles & Responsibilities

London Borough of Haringey (LBH)
The Local Authority has the responsibility to:

* Support the emergency services.

* Provide technical advice and resources.

* Manage Environmental Health.

* Long-term co-ordination of the restoration of normality.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -15 -



Page 110

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE n F'T'Dn]
it must be remembered that the Local Authority is not a 24-hour emergency service and as
such may require a long period of notification to respond to an incident.

If any organisation at the event feels that the local authority will be able to provide or
support part of the response to an incident, this request should be made via Emergency
Liaison Team who in turn should consider facilitating the request.

Event Stewards
Event Stewards in responding to an incident at the event will assume the general
responsibilities as follows: -

¢ Save life in association with the emergency service.

* Alert the Head of Security and the Health & Safety Manager of actual or potential
major incidents.

* Manage the evacuation of the venue under direction of the Head of Secunty and
the ECR.

* Collate and provide accurate incident information to Event Managemem and the
ECR.

* Continue to provide stewarding staff after the evacuahon under the command of the
police providing it is safe to do so.

* Assist the police if appropriate in maintaining any | cordon arouhd the incident.

Certain stewards will be assigned specific tasks durjp fhe event, whlch are vital to the
overall safe management of an incident. Whilst ndt da%atlng frem the principle of saving
life, stewards with specific tasks must not bggome involved with other tasks to the
determent of the wider event safety role.’An example of this would be the treatment of a
member of the crowd, to the determent of ma télmng ’the flow of persons through an
emergency exit.

Role of Metropolitan Police (MPS) i b

* The saving of life in conjunctLon with fh’e bther emergency services.

* Co-ordination of the en rgency sgrwoés and other organisations on scene during
the immediate response phase.

* Protection and praservaﬁon Qf the scene through the establishment of cordons.

* Investigation oﬂhe incident in conjunctlon with other investigating bodies.

e In assdcgatlon wlth tﬁe NHS/medlcal service collate and then disseminate casualty
information.

* |dentifi catl’ﬁn ofvlghms,and the deceased.
@ ~.Restorat|Q of normallty

In addltlonjg ttLe ébove the police will co-ordinate the press and any news releases,
which need to belissued. However, this does not mean that the police will deal with all
press matters and the Production Team should appoint a media spokesperson as soon as
possible to assist the police in this matter.

Role of London Fire Brigade (LFB)

* Saving of life.

* Tackling of fires, containment of chemical spillages and hazardous occurrences.
* In conjunction with the ambulance service, rescue trapped casualties.

Health & Safety advice to emergency services and others present at the scene and
management of the inner cordon.

* Assist the ambulance service at Casualty Loading Points.
¢ Assist the police with the recovery of bodies.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -16 -



Page 111

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE n QT'DH]
* Restoration of normality.

If the evacuation has resulted from fire, then the fire brigade are to respond with a pre-
determined attendance of fire appliances and resources. These resources will, in most
cases result in a significant number of personnel arriving on scene. The first officer on
scene will require significant amounts of information. The ability to provide site plans and
drawings would assist in the effective management of the incident. Copies of site plans
and drawings and a full briefing will be made available by the on-site fire safety team.

Role of London Ambulance Service (LAS)
* Saving of life.
* To provide a focal point for the NHS and other medical resources:
* The treatment and care of the injured.
* In conjunction with the fire service, rescue of trapped persons.
* Determine the priority of evacuation of the injured.
* Establish receiving hospitals.
* Transport of the sick and injured.
* Decontamination of patients affected by chemical or to,xre felease
* Restoration of normality.

As part of the event medical arrangements, LAS will alreaQY have ofﬁcers at the event. In
addition to this, a dedicated event medical service willralso héi in attendance at the event
with various grades of medical staff and conS|derabfe reéource‘s

) J
in association with the Metropolitan PoTlce release relevant casualty information to the
media. B _

Role of the Event Organiser and PIJOductlon CreiN
The event organiser and any cor{tr‘aetqts epgaged by them, whilst not an emergency
service, may have skills and expertise they/gan offer to the responding agencies. This
could be especially true at mczrd nts invdlving structural collapse, or with special resources
on site. Whilst not placmg aﬁy member of staff in any danger, the responsibilities of
production are: - <

A { ,' o

* To sav‘e life in assoc’ athn ‘with the emergency services.

Provide! me-specmc information especially relating to temporary structures.
_ Under thb direction of the police, assist in the evacuation of the ground where
possible. |
Provide, med‘a spokesperson to work in conjunction with the Police Press Officer,
and asﬂstwﬂh any information broadcasts.
Assist LBH and the event management with the restoration to normality.

SECTION 5 - Communications 3 T el

Telephones
The organisers will install a telephone system enabling internal and external landline
communications at all times.

A list of site contact numbers will be provided to the relevant agencies prior to the event
and at each telephone position.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -17 -



Page 112

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE n F'T'Dn]

Two Way Radio
A two-way radio system will be installed for communications during the build / break and
the event. Radio channel lists will be made available to all radio users on-site.

Because of the volume of mobile telephone traffic experienced during large events, mobile
phones are not expected to be a reliable form of communication, therefore ALL KEY
PERSONNEL ARE EXPECTED TO COLLECT AN EVENT RADIO ON SHOWDAY.

A robust communications system with dedicated telephone lines and internet connections
will operate from the ECR throughout the show; radio communications will also be
managed and logged at this facility.

Event Control Room (ECR)

During the event it is proposed that an ECR will be operational wnth representatlves of
each statutory emergency service, on site medical team, and the London Bo‘rough of
Haringey Council.

The ECR will be located within a dedicated facility. Addltlon'aﬂy, a separate area will be
available adjacent to the ECR for multi agency meetings. The EGR will have a designated
manager throughout the duration of the event. The ECR wlll also be responsible for the co-
ordination of the represented organisations durlng the event and maintenance of the event

log.

Heads of Departments represented in fhe ECR WUI meet }at predetermlned intervals for a
brief discussion and update so that all parhes h[e kept fully informed. These meetings
shall be minuted.

\

An event log will be maintained in the ECR where all occurrences and actions reported to
the team will be noted along wntl:) the ‘tlme

The membership of ECR anct}‘o(es are as fo[Jows

ECR Manager -

The ECR Manager is t,l're Eyent Dlrectors representative and is in communication with the
Event Managet; Health &/Safety Manager; Head of Security and Site Manager. The ECR
Manager will 'ensure that requests regarding the event infrastructure are recorded and
appropriate achoh taken%eﬁsﬁre the rectification of any fault or issue. The ECR Manager
is also, responsble for the maintenance of the event log and coordinating the activities of
the othQr ECR meri‘lbers as appropriate.

MetropolntanPoﬂb&

The police will assume their statutory role outside the site perimeter as well as supporting
the event security and management with various functions within the site if required and as
agreed during the planning stages of the event. The police representative in the ECR will
be responsible for coordinating police actions including those of traffic police.

Medical Services

Representatives from the London Ambulance Service and the event medical provider —
TBC will control and co-ordinate the deployment of medical resources around the event,
including responding to reports and evacuating casualties from the site.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -18 -



Page 113

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE n ‘:'T'Dn]
London Fire Brigade

London Fire Brigade will co-ordinate the response to any fire incident on site that cannot

be managed by the event organiser. The ECR will deploy on-site response as appropriate

and provide coordinated security and medical support if required.

CCTV

CCTV cameras will be monitored and operated from the dedicated facility in the ECR.
Intelligence from CCTV will be relayed to any agency which requires it, CCTV images will
be treated as data under the Data Protection Act and appropriate safeguards will be taken.

Security Controllers

On-site security resources will be directed by the Head of Security xia the controllers
located in their respective control facilities. The security company willshave a specific
lisison manager within the ECR to ensure immediate contact. Security i JFau“sqn managers
will liaise with medical controllers and other agencies to provide & swift" and suitable
response to reported incidents.

SECTION 6 - Crowd Management |

Under normal circumstances executive control for ALL‘oﬁeratleﬁ‘al"’secunty matters will
rest with the Head of Security, with operational demsmns taken by the various Security
Managers. RIS .

Backstage & Pit ", | Showsec
Arena % N 4 Showsec
Perimeter W D Showsec

Showsec International will su L a'halson ojf' cer in the ECR who has radio contact back
to security control; responsibil for co-Grdination of the security through the ECR will be
that of the ECR Manager

in addition to the corﬁrol e,xercLsed \b)( the various Heads of Department the Event Director
and the Hea'lth‘ & Safety Mar;ager will have the authority to direct any member of the
security staff ’rp perfotm any4dUty in the interest of event safety. This authority will be
conf rmed by the productlon ‘of a photo pass.

Roles and Respon‘elbllltles

Within the event there will be three separate areas of responsibility. Stewarding numbers
and deployment along with method statements are appended to this document (see
Appendix E).

Backstage & Pit Duties

Are responsible for all security matters relating to the backstage, pit and hospitality areas.
This includes:
* Management of the hospitality areas.
* Control of the pit barrier including bringing customers over should they be in
distress, or in need of medical attention.
* Artist security in conjunction with the artist security team.
« Control of stage access.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -19-



Page 114

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [L‘YVE n FITIDH]
* Management of vehicle movement in the backstage area.
» Staffing of backstage emergency exit gates.
* Evacuating the backstage and pit areas in the event of an incident requiring this
action.

Arena Duties

Are responsible for all security matters relating to the arena. This includes:
* Management of audience members within the main arena.
* Conitrol of vehicle movement within the arena outside curfew times.
* Control of non-public areas within the arena i.e. rear of concessions and delay
towers.
* Control of emergency exit gates within the main arena. _
* Evacuating the main arena in the event of an incident requiring ttjie-_action.

Perimeter Duties

Are responsible for all security matters relating to the event perimeter. This includes:
* Maintaining the integrity of the venue perimeter.
* Management of the queuing lanes at the maln entrance pit entrance and
ambulance gate.
* Provision of incident response. < )
* Maintenance of emergency egress routes outside the perlmeter durlng the event.
* Assisting with the evacuation of the audlenﬁe shquld tﬁle become necessary.

x|

Arena Operational Method

Ingress F a9
Public ingress to the arena willbe ’through th maln entrance. Barrier lines will be formed

outside the entrances to manage the crawd ows; customers arriving early will be held in
the barrier lanes. e,

Queues will be managed by stewards and spotters will be stationed in strategic points to
monitor crow’d ﬂow P{dqmonal ﬁ'tonltorlng will be provided by CCTV and relayed to the
ECR. o

1 \ f

Dedjeated Ianes WI" be prowded at the main entrance for Press, VIP and Media. A
dedi cated dlsabled entrance will also be provided.

General mgreseoperatlonal methodology

On arrival at the queuing lanes, each person must produce a valid ticket or wristband, no
money will be taken on the gates. A level of search as pre-agreed with relevant authorities
prior the event will be instigated. Once the search is completed, customers will proceed
through the lanes where tickets will be torn and scanned. All ticket stubs will be retained for
auditing purposes.

Entry lanes on to site for each event will be detailed within the following table during the pre-
planning stages:

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -20 -



Page 115

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LTVE nATIO n]
- Ingress over
Entrance Name Capacity No of Lanes PPLPM 60 minutes
TBC Main Entrance TBC TBC TBC TBC
TBC Disabled - TBC TBC TBC TBC
TBC Press/VIP/Media TBC TBC TBC TBC

Pedestrian flow rates and queues will be monitored throughout ingress by senior supervisors
to establish attendance. This will be monitored via the Security Control Room. Once the
event site is approximately at 75% of its capacity, entry lanes will then be progressively
closed and barriers cleared to allow additional egress routes. The staff on‘entrance gates will
then be re-deployed. Provision will be made for late arrivals at the entry points.

Entry
The following is a brief outline of the entry conditions at the event, please see tegms and
conditions for further information:

* Admission will be by ticket or wristband only.

* All production and working staff will be in possessnon of valid accredltatlon and enter
only through designated entry points. b

* No professional cameras, video, or sound recordmg eql.upment will be allowed.

* No alcohol will be permitted in to the event. £

» Sealed soft drinks up to a maXImum,of 500n1| will be bermltted in to the event.

* No glass will be permitted in to the evgnt 4

¢ No picnics, tables, cooking equipment or: gazebos will be permitted in to the event.

* No illegal substances or legal high§iwill be.permitted in to the event.

* Rucksacks and baggage will _Bia’detgrred.frd?nbeing allowed into the event.

Egress Y V 4

This section details with rouﬁne egress omly, ‘emergency egress is discussed in Section 4

of this document. _alls NN

Internal operéting mcgthngIogy 2

All concessmns and paré Withi )1 the arena will be permitted to operate from opening until

as specified in {Sbctlon 11

The' staga screel‘\s quI be utilised to display information about potential transport delays or
interrupfionsiy g |

— "

Exit gates will haveh'signage indicating direction to various transport nodes and car parks.

Once the majority of customers have left the arena, stewards will form a cordon line and
move through the arena clearing any remaining customers.

Ticket holders wishing to leave the event before the end of the entertainment will be
directed to the main entrance. However, within the last 60 minutes or at the discretion of
the ECR Manager and the Head of Security, exit gates may be opened to allow for
localised egress to take place.

Further details can be found in the Crowd Management and Security Plan at Appendix E.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -21-



Page 116

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE n FITIDI"I]

Emergency Exits and Egress Flow Rates
Fire exit calculations and egress flow rates can be found in Section 3.

Crime Prevention

The Metropolitan Police and the Event Organisers are committed to reducing crime at
events. Measures will be taken to ensure that opportunist criminals and organised groups
do not have the opportunity to spoil the event for the majority of customers.

Any persons apprehended by security staff in the commission of a criminal offence will be
passed to the Police before being ejected from the site. Security staff will also assist,
where possible, in the identification and apprehension of offenders and the prevention of
crime. \

Glass -

No glass will be allowed within the arena. Any glass either not sUrrendered or found
during searching will be disposed of at the point of entry. Stewards and cleaning)staff will
be especially observant for discarded glass within the event. Glass will not be sold at any
concession outlet or bar, any trader found selling glass contamers will be asked to remove
them from sale or face closure. -

Acceptable Behaviour ) '
The organisers will not accept racist or aggressive benawo‘u[ amongs¥ audlence members,
any reports of such incidents will be fully mvestlgated and the perpetrators, if
apprehended, ejected from the event. The organisers are also committed to reducing
audience injuries through crowd surfing aﬁd willl ||]'nplemer\t ja two strikes policy, leading to
ejection for those persons who persist in tth phvlty {Where the audience and artist
profile suggest that this behaviour is likely, s‘lghage and messages on the screens will be
displayed in an effort to raise publlc aWareness b[the dangers.

Go>
Show-Stop Procedure ]
Stopping a show in the mlddle of a perfolj:nance can some times create unexpected
problems such as crowd surges,) violenf'behaviour and confusion and should only be used
as a last resort if a situation,or ingident can not be resolved whilst the show continues. The
organisers have developed ‘A fobust show-stop procedure which will be made available to
relevant part(es\ AII persdnhe] Invofved in the stopping of the show at any point will be
fully briefed a§ tq their }e,spectwe! roles.

-

SECTION 7 - Traffic Management | |

- Production Traffic"

Build & Break

During the construction period site and production traffic will be managed by Showsec
International via radio contact with the Site Manager and Event Production. Suitable
signage will be placed externally to ensure event related traffic is directed to the correct
entrance(s).

Parking within the event site will be limited and additional staff parking will be allocated at
a pre-determined location for permit holders.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -22 -



Page 117

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LTVE n ':'T'Dn]

Event

On event days production traffic will follow the build and break route with additional
support from event stewards. Production traffic during the event days will consist of artist
movements and essential site services only, traffic movements at these times will be kept
to a minimum.

During peak audience phases a curfew may be enforced to restrict all vehicle movements.
The ECR Manager will decide on implementation of the curfew in consultation with the
Event Manager and/or Health and Safety Manager.

Customer Traffic and Car Parking

The event organiser holds responsibility for the provision of a traffic management plan. A
specialised event traffic management company will be appointed for each event and
agreement will be sought from responsible authorities in relation to road closures and any
traffic orders required.

A detailed Traffic Management Plan will be available at Appendix N.

| _ SECTION 8- Structures. |

Stages ¢
All stage and tower structures will be supplied by, oompetent contractors who will issue full
structural plans and calculations to the Slte Manager and t‘eIEVant agencies as required.

A stand by team from the supplying compahy wlll‘be on, s&é for the duration of the event to
deal with any problems that may ocecur relating to structural integrity and weather
conditions. Detailed actions relating tp‘p‘enods of. lnclement weather will be provided in the
Adverse Weather Plan at Appendlft M \

Tents _\.' ’ ALY
All tentage will be supplied and e‘rected bv competent contractors and will be accompanied

by appropriate fire retarda‘“cy certlﬁcatlon

All built strucfures wull ha;véa corhpletlon certificate issued by a competent person from the
supplying con‘ieany ‘[hese wul e collated by the Health & Safety Manager.
‘-I..‘--__ - \\'\ III.\. ‘-‘_. = — . _
([~ SECTIONSO - Barriers

——_ Y

oq_‘-.\\
—

Barriers -
Three types of barrier will be used at the events:

Bike Rack Barrier

This is the traditional galvanised barrier used as a way of creating sterile areas or
restricted access points at locations that will only experience low-density crowd
movement.

Pit Barrier

Traditional A-frame load bearing barrier to a rating of at least 5 kN/m? that will be used in
areas of high crowd density such as front of stage, and around structures in close
proximity to the stage.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -23-



Page 118

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [L'YVE n FITIC)I"IJ
Police Barrier

Similar to Bike Rack but with low profile tubular feet that do not create a trip hazard and
absorb light crowd pressure enabling them to be used in locations with a higher density of
crowd movement.

Fencing
Three types of fencing will be used at this event:

Heras
2.5m high block and mesh fencing, used to segregate areas, can be used braced or with
‘triangles’ to provide a load bearing barrier; will only resist light crowd pressure.

Readyhoard
Pressed steel sheeting and in fills set in blocks similar to Heras, deslghad to segregate
areas and restrict sightlines, braced where necessary. -

Steel Shield
Pressed steel sheeting, 3m high and pinned to the ground; the panels are also braced and
able to absorb light to moderate crowd pressure.

SECTION 10~ Electrical lnstauationé- &\‘I:ighting |

\ .

Power '

Temporary electrical supplies, mcludlﬁg all Qenerators, hlstnbutlon cabling and end
connection for the arena will be installed by’“SpeCI@llﬁed cantractors in accordance with the
site plan and power specifications (WhICh wﬂ be avallable f/rom the site manager).

All temporary power supplies will/ be lnstalled TQ '‘BS 7909, fitted with RCD or RCBO
protection where necessary, andsst ltably earthed. The electrlcal contractor will sign off all
installations as correctly msta[led and Lest i 'before use. These will be collated by the
Health & Safety Manager b N 8

Lighting D )

Lighting across the évpnts‘ te w‘ ll be prowded via mix of festoon and lighting towers. Full
lighting checlgs will \take” placé in consultation with the London Borough of Haringey
Council. Exit anq way‘ﬁﬁdmg slgnage will be illuminated as appropriate.

.""\-‘_ S ."

N S E C T ONMAEIE o od IR TN KISV ate e S|

0

The Designated Premises Supervisor for the events will be Brian Grew of Live Nation (Music)
UK Ltd.

Food Concessions
Food concession units will be located around the site, offering a wide variety of hot and
cold food and drink.

All concessions will have suitable fire fighting equipment and sanitary and washing
facilities for staff.

Concessions will close by 2300hrs.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -24 -



Page 119

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LYVE n ':'T'Dn]
All drinks will be sold in plastic cups or PET containers.

LPG will be in use by concessions but will be managed on the basis of one cylinder in use
per appliance plus one spare. All other cylinders will need to be stored in agreed cylinder
stores at strategic points on site. The stores will be decided upon during the build element
of the site. The onsite event fire officer, will be responsible for ensuring that the stores are
clearly marked on site plans in the ECR and that they are monitored at all times for correct
use. The stores will be clearly signed with flammable gas and no smoking signs.
Additional portable FFE will be sited nearby.

Bars

Bars will be managed and operated by a specialised company and will open when the
arena opens to the public, all arena bars will be required to close in Ilne with the premises
licence or by prior agreement with responsible authorities during the preplannmg stages.

All bars will have sufficient lighting and fire fighting equipment, as weII as s‘anﬁary and
hand washing facilities for staff.

Bar fronts will be faced with plastic bar control barrier or similarto assist with maintaining
good order and safety and are subject to closure by the Hsalth & Safety Manager or the
ECR Manager if the situation demands. - o

Bar managers will ensure that persons under 18; ’are npt se\rveel with alcohol and that all
drinks are dispensed in plastic cups or PJET contélners S

Further details will be provided in the Alcohﬁl Mahagemenf Plan at Appendix L.

Water

Mains supply o O 1)

Drinking water will be avallable at all t;mes whllst the events are open to the public.
Suitable dispensing units will* bedlstrlbuted at various locations of the Arena and will be
clearly marked on the_site, pla‘hs’ The water points will be suitably signed to ensure

members of the publlc are aw,a“re of thelr position.

The event orgahlser wnl] ensure that the water points are tested prior to opening to the
pubhc to confi rm potabll[ty offhe water supply.

A competent contractor will be appointed to ensure that all supplies and delivery meet with
the statuto‘ry{egu ments

Bottled Water

A reserve of bottled water will be maintained by the organisers in the event of water supply
failure or extremes of weather.

Pit Water
Water will be available at stage pits and will be dispensed to members of the audience by
security staff.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -25-



Page 120

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [LTVE n FlTIDn]

| SECTION 12 - Merchandising

Merchandising units selling authorised artist/band merchandise will be located around the
arena and will be identified on the site plans.

The organisers will co-operate with the Metropolitan Police and London Borough of
Haringey Trading Standards Officers in order to manage unlicensed traders. It is
recognised that as well as offering inferior or even dangerous goods to the public, illegal or
unlicensed traders often cause an obstruction around areas of high pedestrian traffic or
access and egress routes.

] SECTION 13 — Attractions & Activities

There will be a range of attractions and activities on site. These will be in-{he__ form of
sponsor-activated areas as well as other attractions providing entertainment for paj[ons.

Further details with be provided on an event by event basis. _

| SECTION 14 - Sanitary Facilties

Toilets will be located throughout the arena in combifiédimale.and female compounds, and
the numbers provided will be in line with those stated in"l-kSG 195. Sanitation areas will be
patrolled by toilet attendants to prevelfit damége or vaﬁdalism and access routes for
cleaning and replenishing will be provided outsite,of the,.-'pbblic arena. [n addition to the
toilets for public use, additional toilets will bé‘pfo.viaed__iri,;st'aff work and rest areas.

These will be the minimum prqvis'"idr}__as-_..{é'qé?red but to reduce queuing further
additional toilets will also be prpi{(‘dgd over and above the minimum specification.

HSG 195 a o
Female 1 Toilet per . %100

Male 1 Tolletper, 600

Male 1 Uringlperq 150
Attendance 4§ODO ) ¢ '

Ratia!Split Male /Eemale = 50% Male / 50% Female

Audience 45,000
HSG 195
‘Total Female 225
Total Male 45
Total Urinals 150

Accessible facilities
Accessible facilities are detailed in Section 19.

Additionally, toilet facilities will be provided external to the event to attempt to reduce anti
social behaviour in the local community. Positions will be agreed with appropriate
agencies.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -26 -



Page 121

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan

|LYve nATION|

SECTION 15 - Waste Management ' |

Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd will make every endeavor to reduce waste to a minimum and
will actively encourage all contractors, customers and staff to recycle where possible.

Bulk Waste
All waste management including litter-picking activity will be arranged through the
nominated site cleaning contractor Ryan’s Cleaning.

Ryan’s Cleaning have managed waste disposal at similar events for Live Nation (Music)
UK Ltd and have experience and knowledge in the complexities of wasté disposal at an
event of this nature. A cleaning schedule is provided at Appendix H.

Liquid Waste ‘
All grey wastewater and toilet effluent will be the responsibility of the event organfser and
arrangement will be sought to ensure the correct transfer and disposal.

Sustamablllty
The end aim of all waste on site will be a diversion from landf Il, W|th all waste taken off site
either being sorted for recycling or entering an energy, frq__m waste system.

| \_1

SECTION 16 N0|se |

sound control of open-air concerts. s

Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd ha\/é éontpacted Vanguardla Consulting Ltd to monitor noise
levels in the surrounding ared ‘aqd mveat’gafe any complaints. The sound monitoring team
will be in contact with the ECR shbuld any action need to be taken during the event.

During the construcﬂon phase of the events, noisy works will be restricted between the
hours of 0806!1}‘8 and 200{)hrs fo limit dlsturbance to local residents.

Due regard is n\aqle to tha.Cuhtrol of Noise at Work Regulations 2005. These regulations
relatg to employe!es and workers and not members of the public, although hearing
protec‘trcm fiotices. will be displayed; customers are also advised via ticket conditions.
Hearing prafeetlgn\vmll be available for members of the public to purchase whilst on site if
required.

A Noise Management Plan is appended to this document at Appendix I.

SECTION 17 - Special Effects :|

Special effects including pyrotechnics and lasers may be used during the performances.
Risk assessments and safety documentation relating to these effects will be made
available to responsible authorities prior to the event and a copy will be held by the H&S
Manager on site.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -27 -



Page 122

Finsbury Park Music Events - Event Managemerit Plan ~ [LTVE n ':'Tlon]

SECTION 18 - Camping - |

There will be no public/customer camping associated with events.

SECTION 18 - Accessibility : |

Due to the greenfield nature of the events, the supplying of facilities for disabled
customers may be difficult. However, Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd accept their
responsibility to take all reasonably practicable steps to ensure that people with disabilities
are catered for, and as such will have a dedicated Access Coordlnator On-S|te to assist
with access and facility requirements.

Bookings will be pre-arranged, and information given to those persons needing"assistance
on where to park, how to access the site, and the facilities available. The Access
Coordinator will liaise with the Event Manager and Site_Manager throughout the
preplanning stages of the event to ensure suitable facilities{_u\_'rjll-be,__'p_,rovided.

Dedicated wheelchair accessible viewing platforms \n(il:l._ be Iocaied at all stages.
Wheelchair access to other areas on-site will be dependent un'wcrowd densities at the time.

B

Designated parking will be provided and, staffed aﬁpropna’tely for customer requirements.

Power will be available at the main stage vuewlng ’glatform for charging of electric
wheelchairs. i,

.." '
5

Accessible toilets will be provided at the followlng ‘locatlons arena sanitation compounds,
viewing platform(s), first aid pd‘ nts," Vleguest:area backstage production village / artist
area. The numbers provided(will be setdiar fiaison with the Access Coordinator and in line
with the anticipated attendance\

i e N b

SECTION 20 — Medical Provision |

\ | N /‘ ;
Medical prov1s[o'n at the evenﬁs will be managed in conjunction with Live Nation (Music)

UK Ltd by Eveqts Medical Service who will provide a dedicated Medical Manager at the
evellt \ ‘\

First ald pos“ts wlll be located strategically around the arena taking in to account access
and egress arrangements and event demographic. The locations will be documented
within future versions of the EMP.

Additionally, medical response teams will patrol the arena and respond to incidents
reported to the ECR.

Build and Break

First Aid will be available during normal site hours throughout the construction and
breakdown periods of the events. Outside of these times the overnight security team will
cover First Aid requirements.

Further details are provided in the Medical Management Plan at Appendix F.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -28 -



Page 123

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [ Yve n FITIDI'I]

_SECTION 21 - & Welfare

An arena Information and Welfare unit will be available at the events where members of
the public will be able to obtain advice and assistance from experienced welfare staff.

The welfare operation is to be confidential and other agencies should only become
involved when the welfare staff request assistance. This facﬂlty will be available whilst the
arena is open to the public.

this location will be CRB/DBS checked.

Any children who have been lost or found after a period of more than 15 minutes will be
advised to the ECR and police assistance will be sought if and.w en appropriate.

A Challenge 21 age verification policy will be in operation, alclales.

show relay.

Various radio

It is the policy of Live Nation UK Ltd to achieve high standards of Health and Safety in all
parts of the group and to provide efficient management and resources to improve our
performance in this function. To that end LN will ensure the maintenance and monitoring
of safe systems of work which comply with or exceed current legislation for the protection
of our employees, others working on our sites and our customers.

Health, Safety and Welfare ranks in equal priority with the commercial objectives of Live
Nation UK.

The promoter of this event recognises that a number of activities which are undertaken, or
are undertaken on their behalf, could potentially involve risk to the health, safety and
welfare of it's employees, contractors, agents, guests, members of the public and others,
together with the risk of damage to and loss of equipment, or property.

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -29 -



Page 124

Finsbury Park Music Events — Event Management Plan [L‘YVE n nTan]

It is the policy of the promoter of this event to seek, as far as is reasonably practicable,
safe working conditions for employees and all other personnel working on behalf of the
event, and to ensure that any activity undertaken by the event does not adversely affect
the health and safety of other persons.

The Production Health & Safety Policy is available on request.

Contractors

All contractors will be required to demonstrate their competence and present relevant
method statements, risk assessments, structural calculations and insurance details
relating to the work they are contracted to carry out at this event before being allowed to
commence work on site. Contractors’ details will be maintained by the Health & Safety
Manager in the Contractors H&S file.

Legislation & Guidance
The following legislation and guidance has been taken into gccoﬂnt dunng compilation of
the site heath & safety policy.

* Health & Safety at Work etc. Act 1974

The Health & Safety (First-Aid) Regulations? 1981 <>

The Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulatlons 2002
The Noise at Work Regulations 2005, |

The Construction (Head Protection) f{egulatlohs 1389

The Manual Handling Operations; Regulaﬁons 1992

The Personal Protective Equ;p;rl’ent at Work Regulations 1992
The Construction (De5|gn ar\d Managempnt) Regulations 2007
The Reporting of Injunes Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations 1995
The Health & Safety (S‘Zéfety Sign§i&’Signals) Regulations 1996
The Regulatory Reform (‘F’te Safety) Order 2005

The Provision and Userof Woi'k Equipment Regulations 1998

The Lifting Operatloris arrd Llftlng Equipment Regulations 1998
The Man&;en‘geht of He;n Ith and Safety at Work Regulations 1999

The Wor, Iace\{Health Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992
The Working at Height Regulations 2005
---.]iﬁeEvent Safety Guide - HSG195 Health and Safety Executive
Man‘agmg Crowds Safely - HSG154 Health and Safety Executive
Working at“heights in the broadcasting and entertainment industries - HSE
Guidance Entertainment Sheet No. 6 (Rev 1)
*  Working with VDUs - INDG36 (rev3) Health & Safety Executive
* Emergency Preparedness, Guidance on Part 1of the CCA 2004 and Emergency
Response and Recovery, non statutory guidance to complement Emergency
Preparedness
* The Electricity at Work Regulations 1989
* Code of Practice for Temporary Electrical Systems for Entertainment and Related
Purposes — BS 7909

e o eh e o o o o o o o
By

LNFPME EMP Version 1 -30-



Page 125

[LTVE anlon]

- FINSBURY PARK
MUSIC EVENTS

APPENDIX C

EVENT RISK
ASSESSMENT

eeeeee
ssssssssssssss



Page 126

sy s|qejdecoeun [ seinses|\ 04U ejenbepy yim ejqeideddy ysiy ] ysiy a|qeidaocoy ]

— N[00
- |N| ||

Aiqeqoud
XISy

0w
<
()
o~
-

Sen[eA AIGeqold X STy

"$-€ 1892 Ul saunful jo siaqunu abie| Jo Ayjele; sjdiynw Jo a|buig = Ayjeyedauspiou) Jolepy g
‘uonoleU| |eIpIe20A "ssausnolosuooun Jo spouad jueoiubis oy buipes)
saln(ul peay ‘wajsAs Alojeisdsal Bunoaye Anlul ‘ewnely sjdyinw ‘Ainful |Bo1Aad Jo jeulds ‘sainjoely sidyin = Anluj Jofey
‘euibue se yons suoijipuod BuiAuapun jo suolejuasaidal synoy
"ssausnolosuosun jo spouad o} Buipes| saunlful peay ‘sso| poo|q juesuiubis 0} Buipes| ewney} ‘sainjoeld = Ainfu] snouss ¢
‘eluwisyjodAy/iadAy
‘sajagelp ‘Asdajide ‘ewyjse ‘6-a suonipuod BuiAluapun jo suonejuasaidal aynoe ‘seunful peay Jouiw ‘Aunful Juasweb)
9 g|osnw ‘suielys % suleids ‘(Buuessi|q 03 Buipes)) suing Alepuodas ‘sso| poojq 0} Buipes| suonelsse] = Aunfu| juesyiubig ‘g
“(upjs ay} jo Buiusppal) suing Jouiw ‘Buisinig ‘suoiselqy = Anfuj Jouipy |

sa01puj Ajianeg
sajoN Alojeue|dx3 Juawissassy ysSiy

“JUSAS SIU} JO SjusWa|a JNO PEO| PUB MOYS ‘pling 8y} Buisnod pajidwod uaaq sey JusWSSasse s aAIsuayaldwod v
JUBWISSASSY YSIY

UOILEU 3A|T]




Page 127

4 LA VY3 JNCANT

"1S3ND3Y NO NOILO3dSNI ¥Od 3301440 AL3JVS JHL
Ol 31aVIIVAY 38 1SNIN V1Vad TVOINHO3L SY HONS
SINIANNOO0A ¥3HLO ANV ANV 3S3HL 40 S3Id0D

‘1IN0 AMYVYO OL G3LOVHLNOD AV AJHL MHOM IHL
HO4 YHOM 40 SINILSAS 34VS ANV SININSSISSYV
MSIH INVAITI3H AlddNS O1 a3A¥IND3N 34
T1IM LN3A3 FHL NO ONIXYOM SHOLOVILINOD TV

- AlyIun, Jo wnuwixew e o} paonpal aq |m Ajjiqeqoud ayy ing ‘ebueyd jou Aew Ajueass sy pue piezey ayj ‘@oeld ul e s|oJjuod ay}
aouQ ‘aoe|d ojul Ind aJe $|0JjU0D BY} 81043 PaJe|NJED S| ‘pJEZEY [ENPIAIPUI YoED YiM pajeloosse Bunel Ajuanes pue Ayjigeqoid ay)

RAuepad | g Ayjeyednuspioul JoleN | G
alqeqold | ¥ Anfuj solepy | ¥
a|qissod AlybiH | € Anluj snousg | ¢
8|qissod | ¢ Anfuj yueoyubig | 2
Axiun | 1 AnlujJouliy | |
Ajjiqeqoad ITETETS

‘AjejeIpewwl payodal aq o} ale pjezey mau e jo A1anodsip ayy Jo piezey paynuspi ue jo Bunel Ayjiqeqoud
ay} Jo Ajuanas ay) Jayye Jo uonejesse ayj ul Bupnsas sebueyd Auy yuswpedsp yoes Jo sispes| wes) pue siosiniedns [enplaipul Aq
Jusne ay) Jo uonelnp ay} Jnoybnouyy aoeld axe} Juswssasse Bulob uo ue jey) sunsus o} Jebeuew Aases ayy Jo Ajiqisuodsal 8y} st

"MOYS 8y} pue uoljonsisuod Buunp yoq ‘olignd auy jo sisquisiy ‘€
‘JuaAe ayj Jo Buiuuni ayy Buunp pakojdwa SISO ‘2

“JUBAS 8]} JO UONINIISUOD BY} Ul pakojdwa SIaNJOopA “|

:BuIMO||0} U 0} sl 8y} ssasse 0} paubisap si JUsLISSSSSE SIYyL

JuUsWISSasSsSy .xw_m

FEFCIERNS




Page 128

LA VE3 JNdANT

“uoneayad 'a') 'aous)adLuod ajensuowap

uea oym asoy) Aq pasn aq 0} Ajuo Juejdpuawdinba Busyi

“IIex) pne jqeacsd e o} 198igns Jo (43707T) TMS Pue

uonoadsus jo ajeayiad Aq paiuedwosae aq o) Juswdinba Bunyy |ty

0¢

‘Hels
pue sJojoenuo]

SpeO| pEsLIang

uawdinb3 jo Justianoy

anpniseyu)
1u9A3 4O uopeEIsU)

0L

*syoayo Jueyd

pue 8ousdy; Buipnjoul ‘aoiyo ays woyy aoeid uy ainpadosd jueid a)is
"30UBADE Ul BiGBYIBAR SUBLISSBSSY Sy JOJORIUOD

‘ajs

Uo SawWl (e Je PaAasqo aq 0} SI0JORNUED (e o) papioid sajru ag
, “3OUBADE UI )N0

paLLes S¥93Y3 J0joeNU0Y) ‘Jusjadwiod pue paulel) 8q o) suosied (i
‘pasiaiadns aq o) JUBWSAOLW Jue|d/SajoiyaA JOJRIUOD [iy

“90HJ0 B)iS Ul 3|qelieA. ajnNPayds uohonpold

‘gaueydiwiod §gH uiRjuew o) pouad

Jealq/piing ay) Buunp ajs uo aq (i 180140 saBRUE AlBjeS Juang uy
‘safjuoyne

Aiojnje)s pue s10}0e4U02 'uoijanpoid Yjim aSielt 0) pue LORE|IeISUI

10 yom B1) sasian0 0} pajutodde usaq sey Jabeuew ays Jusjadwod

Jeis pue
SI0}IBAU0D ‘2YgNg

jue(d pue Juawdinba
10 (01U UlB)UIBL O} BIRIE

juawdinbg jo Jusieaop

2JnjonISELU|
JUBAJ JO uojiejiesy)

"30J0 8)IS Y} 0} UoHeYINaD Jo seidoa apinoid o) SieAup Jueid |y
‘Je)depe 33y Spuey yjim

pany ssajun Buaup Jsjiym pasn aq o} jou soipes pue sauoyd oK
*801140 8)IS 8Y) 4O uoissiuad JNojIM 3)iS O) SSBIE ON

‘uewsyueg e Jnoyum Guisianas oN

"sease pajeubisap u aaow o} Ajuo sajoIyep

"(3dd) wawdinba Ayiqisia-y seam o) Buppiom maid jiy

(s)ybi7y prezey JoN) ‘uoaeaq abueso 1o syybiypeay asn 0} s1eALq
"ydw Q) ‘Jwn| paads a)is SAIISQO 0} SIBAUP (i

0C

ygnd

ay) Jo s1aquiap
"INUBA

8y) Jo s1asn sy
‘eys

pue SJ0joenuo)

ALY
uoisijiod

SJUBLIGAO B)9|YOA

aimaniseyu)
1u9A JO UoRejE}SU)

‘sainseaw aaoajoxd
[EJUSWIUOHAUS JUBIJYNS PUB

Jdd aleudosdde yym seakoidws
18y} apiA0sd 0} SI0JOBIUOD iy

‘papIA0sd 8q 0) A)un3as 1noy g

‘ease Buppom punose pajiejsul aq o} aoua) J3jaWuad

“papiraid

aq 0} Jayi Jo [esodstp @y} Joj sanioe) pue (Idd) seaolb eigeyng
*S30UBLLWIOD YIOM 810}3q PaYIaYo A||ENSIA 3q O) BalY

‘pasinbas aiaym papiacid aq 0) wWeasd Jaleg

1 “Joyjeam
[N0} WoY Jajays pue Suup pjos pue Joy Joj 8jqejieAe 8Q 0) Ssafiioe
"(3dd) Butyjop sayieem oy 0) SSB3IE AABY O} SIHIOM (i

yers
PUE SI0}0BNUCD

ouqnd
ay) Jo Jaquisw Aq Jnessy

Jay| papiedsip
Kissajeses woy Anjug

ejusayjodiy
ejuuaypadiy

$10)084 |EJUBLLIUOIAUT

aInaniseyuy
JUBAJ jO uopejjeisuy

uoILBU 3A7)




Page 129

LA YY3 NN

@0

ay) Jabuepus jou [jim pue syxa asy Jo sajnas Aouabiaws ‘sAembueb
1onu}Sqo Jou flim Jey) Aem e vy pauolisod aq o) Juswdinba iy

‘uosiad Juajedwod e Aq pasnadns ag o) yiom je

pue ayepapun o} ase Aay) ¥SE) ay) Ul sige pue Jusiadwod aq o} mald |y

‘Buuies) Gupuey jenuew ssjuedwod |

s enpiapu sad se pajuawaidw aq o) sasnpacasd Buypuey fenueiy

Gl
14

<+ ™

Jejs
pue siopenuon

sj0a(qo Buljed
Ainfuy 6upuey [enuey

ewdjnba
Jo Buypuey pue Bupjorig

aInjponsesyu
JU9AJ JO uopeyeIsu|

Lol ar Mol

0 W Wn o

-~

~— N

wWwWwm

w0

*ajeudasdde a1aym wom aq 0} Idd

'sejqen buiyes) o) piebas yym buideayesnoy poo9

"papuoq yes aq o} ssaueydde [BaLI3B}R | SSED iV

‘uosuad

Juajadwod Aq paypan pue pajoadsyl 8Q 0) SUOHEEISU) [EILIIBIB [iY
*Buurey) ajeudosdde paatasal

aney oym suossad Aq papuajui asodind Joj pasn aq o} Ajuo sjoo|
*Buusnoa sjqeyns Jeyjo

Jo sdwe 2jqed ybnosy) un 1o paunqg aq o) ease ayqnd Ul SYQeD v
‘spiezey du) asnea Jo syixa ‘sAembueb jonysqo o)

jou se Aem e yons uj ‘uosiad Jua)adwod e AQ pajiejsul 2q 0) S8|qed iy
Kiddns jo uoneujuue)

pue axnos Je papioid aq o) juawdinbe Bunyby-axy ajgeuns
‘gjeudosdde se papuoq yuea aq o) SaInjonuis [ejen

"8OUBADE U Pa)ayd Uonejuawnaop Ajajes jeiauab s jojoenua)
‘pajeayiad pue paulexs aq o) juswdinba pue sjoo) sjgepod
*3jqeayoeid a1aym s{00} pajesado Asajieq J0 AQL ) J0 s

‘pauinbas

se uolja9j0:d OADY 10 GOY Ui Papiaoid aQ 0} LOANQUISIP [BOLI0BIT
‘SUOHE}RISUY}

{eoujoai3 Asesodusa) 10) sjuawaiNbay 6062SE ) SUOHEliEISU! Y
‘ajeudosdde

SE payipad aq o) sayddns Jamod UMO SIOJIBIUOD [ENPIAIPUL Y
"Rep-moys pue yeauq/pjing Buunp s)is-uo aq o} ueiowaig jusjadwo)
*J0}0B2)U00 Jud)adwod Aq pajieisul aq o) seyddns [eaL)38I8 (1Y

N D

KREKRE

14
0z

T ™

< < < <

- 0

w mm

wwwm

0w

SIO)ISIA pUB
JBIS ‘SI0j0RUCD

‘yels
puE SI0joRIu0D)

Buddu|
fanluy leuossad
uoin0N08;3

Buiddu|

aly

swng

190US 233

a4
LN 40 SYJ0US [BANO3]

8100} Jamod Jo asf)

*$9{qed |05u0d
pue Jemod jo uognquisiq

samod
suew pajesoush jo asn

aInjonseyu
JUBAZ JO uofiejiEISU

“sjiney
Aue yym [eap 0} SUBIOLIBIS |1ED UD
‘Allep pajoadsu) aq o} bunyby dwa

*pasinbay Guppiom ybiu asaym papiroid aq o) Bunyby Aetodws |
‘g|qissod aseym
W6Aep jo sinoy Buunp uaxepapun aq 0) UMOPYEaIQ/PING LB

cl

Jejs pue
siojequo) ‘dlland

Bupyiom
Joj Aynaqisia Justoyjnsuy

Bupybn

aImonjseyu|
1UBA3 JO uojejielsu|

'Saly) e Je Jeajd |dey aq 0) saynas ssasfiassaaoe pue skembueb iy
"suopesado Buryy Areey Joj sjqeqieae (Yisioy) Juawidinba Guiyi
*Auessadau aJaym Ajuo uayepapun aq o) Guijpuey jenuepy

‘asn Jo juiod 0} ajqissod e asojo se 0} sjeusjew Jo Aisaieq
Juawdinba jo ubisep ajeudasddy

"SI0}9BAU0 Jusadwon Jo ye)s paules) Aq usyepapun syse|
*SI0JOBA)LOD {eNPIAIPUI AQ JUBLWSSaSSE YSU JY1a8ds qop

‘eale paynuspil ay) ul sucijesado asay)

Buunp sauy (12 je wom aq 0} (3dd) sia-1y pue sjooq Ajajes ‘siey piey
“Hii JO aus punase paysiqelse aq b ease uoisnioxg

"anesado Jueyd ay) AqQ JusleouswIwod

0} Joud passasse Ajenpiaiput aq o) suoyesado Buyy (i

0¢

4}

(so4/sssipueysia] )
jueyd jo asn

GuypueH [enueyy

(uoILBU 3AfT




Page 130

] LA VY3 JNdINT
‘spJezey paynou *180y)O/sebeuey Ajajes
\j)Im {eap O} mald a)is Aq puejs Juan3 Aq pauieyuiew 6o| ays SpH pue aoejd uy waysAs Buipodal §BH
‘Juana ay) uunp yuasedde awooag ‘paanbal aseym

1eu) sa{0.|sqo 10 spiezey duj
pajou Aue podas 0) Jjejs UoRINpPoiY

pasiypajeao| aq 0) swajsAs uoyuaaald ssaooe pue abeubls SpH
*AJBSS8I3U SE Pajj0JJUOD JO PaAOWal SPIEZRY
paynuap! ‘sedyj0/1abeueyy Aajes Juaag A no patues sioed S3H

SI0j0BJUOD
pue jels ‘ojand

amjonuseyul
Kq pasneo siej /sdu |

uojaNpoLd eleuss

annnseyu)
1U9A3 JO uopE)EISY)

0L

“goe|d Ul JUBWISSaSSE YSU aly pajie)ap ajesedes

‘8)nal ajojyeA woy Aeme pue Ajsjeudaidde paiojs aq o) "0} sieuuly)
'sjujed ‘jesaIp Se Yons jeuajew 1o aoue)sans ‘pinby sjqewwey Auy
'safie}s punoseyuo pue sainonss

payus) apisut ‘sjuiod abesoys 947 pue jen} punose sauoz Sujows oN
‘(s)ease pajeubisap uj pasojs aq 0} s1apullko D47 Adwa pue aseds
*S8|MJ YIS Y)m 8oUBPI0DIR L) Pash aq 0] Ajuo 9

"SEaJe 9SN0Y J0 YIBq pue Buase puncse sjaed asy seinbay

*a0Inas auy Buipale 10} we)sAs 1snqoy

‘JN0 pasapisuod

ale Aay) Jaye uans 'saly Aue JO PasIAPe aq O} joALOD JusA]

*asn Joj papiuuad jou ssojesauab jasjad

‘pasinba se siaysinbunxa

aJy paje2oj[e 8q jiim moys auy) 1oy painbay seuoe) enxg

*SUONEIO}

paynuapt-asd e a|qissadde Apsea jday aq o) ssaysinbugixe as4
"ajis-uo Apejnbiau pajoayiod s8jqisnquIed ajSepm

*3)sem ajqewwey Jo dn ping juaaaid o) Buideayasnoy

poob ajis uo wnwiuiw 0} }day aq 0} S{eLsjew 3jqISNGWos)

Sl

1008100
pue jeis Jnd

Kpadoud Jofpue suosiad
0) ayows Jo auy Aq abeweq

an4

INONISEYU|
aAJ J0 uope|EISY)

w0 w0

"Wbiay je

sHom aonpal 0} jeas; punaub Je Jno palues 3jqissod Se som yonw sy
‘aoed

ur Aoyjod @nases pue 'asn u) wa)sAs uoyaajoid (e} jeuuosiad sigepng
'suossad Jusjedwod Aq Jno pawes Jubiay Je suom iy

‘8jqeayoesd aseym spiedueysdaons

sjeudasdde Aq payoeye aq o) Jybiay je pasn juawdinba pue sj00)
‘gjqissod

S) SB UOOS Se JJ0 ,papeap, aq 0} SaInjon)s pue juawdinba umoy iy
‘ajqissod asaym

sIaeq Ag PajoLlsal 8q 0) SYIOM PESLUBAO Y)BSUSq SEBIE 0] SS830Y
“[enpialpul

jusjadwioa pue pajuiodde auo AQ pajjaAuCd 8q o} Sl IsIoy-Hinw jly
"siayjo Jo Ajajes pue yjeay ay) Jabuepua jou

1w Jew) Aem e ui pabbu aq o) saiqen Buipnjour ‘Juswdinba umoy iy
‘ajeudosdde asaym pasn aq o} spuoq Ajajes, AUBpuodaS "Sau0ssSalIe
pue juswdinba Buny ajgelns Aq papioddns aq o) Juawdinba umoy ity
‘uossad Juajadwiod e Aq pajelsul 8q 0} sjujod 6uibbu pue sicjow gy
‘seale pajeubisap ul wom aq 0} 3dd sleudosddy

‘g|qejsun

Jou 51 )1 e 0s Aem e yons u pauoipsod aq o) Juawdinba paxoe)s iy
'SJ814)0 JO Ajajes pue yjeay

0L
oL

0L

oo

w0 w0

SIO)ISIA pue
4els 'sioenuo))

sj0a(qo Bujjjed
siied

uonaNASqn

yawdinbs
30 BuyAy/Bu)66y

uolLHU 3A[0




Page 131

LA Y3 IWdANT

“Aajes ayqnd o} Jebuap
e 5 aJey) 1ey) (98} Aay) i mous

au) ey 0} Ajiqe ay) sey Jobeuetu
abe)s ay) ‘dW3 8y} o) papuadde

ale sainpasosd dojsmoys

= WD W <

—— N

- 0 M <

“aoejd ur wa)sAs ssed pue Buyeyal) aindag

"1LBIU02 JO Sease ajqissod

4O UONEAYHUSP! YiM ISISSE O} [0AUCD JUBAT O} ¥oBq pakeral sdasiS
‘aiqeuUs|uN SBW023q SIBHNS Ji SS3IE JoLNSal 0} SPIEMA)S JO as()
"lojjuog) JusA3 pue yejs Ajunoas AQ Buuoyuow pmosd JUBJSU)
*J00eU02 Aq pajejdwoo ueyd Buipiema)s pajielaq

‘pakojdwa Jojoeuod Aunaas paouauadx3y

‘pouad

5|QRUOSEA B LIY)IM UONBNIBA2 BUSIE 10} MOJjE 0} SHX® juaoyng
*a9ejd u) asnpadoxd dojs-moys Jsnqoy

‘sasnjonus Aejap pue sabejs Jo Juay ui JaLueq swey-y

"Ruoyine [e20] Yy paasbe pue pajejnoje Aiedes eualy

4
4
0c
9l

<+ < T M

= 0 <

Jels pue
sJojoeUO ‘oljqnd
auy) Jo SJequiapy

seale
payueq uo buyjeyBuiddys

aoueQNSIP praI]
Buiddu |

Buysnun
Buipmoisan0

Kyoedes eualy

BUBIYAUBAT

"smalo Ag-puejs Ag moys ay} Jnoybnouy} Jno paiiied aq Aew ey} }JOM UoloNIISU0d Jo

10adse Aue o) Ajdde jjis enoge paiuapl SaINSEaL |0JJU0D pUe Spiezey ay| JUSAS 8y} 0} Seje|l JUBLUSSSSE SIY) JO Japulewal ay |

w0 w

w0

‘uotssasB6e Jo ysu JI seiuoe} Juswieal) e puey uo eq o) Je)s Ajunaes
'sjuafjed UO UOHEAISSQO UIBJUIBL PUB SJeME 8Q 0) JelS

‘Juswissasse ysu oyioads Ajddns o) Jepinaud eaipan

'sdJeys |eaipalw Jo jesodsip 1o} sulq sdieys asn

‘gjqissod asaym spunom uado 10} sanbjuyos) andase |ensn

(3dd) spiny Aipoq

uim Buieap usym yuawdinba ajeudaudde asn o) [puuosiad jeaipep

43

oL
oL

oo™

0w

Hels

SI0}0BJ)U0D
pue jels ‘oyand

uoissasbbe 1o jjnessy

Aanfuy yoysajpsan
UOHBUNLBIUOI SSOID

uojsiAold [ESPOl

amaniselu)
JuBA3 JO UOpENEISY)

‘papinaxd aq o} sayiioey Asejues pue Jajjays ‘Buueles ‘Jajem Bupjuug
‘sinoy Bunesado aps Guunp Anp uo Japly 1Si4 PAYIEND

‘gjqejieae (3dd) uonoejosd buueay

*Asessanau ajaym paysiige)se aq o) sauoz uoiosjosd bureay
‘[eLa)el SNopiezey JO Uoljejnwnade Jusasid o) Buideayasnoy poco
"PaAOLWaS 84 JouUED Jey) Spiezey du) ajeipu) 0) pajaala SaNON
"pouad yeaiq/pjing

Buunp sease Gunpom umo J1ay) Joj 3jqisuodsal SI0JIBNUCD
*SalIqIsuodsas pue Sajnu ajiS JO PaULIOJUI SI0DBNUOD

cl

4}

sayiioe)
PIE 1S11f PUE BIB}j3M 1O YOB]

abewep buueayasioN

FEIEIENS




Page 132

P~

1A YH3 INGINT

‘Ajundas Aq pabeuew

pue Juaas ay) o) Joud Jas 9)a suueyieid Bumala Joj sanioedes QN
"JuBA8}as Bs8YM pajselieq Ajgepns pue

pasn aq [im A3y) YIIYM U| JUSLULIOIAUS BY) 10 3|GEYINS SBINJIMIIS |
'SUOHIPUCD BJESUN JO JUBAS ay) Ut ainpasoud dojs moys

‘sainjonus ajeudoidde uo Buuojuow puia

‘pannbay se Buwado aiqnd o) Joud ainjonis

10 Aubajui oy sjuawwasnbas Auoyiny (2207 Ajsnes o} Jojoenue)
‘Buiuado o) soud saimanus e yo ubis o siojoenuo)

14 Lo 18040 Kiejes ueaa Ag prey 8q o) | Z) £ 14 yeis pue Buiddes|
‘Juana ay) buunp G , G | soads jeauyss) pue uojiejuawnop ajeudoidde Addns o) ssop0enuon) | G £ G S10)9BJU0S 'llgnd Buiysrug
[[E2-UO M313 BABY 0) SJOJOBUOD g | g 'sJ0j0e4u0d | G| [ [ ay) Jo siaquapy asdejjoD SBINJONIIS B{gEISUN
Guibeys pue ssweq ‘abejua) jly Juajadwod Aq pajoasa pue paiddns sainjonys Aiesodwsay iy
BUBIYJUBA]
‘4EJS 10} D|QB(IeAR AUB)|IM PUB Jdd
*JUBLUUGIIAUS 1O} BIQBYINS BNJONJJSELUI PUB SBININIS
‘sejnuiw Og> aJed |ealpaw
ot 4 g {BLLIB)XT "B)iS UO D|qejieAe Saljijioe) alejjom pue [ealpaw gjgeyns | G| € [ Wi0)S (2ouja8|3
] 4 g Juana Jnoybnasy) pasojuow Jsesalo) sayiesp | G € g Hejs pue puim YBiH
oL 4 G | ‘eoeyd ui sainpasoxd Aouablawa pue ueid Juswabeuew Jusas jsnqgoy | zI £ [+ si0)2eu00 ‘oqnd Jayleap 104 Joyjeap 9SI9APY
8 z ¥ -goeyd uj ueid Jayleam assanpy | zL 3 2 ay) Jo s1aqusyy 13YJeaM PIODNSM
SBAIY {{Y/JUBA]
‘HODS3
plemays uewjsapad aaey o) Juaas Buunp euase uj Bunow sajiyaA jy
"uo sjyBypesy
10 uodeaq sbueio Buwysey Aeidsip o) eusie vy Buow sapiyaa iy
‘lajuo)
‘JSdY joAuoD) Juan3g AQ payl} MapInd U MOYS Jaye Buale Ojul PaMOjie SajIuaA ON
Juaa3 ybnauy) b fm siy) ‘euase ‘louo) Juaag] AQ pasuoyne aseym uey) Jayjo
ay) Jajue 0} saibbng aouejnque Jo $5800€ ayqnd Buunp eusle Ul SJUSLIBAOW B(IIYSA {iB LD UOHOLISDY
uononpod 1o} ased e aq AewW aray) [ 1T 'S3j0IyaA A3y 0) pajou)say ‘eusie | oz ¥ [ JjeJs pue Buysnin JuBwoAOl
‘uofjesado vl aq jjim [ I G | 8y Jeyua siswoisnd asopeq noy | sease ayqnd ul mapnd aameA | 02 ¥ [ siojoesuod ‘aqnd Ayapoy aausipny
waysAs ssed ajoyan (eAa| finw v g 1 [ ‘Juaaa Buunp a)is uo pamojje SajaIyaA pasuoyineun o | 0z ¥ [+ ay) Jo srequepy
BUAlYfUBAT
‘pa)aw)sal ssadde 1o Jno passauibua aq o) syutod Buiddes paynuep;
“Bupuy
uonoap ul siswosnd sisse o) abeubls amsuaxe Ayenb pooo
*S8UI} UOPJOI WO} O} B|QejieAR SWea) asuodsas piema)s
14 I ¥ “uoenyis Buidojeap 4o jo3UOD Jusa] wem o) sisjods | Z| € 14 aoueqnisip pmasn suiod
9 z [ ‘82UEJUS e sauej Buinanb pasauseq pue pabeuey | z1L ¥ £ Jejs pue ’ Buiddu ) Buydden pue smoy sso19
[+ L [ ‘suopoesme | Gl £ [+ s10}0e4u02 ‘ljgnd Buysnig Ryoede) evasy
¥ } ¥ | pue sebejs puncse uojeinuo ajenbape mojle o) paubisap euaty | zi [ ¥ ay) Jo siaquiapy Buipmosasanp
BUBIYAUSAT

luoiLBU 3AfT




Page 133

LA VH3 AWNdANT

*BUBJE 3Y) U] 33U0 JaqWaw aouaipne Jaailp o} abeubis aAisuaixg
‘sanos ssauba pue ssaooe uo Bunyby Juaoung

“{ly-SS0u2 ploAe 0} paubisap saouesua pue saue| Buinany

seale pajsabuod 0} $S02e JOLYSas ) SPIEMB)S JO 35

‘3)is punose seynas pauajaid Jo aguaipne wuojul o) abeubig
*$58308 8ousipne Joj sy poob ui suado euasy

"aInssasd pMoId JsIsal 0 UOHINISUOd ajenbape Jo aq o) saue
‘Ryjioey Buipioy pue ndyBnauyy ainsua o) saue; Buinanb juaioyng

14

Je)s pue
sio)oenuos  ‘ojand
8y Jo siaquisy

Buidder|
Buysrun

Buynenp
Ayapoy soueipny

BUBIYAUBAT

"spouad ysu-ybiy Auapi 0} uaxeapuN JUBLISSBSSE XSt ISy

‘s)siue ysu-ybiy Joy abeys uo Jajods pmosn

‘wea) Ajajes pmosd Aq aouaipne Jo Huuojiuow juejsuo)

"siapuayo Jeadas ja8ls o) Aoijod 1d

‘SPIEM3)S

3d uo ulens aonpas o} Jaweq paddajs ‘yd ul ease Buppom ajenbapy
‘uonesedas pmasd JSiSSe pue anssasd aanpal o) uolemnbiyuod saweg

0¢

yeys pue
siojoenuod  ‘aygnd
ay Jo siequep

Buiysopy/buins pmosy
‘woy Anfuj [euosiay

Aoy eouapny

BUBIYAUBAY

‘oyqnd ay) 0) uado

uBA3 ISHym a)1s uo JeayO Algjes aul4 Jusjedwod pue pasusuadx3
(010 sysomany

‘s1apulka seb) asueljua e 8ouaipne Wey) PanoLwal swa)i pajqIod
‘sjuiod a)sem Je dn pjing JO [EAOWA) BINSUS O} SJAUES}D)

*BAJR SOUBIPNE U] PaJ0JS 2Q 0} [EUBJEW SjqRwWey ON

‘SauNjon)s

Jolew Joaje Jou [jm auy Aue a1aym pajeao] aq O} SUOISSBIUC)
‘344 ajqepod ajenbape aAey 0) SUOISSU0D |1y

‘Ajuo siojesauab jasaig

‘Seale Pajdaye WAy UCHENIBAS JO SUBSI Jusioyng

"lo5)u0) Juaa3 Aq pajesado suoljedunwod pue uejd aly Jsnqoy
‘s1a)jods Aq ajis Jo BuLioyuow Juejsuc)

*a)is JuaAs punase AjjeoiBajes)s pauopisod yuswdinba jouod as4
"8)SeM 3QiISNqwo3 Jo dn pling ou asnsua o} Buidaayasnoy poos
(aouessjo) 0152) “euase ulypm sasy usdo oN

0¢

w0 o

1e)S pue
si0jeu0 ‘ongnd
ay) Jo s1aquaspy

UOfleleYyUl aYOWS
saunfur ng

aljd

BUBIYAUAT

"[aNuog 1usAg en

uonanposd pue saiouabe Jayjo ypm
asiel; 0} wes) Guuoyuow punog

el -

MmN

‘sease uonoajosd buueay v paocejd aq o) abeubis sjeudoiddy
‘[guuosiad

Bunpom Joy paysiige)se sauoz uoios)osd Buuesy Aiojepueyy
"80UBIPNE PUB Yd SAIJOB USBMIaq Jeow wg

‘Juaaa Jnoybnosy) Buvojiuow jaas; punog

"(3dd) vonoajoud

Guueay ajeudosdde o) sssae aey o) fBuuosiad Buppiom iy

N

o <

™M N

ye)s pue
si0)0B U0 ‘olignd
8y} 0 sisquispy

abewep yiys Asesodwa |
abewep buueay Juaueuuad

8SION

BUBIYAUBAT

uoilyU 3A[0




Page 134

LA YH3 JNANT

‘Juaaa Jnoybnoiy) aoe|d aye) o) sbuneaw Aouabe senbay
‘Kibuipioooe

yim Jieap aq 0) alignd ay) Jo s1aquisw AQ Jnoineyaq ajgejdaadeun jiy
"ALOD pue

jeuuosiad Aunoas Aq saLuy (e e pasojuow aq 0) AJIAIIIR PMOID IV
"|loAu03 JuaAa v 3ouasald uiejulew o) adlod 1IN

*3OUBPUBHE UJ Jje)S AJUndss pasuadly Je)s pue
‘S)UaAa Jnoybnosy) *pakojdwa 10)oe1)u00 Aundas pasuauadxe pUE jeuoissajald S10}0e5U02 ‘Ngnd Kinju; jeuossad o) buipeay | ANAROY Jspoue | jfeUIMUD
play aq o} sbuyeaw Aouabe-niny | 0L z [+ ‘Juaaa 0} soud sajpuabe Aioyels yim Buuuerd Ajunoss Juaag | 6L € [ ay) Jo sisquiapy AJANOY JSUOLB | /lBUILILG
sealy ||VAuA3
"sabessalu uoyenaeaa Jo Julod Aisalep {00} uuoj 0} yd abejs
‘sjustwasunouue Aouablaus Buiprebas suoyonisul
Aeje) 0) sigejieae aq 0} Jeauibus Jojuow pue HO4 O} SSEI0Y
'ssausep Jo spouad Buunp sease Jo LDHENIBAB Y)iM JsiSse
0) pajeAlde pue ajqejiene apeuwl aq o) bunyby soueipne ajgejing
‘|03 A)UNaas yym ORI Olpel Ut aq o) sajeb Aouabiawa jly
‘jeuonelado si euase ajlym paye)s aq o) sajeb Aouatuawsa iy JapJosIp dand
‘SaLw) j[e Je Jea;d 1dey pue paye)s aq 0} SSYN0S LUONENIEAS jiy Buiddu |
‘swes) Juswabeuew Buysni)
pm0asozAlunoas Aq pabeuew pue pasojiLow aq o) PMOID JO JUSWSAOH JJe)s pue ‘0) Buipesy
'S3INPadaId Yons Jo aleme 8q o) JJels UONINPOID PUB MaID iy siojoesuod  ‘olgnd ssainp Japun gjdoad jo | ssesb3 Aouabrew3 ajgnd
oL 4 [ ‘uonoe oy nd aq o) asnpadaid uolendeas AousBiewy | 0z ¥ G | ay jo siequew | stequnu sbire) Jo Juswaenoy
Sealy ||YUsAl
-aoe|d uy ueyd ssaibe pabuewe-aid
‘uojjeubisap ojeb yim paxuew aq o) sajeb iy
*SJ3QUaW 3oualpne
Jo Buiiauuny Jo Guiddel) ui ynsas PN YoM PasSN 8q 0} Sajnol oN
"ajqeanoeld Ajqeuoseas
12 3 ¥ SE JB} 0S SUORONJISGO pue spiezey du) woy aay 8q ) seynal ey | Zi € 12 soueqNISp pmaIy
9 2z ¢ | ‘seynas pausjerd buoje souaipne Jaaup o) sauoydebaw yym spiemals | gL ¥ ¢ 11ejs pue Buiddu )
I l [+ 'sgjnoJ pauajaid pue sajeb uo Bunyby jeuonppy | GL € G | siopenuos  ‘oignd Buysnuy ssaib3 eouapny
12 81| B “Ji Aejenbape pue paubis Apesp sixally | 8 | ¢ v | 8y Jo smquap Buipmasiang
SBBIY ||YJUGA]
‘uossad
Juajadwo/Alunaas Jnoj Aq pasinadns aq o) JSIUe JO JuswsAow |y
‘uojeyipalade Jo (aaa] ajeudaudde Inoylm SSa30e ON
"ajeudodde aaym asn ut Butouaysiaiueq Aundag | eale paIndas Jo ydealg
‘sease Jiqnd woy paje;os! 3q o) SIsIHY 1ejs pue eud)siy
‘pajedoyie aq 0} yejs siojoequod  ‘olignd Buysnio sealy ISy
[ l 6 | Aunoas jo siaqunu a)enbape pue asndas apew 8q o seae jsiwe iy | gL | € G | sy jo siequsy
S,diA J0 8oussald UORINPOIYAUBAT

CEFCIENS




Page 135

oL

LA W3 JNdANT

'z 7]

*8JiS U0 34d JO S[eA’| ajenbapy

‘aygnd ay) o) uado

JUBAB JSHIUM B)IS O J90YJO 8l JuaAT Jusjedwod pue padusuadxgy
‘syed Jea pajeubisap jo sjoned Ajunaag

*aoeyd ul Bupyby Aresodwa) ajenbapy

*AJessaoau asaym shkempea) ssoso 0} qnd ay) Jo siaquiaw

Isisse 0} papejs Algepns pue pajasjes syiod Buissosn ajgelng
‘suossad Juajadwoa

Uim paye)s Ajsienbape aq 0} Sajnal S{OIYSA a)iS Uo pue Syied e
‘a0e|d ul s3)nos $$8298 Bjqeyins pue pajeubisag

‘goed u) abeubis ajeudosddy

*sajouabe JueAsiel ym

sbupaal podsuel) Juaaa aid pue aoed uj ueyd juawabeuew Jyel)
‘pakojdwa

10}2e43U03 Juswabeuew Jyjel) paouauadxa pue jusjadwo)

‘ydwQ) aoeid ui iy paads ays / yued Jed

ajgeyieae Bunped pajiwn

oL
oL
01

o oN o

0w

s1awojsno / alignd
ay) Jo siaquiapy

any
youl
o1
uoisod

$5929Y 3IJYOA
pue Buped seq sewosny

jueAg

[1]3

‘sjqeyeae

344 eiqepod pue ‘juswuoiaua sof B|geuns jonpoid dluydsjoiAd
'pajauq 8q 0) auoz a1y o) Jeau Buppom suossad |y

"8jqeaydde

alaym vy 8yl Aq |eacudde o) josigns souyoajouhd se-uadp
“WBts Jo au ynoyyum Buuy oN

‘suosuad pauleljjusjadwod Ag pasn aq o} AuQ

*saj01yaA ajeudaidde ul pajsodsuey) saluyoajoiid

*SUCHONLSU) SBINJIBJNUBLL LM BUlUI Jo pasodsip

pue pajesado pue ‘asn o} Joud Ajgjeudoidde pasojs SoUYDBj0IAD iy
"89UBApE

| paddns sjuawaje)s poLjew / SJUAWSSaSSe YSu / S}38US Blep iy
‘sJaiddns ajqeyndas wouy pa2inos Jonpold

‘pauueyd-aid sojuyasjoikd gy

0e

augnd

3y} JO sisquiaw
pue Si0joeNuo)
'We)5 ‘sseuopag

Kanfuyswng
any

sojuyoejolid

jueag

sse06 Jusae

mojis} 1o yejs Buisnqe Jo Bures)s
‘abewep [eunuus Sumiuwwos
Bneo auokue oy Koiod uonoely

‘poddns aunbas oym Yeys Isisse 0) swes) asuodsal Ajundsg

"[J)U0T) JUBAT 1O [eu0d AUndasS

Jayiia yiim JoBjUOD OIpes Ui 8q 0} siosiadns Ajundas | piemals |y
‘sjosjed Ajunaas Jejnbay

9

agnd
8} Jo sIaquisw pue
HElS SI0)0RNUOD

asnQy [BQIaA
asnqy (eaishyd
Jinessy

)nessy

a3

uoILyU SA[T




Page 136

Ll

LA Y3 NN

paJinbai se 1u00s 10 #10Z 1290100 22

MBIABI IX3U JO e

300 Ined £10¢ 199000 piEe
ainjeubis Aq ino paiue) JUBWISS3SSY JO 3jed
“Juaaa Buunp

pue Joud Juswyedap y)esy [ejuswuciiaug AJUOYNE {830} Yl UOSIer
‘JuaAs 0} Joud sfieysp

uonessiba) pue sjuawssasse ysu Yjm Buoje uoyejusLLNop JOVVH /
Aiajes pooy apimoud o) pannbal szeyddns Buusjed pue Suoissaauoo |y
‘JuaAa 0) Joud pajaa siaiiddns Guua)ea pue suoiSsaduod |y

'Juana 1o} pajoesjuod Jayddns Buuajeo paouauadxa pue Jusjadwon
‘Juaaa ynoybnouy) a)s-uo Jojaesjucd Buiquinid

‘o) abelg)s Jo

yi6us} 1oy sjuawasnbal Jaaw o) sjassan abieio)s Jajem 'asn u) UM
‘Aingejod asnsua o) asn o) Joud

pajsa) pue sjuswalinbal Aojnje)s jeaw o) uoneyeisul sejem Buuug
¥ 1 ¥ *J0j0RJ)U02 Jusledwod AQ swasAs Jajem Auelodwa) jo uoiiejieisu|

el

aiqnd

3U) jo siaquaw
pue SJ0joRNUOD
'Jelg ‘siauopad

yupg pue
POO4 JO UOISIAOI]

SSBUJ|| BUINOgIaleA J0 poo4 jueA3

uoiLBU 3AT]




Page 137

[L_TVE NnATION

FINSBURY PARK
MUSIC EVENTS

APPENDIX D

FIRE RISK
- ASSESSMENT

Version 1



Page 138

4 LA VY4 INdANT

9
S
14
€
4
SIN3INNOD HOSS3ASSY 31va M3IINTH
M3IATY
| UOISIBA UOISIaA
€L-01L-€¢ JUBWISSISSY |eniu] jo ajeq
3009 |ned saiped JueAsjal |je 0} paINqUISIP SI JUBWISSISSY YSIY 814 ay) Buunsus 1o} s|qisuodsal uosiad
Joamg SSoy uosiad juajadwon
31009 |ned uosiad ajqisuodsay uAqoid uyor juswiysijqelsy Jo pesH
‘s)led Jed pue suoissaouod ‘sainjonlis Alesodwas) ‘sabejs :apnjoul 0} 8)is aipug )SIY JO sealy
¥10¢Z Jawwng sajeq JuaAg
N uopuo ‘“yiedq Aingsui4 sjuang oIsn yied Auingsui4
ssalppy awep juswysiqelsy

LNIJINSSISSV MSId Fld

JUSWISSASSY YSIY 81l — #10Z SIUSAT 2ISnp Yied Aingsul
[uoiLBU 3A




Page 139

€ LA Y4 WdINT

"JUSA® 8y} pue uononJisuod Buunp yjoq ‘olgnd ayj jo slsquispy '€
"JusaAa ay} Jo abejs moys ay) Bunp pakojdwa s1aIOp 2
“JUSAS 83U} JO UONONIISUOD 3y} Ul paAojdwa SISHIONM 'L

sdnoug) ysiy
‘Juana ayj Aq pajswse|dwi Buieq suonoe pasodolid ay) uo paseq papiodal aq ||IM XSU JO

[9AS] M3BU BY} pue piezey sy} ajeulwl|d 10 aanpaJ 0} pasodold aq ||IM UoIO. Jayuny Uay} ‘|9AS| |eWIOU 8} SAOGE ||I}S SI XS JO [BAS] BU} J| JUSAS
ay} Aq pajuawaidwi aJe jey} sainseaw [o1uod Buiisixa ay) uo paseq paje[nojed si ‘plezey [enplAlpul Yoea UM Pajeloosse Ysu JO [9A8] 8y

ybiH .
|EWION o
MO o

:S[2A8)| sl Buimo||oy ay} Jo auo Aq palyisselo pue XIep GXG e Buisn paje|nojed aq [jIm dsi 8y} ‘pauluexs m_n (M pJezey yoe]
YSIY JO SjPAT

sajnoy adeos]

sapioe4 pue juswdinb3 Bunybi4 e
Buiuiepp pue uonosiaq all4

|en4 JO se3inog

$821n0S uoub|

A Kz s

:sauobajen
SAl} OJUi PSPIAIP 39 |[IM JUSLUSSASSY XSIY ali4 8y} ‘malaal Jo sasodind sy} 10} pue Juswnoop ay} Jo Buipuelsiapun [esJaAlun 1O} MOje O]

sajoN Aiojeuejdx3 Juawissassy Ysiy all4

JUBLUSSASSY YSIY 214 — 102 SIUBAT 1SN Jled Aingsuig
(uoiLBU 347




Page 140

4 LA Ydd INdANT

‘pPaloNpuU0I S| MalAB) B uaym abueyo Aew sjaas| asay) jey) pebpajmousoe sij| "sadljod a)is pue sainpaodoid ays ‘Jnoke)
aJis Jo Buipue)siapun jussaid 8U} UO paseq Paje|Nd(ed Usaq aABY ‘sealy S)S Pue SpIezey [enpIAIpUIl Ujog 10} “YSIy 114 JO S[aAS] JuaLInd 3yl

‘uonesedo ui abueyd 10 juspioul
ue Buimoj|o} 1o/pue Juana yoeas Jo sabejs Buiuuejdaid ay} Buunp pamainal aq [|IM JUSWUSSSSSE YSU a1l U} ‘SJUBAS asau) Jo sasodind ay) 104

‘asIAa) AIBSS203U 81oUM pUB JUSLUSSSSSY YSIy ali4 8y} Jojuow Ajjenuipuo o}

Kiessaoau aq ||Im ) ‘'suonneosald aly Bunsixe j1oaye Aew jey} a)is uo sabueyd juedyiubis Jojuow 0} pue pajjoljuod Buleq ale sysu ay) AjAloaye
moy ssesse 0} ‘pajuswaidwi Buieq aie Jusawssassy YSIY ali4 Yl Ulyum sainsesw |osjuod pasodosd pue Bupsixe yjoq jeyj ainsus o]

JUBISSASSY YSIY Bil4 JO MAIASY

ogl1 ealy jo azis ajewixolddy Bupjied uononpoid ¢ auoz
ogl ealy Jo 82| ajewixoiddy uj-%98y9Q 8|dIyaA dealg pue pjing ‘Bunied Jed diA/pegesia ¢ auoz
ogl ealy jo azig ajewrxosddy ealy dIN pue abejs-yoeg Z auoz
odlL ealy Jo azig ajewnxolsddy BalY }SANC) puk BUBLY | suoz

‘malnal uodn Alesssosu aq Aew seale a8say) JO UOISIAIP Jayuny jey) pabpajmoudoe si )| 'mojeq a|qe)} sy}
ul payloads seale ay) Ojul 8)is aUj SPIAIP 0} AIBSSa08U aq [|IM } “YSLI JO [9A8] 8y} SSasse Ajsjenbape 0} JapJo Ul PuB JuaAs 3y} JO 8zis 8y} 0} anQ

}SIY JO sealy

JUBLISSaSSY YSIY a4 — $10Z SIUaAT 1SN Sied Aingsul
FEFCIMENS




Page 141

LA V4 JWdANT

YI0M\ 1B AjioL3oa|3 8y L yim
aouepJoooe Ul ‘uosiad jusjadwod
e Aq ‘salouanbayy sjeudoidde
a2y} 1e paisa} pue pajoadsul ‘asn 0} Joud ‘payoadsul salnjony)s Alelodws)
Mo S| Juawdinba [BouOBI8 ||V | |[EWION Ajjensia si juawdinbs [eouogd IV | 2% L | ulyim sasueljddy ajgeuod
‘gjeldoidde
alaym pash aq 0} uewsyueg
" s1e9 Jo Bupyied ||eys.iepy 0} Spiema)S
‘(ydw g})
Jwi| paads 8)is aAI8SqO0 0} SISALP (V.
"Sjuswanow 3o1yaA Buiwi
MO ‘uejd Juswabeuew oyel} }Isnqoy 1Tv uoIs|||0D el peoy
‘Alundag Aq eale jo s|oljed Jejnbai
Aq psjuswajddns ‘uononpul a)s s}sneyxy Jojesauss)
[ewsoN | Buunp sedijod a)is Jo Ssaualeme Jeis v wJoj jeay pajelpey
EERIVED
usamjeq uojeledas ajenbapy
"SS[OIYSA Yyim
10BJU02 JuaAnald o) [9A9| ejeudoidde K] RIIVEY
Mo 0} paulejuiew aq o) uonejabap 1v woJj JeaH pajeipey
umop
‘ash pue adA) yeauq pue dn pjing Bulnp
1184} Jo 10adsal ul uonejsibal bunss) juswdinb3 jue|d pue
MO | Juaund ypm Aldwod o} aie S9PIYBA IV | Z 8 L | S8IPIYaA paulejuie|y Ajzood
Asiy sjuswiwod BYO 3sty
JO pue plezeH ajeulwi|3 JO sdno.o)
ELER! 1Q 32npay 0] uonody pasodold ELER sainseapy |onuo) Bunsixgy NSy plezeH
"$80In0S uoyiub| ‘|
LA UOISJaA | [euloN | Bal1Y JO |[9AaT )SIY adl4
‘mainal uodn Aiessaoau aq Aew JuaLISSaSSE YsU a1l SIY} UIYIM ‘eale SIy} JO UOISIAIp Jayuny jey) pabpaimoudde si }
Baly 1S8N5) pue eualy
odl | ealy jo azig ajewixoiddy | | 8UOZ | ealy Juswissassy )siy all4

(uoiLBU 2A)7]

JUSWISSaSSY YsIy Bil4 — 4102 Sjuang aisnpy yed Angsui




Page 142

LA YH4 INANT

mo

3y} 4o ypne %01 buljjos e Jonpuod

0} 1321} uonuanald all{ ajeAld
"8}IS Uo aAlle

Asy) se ‘slaia)ed ||e 1o} sjuswabuele
fysjes auly pue yyesy ay} yipne

pue }Ipa1ooe 0} SJIBUOISSSIUOD [BIJUS)
‘uopoadsul

10} S1921O U}eaH |ejuswuodiAug
Auoyiny |B20T pUB BIIBUOISSAIUOD
[B]3uad 8y} 0} papinold sajeslIed
[BoL}08|8 JO sa1d0) 'SadINSP
aAosjoid 0goYd / Oy Aq pajoejoid
pue payiuad salddns [Bouosle ||y

v

S)IUMN UOISS32UO0YD UIYIM
suolje|jejsu| |eaLos|3

MO

"S80IASP

aAnosjoid 0goY / dJY Aq pajosiold
pue payiad saiddns [eouo’i8 (I

v

spun BuisipuByoIS| UIYIM
suone(eisu| [eauod(g

Mo

"UMOp Xealq pue JuaAs ‘dn pjing
Buunp a)Isuo 10)0eluU0d [BOLO3|]
‘suolejjejsul

[eolo98 Auelodway Joj sjuswalinbay
606.S9 0} Jojoequod jusjadwod Aq
pajelsul 8q 0} saljddns |eouo9|e |V

v

sebejg uiypm
suone||esu| |eouos|3

Mo

‘umop Yealq pue juaas ‘dn pjinq
Buunp 8)isuo Jojoenuod [Bouds|g
‘suole||ejsul

[eouosje Aielodwa) 1oy sjuawalinbay
606.S9 0} Jojoeiu09 jusjadwod Aq
pajeisul 8q o} sa||ddns |eouo9le ||

v

suone||eisu|
[E9L}09|3 PSPIACI BUS

Mo

, ‘6861 SuUONE|NbaYy YoM
18 Ajou08[3 8yl yym asueplodde ul
‘uosiad s}adwos e Aq ‘salousnbaly

ajeudoidde au) je pajsa) pue
pajoadsui si jJuawdinba |eouosle ||

‘sabejg
uiyum sasuelddy sjgeuod

‘686! suoienbay

(uoiLou 3A)7]

JUBLISSASSY YSIY il — 102 SJUaAT JIsn| yed Aingsul4




Page 143

LA Y4 IWdHNT

Mo

‘peaids ally jusanaid 0} sainjonuls
ueamjaq uoljeiedas JuaPIYng

v

‘salnjonis Alelodwa)
usamiaq jesy pajeipey

mo

‘asn 0} Joud pajoadsul

2q o} pue suone[nbail Jusino 0} jjing
pue paubisap @q 0} SUOISSa2U02 ||
‘wg g Aejewixoidde

JO sjiun usamjaq uoneledas sjenbapy

v

S}IUM UOISS82U0YD
woJj JesH pojelpey

Mo

‘juawdinba

sIy} Bujoayo Joy s|qisuodsai si
jueynNsuod pajuiodde sa1ieuoISSa2U0d
[BJ3uS9 3y} JO 3IBUOISSAJU0I [BJUD)
‘dn pjinq pue adeosa seb juanaid

0} S22IASp aiN|ie} SlWe pue S|0Jjuod
1IN0 IND oieisoulsay} yum paddinba aq
pinoys siahi4 je} || 811euoISSaouod
[es}uad ay} jo sjuawalinbai ay) Jjad sy

v

S)UM UOISS32U0YD UIYIM
slauing/sia)00?) seo)

Mo

‘UClIBN 3AIT JO jleyaq

uo ‘syuswabuelie Alojes ally siaia)ed
3y} 4o yipne 9,01 Buljjos e Jonpuod

0} J2oIO UOlUBABId 3114 8jeAlld
"8)IS UO dAlLe

Aay) se ‘siaialed |je 1o} sjuswabuele
fisjes aly pue yyesy sy} ypne

pue }Ipa1o9. 0} S4IBUOISSBOUOD [BHUSD
‘JuaAa ayj 0} Joud uonosadsul

10} S192140 Y}|BSH [BluswuoliAug
Aoyiny (8007 0} paplemioy

uay} aJe ydIym aJIBUOISSaOUOD
[B53Ua2 8y} 0} papiaoid ale yoiym

10 sa1doo ‘sajeoliao asueldwoo
JuauInd aAey o} suolje|jejsul seb ||y

1V

S}UM UOISSad2U0)D
UIyym suolje|[ejsu| Se9

‘UOHIBN @Al 10 jleyaq
uo ‘sjuswabuelle Ajajes all siIv)ed

uolLHU 3A)T

JUBWISSasSY YSIY a4 — $10Z SIUaAT dIsNA Yied Auingsul4




Page 144

LA Ydd 3NdANT

MO

113y Jo yoadsal ul uone|siba| bunss)
Juauno ypm Ajdwos o} ale S9dIYaA ||y

v

S3|2IUaA paulejuiey
Allood — syea |eng

[BWION

‘sjipne 9|dwes a)Is uo }onpuod

[IIM 192140 UOlUBAal4 8li4 3jeAld pue
Ao1j0d sIY} JO SUOISSBOUOD |BNPIAIPUI
SSIAPE [[IM B1IBUOISSSOUOD [BIJUDD
‘punodwos pajuaA ||[am

pue ainoas ‘pajeubisap ayj ul palols
aq 0} siapuljAd 18yjo ||y "8Jeds suo
pue aouejidde Jad asn ul Japuljfo suQ
'S8|NY SHS Yim

8oUBpI0d2E Ul pash aq 0} Ajluo 9d1

v

od1

moT

‘Ajundag Aq sjosjed iejnbay

"dn pjing

jusnaid o} Japio ul ue(d Juswabeuew
3)JSeMm Ul payloads se ‘sjeAlajul
Jejnba. je pandwa ale yoiym ‘sys
ay} Jnoybnouy} papinoid sajoejdasay

v

9)SEM 2[qsSnquion

‘padinbau J1 Buiyss)
10} 9|qe|ieAe apew aq 0} sajdwesg

Mo

VCERITIER)

Ulm papinold pue piepuels
juepJejay/bunsisal ally Jueas|al 8y}

0} payiHad aq ||im sabejs (e 1oy spoob
yos pue Buneays sanbiew ‘sadeiq

v

Spoo<) Yog pue
Buneayg sanbieyy ‘sedeiqg

ysiy SjuaWWo) B0
10 pue piezeH sjeuiwi|3
[9AST] 10 @onpay o] uondy pesodoid

S
10
ELEy

sainsesyy [04juo) Bunsixgy

sdnoig)
b=

piezeyH

‘l|en4 §0 s80IN0S ‘2

[BWION

‘dn p|ing jJuaAalid o} Japlio ul

ue|d juswabeuew a)sem ul payloads
SE 3)SEeM JO Suo1}99||02 Jejnbay
‘Aunoag Aq sjoljed Jenbas yym asn
Ul Jou usym eale aindas e ul payled
aq 0} Aisuiyoew pue jue(d jo swayl ||

v

uosly

NEIFCIVENNS)

JUBWISSaSSY YSIY a4 — #1.0Z SIUaAT JIsny Nied Aingsui4




Page 145

LA V4 3NdANT

Spew aq 0} SI0JOBIJUOD PUB Jels
"Bale pJezey ay) woly

suos.ad ||e ajenoeAs sjoljed Ajunoag
‘seale Jayjo Ajjou

0} Jjejs a)S pue sjoned Aunoag
‘wa)sAg oipey s)IS ‘eale ay jo sped

"a11} Jueoyubis
e JO Bale ay} uiylim

MOT | pajiwli| SI9A0D WBSAS ssalppy 2lignd 77V | suosiad e Ayjou 0} ainjiey
‘UOISS82U0d
‘Awixoud e 0} Ajlwixoid aso|2 Ul Jo
3S0J2 UIy}im dasis yejs aiaym spun ul ul Buidass ale yeys alaym
[ewioN | P3anY 8d 0} J0}O3}ap SjOWS dlsawo(] 281 | psonou-un Buidojeasp ali4
[eWIOoN ‘Runoag Aq eale Jo sjoned Jejnbay 11v | p@onou-un Buidojgasp ai4
ASie sjuswwo) J8Yyio ASiY
10 pue piezeH ajeulw|3 10 sdnois
[ona 1O 29Nnpay 0} uoloy pasodoid [ena] sainsesy |onuo) bunsix3 3SIY piezeH
‘Buiulep) pue uonosyeg el g
seale bunjied Jed Jno yiew
0} SpJemajs |euolssajold ‘sajoIysA
Mo usamjaq uoneledas ayenbapy 1v SETRIIVEY N
‘|aA8| ajes ajendoidde
Mot ue 0} paulejuiew aq o} uonelabap 1Tv uonejabap
‘Juawdinba
pue sg|d1yana a|geyns buisn
‘S10}J0BJJUOD paslioyine/pajeulwou Aq
Mo | pauied aq o} Ajuo si Bulenyal sysuQ v Buljianyey sysuQ
"2ouepInb pue aoue)sisse Jayuny
10} sj|ids jueouiubis Aue jo payijou
aq 0} Aouaby Juawuouiaug pue g4
‘Jebeuew g9H Jo/pue Jabeuew ays s||ids jueoyiubis
|[ewlIoN 0} pauodal aq 0} s|jids [any Jolew [y Tv spinbi| s|qewwe|4
"sYy [;ids Buisn s||ids
moT | pases|d Ajdwoud aq o3 s|jids Jouiw ||y Tv Jouiw spinbi ajqewwe|4

‘asn pue adA}

FEICEENS

JUBLISSaSSY YSIY @l — #10Z SIUaAT JISN| yed Angsui4




Page 146

ol

LA V4 SWdANT

Mo

‘JJels 9)is 0} panss! uaym ‘s10joeljuod
jus)adwos Aq siaysinbuixa ally Jo
ash pue uoljoajes uo uaalb uononssuy|

[

yels
ays Ag siaysinbunxa aly
a|qenod Jo asn joai1loou|

Mo

403 8y} ein g47 0} papodal aq

[IM SBll Jaylo ||y ‘@24nosal ajsuo Aq
Yym }jeap aq O} allj JO SYeaqino JOoUl
‘siaysinbuinxs

all} Yyim panssi a9 0} sajiqow AjJunoag
‘BaJE

ay} puno.ue panguisip siaysinbunxs
aly jo saniuenb sjeudosddy

1

siaysinbunxs a1y a|qeuod
J0 Ayuenb jusioyinsu|

Mo

"} Yed €569 YIM soueplodde
Ul pajjual sisysinbunxs aly [y
*10}0BJU0D JuS}edWod

e Aq ¢ ped 90ESSg UM aoueplodde
ul padIAIas sJaysinbunxa aly ||v

v

‘wiopad
0} Buijie} siaysinbunxa ali4

IS
10
[oAST

sjuswwo JBYio
pue piezeH ajeulw3

1Q 89npay 0] uondy pasodold

ISy
10
[9A87

sainseayy [0ju0D Bupsixgy

sdnoig
IS

plezeH

‘sanjioey puejuswdinb3 Bunybiq 8l v

MO

‘uononpul

ays Buunp seynol adeoss pue
salnpaosold Aousbiawa ayis Jo sieme
apew aq 0} SI0}0BIUOD pue yejs
‘Bale pJezey ay} wou}

suosiad [|e ajendeAs sjoljed Ajunoasg
"seale Jayjo Ajjou

0} Jjels a)is pue sjosjed Anosg
‘wa)sAg olpey a)S ‘eale ay} jo sped
pajiwi| SioA09 walsAg ssalppy dlignd

v

eale ay) Jo ajoym

8y} Jo ‘jo ped ajendens o)
pasau ayj JO eale a3y} UIyjim
suoslad Ayjou 0} ainjie

‘uoionpul
ays Buunp sajnol adeossa pue

salinpaooud Aouabiawa a)s Jo aieme

(uoiLBu 3A)7]

JUBWISSaSSY YSIY ali4 — #10Z SIUaAT 2ISN Yied Aingsuiy




Page 147

L

LA V4 3NdANT

‘w/ '€ ueyy ss9| jou jo by Jespo
pue w| g uey} ssa| jou sajeb je ypm
Jes|d ‘w/ € Uey) SS9 JOU JO SYIPIM
peol aney sasueldde auly 10} S8IN0Y
‘'sue|d ays

uo payJew pue paubis Ajluea|o sajnoy
"SuUoIoNJISqo

Jo 9314 }day ale saue] a4

Mo7 | ainsus 0) Aiunoag Aq sjoned teinbay TV aueT all4 ul uodNAsSqO
"suoloNIIsqo
40 @3y} 1day ale sanol Aouabiswa "s9)N0.
Mmo7 | ainsus 0} Aundag Aq sjosed leinbay 1V | Aousbiswsa ul suoionysqQ
"dIN3 uiyim
pepn|oul suolje|nojed Jxa Aouabiawg
‘uonsabuod jo seale Aue
Aejal pue uonenoeAa Jojuow 0} A1DD
‘sa)eb )Ixs Jo Yyipim sjendolddy
'sa)eb Jixe jo siaquinu ajenbapy
"Sawljj ||e je paye)s pue sajnoy adeoss] pue s)x3
Mo Jea|d 1day aq o0} s}x3 Aousbiawi] ||y TV | Aousbiaw3 ul suononasqo
IS Sjuswwod By 3siy
JO pue piezey ajeuiwl3 JO sdnoio
[onaT] 10 9onpay o] uoly pasodold [oAsT] sainsea |onuo) Bupsix3 Sy piezeyH
‘'sajnoy adedssy ‘G
‘Rundas/yels s1aysinbunxa aliy
MOT | 8IS 0} panssi aq 0} siaysinbuix3y ali4 71V | S1genod jo asnsipy 1o sso7
‘Ringeyns Bunesipul 'sisysinbuiixe
anoge paypy subis adAy saysinbunxg 211qnd a8y} Jo siaquiaul
"seale olqnd ul Aq siaysinbunxa ay
Mo | sJaysinbunxa aliy Jo siaquinu paywi] € a|qeqod jo asn Joa1100Uu|

"0S Op 0}
ajes pue paulel} sssjun ‘Jaysinbuiixs
Ue asn 0} Jou uo aouepinb Jesp yum

[FEIFCIVEINS

JUSWISSaSSY YSIY ali4 — 1102 SIUSAT JISNy Yied Aingsuld




Page 148

cl

LA Vid 3NdANT

3y} uo paseq SI ydiym ‘uononpul

ayis J1vy} Buunp ‘sajnos adeosa

pue sainpaooid Aouabiawsa ayis Jo
aleme apew ale SI0}OBJJUOD pue yejs
|le ‘pouad xeaig pue pjing ay) buung
"0}@ ‘se)nol adeoss Jo

s|iejep ‘saoinies fouabiawa Buifyou
Jo} syuswabuedle ‘ally e Buuanoosip
uo Uy e} 3q 0} uonode :sapnjoul
UONBLUIOJUI SIY] "S}S UO [BALIER

J19y} 0} Joud sainpasoud Aousbiawa
ays Buipiebal uonewlojul yym
papinoid ale s10}0B1JUOD pUe yels ||V
‘Bale piezey sy} wouy

suosJiad ||e ajenoeAs s|oljed Aunoas
‘ueld

uswabeuepy pmoin/Aundag ayy

ul pajiejap se ‘Aousbisws ue Buunp
s8|0J oy1oads Jiey) uo sisbeuepy pue
siosinedng Ag pajaiig aq 0} splemsls
‘si9|iey pnoj Buisiyn seale Jayjo Ajjou
0} JJe)S 8IS pue sjoljed Ayunoag
‘wajsAs oipey a)s ‘eale abejs jo

.m:__aaE
pue Buiysni) ‘esie

MOT | SJoym SIBN0D WBJSAS Ssalppy 21lgnd 71V | J0 uonenseAs pajjouodun
'S8)N0J adeoss pue ayIs

ay} ynoybnouyy pauonisod Ajjesibajens ajnol

Mo spyb1| uoojsay pue syybi| 1amo | 11V | AousBiswsa jo Bunyb Jood

"wg gl Uey} Ssa| jou Jayawelp
e sey }l ‘papiaoid s| 919419 Buiuiny e y|
‘aleyybnoioy}

ajgeyns Bugysixa jusoelpe Jo sue| aliy
B Wwouj wog uey) Jajealb s ‘palinbal
aq Aew Bunyby a1y assym ‘Jusne

ay} Jo ped ou os papinoid ale sanoy

UoILEU DA)T]

JUBWISSASSY YSIY all4 — $1.0Z SJuaAg dIsny yied Aingsuid




Page 149

€l

LA YHd SWNDINT

"S8J2IYaA Yim
JoejU09 Jusnald 0} |aAs| ajeudoldde "S9[OIYaA
Mo 0} paulejuiew aq o} uonejabap Tv wolj JeaH pajeipey
‘umop
"asn pue adfAy yealq pue dn pjing Buunp
113y} Jo Joadsal uj uone|sibal bunse) wawdinb3 jue|d pue
MO | Juaund ypm A|dwod o} a1e SSPIYBA |IY | 28 L | SSI2Iyaa pauejuiey Aluood
Asiy sjuswwoy 1BYlIo ISy
JO pue piezey ajeuiwi3 1O sdnoig
[2Aa7] 10 @9onpay 0] uolPy pesodoid ELER! sainseapy [onuo) Bunsixy Sy plezeH
"$801n0S uoniub| '}
yeiq - LA | UOISIBA | [BULON | B31Y JO [9ADT YSIY a4

‘malnal uodn K1ESS308U 9q ABLU JUSLUSSSSSE Y%SIl allj SIU} UIYIM ‘Bale SIU} JO UOISIAIp Jayuny jey) pabpajmouoe si |

ealy di/\ pue abejs-yoeg

ogl | ealy jo azig ajewixolddy | g ouoz | ealyjuswssassy )siy ail4
‘anoge “B)IS YIM Jejjiejun
MO pajielap s|ojuod Bunsixa ay} Jed sy réac A a|doad jo Jaquinu abie

‘ssao01d ¥eaiq pue p|ing ay} buunp
8)noJ uoionNpul |ewloy sy} ybnoayy

ob jou op A3y} JI yels o0} uojjewoul
Jo apeosed e s| a1ay} jeyy buunsua
10} a|qisuodsal uay} ale siabeuew ||y
"32140 uone)paIdoe 3y} je pjay ale
SpJ02aJ puUB uoldNpUl 8y} pooisiapun
pue panigoal aney Asy) Aes 0} ubis
S88jonpu| ‘uononpul siy} buiaieosl
1S114 JNOYIM 3)IS Y} Jajus jouued
SJOJOEBJJUOD pue Ye)S ‘sjuswpusuie
10 suoIsIAal Aue sapnjoul pue a}Is

Uo [BALLIE 113y} O} Jolid ‘SI0}oBIIU0D
pue yejs ||e 0} papirold uoneuwloul

(uoiLou 3aA)7|

JuBWISSasSY YSIY alld — 102 SIUSAT disn Yied Angsuil4




Page 150

14"

LA Y4 INDINT

mo1

Aay} se ‘si1aiaje ||e Joj sjuswabuele
fyajes a1y pue yjeay ay yipne

pue }Ipa1ooe 0} 311BUOISS32U0D |[eJjUBD
‘uonoadsul

10} SJ92140 YljesH |ejuswiuodinug
Ajuoyiny |B207] puUB BJIBUOISSSIUOD
[ejjuad 8y} 0} papiroid sajesiiao
[B2U}0318 Jo saldo) "savInep
anosjoud 090y / AOY Aq psiosioud
pue payiad salddns [eouo9 ||V

v

sapyoe buusye) pue
S)HUM UOISS3DUOD UIY}IM
suolje|ejsu| |eoujos|g

Mo

"UMOp }ealq pue juaas ‘dn pjing
Buunp 8}Isuo 10}0BIJUOD |BOUIOS|]
‘suolje||ejsul

[eouosle Atelodwa) Jo) sjuawalinbay
606/S9 0} Jojoesjuod jusjadwod Aq
pajeisul ag 0y saljddns |eouyos|e ||V

TIv

suone|eisu|
[e011}03]3 PapIAOId SIS

Mo

'6861 suone|nbay

YI0M Je Ajo1yos|3 Byt yim
aoLepIoo2e Ul ‘uosiad jusiadwod
e Aq ‘sapousnbaly sjendoidde

a8y} Je pajss} pue pajoadsul

sl Juswdinba |eouosie ||V

[BULION

‘ash 0} Joud ‘pajoadsul
Ajlensia si yuswdinbs |eouo9)e ||V

cR 1l

salnjonys Aielodwa)
uiyym sasuelddy sjqeuod

MO

‘ajelidoidde

alaym pash aq 0} uewsyueg

"SIeo Jo Bupjed ||leysiep 0} Spiems)s
“(ydwoy)

Jwi| paads a)is aAIaSq0 0} SISALP ||V
"SjuswaAoW o1y Buniw

‘ue|d Juswabeuew oiyel} IsNqoy

v

uoIS||0D dljel] peoy

[BWION

“‘Runoag Aq sjoned Jeinbal
Aq psjuawsa|ddns ‘uoionpul ayis
Buunp saojjod ayis Jo ssauaieme yejs

v

sjsneyxs Jojessuas
w.oj jesy psjelpey

"S9[OIYaA
usamjaq uoneledss ajenbeapy

(uoiLou 3A)7)

JUSWISSaSSY YSIY a4 — $10Z SJUaAT aIsnpy yied Aingsuiy




Page 151

Gl

LA V4 3NN

mo1

‘asn 0} Joud pajoadsul

2q 0} pue suonenbal Juaund 0} jjinq
pue paubisap aq 0} SUOISS32U02 ||
‘wg 'z A|lorewixoidde

JO sjiun usamjaq uoneledas sjenbspy

v

S}iuM UOISS32U0D
woJ} JesH pajelpey

Mo

"8)IS UO dAlLE

Kay} se siai9)ed |je 1o} sjuswabuene
Kyajes aJi) pue yyeay ay} yipne pue
HPaIO2E. ||IM SJIBUOISSS2UOD [BIUSD
‘dn pjing pue adeasa seb yuanaud

0} SS2IASP 3Jn|iej SWe} pue S|0Jjuod
N0 JND dneIsoulay) yum paddinba aq
pinoys siaAi Je} ||e 8J1euoISSaoU0d
[esuad ay} Jo sjuswalinbal ay) Jad sy

v

(sanbiepy

Buueien yeys Buipnjour)
sanioe4 buusie) pue
S}HUN UOISSS2UO0D UIylm
SJ3UINg/SIa}007) seo)

MO

‘uoieN aAIT Jo jleyesq

uo ‘sjuswabuele Ajajes ally s1818)ed
3y} o Jipne %0} Buijjol e Jonpuod

0] 12210 uonuanald ali4 ajenld
"3)IS U0 aAlle

Ray) se ‘siaia)en ||e Joj sjuswabuele
fajes auy pue yjeay sy} ypne

puUEe }IpaJode 0} SJIBUOISSSOUOI [BJJUSD
‘JuUaA2 ay} 03 Joud uonoadsul

10} S1221O Y}|eaH |ejuswuoiiAug
Ajloyiny |E207 0} paplemio)

uayj ale Yoiym aJleuoissaouod
|eljusd ay} 0} papiaoid a1e yaiym

J0 sa1doo ‘sajeoyiuad aoue|dwod
Jua.Ing aAey oy suole|eisul seb ||y

v

aanblep

Bunsien yeys buipnioutr)
saly|oe4 buusied

puUB S}uf UoISSadU0D
uiyyim suope|jejsu| seg

“UOHEN @AI7 JO Jleyaq

uo sjuswebuelle Ajajes ail slaiayed
8y} 4o ypne %0} buljjos e Jonpuod

0} 4192140 UoUaA_Id 3li4 S)eAlld
"9}IS U0 aALLe

uoILbU 3AT|

JUBWISSASSY YSIY Bl — $10Z SIU8AT JISN| ed Aungsuld




Page 152

9l

LA V4 SNdANT

[BWION

[IIM 132140 UOIUBABIY 3li4 SjeAud pue
Ao1j0d siy} Jo SUOISSBOUOD |ENPIAIPUI
SSIApPE [|IM 31IBUOISS3OUOD |BJJUSD
‘punodwiod pajusA ||am

pue ainoss ‘pajeubisap ay} ul palols
aq 0} suapuljho 1ayjo ||y ‘aleds suo
pue asuejdde Jad asn ui Japuljfo suQ
'S9INY SYS YIm

80uUepI022e Ul pash aq 0} Ajluo 94

v

od1

Mo

‘dn pjinqg Jojiuow

0} wea} Aunoag Aq sjosied Jejnbay
‘dn pjing

juanaud o} Jeplo ul ue|d Juswabeuew
a)sem ul palyads se ‘sjeassjul
Jejnbai je pandws ale yoiym ‘ays
8y} ;noybnouyy papinoid sajoeydasay

v

S)SEM 2|gnsSNquion

‘paJinbail Ji Bunse)

10} 8|qe|leAe apew aq o) se|dweg

Mo

QTCTCRITER)

yym papiaold pue piepuels
JuepJejal/bunsisal ally Jueas|al sy}

0} payiao aq |Im sabess ||e 1o} spoob

v

Spoo9) Jos pue
Bunesys aanbueyy ‘saedeiqg

Asid
10

SVET e WL Te)
pue piezeH sjeuiwi|3

ELER 10 @onpay 0} uonoy pasodoid

st
0
[eAs]

yos pue Bunsays sanbiew ‘sadeiq

sainsespy |0u0) Bunsixgy

sdno.c)
hit=

piezey

‘lend J0 s82Inog ¢

[ewION

‘dn pjing JuaAaid oy Japlo ui

ue|d juswabeuew ajsem ul payoads
SE 3)SEM JO Suo1393]|00 Jejnbay
‘Aunoag Aq sjosed Jeinbal yum asn
Ul Jou Usym eale aindas e ul payed
aq 0} AJsuiyosew pue jued jo sway ||y

v

uosly

Mo

‘pealds ali.juanaid 0} sainjonis
usamjaq uoneledas JusOYNS

v

‘sainponlls Alesjodwa)
usamjaq jesy pajelpey

uoILEU 3A)1)

JuBWISSasSY YSIY alld — $1.0Z SIUaA] oIsn yed Aungsuiy




Page 153

Ll

LA VY4 IWNNT

‘waiskg oipey a)IS ‘eale ay) jo sped

€ JO eale ay} UIyjm

MOT | pajiwi| SIBA0D WB)SAS ssalppy 2liqnd 71V | suosiad |je Ayjou 0} ainjie4
"UOISSa2U0d
‘Ajwixoud e 0} Ajlwixoid asojp ul 1o
30|92 UIyyIm dasis Jels alaym spun ul ul Buidasg|s aie yejs asaym
[BWION | Pan 8 0} J0}03}ap SHOWS d1}SaWo 281 | psonou-un Buidojansp ali4
[BULION ‘Aiunosag Aq eale jo sjosed ieinbay 11V | pesnou-un Buidojansp ali4
ISy sjuswwod 1BYy10 ASiy
JO pue piezeH ajeulwi|3 JO sdnoig
ELER 10 9onpay 0] uopdy pasodold [9AaT] sainsespy [01uo0) Bunsixy XSy piezeH
‘Bululep) pue uonosleqg alld €
‘seale buped 1ed Jno }lew
0} SpJema)s [euoissajold ‘sajoIyan
Mo uaamjaq uoneledss sjenbapy 1\ S9|2IYaA
‘[oA9] ajes ajeudoidde
Mo ue 0} paulejuiew aq o} uoljejebap v uonejebap
uawdinbs
pue sajoIyaA a|geyns buisn
‘s10}0e13UO0D paslIoyjne/pajeulwou Aq
Mo | paued aq o} Ajuo s| Bujsnyal apsuQ v Builsnyay aysup
‘aouepInb pue aouejsIsse Jayuny
Jo} s||ids jueoiiubis Aue jo paynou
aq 0} Aousby Juswuoliaug pue g47
‘Jobeuew g¥H Jo/pue Jabeuew s)is s||ids jueoyiubis
|ewlIoN 0} payodal aq 0} s||ids |an} Jolew ||y Tv spinbj sjqewwe|4
"SHY ||1ds Buisn s||ds
moT | pases)p Apdwoud aq o} s|jids Jouiw || 1Tv Joujw spinbi ajqewwe|4
asn pue adAy
J1Iay} Jo 10adsau ul uole|siba) bunss) S32IYys/\ paulejuie
MO | Juaund yum Ajldwod o} a1e saoIysA ||V v Ajood — syea [en4

‘s)pne a|dwes a}is uo Jonpuod

uoILEU 3A|T]

JUBWISSasSY YSIY a4 — $10Z SIUSAT JISN yed Aingsui4




Page 154

8l

LA Y4 NN

Ylm }jeap ag 0} a1l JO sHea1qino Joulp
‘slaysinbunxs

all} Yyym panssi aq 0} sajiqow Aunoag
‘eale

ay} punole pajnguisip siaysinbunxa

siaysinbunxs aJy s|qeuod

Mo all jo sannpuenb ajeudoiddy v 40 Ayuenb jusioynsu|
"} Hed £455S9 Ylim adueplodde
ul pajjyal slaysinbunxa aiy ||y
*J0}oBIUOD Jus}adwod
e Aq ¢ ued 90EsSg Uim aoueploode ‘wiopad
Mo ul pasinas siaysinbunxa auy ||V TV | 03 Buipey sieysinbunxa ain4
ISty Sjuswiwiod 18Ylio IS
JO pue piezey ajeuiwi|3 ile) sdnoig)
[ECR| 1Q 3onpay 0] uondy pasodolid ELER! sainseayy [onuo) Bunsix3 NSy piezeH
‘selyjioe pue juswdinb3 Bunybij ai4 v
‘uononpul
ayis 418y} Buunp ‘sajnol adeoss pue
sainpadsold Aouabisws a)is Jo aseme
apew a8 0} SI0J0BJJUOD pue yeis
‘Bale piezey ay} woly
suoslad ||e ajenoeAs s|osjed Alunoas
"sJajiey pnoj Buisiiyn seale Jjayjo Ajjou Bale ayj Jo ajoym
0} Jjels a)s pue sjoljed Ajunoss 3y} Jo ‘Jo yed ajendens o)
‘wajsAg olpey alig ‘Bale ay} jo sped psau ayj jJo eale ay) ulyym
MOT] | pajiwl| SI9A0D WasAg ssalppy dlignd v suosJad Ayjou 0} ainjieq

‘uononpul
ays J1vy) Buunp ‘sajnos adeosa pue
sainpaoold Aousblawa a)s Jo aieme
apew aq 0} SI0JOBIUOD puUB YJeys
"eale plezey ay} wou}

suosiad ||e sjendeAs s|oljed Ajunoag
‘seale Jayjo Ajjou

0} Jjels a)is pue sjoned Ajundag

"a11) Jueoubis

(uoiLou A7)

JUBWISSasSY YSiY a4 — $10Z SIUAAT oIsn| yled Aingsul4




Page 155

61

LA V4 INANT

uo payJew pue paubis Al1eajo sanoy
"suofonisqo
Jo @344 Jday ale saue all4

Mo | ainsus o0} AJunoag Ag sjoljed Jejnbay 1TV aueT all4 ul uononysqoO
‘SUOIONIISqO
10 981} }day ale saynol fousbilawe 'Sa)nol
Mo | ainsus 0} fjunoag Aq sjosed Jejnbay TV | AousbBiawas ul suononisqoO
‘dINT ulyim
papn|oul suone|ndjes yixa Aousbilaw]
‘uolsabuod jo sease Aue
Aejai1 pue uonendoeAs Jojuow 0} A1 DD
‘sajeb J1xa Jo yipim ajeudosddy
'sa)eb jixa jo siaquinu sjenbapy
"sauwll} ||e Je payels pue sa)noy adeos3 pue s)x3y
MO Jes|o yday aq 0} syx3 Asusblew3g ||y TV | Aousbiaw3 ur suoionysqO
ISy sjuswwo)d IBYyio ISy :
1O pue piezeH ajeuiw||3 iTe) sdnoug
ELER 1Q @2npay 0] uondy pasodoid ENCh sainseapy [o4juoD Bupsixgy NSIY piezeH
‘'soJnoy adess3 ‘G
‘Ajunoas/yels slaysinbunxa aliy
MO | 8)Is 0} panssi aq 0} siaysinbuix3 ali4 TV | elgenod jo asnsip Jo sSO7
‘Ryjigeyns Bunesipul ‘siaysinbunxa
anoge papy subis adAy saysinbunxg a1ignd ay} Jo siaquiaw
‘seale olqnd ul Ag s1aysinbunxe a.y
Mo | ssaysinbupxe aly Jo slaquinu pajwi [ a|qeuod Jo asn 1081100
"0S Op 0}
ajes pue pauiel} ssajun ‘Jaysinbuixa
ue asn 0} Jou uo asuepinb Jes|d yym
‘1Je}s 8)IS 0} PaNss| USYM ‘SIOJOBIU0D yels
jusjadwod Aq siaysinbuinxs ali jo aus Aq siaysinbBuixs aly
MOT | 8sn pue uoid3Ias uo UaAIb uoonusul | Z% | a|gepuod Jo asn }081100U|

"YDO3 8y} eIA g7 03} pauodal aq
|lim saldl} I3Y]o ||y ‘82Jn0sal a}Isuo >D

(uoiLou 3A)7]

JUBWISSasSSY YSIY a4 — $10Z SIUaAT JISN yed Aingsui




Page 156

0c

LA V4 SNdANT

"0} ‘sajnol adeoss Jo

s|ieyep ‘saodinias Aouablawas BulAyou
Jo} syjuswabue.e ‘ally e Buanodsip
uo Ua)e) 8 0} UOI}O. :sapnjoul
uoljew.olul Siyl “8)is uo |eAlle

J1Iayy 03 Joud sainpasoud Aouabiaws
a)is Buipsebal uonewloul yym
papinoid ale S10}0BIUOD pue Yels ||y
‘eale piezey ay) woly

suos.ad ||e 8)enoeAa sjosjed Ajundas
‘uejd

juswabeuepy pmolD/ANoag ay)

ul pejiejap se ‘Aousbiawa ue Buunp
s8|0J oy10ads 118y uo siebeuepy pue
siosiniadng Ag pajaiiq eq o) splema)s
‘si9jiey pno| Buisinn seale Jjayjo Ajjou
0} Jjels a)S pue sjolled Aunoag
‘wa)sAg olpey a)s ‘eale abejs Jo

‘Buidduy
pue Buiysnin ‘eale

Mo | 8joum si1anoo waesAsg ssalppy olignd TV | jo uonenoeas pajjonuodun
‘sa)nol adeosa pue a)s

ay} 1noybnoiyy pauonisod Ajesibajens ajnol

Mo s)ybi| uooysay pue syybi| Jemo | 71V | AousbBiswsa Jo Bunybl| Jood

‘wg gl Uey} SS9 Jou J8BWelp
e sey } ‘papinoid si 9jo410 Buluiny e §|
‘aJejybnoioy}

ajqejns bunsixa juaselpe Jo aue| aly
B WoJ) WG uey) Jajealb si ‘pasnbal
aq Aew Bunyby a1y sreym ‘Juans

ay} Jo Jed ou os papiroid ale sejnoy
"W /'€ uey} ssa| jou Jo ybiay Jespo
pue w} ¢ uey} ssa| jou sajeb je yipm
Jeso ‘w/ ¢ uey} Ssa)| Jou JO SYIpIm
peol aAey saoueldde a.i 10) SaIN0Y
sue|d ayis

uoILBU 3A)7)

JUBWISSASSY YSIY all{ — 1.0 SIUSAT 2Isnpy yied Aingsui4




Page 157

114

LA Vdd NN

‘adA}
Ji1vy} Jo joadsal ul uone|siba| busa)
MoT | Juaund yum Aldwod o} ale sajIyaA ||y TV | s8oIyap paulejuiepy AjJood
ISy Sjuswwoy 18y 3SiH
JO pue piezeH ajeulwi|3 1O sdnolo
|onaT 10 99npay 0] uondy pasodoid [aAaT salnses |onuo) bunsix3 NSy plezeH
yeiq - LA | UOISIDA | [euwLoN | B3lY JO [9ADT] )SIY a4

‘malnal uodn Alessadau aq ABW JUSLUSSSSSE Y%SI all SIY) UIYNIM ‘Bale SIU} JO UOISIAIP Jayuny Jey) pabpajmouoe si j

ul§08yd S)0IYaA Jeaig pue piing ‘Bubied JeD diIA/PaIgesiq

281 _ Baly jo 9zi§ djewxolsddy

¢ 8uoz |

BalYy JUDWUSSIASSY NSIY all4

Mo

"anoqe
pa|ie}ap sjojyuoo Buisixe ay} Jad sy

4’

3lIS Yim Jeljiwejun
a|doad jo Jaquinu abie

'ssa00.4d yealq pue pjing ay} buunp
8JnoJ uoyonpul [ewloy ayy ybnouy)

ob jou op Aay} J Yejs 0} uonew.ol
10 apeose? e s| a1ay) Jey) buunsua
1oy 9|qisuodsal uay) ase siabeuew ||y
"a014§0 Uone}paIode Ay} Je play ale
SpJ0Dal pUB UoIoNpuUl 8y} poojsiapun
pue paniadal aney Asy) Aes 0} ubis
saajonpu| "uoionpul sy} buiniedal
1S4l JNOYYIM B)iS By} Jajus Jouued
SJ0JOBIJUOD pUB JB)S ‘Sjuswpuswe
10 SUOISIA8] Aue sapn|oul pue s)is

uo |eAlE JIBY) 0} Joud ‘S10)0B1U0D
pue Jjejs ||e 0} papiaold uonewloul
8y} uo paseq si yosiym ‘uononpul

ayis J1ayy Buunp ‘sejnol adeoss

pue sainpasoud Aouabiawe ays jo
SIeME SpEW aJe SI0JOBIUOD PUB Hels
|le ‘pouad yeaig pue pjing ayi bung

(uoiLbu 3A)7]

JUBWSSasSY YsIY ali4 — $1.0Z SIUaAT JISN yled Aingsuld




Page 158

[44

LA VY4 INANT

|[EWION

0} pauodal aq o} s|jids |any} Jolew ||y

v

spinbi| s|qewwe]

Mo

‘s (1ids Buisn
paieso Adwold aq o0} s|jids Joulw ||y

v

sids
Joujw spinbi a|qewwe]4

MO

‘adAy
J1ay} Jo 10adsal u) uonelsibs| bunsa)
uauno yum Ajdwod o3 ale ss|1ysA ||

v

S9|2Iya paulejuie|y Al1ood

Mo

"dn pjing

juanaid 0} Japio ul ue|d Juswabeuew
a)sem ul payoads se pandwe
Auenbal ‘sjeassyul seinbal e ayis

ay} Jnoybnouyy papinoid ssjoejdasey

v

SJSEM 2|qsnquion

ASiy
0
|oneT

SjusWWo? 1BYIO
pue piezeH sjeulwi|3

10 @9npay 0] uonoy pasodold

3siy
10
[eAeT]

sainsespy [0uo) Bunsixgy

sdnolig)
sy

plezeH

‘lend Jo s82IN0g ¢

|EWLION

‘AjInoag Aq eale Jo s|odied Jejnbay

1V

uosly

mo

‘UMOp Mealq pue juaaa ‘dn pjing
Buunp 8)Isuo 10)0BIU0D [BOL}OS|]
"suone|esul

|eouyose Alelodwa) 1oy sjuswalinbay
606/S9g 0} Jojoenuod jusiadwod Aq
pajjeisul aq o} salddns |eouosje ||y

1v

suole||eisu|
|ESL}08|3 PapIAOId BYS

MO

‘a)endosdde

alaym pasn aq 0} uewsyueg

“(ydw g1)

Jwi| paads ajis aAI8sq0 0) SISALP ||V
"sjusWwaAoW 3|dIyaA Buniw

‘ue|d Juswabeuew oyel; Isnqoy

v

uoIs|[|0D dlyel] peoy

MO

"S9IOIYaA

uaamjaq uoleledss sjenbspy
"S3PDIYSA Yyum

1oBjUO9 Juanaid o} |aAs| sjeudoldde
0} paulejuiew aq 0} uonejabap

TIv

"S8|0IYaA
wouy JesH pajelpey

([uoiLBUu 347

JuBWSSassY YsIY 8l — 102 SluaAg JISn yied Aingsui4




Page 159

€c

LA vdd NN

apew aq 0} SI0}0BJJUOD pUe }e)S
"Bale pJezey ay) wol
suosiad ||e ajenoeAs sjosjed Alnoag

"s18|ley pnoj Buisyyn seale Jjayjo Ajjou

0} Jje}S 8)S pue sjoned Ajunosg
‘walsAg olpey 8IS ‘eale ay) jo sped

BaJe ay} Jo ajoym
ay} Jo ‘Jo yed ajenoeas 0}
paau ay} Jo eale ay} uiypm

MOT | pajwl| SI8A0D WBSAS ssalppy 21land TV suosiad Ajijou 0} ainjie4
‘uoionpul
a)s Buunp ‘ssinol adessa pue
sainpasoud Aouabiawsa ajis jo aieme
apew aq 0} SI0]0BJUO0D pue yeis
‘Bale piezey ay} Woly
suosiad ||e ajenoeas sjoned Ajunoag
‘'seale Jayjo Ayiou
0} JJejS 8)IS pue sjosjed Ajunosg "ally Jueoyiubis
‘waysAg olpey a)s ‘eale ay) jo sped B JO BaJe 8y} uIlym
MO | pajwl| SI9A0D WBISAS ssalIppy dlland TV | suosiad |le Ayjou 0y ainjied
|ewloN ‘Ajunoag Aq eale Jo s|oljed Jejnbay 711V | peanou-un Buidojaasp a4
ASiy sjuswwod BYO ISy
JO pue piezeH ajeulw|3 JO sdnoig
[E1Cn 10 @onpay o} uopdy pasodold ELER! salnsesp |onuo) bunsix3 3SIY piezeH
‘Buiulepp pue uondeleq a4 €
‘|oA8] ases a)eldosdde
Mo ue 0} paulejuiew aq o} uonejabap v uonejabap
‘juaswdinba
pue s9|o1yana g|qeyns buisn
‘s10joBJJUOD paslioyine/pajeulwou Aq (siamo]
Mo | paued aq o} Ajuo si Bujjanyal aysuQ T1v | Bunybiy) Buyeniay ausuQ

‘2ouepIinb pue aJuejsisse Jayuny
Jo} s||ids yueoniubis Aue jo paynou
aq 0} Aouaby Juswuouiaug pue g4
‘Jabeuew gxH Jo/pue Jabeuew a)is

s||ids jueoyiubis

(uoiLou 3Aj7)

JUBWISSASSY YSIY a4 — 102 SUaA] aIsnpy yied Aingsui




Page 160

144

LA Y4 NGANT

‘Aunoasyyels

siaysinbunxa aiy

mo | sus oy panssi aq 0} siaysinbunx3 a4 71V | @l|geuod jo ssnsi 1o SSOT
‘Ringeyns Bupeoipur ‘siaysinbuixe
anoge payly subis adAy Jaysinbunxg aljqnd sy} Jo sisquiaw
‘'seale oliqnd ul Aqg siaysinbunxa aiy
Mo | siaysinbBunxe aliy Jo slequinu pajiwi e a|gepod Jo asn }08.1100U|
‘0S Op 0}
3jes pue paulel) ssajun ‘Jaysinbunxs
ue asn 0} Jou uo asuepinb Jes|d yum
‘}Jels a)Is 0} panss| Uaym ‘siojoeljuod yels
jusjadwod Aq siaysinbuixa aliy Jo ays Aq siaysinbuixe aly
MO | 8sn pue uoios|as uo uaalb uogonnsul | 2% L a|gepod Jo asn 3081100
O3 8y} eIA g7 0} pspodal aq
[IIM SBall JBYJ0 ||y @21nosal ajsuo Aq
U}IM }jeap g 0} all} JO SHBaIqino Joulp
‘slaysinbuixe
all} Yym panssi 8q 0} sajiqow Ajnoag
‘eale
ayj puno.e pajnquisip siaysinbuixe siaysinbunxa aiy s|qepod
MO aly jo sannuenb ajeudosddy TV Jo Ayjuenb jusioynsu)
"} Hed £4GGSg Yim soueplodde
ul paj|al siaysinbunxa aJy ||y
*10}0B1U09 Jusjedwod
e Aq ¢ Hed 90£5Sg Yim aoueplooade ‘wiopad
Mo} ul paoiaias siaysinbunxa all ||y T1v | 01 Buijey siaysinbuixa aii4
isiy Sjuswwoy sy Jsiy
JO pue piezeH ajeuiwi|3 JO sdnouo
[ona 1Q @9npay 0] uonody pasodoid [ana sainseap |ouo) bunsixg 3siy piezeH

‘sajioe4 pue juswdinb3 bunybiq any v

‘uofonpul
ayis Buunp sejnol adeose pue
sainpaoold fousbiawsa a)is Jo aleme

uoiLBU BA)T

JuaWSSassy YSiy all4 — £1.0Z SIuaAg oisni sed Aingsui4




Page 161

°r4

LA VY4 SNdANT

mon

"s9)noJ adeoss pue a)is
ayy Jnoybnouiy) pauonisod Ajeosibajels

s)ybi| uoojsay pue sybl Jamoy] |

v

ajnol
Kouabiaws o Bunybi| 1004

Mo

‘Wg 9| UBY} SS3| Jou Jajawelp

e sey } ‘papiaoid si 8jo110 Buiuiny e §
. "alejybnouoy)

a|qeyns bunsixa juaselpe 1o aue| aly
B Wouj wog ueyy Jayealb si ‘palinbal
aq Aew Bunyby a1y asaym ‘Jusns

ay} jo ped ou os papiroid ale seynoy
"W/ "¢ uey) ssa| jou jo ybiay Jespo
pue wy ¢ uey} ssa| jou sajeb je yipm
Jeg|d ‘w/ ¢ uey} SS9 Jou JO SUIpIm
peo. aney sasueldde aiy 10) sEIN0Y
‘'sue|d ays

uo pa)iew pue paubis AjJes|o seynoy
"suolonNIIsqo

Jo 831} 1day| ale saueT al4

ainsua 0} Ajunoag Ag sjoljed Jejnbay

v

aueT ali4 ul uononusSqO

Mo

"SUOI}ONIISqO
10 @214 }day| ale sajnol Aouabiawe
alnsua 0} Aunodag Ag sjoJied Jejnbay

1V

‘S8)nol
Kousbiawa ul suoonusqO

Mo

'dIN3 uiyim

papn|oul suoie|nojes 3xa Aouabilawg
‘uonsabuod Jo seale Aue

Aeja1 pue uonenoeAs Jojuow 0} A1 DD
‘sajeb jxe jo ypim ajeudoiddy

‘'sajeb jIxa Jo sisquinu ajenbapy
"sawl} ||e je paye)s pue

1ea)o 1dey aq 0} syx3 Aouabiawg ||v

1Iv

sa)noy adeoas] pue s}ix3y
AousbBiawg ul suonoNAsSqO

St
o)

Sjuswwo) Jaylo
pue plezeH ajeulwi|3

[8AaT 10 @onpay 0] uonoy pasodoid

Sty
10
[eAaT]

sainseap\ |onuo) bunsixgy

sdnoug)
Sy

plezeH

‘'sa)noy adeodsy ‘G

uoiLgu 3sAj1

JUBWSSasSY YSIY 8l — 102 SIUaAg JIsny yied Aingsuid




Page 162

9¢

LA Y4 SWdANT

Mo

"991J0 uolje)ipalooe ay) je pjlsy ale
SPJ0231 puB UoiONPUI 8y} poojsiapun
pue paaiadal aney Aay) Aes o} ubis
saajonpu| "uononpul siy} Buiaiesal
}S41} JNOYYM B)IS 8y} Jajua jJouued
SI0JOBJJUOD PUB JB)S ‘Sjuswpuswe
10 SUOISIA8I Aue sapnjoul pue ajs

Uo |eALLIE J18Y) 0} Joud ‘S10)0BIJU0D
pue Jejs ||e 0} papiaoid uonewopul
8y} uo paseq si yoiym ‘uononput

ays Jisy}) Buunp ‘seynos adeoss

pue sainpadsold Aouabiawa ays Jo
SIeMe SpelW aJe SI0JOBIUOD pue Jejs
|le ‘pouad yeaig pue pjing ay} buung
"0}@ ‘sejnol adeoss jo

s|iejap ‘seoinies Aouabiawsa Buifjou
o} sjuswabuewne ‘aly e Buanoosip
uo ua)e} aq 0} UoJO. :SapNjoul
uonew.ojul SIY] "S)IS UO [BALIE

118y} 0} Joud sainpasoud Aousbieswa
ays Buipsebal uonewiojul Yum
papinold ale SI0JOBIJUOD pPUB YEls ||V
‘Bale pJezey ay)} woly

suos.ad ||e @)endeAs sjolied Ajllinoas
‘uejd Juswabeuepy

pmo1D/A)INdes ay) ul pajiejap se
‘Aousbiswe ue Buunp ssjoi ouoads
118y} uo siabeueyy pue siosintedng
Aq pajeliq aq 0} spsenb Aunosg

‘sJa|iey pnoj Buisipn seale Jayjo Ayjou

0} 4E)S SYIS pue sjosed Ajnosg
‘wajshg oipey a)g ‘eale abejs Jo
aloym s1aA0D Washg ssalppy dlignd

v

‘Buiddiy
pue Buiysnip -eale
JO uonEeNOEAS paj|ouodun

(uoiLou 347

JUBISSASSY YSIY 84 — 102 SIUaAT JIsny yed Aingsui4




Page 163

Fx4

LA VY4 NN

MO

[eouyoaje Aielodws) 1o} sjuawalinbay
606.S9 0} Jojoenuod jusiadwod Aq
pajeisul aq 0} salddns |eouosle ||y

v

suonejjeisu|
|eoL}08|3 PapIACI SIS

MO

‘ajendoidde

alaym pasn aq 0} uewsyueg

‘(ydw 1)

Jwi| peads a)is aAIaSqO 0} SISALP ||V
"SjusWaAoW 3|dIYyaA Bupiw

‘ue|d uswabeuew oiyel} 1ISNGoy

1V

uoIsjoD dljelL peoy

Mo

‘S3IOIYSA
usamiaq uoljeledas syenbapy
"S8|0IYaA Yiim

10BJU0D Juanald 0} [@Ag| ejeldoidde
0] paulejuiew aq oy uonejabap

v

"S8J0IYaA
woJy JeaH pajeipey

MO

‘adA)
JisY} Jo 10adsau ul uonejsiba) bunss)
Jua.LInd Yyum Aldwod 0} ale seoIyana ||y

1V

S8|oIyaA paureuiey AjJood

sy
10

sjuswwo? 1Yo
pue plezeH ajeuiwi|3

. |one JQ @onpay o] uonoy paesodoid

Asiy

0
ELER]

sainseapy [0u0D Bunsix3

sdnoio

sy

plezeH

LA |

UOISIaA |

Mo |

ealy JO |oAaT )siy ali

"mainal uodn AiessSa08U 8q ABLU JUBLUSSSSSE YSH ally SIU} UILRIM ‘Bale SIY} JO UOISIAIP Jayuny jey) pabpajmousioe si |

Bunyieq uononpoid

o8l |

ealy jo azig ajeuwnxoiddy |

{ 9UO7Z |

ealy JUBWISSOSSY Ysiy alld

MO

"‘anoqe
pajielep sjouoo Bugsixa ay} Jed sy

44

8JIs Yim Jejjiwejun
ajdoad jo Jaquinu abie

"ssa00.d yealq pue pjing ay} buunp
a}noJ uoyonpul [ewlo} 8y} ybnoay)

o6 jou op £ayy JI yels 0} uonew.oul
Jo apeosed e s| alay} jey) buunsua
10} 8|gisuodsal usy) aie siabeuew |y

luoiLou 3|7

JUBWISSasSY YSIY a4 — #10Z Sluang daiIsn yied Aingsul4




Page 164

8¢ LA Y4 JNDSNT
‘|oA8| ajes ajendoidde
Mo ue 0} paulejuiew aq 0} uonelabap TV uonejabap
quawdinba
pue sa|oIyaA ajgeyns buisn
‘s10}0BJJUOD paslioyine/pajeulwou Aq (stlemo
Mo | pauled aq o) Ajuo si bujianjal 8jIsuQ TV | Bunybiy) Buyjeniay ausuQ
‘aouepInb pue aouejsISSe Jayuny
10} s||ids yueoyiubis Aue jo paijjou
aq 03 Aouaby JuswuoliAaug pue g4
‘Jebeuew gyH Jo/pue 1abeuew ays s||ids yueoiiubis
|ewloN 0} payodal aq 0} s||ids |eny Jofew ||y TV spinbi| e|qewwe|y
'SHy ||ids Buisn s|ids
Mo | pases)d Ajjdwoud aq 03 s|jids Joulw || v Jouiw spinbi| sjgewwe|4
‘adAy
418y} jJo Joadsal ui uonjesibs| bunsa)
MO | Juaund ypm Aldwod o} ale sapoIyaA ||y TV | sePIyap paulejuieiy Alzood
‘dn pjing yuanaid
0} Japlo ul Aotjod Juawsbeuew
a)sem ul paloads se pandws
Alenbai ‘sjeassyul Jeinbal je ays
Mo | 8y} inoybnouiyy papinoid sajoeidadey v BISEAA 9|ansNquIod)
IS sjuswiwoy 1By o 3SiH
JO pue piezeH ajeuiw)|3 10 sdnoig
E1Ea 1O @anpay 0] uonoy pasodoid [2Aa7] sainseap |onuo) bupsixg sy piezeH
‘lend Jo s82In0g ‘2
[ewIoON Runoag Aq eale jo sjoljed Jejnbay v uosly

"uMop 3ealq pue Juaaa ‘dn pjing
Buunp a}ISUo J0JoBJJU0D OO
‘suolje||ejsul

uoiL-gUu 3A|1

JUBWISSAsSY YSIY a4 — £1.0Z SIUaA] 1SNy yied Aingsui4




Page 165

62 LA VY4 INDANT
"10}J0BJJU0 Jua}adwod
e Agq ¢ ped goesSsg Yim soueploooe ‘wiopad
MO Ul paoIAIas sJaysinbuixa auy ||v TV | 01 Buijiey sisysinbuixa ai4
IS Sjuswiwod By 3siy
JO pue piezeH sjeulwi|3 JO sdnouo)
[BAaT 1Q @onpay 0] uondy pasodold ELER salnses |onuo) Bunsix3 Sy piezeH
‘'saljioe pue juawdinb3g Bupybiy any v
‘uolonpul
ays Buunp ‘sajnos adeose pue
sainpasoud Aouabiawsa a)is jo aieme
apew aq 0} SI0}0BIUOD pUE JelS
‘EaJe pJezey ay} woly
suosiad ||e ajendeAs sjoljed Ajunoag :
‘si9(iey pno| Buisiyn seale 1ayjo Ajjou B3l 3y} JO sjoym
0} JJels a)s pue sjolied Ajunoag ay} 40 ‘Jo yed s)enoens 0}
‘WwolsAg oipey s ‘eale ay} jo sued pasau ay} Jo eale 8y} UiyIm
MOT | pa)iwl} SI9A00 WRSAS ssalppy 2liqnd v suosiad Ajiou 0} ainjie4
‘uoionpul
ajs buunp ‘saynol adeosa pue
salnpaosold Aousbiswa s)is Jo aieme
apew aq 0} SI0}0BIJUOD pue yels
‘Bale plezey ay) wod}
suos.ad [|e 8)endeAs s|olled Ajunoag
‘siajiey pnoj Buisiyn seale Jayjo Ajou
0] JjeiS NS pue sjodjed Ajunoag “aJl Jueoyiubis
‘wa)sAg oipey s)S ‘eale ay) jo sued € JO Bale ay} UlyIm
MOT | pajwi S18A09 W)SAS ssalppy dliqnd 71V | suosiad |le Ayjou 0} ainjieq
[BWION ‘Aunoag Aq eale Jo s|oJjed Jejnbay 711V | peanou-un Buidojansp ali4
JSiy Sjuswiod JIBYyi10 ASiY
JO pue piezeH ajeujwi|3 JO sdnoig
ELER! 1O @9npay 0] uonoy pasodold ELER! sainseap [0nuo0D bunsixgy ASIY piezeH
“Buiuiepp pue uonosleq ali4 €

uoILEU 3A)7]

JuaWISSasSY YSIY alld — $1.0Z SIUBAT dIsnyy Yied Angsul4




Page 166

o€

LA Y4 INDANT

papnioul suone|noles Jixa Aousbiswg
‘uolysabuod jo seale Aue

Aejal pue uonenoeAs Jojuow 0} A1DD
‘sa)eb Jxa jo yipim sjeudoiddy

‘sajeb jixa Jo siaquinu ajenbapy
"Sawll} ||e Je payels pue

sajnoy adeos] pue sjixg

MO Jeao yday aq 0} s)Ix3 Aousbiawy || 1V | Aousbisw3g ul suonoNsSqO
3y sSjuswwog 18Yyio ASiY
1O pue piezeH ajeulwy3 JO sdnoig)
[ana] 10 29npay 0] uondy pasodoid ELER sainseap\ |o4uo0) bunsix3 3SIY piezeH
'sa)noy adedsy ‘G
‘Ajunoasyyels sJaysinbunxa aiy
Mo | aus o} panssi q 0} si1aysinbunx3 ali4 TV | Slgeuod jo asnsipy 10 SSOT
“Ayiqeyns Buneosipul ‘siaysinbunxa
anoqge papy subis adAy Jaysinbunx3g 21iqnd 8y} jo ssaquiaw
‘seale oljiqnd ul Aqg si1aysinbunxa a1y
Mo7 | s1aysinbunxa aly Jo siequinu pajwi [ a|gepuod Jo asn }081100U|
"0S Op 0}
ajes pue paulel} ssajun ‘Jaysinbunxa
ue asn 0} Jou uo asuepinb Jes|o ypm
‘lejs S)Is 0} panss| Uaym ‘s10joeljuod yels
wsjadwos Aq siaysinbuixa auy jo aus Aq siaysinbunxa aliy
MOT | 8Snh pue uoNo3I8s uo UsAIb uoonuisul | 2% | a|gepod Jo asn }0a.1100U|
""¥03 8y} elA g47 0} papodal eq
[I'M S8l Jaylo ||y "82Jnosal 3)Isuo Aq
UM }|eap a4 0} a1y JO SHEaIqINo Jouly
“slaysinbunxa
ally yum panss| aq 0} sajiqow Ajunoag
‘eale
ay} punole pajnquisip siaysinbunxa slaysinbunxa auiy s|qepod
MO ally jo sannuenb ajeudosddy v Jo Ayyuenb jusioinsu|

"L Wed £4G5Sg YIM SOUBpIoddE

(luoiLbu 3A|T]

ul pajjyal siaysinbunxa aly ||y

JUaWSSassy Ysiy 84 — $1L0Z SIUaA] JISn dled Aingsuid




Page 167

L

LA V4 SNdANT

MO

‘Bale piezey ay} wolj

suosiad ||e 8jenoeAs sjoljed Ajunoas
‘ueld

juswabeuepy pmoin/Alundss ayy

ul pajie}sp se ‘Aousbiawe ue buunp
$3j0. oy10ads 418y} uo s1abeue|y pue
siosinedng Aq pajeliq aq 0} SpJemels
"sJa|iey pnoj Buisiyn seale Jayjo Ajjou
0} jjels 8Yg pue sjosed Aundes
‘waysAs oipey alig ‘eale abejs jo
3joym sI8A09 WB)ISAG ssalppy 2liand

v

‘Buiddiy
pue Buiysnip ‘eale
JO UOI}EBNJBAS paj|0JJuodun

Mo

‘sojno.) adeodsa pue a)is
ayy ynoybnouy} pauonysod Ajjeoibajens
- sjybi| uooisay pue syybl| Jamo |

1V

ajnol
Aouabiswsa jo Bunyby| Jood

Mo

‘Wwg'9| UBY} SSI| Jou Jajewelp

e sey JI ‘papiroid si 9joa19 Buluiny e
"aJeyybnoioyy

a|geyns Buysixa yuaselpe 1o aue| ally
B WwoJy wos uey) Jajealb s ‘palinbal
aqg Aew Bunyby a1y a1saym ‘ane

ay) jo ped ou os papinoid ale sajnoy
‘w/°g uey) ssa) jou jo ybiay Jespo
pue w| ¢ uey} ss9| jou sajeb je yipim
Jea|d ‘w/ ¢ uey) SSI| Jou JO SYIpIM
peou aAey saoueldde auy 104 sRINOY
‘'sueid a)is

uo payJew pue paubis Aues|o sainoy
‘suonoNIIsqo

Jo 93y 1day ale saue ali

alnsua 0} Aunoag Aq sjosed teinbay

1V

aueT ali4 ul uoionJIsqO

Mo

"SuoioNsqo
Jo a3l }day| ale sanol Aouabiawe
alnsua o0} Ajunosg Aq sjosed Jenbay

v

"'sgjnol
Aousbiswa ul suononsqO

'dINT ulyim

uoIlyU 3A7)

JUBLISSAsSY YSIY ail4 — $10Z SIUAAT dIsnip Yed Aingsui4




Page 168

[45

LA Ydd 3NN

Mo

‘anoqe
pajieiap s|josuoo Bunsixa ay} Jad sy

48

S)s Yyym Jeijiieiun
a|doad Jo Jaqwinu abie

‘sss00.4d yeaiq pue pjing ay} Buunp
3)noJ uoionpul [ew.o} ayy ybnoayy

ob jou op A3y J Jels 0} uonewojul
JO apeosed e s| aiay) jey} buunsus
1o} ajqisuodsal usy} ase sisbeuew ||y
"901)40 UOle}Pa122. 3Y) e p|ay ale
SPJ0231 puB UoIdNPUL 8y} pooisiapun
pue panigdal aney Aay) Aes o} ubis
saajonpu| "uoionpul sy} Buinieoal
1S41} JNOYYIM B)IS By} Jajus Jouued
SI0JOBJJUOD PUB JBIS Sjuswpuawe
10 SUOISIAS) Aue sapn|oul pue a)is

uo [BALLE 118y} 0} Jold ‘S10}0BIUOD
pue yejs ||e 0} papiaold uonew.opul
8y} uo paseq S! yaiym ‘uoionpul

ays Ji1sy} Buunp ‘sajnos adeossa

pue sainpadold fousbisws ayis Jo
SIeMe apEW BJe SI0JOBLUOD PUB Je)s
||le ‘pouad yeaig pue pjing ay} buung
‘)8 ‘sa)nol adeoss Jo

s|iejap ‘seoinias Aouabisws BuiAyou
Joy sjuswabueuse ‘aiy e Buusnoosip
uo ua)e} aq O} UoOE. :SapN|oul
uoljewIoU; SIY] 'S)IS UO [eALIe

119y} 0} Joud sainpasoud Aouabiawa
ays buipsebal uonewojur yum
papinoid ale SI0J0BIUOD PUB YE]lS ||V

(uoiLou 3A)7)

JUBLISSasSY YSIY a4 — 102 SIUaA] dISny ded Aingsuld




Page 169

[_."...“_—1
*  Crowd

Management &
Security Plan

+ Crowd Management & Security Plan —

Live Nation Finsbury Park Music
Events —v1.3

Your primary contact for the document is:
Name: Steve Reynolds

Mobile: +44 7500 079 443

Email: Steve.Reynolds@Showsec.co.uk
Date: 23™ October 2014




Page 170

Table of Contents

VL O T T rrrrreeryrress s orro e e T T T O P T RCT O T BT et T T AT T LT ET 2
1 O OO Lt DN e T ey 9
{1 R | T O L O e - s e e LT T SIS S s 9
o TCligntarm ke 28 n il 5 (% | s DRl S Sl i 1 9
R I OTe | (7= To] fere e rr b rr o oo B T TPt P O T T P P I CX T T I T C AT o A EE P 9

1.4 Designated Premises Supervisor

1.5 Service Provider v cicaame UR 9

1.6 Principles of Crowd Management B e 10
2.0 Showsec Information........cccccceeeeiiciiieen.n. e o (TR ST 12
2.1 Security Command & Control Structure................... SRR TR 12

2.20 Security' ControllROOM . ... . e i et .. it 13
2.2.1 Radio Contractor.._,& .........................................
222 Radios................ ¢
2.2.3 Radio Controllers

3.0 Risk Assessment i .....cccovciurnnnnnn.. P Fmmcl R Rl 15
3.1 T
3.2
3.3

3.4

315 B E Vet /I AT SHProfile R e S s e Ny 17
<)Y o O ) M [ Derarrrirrrrrerried recr et Ao o e T A P IO T Cre T e TP 17
3.6.1 Management of Cultural Behavior............cccccoviviiiiiiniiiniecceccciee e, 18
S R QA S A Y St eeeeerseasnnrteedensssivs s s eranete P ees tresasnsteatasteastehaestseneisestaeesitaits 18
8.7.1 Health & SAfEty PONCY ......c.cuveeeeeeieeieeeeeeseeeeseeseeeesseseeeesnesesesseeseeseeseeseseene 18

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 2
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 171

3720 Noise levels:.......f it S SN S T D gl S 19
4:0<SecwrityiRlanc i ammmmmm e e e T 20
4.1.1 Security Assessment & Physical Security ............cc.ccoovveeveeveieeeveeccrenen. 20
4.1.1.1  Perimeter security feNCe.......ccceeeeiirieeciieeieeceeecceece e 21
4.1.1.2 Fixtures and fittings — Site.........cceocueeiiiiiiiiieccee e, 21
4.1.2  SeCUrtY AWAIENESS.....ccceiii ittt eette ettt et ettt e s e e senees 21
4.1.3 Access CONtrol SYSIEMS......coocviiiiiriieiir ittt s 22

4.1.4 Security Passes
4.1.5 Integrated security systems — CCTV anﬂrfll o NWptr R AR AP

4.2 Search Plan............ccovvinviencceconeenn. S0 L. LB
4.2.1 Searching of persons entering the eveat......... Cor e - R 23
4.22 Search Sector Plan .........ccccvvviiiiiiiiricieeeciee e BB 23
5.0 Statement of Intent ................... 25
5.1 Therole of the compagg\xvith reference to Crowd Mﬁh A__ye f/ ..................... 25
5.2 The role of the compaliyiimreference to SECUNitY ........ccovvvieeeiieiiiiiiciee e,

5.3 Areas of responsibilit
5.3.1 Perimeter Prote %
5.3.2 Access Con%ﬂ ...................... _

5.3.3 Entrances.%..

534

5.35

5.3.6

6iliMeetingSe . . R0 e T s n B e Al S 28
6.1.1 SAG (Safety Advisory Group) Meetings —........ccccevvvvvienecsencinireerecreeen, 28
6.1.2 Security & Police Meetings..........ccccuieiiieceieeieceee et 28
6.1.3 Client Planning Meetings.........ccccceeeieriiviinieicieiecie et 28
6.1.4 Internal Planning Meetings .......c.cccoceriiinii i 28
6.1.5 Liaison with other agencies ..........ceccevveviiiniinieciseee e 28

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 3

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 172

6.2 Event/ Licensing Conditions..........cccccveiiriiniiinieieiiiiiiiicicnee e 29

6:13==Subconiractors wrwwwemrrrinrmNe ..................................... 29

6.4 Supervisor Briefing ..........cccoreiiiiiiiiicnctiine s e 30

6.5 Staff Briefings ....ocoveieieieie i 30

6.6 Assignment INSTrUCtIONS.........cccoviiiiiiiiiiiici i 30
7.0 Build & Break (within Red line areas of the site)............l: ..................................... 31

71

742

7.3 First Day of Build

7.4 Communications ........ccccevvveeereereeenceen. '

7.5 Accreditation System ..........cccccoeveeene. 0

7.6 Vehicle Arrivals: Contractors

7.7 Vehicle Arrivals: ON-site.........cceveeeiiiiiiiiiiieieieeeiccene e T e 33
7.8 Deliveries......ccooeeen.n, £ AR R e i L sﬁé}_ .............................. 34
@ s

7.9 Theft, Vandalism and '

7.11 Handover.............. i
7.12 Site Safety Ru:%-, ...................... N
Arrival

.................

Queue Manageme

8.5 TiCKet COllECHONS......eeeieieeeieeiieeiieecte et eectee s tee s e seee e b e e s reesn e sabeesaasssane e
8.6  INFOIMEALION ... ..eiiieiieeeiii ettt s 38
8.7 Preparation for ENtranCes ..........ccccvvveeiriiiiiiiiniiiiiiiiicni et 38
8.8 DiSADIEA ACCESS ...eeiiciiiieieiiieeeiee e cree et ettt e e aae e srae e sta e s ba e s aae e e 38
9.0 EVENt Open — INQreSS...c.cuuiiiiiiieiieiceiete ettt e 39
9.1 Access Control & Accreditation............cccveeeieiriiiireniiiiiiiee . 39
O T TIN5 i oe en hemee sranm e e B o A 39
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 4

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 173

9.34IngressiRlow . .. & S A F kL SR A AR R R AT S 39
9.4 Soft Chetk e T arr T e T T T T e e s eeniTait 40
9i5LaTiicketi Systems -l il m il s i a1 el 40
91618 SearchiRrocediire sl merntenet s S s O SR T 40

9.6.1 Enhanced Drugs Search Procedure............cccviviueiiiiueeeiciieeeiiee e e 41
9F 7 mDrugsiPolicy fmmmm St s i S s R I SR SR 41
9.8 Restricted & Prohibited RemMS .........coociiiii e 42
9.9 Contingency

9.9.1 Wetweather.........occcevviiinviiiineennnen, 4

9.9.2 High intensity ingress................... '

9.9.3 Radio Communication ; 2
s 9N 0NAge Restrictions il i e . LR T ...............

10:00 EventOpent........... 0 i L L T

10.1 Staffing Positions........
10.2 Pre Event Checks ... *’
10.3 Occurrence Logging/:.
10.4 Incident Reporting.4.:........5%
10.5 Eviction & Ejection Process
10.6 Sexual Offenc’{‘.fiP
10.7 Lost Children...
10.8 Manag;

10.8.1

10.8.1

10.8.2
1,0:8.35 [Crowd i Spotter-md: . ;.. n et U I e e 47
10.8.4 DeCiSioN 10 ClOSE .....ccoueiiiiiiiiiiececcrc e s 47
10.8.5 Reopening............... A M e m R I A Ca (R I 48
10195 \Welfare!Services! i s ol s s e el Wy Dt 48
1051 O alSightingas s e Sar st ST T8 v L S iR A oo e s T e T s TR 0L 48
10.11 Fire Points & EQUIPMENE ..o e 48
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 5

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 174

+

10512, \MedicaliPointsiir.n v el B N e M e e ] 48

10:13==DisabledsAccess . mmm R R T R T TS 49

10.14  BacKSIage .. ..ueiiiiiee ettt ettt s sre e ettt e e e e e e e nanee s 49
10.14.1  AcCess COoNtrol ..ot s e sre e s sre e saaeen 49
1051427 WVehiCles..o .0 ..o bedee sy S eSS e e el Y 49
10.14.3  StAGE Ara ...cueeiiiiiieeceeeeee sttt e st et e et et ae e eaeeeane s 49
10.14.4 Sponsor Stage Viewing Area ........cccccevveeiiienieeeiiinsieesiie e s 49
10.14.5 Mixer & Delay Areas

10.14.6 Front of Stage Barrier Operations ...t Lo 50
10.14.7 Structure and Design................... ciitics il Lt 50
10.14.8  Medical Provision ...................... BT ... 50
10.14.9 Photographers................................." .............. il o 50
10.14.10  Crowd SPOHErS........evveeeeereeereeeseeerseeseresseessseeseeesseesgllHe v ssressre, 50
10.14.11  Evictions and Ejections ................cccceeeenve. 2 | e 51
10.14.12 Adists......... ; ;
10.14.13 Hospitality....

10.15 Bars................

11.0 Normal Egress..... oo,
11.1 Pre-Egress Mé\éﬁqg
11.2 External Egréss

11.3
11.4
11.5 Communications -
11165 ERadiolSilence M &k i el 8 TEas S A N et W el 53
11.5.2 Key egress PersonNEl.......c..cocviciiirieeiiiiiiiiesciesineeseeasveeesaeeeneesnseseneenns 53
11125131 COTVIMONHORING. ... it eressidehs futeeesarsetonsss deattastt s trrin o B ks 1 53
11.6 Event Areas of NOte......ccuuiiiiiii ittt e e 53
11.6:15 Merchandise.........tccoeo i e eeeeiesenee s daieere e e e s e b evaasosas e s 0t 53
11.7  Stand Down of Staff.........ccoeviveriniinicieiiie e 54
12!0 HEODtNGEIICYL. e i tresesreininessrareideessnechesnses T A T e e T o s 55
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 6

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 175

12.1 Liaison with other agencies............ccoceeiiiiiiiiiiiiice e e 55
12.2 The role of the Emergency Liaison Team (E.L.T.) ..o, 55
12.3  Alert & Emergency Procedures...........c.ocvvvciviiiieinin e sves e 55
12.3.1  Condition GrEEN .........eeiieiiiiiiitieeriiee ettt e e e e e e e e e e eaeeeas 55
12.3.2  Condition AMDETr..........ccoviiiiiiiiee e e 55
12.3.3 Condition REd .....c.eeiimiiiiiieree e st 55
12.3.4  StANA DOWN.....ceiiiiire ettt re e eae s st s sa e e e s et 56

12.4 Allocating Resources

12.5 Emergency Egress .......ccecovvvveeennneen.
12.5.1 Part Evacuation

13.6.2 FUull TIMe Training.......ccooeeeoiiiieiecie e ceeere e e e eneaee e e s e eana s 66
13.6.3 Casual Worker Training........ccceeeeeeviieeieeiiiiies et ee e eesraae e e eeainaees 66
13.6.3.1  Steward Training ........coecvueiiriiieeniecieser e ee e sre e st sae e e s raaesnnees 66
13161327 SIASTIraInINg s n s, L R T e 67
13.6.3.3 Modular TraiNiNg ........ccccvueiiiieriieiiiiieie et ae e 67
13.6.3.4 Event Specific Training.......cccccveeiiieiieiiiierie et 68
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 if

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 176

13.6.4 Supervisor & Team Leader Training..........cccecceeveeeneennne S e
1:3:6.4 . 1-—Supervisorsclrainings ... nnmnmmnnamaiaang BT e R
13.7 Appendix G — Assignment INStruCtions ..........c.cocceiniiieiiiiiiiiine e

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



.:%.—.

Page 177

Shousss.

1.0 Introduction

1.1 Introduction

This document will describe the proposed plan for the management of the Crowd
Management & Security for Live Nation Finsbury Park Music Events. Dates to be
confirmed but will be in July and based around 3 stages. The event will be licensed with
a maximum capacity of 49,999 persons; the audience profile will vary across the event
and further detail is given later in this document as t th specific detail for expected

around the headline artists.
1.2 Client

Nation are:
John Probyn — Festival Director
Paul Cook — Festival Health a

1.3 Contract

‘,n?
Showsec are contracted:

The Designated Premises®§ pefvisor for Live Nation is Brian Grew

1.5 Service Provider
This plan is specific to the Showsec operation within the red line area, which involves
the:
e Build & Break and Site Security
* Entrances

e Front of House Arena

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 9
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 178

Perimeter
Front of Stage Barriers

Backstage & Guest Areas

The other security, stewarding and marshalling operations that will operate on site are:

Bars .

For more information on Showsec and their experience at other festivals, events and

venues please visit www.Showsec.co.uk.

It

Adequacy of means of-_*f-_

Processing proceduréé" :

“Referenced from the BS8406 Event Stewards”

‘I: ¥ Sl
This Crowd Ma "”g“j_':‘en '\ will ‘also draw on principles from current guidance

documents:

The Event Safety Guide

The Guide to Safety at Sports Grounds

The Guide to Fire Precautions in Existing Places of Entertainment and Like
Premises.

Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 2005

Health and Safety at Work Act 1974

Management of Health & Safety at work regulations 1999

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 10
Version 1.3 ~ Steve Reynolds



Page 179

e HSE Guidance to Crowds in Public Venues
* HSE Guidance to Managing Crowds Safely
* British Standards in Door Supervision, Event Stewards and Static Security

¢ NACTSO Counter Terrorism Protective Security Advice for Major Events

Showsec are involved with the planning stages of the event and a representative will
attend the following meetings:

* Event Planning Meetings (involving multiple.agencies such as the Event

Organisers, Local Authority, Police, Fire, Ambiiance

¢ Police and Security Meetings

e Tabletop Exercises
Live Nation (and/or the local authority) minutes all meetings and’fge minutes are

anager ent decisions with

b

g

however the final decision ies“wﬂh’ﬁ’\v/e Nation:

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 11
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 180

4

spjoufay analg

|

SpJema1S B VIS g ﬁ SpJemails B VIS g ﬁ Splemals B VIS w

i

t _

H Splemals B VIS M ﬁ Sp1emals B VIS

%

*

H sJos|ntadng w M w._om_Emn_:mq H siosiaadng w

M slosirlpdnsg

)

ﬁ s10s|a13dng w

- abeys)oeg
JOjeUIpPI00) IS

- asuodsay - 3se3 eualy
403euiploo) a|s 10jeUIpiIo0) IS

- }JSOM eusdy

d0jeutploo) IS

- soouesjugy
JOJBUIPI00) DS

-
J

ﬁ = |043U0) olpey

A

R

abbe jnedq
- Jobeuep Issy

SpIOUARY 2A3]S
-A}14N23S JO peaH

A <A

009 |ned
-~ 1obeuepw s B S ‘H
- LN3ITD

)

)

€| UoIsiopn

Hmc_u_ -dSWNO

[euonessdO

|eonoe |

UONBWLIOJU| 98SMOYS (Q'g



Page 181

2.2 Security Control Room

The Security control room at the event will be the hub of Showsec communications on
site. The Security control room reports into the Event Control room, which is situated in
the Park HQ.

2.2.1 Radio Contractor
Showsec will contract a suitable contractor to provide the hand held radio system for the
event open period. They will provide the equipment, installation and support service to
the provision of this equipment. F

222 Radios
The Showsec operatives will use Motorola D 3400 digi Each designated

ey
radio user will have a radio equipped with an ea' iece. The radios operate with a
minimum of two channels relevant to the site:
Channel 1 (Repeater) — Entrances & Arena

Channel 2 (Repeater) — Backé’%ge & Main Stage Barriers

addltlonally on the Chag@gl 1. The admlrfgt@f will ensure that all the pre-event logs

is obtaining the regular SItUtIOﬂ reports (sit-reps). The senior controller will then

prepare regular updates to be emailed to the event management team.

2.3 Insurance

Available on request are the Insurance documents for Showsec. These have recently
been reviewed and are valid until 31st October 2014 (they will be renewed upon this
expiry date). The documents available are:

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 13
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 182

Shouse.

* Public/Products Liability Insurance, not less than £5 million.
Policy Number: YMM824299 & G21979363003

¢ Employers Liability Insurance, not less than £10 million.
Policy Number: YMM824298

These are both undersigned by:
e Aon Limited

205-208 Kings Road
Reading

RG1 4LW
T-0118926 1100
F—-0118 966 7458

For further details please contact the Finance department on

0116 204 3315 or finance@Showsec.co.uk

>,
L5
te 3
i

E,
a0

rféggdures are detailed in the appendix and further

BT
%

information is available on re\a){uest. Al “@ are screened in advance and all staff are

trained to a minimum Ieﬁl 2 standard.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 14
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 183

3.0 Risk Assessment

3.1 Event Risk Assessment

The organiser, in advance of the event, will carry out the event risk assessment. This
document will be made available to Showsec and it will be read and considered in the
writing of the Showsec Crowd Management Plan and Staff Risk Assessment.

The principal steps to risk assessment are as follows;..

a) Identify the various hazards assoﬁlﬁted wkthlthe site and/or event's

activities;

b) Identify those people who are at ris
c) Evaluate the risks and decide if the existing precautio

can be improved

e Staffing levels;
e Safe methods of ingress and egress;

e Emergency egress and ingress;

e Public arrival points;

* Screening of visitors, staff and customers to the site;
e Ticket/access control systems;

e Control of localized density;

e Accurate accounting of capacity;
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 15

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 184

Sheuiss

e Audience profile;

e Artist or event profile;

e Control of cultural behavior;

* Welfare services;

e Lighting and identification of black spots or dimly lit areas;

* |dentification of all fire points and the location of fire appliances;

» |dentification of any areas set aside for the treatment of first aid and related
equipment.

T /‘f -

A staffing risk assessment will be written to support this CI%@/vd Management & Security

e

Plan; this is available upon request. This will detail the risks agé_‘éi’:iated with the

ey

4

An assessment of the risks i d out in accordance with an employer's statutory

GHD
nd Safety at V\fgﬁﬂ\ct (1974) and complies with

requirement to do so under t’éﬁ-lgg

i

Safet?‘é’

A full staffing deploymentyi

later date. f?&%xéta%ls“ the%llowing for each day of the Build, Event, Overnight and
22 :N _\“‘\ :
Break period of the event & A

e Staffing position number
e Grid reference of the position

e Position name

e Description of duties of position

e [Function of the position (SIA / ST)
e Number of staff in that position

e Start and Finish Time

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 16
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 185

3.4.1 Licensabie Period
For the purposes of the Private Security Industry act 2001, the site is deemed as
licensed, only during the open and licensable hours of each day (where alcohol sales
are permitted). Inside of these hours then only ‘Door Supervisor’ SIA Licenses will be in
use for licensable activities. Outside of these licensed hours then ‘Security Guarding’
SIA Licenses may be in use in addition to the ‘Door Supervisor’ SIA Licenses.

3.42 Licensable Activities

Whether the position is classed as a licensable i
taken from the Private Security Industry act 20@!
SIA guidance: \

As in previous years there ‘ any artists app aring throughout the series of
events.

A full line up will be ma‘. gzavallable nearer t ]
on the event websites. {Showsec and the organlser will work through to assess any

The audience will vary across each event. Once the program, content and headline
artists / main attractions are announced then an audience profile will be written for each

event and included in the briefings to Supervisors.

Audience profile information may be able to be gathered from the ticketing information
should it be available. The ticket information can tell us how people will choose to
arrive, the demographic, etc.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 17
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 186

Shouss.

The audience is expected to attend for the positive experience of-the events and to be
part of the event experience. Any disorder or crime has historically been to a minimum
and no change to this is anticipated. The audience will likely to be experienced in
attending music concerts either at venues, festivals or other events. This brings an
audience that will have high demands in terms of customer service and so excellent
communication skills are required from the staff.

3
=
=2
=
o
o
3
Q
3
Q

Across the events, constant situation reports will be fed into wﬂ}e

'Ao’f':f";i)wfdflllng of the acts in

"3‘ Safety Policy
The company has a Health é‘ Safety Policy supported by Codes of Safe Working
Practice (CoSWP). All company employees and workers are made aware of their
responsibilities whilst on site and that they must observe the Health & Safety

Regulations in place on the site.

All staff receives Health & Safety training. This is at different levels depending on the
role undertaken by the member of staff. Further details are available from the training

centre.
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 18

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 187

The Supervisors will receive a briefing sheet summarising the company’s Codes of Safe
Working Practices relevant to the event. They will brief all the staff on the specific
hazards in their area and methods of reducing any perceived risk.
3.7.2 Noise Levels
A code of safe working practice is in place for the control of Noise at work regulations
2005. The noise regulations came into place for the music and entertainment sectors
on April 6™ 2008 and require the following of an empﬂl‘gy,__er{:m
¢ Provide workers with hearing protectors aﬁgtrto ﬁ\aﬁgtsure that they use them
properly.

¢ |dentify areas where the use of hearing pr&pétion isqbgompu sory.

}qfw
All Showsec workers at the eyents are issued with hearing pre

action when they sign in
to work. The Supervisors V\zl é\‘_‘é_ygr the wearing of hearing protection in their daily
briefing. The Supervisors wnﬁ}&t en.mponitor to ensure fiat’the workers are wearing the

hearing protection at all timeSgvhere negessary and in the correct way.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 19
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



+

Page 188

4.0 Security Plan

The security planning for the event is wide reaching and incorporated in this Crowd
Management & Security Plan. The security part will consider:
* Aims of the Crime Reduction Strategy, to be agreed with the Police
¢ Details of all the protective security measures to be implemented, covering
physical, information and personnel security
* Instructions on briefing content to security staff 'qguding type of behaviour to
look for and methods of reporting __
¢ |Instructions on how to respond to the dis
e A search plan

event of a major incident

e Business continuity
411 Sec
A security risk assessment w,“g“ carried out using the®® x%blate in the Appendix.

BA ssessment & Physical Security

R
Security risk is dlﬁlcu{;to quantify, bec%

mathematical probabilit

_the basic assumptlons for calculatlng

nor random.

which will include Wandmg and use of covert and overt security teams

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 20
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 189

4.1.1.1 Perimeter security fence *
The perimeter fence will go up during the build for the event on approximately the 3 to
the 6™ days of the events build period. The fence will be constructed of either Steel
Shield type fencing or utilising the existing site fencing. There will be a minimum of the
following specifications:

Steel Shield
: Crowd Normal I I""Gate! | Pedestrian
Panel size | Weight  pressure height Pin depth l Colour | access ‘ access
T B o) :| DTV SR BN PO | D SR A N e
| 3mx2.4m 1 72kg ;' 2.0kn/m [ 3.0m [ 40cm - 1.0m | Green P4m or 3m 1.2m + door J

| e
No items should be located around the perlmete}‘BP the fe{a;:e to Imﬂ’th& risk of devices
being left in these. There are no structures directly outside th %erlmeter of the

proposed fence line.

Once the fence line is erected, &
firs } 2 y

é%r se it
parts, examples of these could be tree i

4 1:!’1_'; '.';'.'._-'-
During the build perloc}‘itgi_g important that items are looked after and not left lying

:;:i-
| };n_mportant on the penmeter where items used during the

will be identified and adequ

y Awareness

Security awareness will be i?;';[illed into all personnel working at and attending the
event. This will not just be the Security staff but also the event management,
contractors, bar workers, cleaners, etc. As well as this there should be a strong, clear
security message given out to the visitors attending the events to improve their
awareness and demonstrate how and when they should report something suspicious.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 21
Version 1.3 _ Steve Reynolds



Page 190

4.1.3 Access control systems
There will be several layers of access control systems from staffing of access points to
the tracked locking down and opening up of areas during the open period. The security
staff will ensure that access control is monitored to minimise unauthorised access. All
the tracking will be monitored centrally in the event control room.

4.1.4 Security Passes
The organiser will introduce a thorough and clear accreditation system to allow the

security to restrict access to certain areas of the site.at in times of the build, open

and break period. Pass boards should be m___“"ga avallaﬁ 3 to security staff, either

_:'"f(nclude

are limitations to the visibility. Its main
o ment dynamics of the audience attending the event.

. es and exits to the event and other visible areas that are

* Proactively monitor t‘ﬁ“é:idbtivities of members of the public whether they are in
public areas or on private property.

e Use cameras to focus on the activities of particular people either by controlling or
directing cameras to an individual's activities.

e Use cameras to look out for particular individuals.

e Use recorded CCTV images to identify individuals or to investigate their activities.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 22

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



l':.gz

Page 191

Adequate lighting must be installed across the site to ensure there is good visibility for
the security teams when patrolling. CCTV Locations will be listed below along with key
visibility areas and blind spots.

4.2 Search Plan

4.2.1 Searching of persons entering the event

The search of persons entering the event will support the integrity and security of the

site. Itis key to ensure that: 8 __
, ) K»‘ J-,-,.-..- 5 i
e All persons understand there is a right to refﬁgé’e er;'[\r&

[ 1 £

|-

¢ All persons are advised that a search may:

carrie
Lo o 1
e Staff are trained on their powers of search“éi'ﬁd whagfhey are\E‘ i
e There is adequate space available for search areas
e There are fast track queues for non-bag holders {“
o There is sufficient staffff ti"-'safe ingress and reliefs =
} linglof visitors A
1 (D>
transport, groups, peak time

e Search queues allow pl_'_

e Arrival patterns of visi 6§r§ are takén into account
422 Search SectorPlan
i,

The site will be dividecf%i:;:ho sectors to allowithe thorough search of the site in a swift

o search sectors allows each Supervisor to be responsible

il know what is or is not supposed to be present in their

:\___u_g;r_n.' o highlight any unattended items quickly. The Supervisors

will have a checklist o.fvsih;@i%%é’rch area to complete before reporting back to control.
The control will have a checklist of all the search areas and once completed will report
back to the Event Control. If a package is found then the following protocols will be
adhered to:

1. Do not touch suspicious items.

2. Move everyone away to a safe distance.
3. Prevent others from approaching.
4

. Communicate safely to staff, visitors and the public.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 23
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 192

5. Use hand-held radios or mobile phones away from the immediate vicinity of a
suspect item, remaining out of line of sightand behind hard cover.
Notify the police.
Ensure that whoever found the item or witnessed the incident remains on hand to
brief the police.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 24
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 193

L
i

5.0 Statement of Intent

Based on the site survey, the risk assessment and input from other agencies the
statement of intent can be drawn up as follows. This outlines the responsibilities of
Showsec as the Crowd Management & Security Company at the event.

5.1 The role of the company with reference to Crowd
Management

Crowd Management is:

* Evaluation of projected levels of occupancy;
pre
e Adequacy of means of'gﬁ ress and egress;

e Processing procedures st assnstlng and dlreé;tlng members of the public;

or destruction to its property, pérsonnel or operations.

5.3 Areas of responsibility

5.3.1 Perimeter Protection

e To deter, prevent or detect any attempts at unauthorised access or egress
through the site perimeter.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 25
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



=

Page 194

To patrol the perimeter checking the security of the site perimeter and recording
this patrol.

To raise awareness of the importance of security on site and the protection of
both the clients and visitors assets whilst they are on site.

53.2 Access Control

To provide an efficient and effective means of verifying the authority of all
persons seeking to enter the site and to prevent any unauthorised persons from
gaining access.

backstage area.
5.3.3 Entrances

To provide a courteous and effective service at entrances.to it e

properly receive visitoréf: d verify their status.

To search visitors at point to ensure that they comply with the site

1'(‘\

policies and procedur s baséd upon the current threat assessment.

To monitor the w(gr\g\ss of visitors mto‘tf"g, site in a safe and orderly fashion.

To where reason%ﬁ%possmle proactlvely employ crowd management methods

To monitor and isitors from theft and vandalism of any temporary or
permanent structures where practical and reasonable with a view to reporting to
the necessary authorities

5.3.5 Contingency and Emergency

To provide every possible assistance to the Emergency Services in the effective
handling of any emergency incident arising within the areas of operation.

To make provision for the protection of the clients assets and personnel in the
event of a major crisis or disaster

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 26
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 195

5.3.6 Egress

* To monitor and assist the public with egress towards the Finsbury Park tube
station

5.4 Areas that the company are not responsible for

e Crowd Management or Security of people outside the agreed extremities of the
Licensed Area.

e Traffic management around the externa/s.;_of fﬁ’m site, or parking on the

surroundlng publlc roads.

children to the designated point(s).
e Any Health and Safety issues regarding any parti S othe
employed by the cofppany or actions taken by h'agents other than those

contracted directly by She _
e Provision of direct Mééilpal atvises (other tha' "t assist the contracted event
medical supplier pers"nnel wi .T‘\i*-reasonable requests to establish a safe
working envnronmﬁrq;for treatment o

¢ Coordination or moy '_'

irtlsts or any members of bands appearing at the events

Eh

(unless any unfdrésa‘& a)gtlwty takes place).

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 27
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 196

6.0 Pre Event
6.1 Meetings

There will be several meetings to attend over the course of the planning and
implementation stages of the project. A meeting timeline has been created by the client
to capture the different meetings along with their location, who attended and where the
minutes are stored.

6.1.1 SAG (Safety Advnsory_ group) Meetlngs -

These meetlngs are generally held bi- monthly

¢
communicated to Shows

service at the event.

“Inte %I Planning Meetings

The Showsec project ma .;:jént team will meet regularly to ensure that internally all
parties are updated on external meetings. These meetings will also ensure that the
implementation of the security service is on time and that the service is tailored to
exactly what the client wants.

6.1.5 Liaison with other agencies
With an event of this scale, there will be many agencies involved that will have an
opinion on how the security service should be delivered. There will also be several

contractors who will have specific needs and wants with reference to their involvement

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 28
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



= E

Page 197

o

at the event. Showsec will request that any specific requests in relation to the security
service are made through the client so that they can assess the pricrity of the requests
as well as any budgetary impact. Showsec will however make every effort to carry out
any reasonable requests to ensure the highest level of service.

6.2 Event/ Licensing Conditions

The license conditions relevant to this Crowd Management & Security Plan are to be
listed in this section once agreed.

6.3 Subcontractors

All suppliers fl{rg_\gyvare th

Department foraW"

ey may be required to submit staff details to the Police,
siohs and the UK Border Agency for further checks.

Contractor i SIA ST

Tyler Security — Explosives Detection Dogs 1

Tyler Security — General Purpose Guard Dogs 1

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 29

‘Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds




==
L

Page 198

Shauie.

The supervisors briefing will take place in various stages leading up to the event. This

6.4 Supervisor Briefing

will be conducted both on-line using the online platform and on site in the form of a

familiarisation day.

6.5 Staff Briefings

Staff briefings will be given out as a hand out booklet to each member of staff. The
booklet will reinforce their training to ensure that it caf s aminimum of:

¢ Roles and responsibilities of Security / Stew ard
e Patrolling

e Access Control

e Searching

e Security and emergencz{ﬁsystems
e Fire safety

e Communications gt{ﬂ}geportlng
e Equali ﬂ{gg.n | dlverSIFye

B B
. Commumcati@ﬁ“ ills

6.6 Assignment Instructions

Assignment instructions will be written for all Showsec staff on site. These will be in two
formats, general site instructions and position specific instructions. Examples of these
are included in the Appendix. For the position specific instructions, each position will
have a separate assignment instruction detailing the key information the staff member
needs for that role.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 30
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



+

Page 199

7.0Build & Break (within Red line areas of

the site)
7.1 Security Guarding

As stated in 3.4.1, Security Guarding SIA Licenses will only be used in reference to non-
licensed hours of the day. Within licensed hours (alcohol sales) then Door Supervisor
SIA licenses will be used.

0y
[heitemmpisscutiviorarana gusedinithelscopeii th's event appligsto activities, which
are described as follows in the Private Security Isigu%try A6t 2(

. Slpation, against

References to guarding premises agains
being wholly or partly é‘sponsnble for de'er _\in‘mg the suitability for admission to the
premises of persons ap{; v -

"wz A
otherwise dlscourage it frorﬁ“‘h ppening; or to provide information, if it happens about

what has happened.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 31
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 200

7.2 Duties

The prime responsibility of the build & break security should be to protect the
customer’s people, property and assets at all times, as far as they can reasonably do
S0.

Typical duties could include, but are not limited to:
* Regular tests of timing, communication, safety or other equipment specified in
the assignment instructions;

* Regularly checking that the site has been sé

* The management and/or monitoring of mavi

Rk

ment o ;
e Undertaking site patrols to inspect for breaches
changes;

organization is respon

e Managing and reporti

S

7.4 Communications

During the build and break, positions will be issued and be responsible for a radio. All
Showsec staff will be on one radio channel. All radio traffic will pass through the
Supervisor on the day with the X1 position logging any key radio messages in the
occurrence log. The Supervisor and the X1 position will also have a production radio to

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 32
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 201

Shouss.

be in contact with the clients Site Manager. These positions will be the point of contact

should any information/issues need to be communicated.

7.5 Accreditation System

The client will implement a stringent accreditation system for the event. An
accreditation centre will be set up by the client at X1. This is the point on site where all
the accreditation will be issued. Any visitors wishing to access the site must either have

For the early part of the build the accreditation g, em will terinplace. Daily sticky
passes (TBC) will be issued by the security at a E[éégnate@jéﬁ?nt o \ ite. These will
lfy guard at this
point. The site manager must update this security guargfregmgﬁ_l;a y_on any changes,

additions or deletions from thi@;}!i{t\. e
B

i

Contractors should go to the

\ f vehicle pass wh
B

. S :;.“}& ) y

The site will have various )icles arriving and leaving from site. This will include
deliveries during the build period, concessions stocking their units, artists sound
checking and on site contractors.

During the build and break period they will arrive at X1 where they will undergo the

following process:

e Be met by security.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 33
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



-y

Page 202

Shous.

* Vehicle will be crosschecked against the list of arrivals for the day. This should
correspond with the driver, make, model and registration of the vehicle as well as
the arrival time and expected load of the vehicle.

* Once the vehicle has been checked then the driver will be issued with a delivery
pass or sent to the accreditation point to pick up their accreditation.

¢ All vehicles should exit the site out of X1.

7.8 Deliveries

endeavour to provide g_%\_med contact persbn when requesting the attendance of
another age 4/n;,yg irld wiII"*alq%g provide a location at which to meet, so as to avoid
confusion within eraggncy site designations and map references the Supervisor will
endeavour to send a r‘";'prevgﬁmza‘;}ive to meet the arriving officers at a pre-determined RV

i
point.

7.10 Occurrences & Incidents

All Occurrences and incidents will be reported immediately to the Supervisor on duty,
should the severity of the incident require it then the Duty Manager will be called to the
scene. All staff involved will fill out an incident report form and the report will be scanned
and filled electronically on the Showsec incident report database. All incident report

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 34
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



=

Page 203

Shause

forms will be available to the site manager at the end of day debrief and handover to
night crew.

7.11 Handover

The Supervisor should be invited by the Site Manager to the daily production meeting.
This will allow them to keep up to date with the production schedule and any changes to
the agreed plan. It will also allow the supervisor to hand over the information to the
night security team.

The day and night supervisor will go through a{
i
time to ensure that all information is passed ejflélentl b

teams.

7.12 Site Safety Rules

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 | 35
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



o 5

Page 204

Shouie.

8.0 Event Open - Arrival
8.1 Walkup

The site will open its gates at different times depending on the event. The ingress
methodology will be generally the same for each show.

In past years there have been early arrivals for certain shows. Staff will be deployed
early in the day from 0830 to manage queues and th m.,%{{" be to open the entrance

g tim for that showday).

for processing of search by 1200hrs (or the gate op

8.2 Transport

the Finsbury Park. Due to the location and parking reslri?tiomny people would

choose to use public transpor """-"-'l,gis expected that a high % d‘ﬁhe .audience use public

transport to make their way f
options will be:
* National Rail

o Haringey e‘\
o Finsbury Pagk

e |ondon Unde.lzgr und "l

o Victoria line
o Piccadilly line
* Finsbury Park

e |London Bus routes into the centre of London and surrounding areas.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 36
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 205

Shouis.

It is anticipated that-due to~the numbers attending the events there may be a queue for

8.3 AQueuing Area

access into the site at certain times. This may occur when trains arrive at similar times
and therefore there is an influx of visitors. The queuing area will be designated with low
duty pedestrian barrier. This will define the area to queue. A sufficient area should be
made available to the queuing of these people with access to toilet facilities.

The queuing area should be based on 0.5m2 for ea/cy;u-,;%_ers‘q}n to allow for a comfortable

space to wait.

8.4 Queue Management

Queue management teams will be deployed from early each day.
patrol team will arrange any arrivals overnight. Any pugL@“ i
managed in the following way/: - o,

8.5 Ticket Collections

Any ticket collections will be from the box offices on site. There will be a box office at

the guest entrance and Main entrance.

Security will be deployed at the box office areas to ensure that the public are queued.
They will also ensure that any ticket touts are moved away from the box office areas.
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 37
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 206

Shous.

Any ticket touts that are identified operating near to the box offices will be reported to
control and requested to move on. Response teams are fitted with personal Body
Cams and where possible these Body Cams will be used to record their image; this is
supported with a written report being completed by the security at that location.

8.6 Information

To ensure the swift yet thorough entry of the public attending the event it is important to

have good clear lines of communication. The organlser should use their normal lines of

advance of arriving at the event. This will mini the com 1 nication required by the

Security staff at the entrances.

direct customers

be loud halers in

r s'or coats being worn by customers
* To highlight to thek“écugg‘y staff any restricted items they are aware of

e To prepare their bag to be searched by security staff

8.8 Disabled Access

Disabled vehicle access will be through a dedicated entrance. They can then make their
way to one of the accessible viewing platforms. Any pedestrian access will be through
a designated lane at each entrance. This should be clearly signed to allow ease of
access to this area.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 38
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 207

9.0Event Open — Ingress

9.1 Access Control & Accreditation

There will be a robust ingress system at the main entrances. All persons entering the
site will have to produce accreditation to enter. Pass boards will be clearly displayed at
each entrance showing what accreditation is and is not allowed past that point.

9.2 Lighting

Adequate lighting should be at the entrance and approach routes to the entrance. This

%

should be 24 hour lighting so that they entrances are clearly visible to the security staff
at all times.

9.3 Ingress Flow

The public ingress will be carried out through lanes. Each lane is set at a unit width of
1m. There are three stages to the ingress flow:

1. Soft check and Person Search

2. Ticket Scan and/or Wristband check

3. Bag Search

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 39
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



alles
|

Page 208

9.4 Soft Check

At the start of the entrance lane there will be a soft check undertaken by the SIA
Licensed Security on each lane. These staff will check the ticket and then carry out a
person search (detailed in 9.6).

9.5 Ticket Systems

There will likely be several ticket types in use for the events. This will depend on the

} facces ""anager scanning
system. The system should provide the event c' ntroI wnfh regular‘\%lfuﬁtlon reports on
the amount of public who have entered the site and the period )éf_”hme they have

entered. This will provide useful ingress flow rates for usg”by*the ‘Event Management

The search on entry will B icted in the same way on all public entrances:
e All public coming onto to site will be subjected to a wanded person search at the
soft ticket checkpoint.

¢ All bags will be subject to a thorough hand search behind the ticket check point.

Showsec only searches on behalf of, and under the instruction of, the client. Often
attitude or the personal of an individual makes staff aware that there maybe an issue

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 40
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 209

with them and they may have something to hide so a search will be instigated; the
policy Showsec adheres to is as follows:
e Search Policy is set by the clients Event Management team before the start of
the event
¢ Only the Event Control in conjunction with the Security Manager can change the
Search Policy.
* Ensure that the staff are familiar with the list of prohibited items.

° issi is carried out.
Pt D

For certain eve-‘u there |. n anticipation that customers will attempt to enter with
er 5‘;{&‘}_

suspected illegal sJB“st ‘,:j:-_'*_j_;}TO combat this hazard an enhanced drugs search

operation will take place at thé lﬁam entrance for certain agreed events. This procedure
will be detailed in the Appendix — Enhanced Drugs Search Procedure if applied.

9.7 Drugs Policy

The client has a zero tolerance approach to the use of drugs on its premises. Each
member of staff should be vigilant and look out for signs of illegal substance use or
illegal substance dealing. If any suspected illegal substances are seized or found on an

individual by SIA staff, the Head of Security and the Event Management should be
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 41

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 210

informed through the Event Control room. The site coordinator will attend, and makes
the judgment whether to eject or detain for the police; this will be evaluated by the
amount of suspected illegal substance that is seized.

If any drugs are found 'on the premises, these should be handed to a supervisor who will
contact the event control. The Police will then be requested to collect these from the

eviction centre.

9.8 Restricted & Prohibited Itenfa

format to the below. This will be included as an appendlx ;‘r‘i a later v n.

Item found | Action On Reported To upport from

L.

Alcohol Advise that this j HS not allowed entry SuperviE’éj’- None required

Knife Supéqwisor then | Police

to control.

Contingency plannin; ok:,-..m ss of the event should consider as many conceivable
scenarios as possible. Howe\}ér, exhaustive lists of scenarios are generally unfeasible.
What is important with any contingency planning is ensuring that the command and
control systems are in place with sufficient expertise to allow for dynamic decision
making to provide solutions for potential issues that may arise and affect ingress.

Below are some examples of issues that could pose ingress related complications.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 42
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds




Page 211

9.9.1 Wet weather
With any outdoor site, inclement weather is always a consideration and can affect
ingress routes, particularly if there are accumulations forming on areas of high footfall.
The positioning of gates needs to be considered and historical and local knowledge of
ground conditions to determine the best locations of gates. Contingency arrangements
should consider the use of designated lanes as a backup, in the case of the primary
entrance points being unusable. Further to this ground reparation works need to be
considered to allow a continued ingress.

certain time frame. This may be early arrival bé{gfé gate%; fficial
ferries have been delayed.

“can meet the peaks

ented by redeplozjgg additional staffing resources

queuing spaé;«lé‘i_f%h

tihd communication methods

B,
Aoy

all key Showgéa“é__‘ €

ars n engineer from the radio contractor will be contacted to
attend the site to re‘s“f‘iﬁé;_: enissues. If the problem is likely to persist then the option to
utilise some of the clients ;éaiﬁ'ffetwork would be explored; providing a small amount of

radios to key positions.

9.10 Age Restrictions

The age restrictions to the event are detailed in the Event Management Plan.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 43
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



= |
=

Page 212

Shaui.

10.0 Event Open
10.1 Staffing Positions

The staffing positions are displayed in the staffing spreadsheet. This will be available
upon request to a limited circulation due to the detailed and sensitive nature of the
sheet.

10.2 Pre Event Checks

e Ensuring that the : Ok Desk barrier is set up correctly

s n a clean and working order

"""""

10.3 Occurrence Logging

Any occurrences that happen are reported by the operatives to the Supervisor. All
workers have a notebook and pen to write down general occurrences throughout the

event day.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 44
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 213

The Supervisors will regularly give situation reports into the control room either over the
radio of via telephone. These sit reps will be logged in the control room log sheet.

10.4 Incident Reporting

To maximize the communication of incidents or issues, a comprehensive reporting
system exists within Showsec. This will facilitate the passage of information from

steward to management.

Contingency planning involves all parts of the Op%‘-éﬁonal : I‘i\ As part of this all efforts

will be made to record incidents, retain witness ;_'_"s.\'}kpreser\f

idént.and crime scenes
and report through these actions through control.\_” 4 TR

There are various incidents that can occur across the site during Jjﬁ?y’évent. Although
>-.:"<:‘r".:'{f;;_-_:_'_, £

each incident has its own spf“gifics, the way that each incident

is"dealt with follows a

similar structure.

~

Incident reported to

Event Control

!

Control Room

r 3

contacts HoS

!

Site Coordinator

attends incident
Further details
L reported to control )

'

Condition State
Changes

}

( 3 D
Evacuation or Stand

A 4

\

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13
Version 1.3 Steve Re\.

45

down Occurs




+

Page 214

Shouss.

A debrief after the event will allow staff to bring up any concerns with the supervisors
who will ask for an incident report if so required and will be passed onto the event
control.

The full reporting process is:
* Pre Event Report Form
* Pre Event Check Sheet
e Radio Control (Occurrence) Log

¢ Incident and/or Accident Report Form

e Post Event Report Form

yrporate the aims

by the organiser :

10.8 Management of Localized Density

Each event area should have a set capacity and will have stewarding teams deployed to
that area. If the event area approached capacity then it may be neceséary to reduce
access or seal the area until such time as the occupancy decreases. Should an area be
required to be closed then the following policy will be used at each area. The following

process may be used at sponsor areas as well, depending on their dimensions.
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 46
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 215

The stage line up should be considered when the event site is made up of tented areas.
The line-up often dictates busy periods in a stage tent and sufficient staffing should be
ensured at these times.

10.8.1 Tented structures & sponsor areas
Adequate access control methods will be employed to control capacity within the stage
tent. Manned crowd control barriers will be used to control public access in and out of

the tent. Two open bays to the rear of the tent willbe used as entrances with the

remainder being exit only. Using the rear of the ténPwi

be even.

10.8.1 Zonal areas
Areas with entertainment areas in them may become congested. ; le monitoring of
these areas means that the crowd should be diverted to other ;gfuuté‘js to reduce the
movement of people towards % flready congested area. ﬁ;mgylﬁijecome necessary to
close an area for ingress and give
10.8.2 Barr,i?'_,; S

gl
The barriers should be confiéﬁiired in a

to alternative areas.
] £
A 4
Qgture to prevent build crowd congestion at

q try and exit manned

10.8.3 Crowd Spotter
{ il “s il

e &
factor of 0.3m2 is not™ir ed, The nominated medical team should monitor any

casualties from the front of étaéé area specifically checking for signs of theoretic injury.
10.8.4 Decision to close

Should the capacity be reached, as per tent capacity calculations, entry lanes will be

closed with public queued away from the entrance in an orderly manner. This should be

a centrally co-ordinated operation from event control in consultation with the Security

Manager, Site Coordinators and the Stage Tent supervisors. Extra staff should be

deployed to the exit area to ensure a breach of the ingress policy does not occur.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 47
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 216

Shouis.

The exit bays will continue to be exit only and the public egress will be monitored to

10.8.5 Reopening

establish that space had been created and that audience figures had reduced. When

audience figures had reduced in the tent sufficiently, ingress can recommence.

10.9 Welfare Services

A welfare point manned by trained and experienced personnel should be available at an
easily located point on the site.

10.10 Lighting

The organiser should prowde adequate lighting across th “Si ej___: :e' Head of Security

should attend a lighting tes

fgjt identify any dark areas that may require additional
resources at certain times of |

10.11

i L .-:{7. - n .
Security staff will be a a?a of all fire points across the site. The organisers appointed
fire safety contractor shauld work with Showsec to ensure that staff are adequately
briefed on thgi%‘a ons.

10.12

Suitable medical points will be positioned around the site. All staff will be aware of
these locations and where to send any patients.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 48
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 217

Shouss.

10.13 Disabled Access

There will be disabled viewing areas across the site at each of the stages. Staff will
ensure that disabled customers are directed to the correct location that they are looking
for. At the disabled areas there are client present to assist with any special needs that

the customers have.

10.14 Backstage Wi g \
10.14.1 Access Control _ ) |
Access to the backstage areas will be strictly by @aecre@éﬂﬂon on

. ‘All persons may
be subject to a search on entering or leaving the backstage area. i
10.14.2 Vehicles

Enough space has been set- a&gde to park a artist vehlcles n a secure area behind the

Gred’
“s. ._..r "‘“"P'

stage right.

The stage area will be s
unauthorised: ﬁersﬁnn.\l al}“

Manager to add f\?fh 4;
day where the stage is cor:SE‘sté

10.14.4 Sponsor Stage Viewing Area

owed access. The security will liaise with the Stage
éns to the accreditation system at points throughout the

For each of the shows there is a sponsor stage viewing area. There is a capacity for
this area and it is controlled with accreditation specific to this area.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 49
Version 1.3~ Steve Reynolds



Page 218

10.14.5 Mixer & Delay Areas
Staff will be positioned in order to discourage members of the public climbing on these
structures in order to gain better sight lines. These areas will be used to monitor the

crowd for density problems or criminal activity.

10.14.6 Front of Stage Barrier Operations

The front of stage barrier area is a working area and as such admission should be
restricted through the accreditation system to workin /g persaggel onIy It will be the duty

il

of Showsec to act as a rescue facility in the fr ﬁt"

those appearing to be in need of medical att S;;-' lon and ','_'_ij_'
" E\.}; (2 \5. /#r’
practicable. \ 4

10.14.7 Structure and Design
The Front of Stage Barrier system will be a de-mountable type w‘jh _a(’é)i imum Ioadlng of

supervisor and/or the s representative. The smaller stages will also have

photographers allowed access L;éing specific accreditation.
10.14.10 Crowd Spotters

There will be a stage spotter positioned on the side of the stage (both sides of the main
stage) at the stage level. For acts where it has been assessed that there will be greater
crowd movement or popularity then an additional crowd spotter may be positioned on
the other side of the stage to give a more consistent view of the audience. The Crowd
spotters will be in communication with the front of stage supervisor to enable them to

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 50
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 219

Shoude.

inform them of any customers in distress, crowd surges, crowd collapses or other areas
of concern.

If the crowd spotter witness’s signs of distress at the front of stage barrier, including
crowd collapses with persons failing to surface or. moshing the Show stop procedure will
come into effect.

10.14.11 Evictions and Ejections

Any ejections from the barrier system must follow the e

t ejection procedure and be
logged with control. Persons being ejected wi||_ :-- P

room will pass on any relevant r fo

10.14.13 l-{aspltallw_

The Bar areas will be no _ %,by security. A challenge 25 system is in place through
the bar staff and strict supervision of underage drinking should take place by all staff
and contractors at the event.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 51
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



L;{L*
tf_'

Page 220

Shouiss.

11.0 Normal Egress
11.1 Pre-Egress Meeting

At 1900 every event open day a pre-egress meeting will take place in the Production
Office Meeting Room. The key parties involved in the egress should attend this. They
should be those involved with the internals of the site and any agencies involved in the
egress externally of the site.

11.2 External Egress

.
ry A

ST Y daaic
immediate train and tube stations. A full egress plan willqb“’e, written 'fg

)ervisory resources to ensure

There will be some key re-dep ? of staffing and‘,\_sjﬂ

that the egress plan is safe a@?’dellv ":'Eé;aﬁsuccessfully.
‘ \

egress positions, ha \ at infrastructure deployed and that they have adequate
means of communicating to e crowd and back to the control room.

Pre-egress checks will be completed a minimum of 30 minutes before the expected
egress time.

11.5 Communications

The communications are key to the successful delivery of the egress plan. All

managers and supervisors will have a handheld radio to communicate with the control
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 52

Version 1.3 . Steve Reynolds



-

L
B

Page 221

room. The pre-egress checks will confirm that there is a good communication link
between the supervisors ‘on the ground’ and the control room.

11.5.1 Radio Silence

There will be a radio silence announced by the control room as soon as the egress
commences. This will be announced with the exception of any urgent medical or life-
threatening messages. All personnel must refrain from using their radios with the
exception of the key egress personnel. The control room landline number will still be
available for radio holders to call the control room for

room to each other. The control room operator will log the mess’éiges in the radio

e

control log.

Either the Security Manager
that the command and contr fructuré, akifly process is adhered to.

supervision and staff??fg"ﬂé dleyriient to these areas to manage any congestion, queues
and the direction of exit. .'i'he event will be able to offer a diverse range of
entertainment, meaning the event will take the audience evenly across the site. There
are some key areas though.

11.6.1 Merchandise
Merchandise stalls should be positioned away from egress routes. These are
historically buys at the end of event days as people are reluctant to carry purchases all

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 53
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 222

day whilst attending an event. Any particularly busy areas will have a queuing system
implemented for this period.

11.7 Stand Down of Staff

At the end of egress and the event then supervisors should confirm that their area is
clear of public and that it is secured.

All gates should be locked closed unless in use and

ed_,by overnight security.

Only the control room will give the authority to E’gnd do ' 4\§‘{§;__ould be requested
from the Client first. Once the client has given the
room will contact each supervisor.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 54
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 223

Shouis.

12.0 Contingency

12.1 Liaison with other agencies

The liaison with other agencies takes place in the Event Control Room. All
communications are coordinated here by the Event Control Room Manager. Upon the
event state rising from Green to Amber then the Security Manager or their Deputy will
attend the Event Control Room to form the Emergency Liaison Team (E.L.T.)

12.2 The role of the Emergeng

This is detailed in the Event Management Plan E%I.,__; \

4

12.3 Alert & Emergency Procedures"

Showsec will be subject to emergency procedures of the site as a /whtﬂe Any incident
within the site may have an ir};pact on the event. Showseéj.gglgqﬁﬂﬁi%ere to the event

$ihE

emergency procedures and watksalongside these. In the event of an emergency the

following Standard Operating Procedi res would be foll%éj_ d:
12.3.1 Coﬂ%ﬁlon“ag@
Would indicated normal gjtuation
12.3.2 'Gondition Amber .’
i A

In the event that an Am

? ondition is declared, the Radio Controller would activate

the foIIowingefxﬁﬁj”" dE)

* Event Conin mft;FEh :':_?Yhfgwsec Crowd Manager of the incident.

 All parties will be adviSed of the exact area of the threat.

» |f necessary ingress will cease and information given to members of the public
regarding the situation to prevent disorder.

e Evacuation standby will be issued for all teams. The entrance team should

prepare their area to be clear for an egress.

12.3.3 Condition Red

Responsibility for stopping the show is documented in the event management plan.
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 55

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 224

When the incident is considered as very serious and has been informed so by the Event
Manager, the Showsec Senior Controller will issue the following instructions.
e Declare “Condition Red".
e All Exit and Entrances to be cleared of any obstructions ready for egress.
e (Customers to be directed away from the threat and the incident area to be
secured.

e Emergency Services and Helicopter RV point should be staffed to ensure quick

direction to the incident.

e Designated person to halt the show at{é an appr_‘.

made. \:} {
12.3.4 Stand Down

Where the condition is contained, “Condition Green” will be Qeclg ,aﬁ r"{ld all pames will
be advised using the “Stand Bbw\r:: code. Where the sntua‘g; i

&

may have spare or availablgfesources to assist.
= -

12.5 Emergency Egress
12.5.1 Part Evacuation

Where condition Red is in a controlled area i.e. Backstage area, the event may not be
halted, so as to reduce the possibility of panic. However the area will be restricted until
the Condition Green is given.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 56
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 225

12.5.2 Full Evacuation
The evacuation plan for the event is detailed in the Event Management Plan produced

by the organisers.

Once it has been decided that a full evacuation is necessary, it will be carried out as per
the agreed procedures. Emergency evacuation strategy should recognise empirical
research by Sime into crowd psychology during escape from disaster i.e. t1 (time to
interpret) + t2 (time to move).

12.5.3 Cancellation
Consideration must be given to the cancellatio 9 an eve @r’@é’vlrnvg unable to restart

an event. A procedure should be set for making'th iénce awa

There may also be an expectation of compensation or the rezissuing(

Heh
frates

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 57
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 226

13.1 Appendix A — Map of Finsbury Park

13.0 Appendices

§.C5 16 4Endymio

58

23-10-13

CMSP- Finsbury Park

Version 1.3

Steve Reynolds



Page 227

13.2 Appendix B — Meeting Timeline
Date Meeting Titie Location Attendees Minutes
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 59

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds




Page 228

13.3 Appendix C — Complaints Structure & Management

13.3.1 Customer Compiaints
Issues should be dealt with at the time of complaint, if at all possible. On site, the
Supervisor may be called to speak to members of the public. Any complaints received
should be communicated to control (via landline not radio) and then passed onto the
client Customer Service team.

Written letters or emails received directly by Show; /sgc”s .-auld be passed to the client

Customer Service team. Once received then l[ ' '/cllent G“?tomer Service team will

related complaints.

I at the time of complaint, if at all possible. The event
;_‘\ S\complamt with the Showsec at the time of the event.

4 . :
Should the event representative wish to refer the complaint to another person then this
should be communicated to the line manager. An agreed resolution date will be set and
the process agreed by which the resolution will be reached.

Any non-urgent complaints will be dealt with after the event. The initial response to any
complaint will be made within 48 hours of the end of the event detailing the process for
investigating the complaint. A full response and proposed resolution will be made within

10 working days of the end of the event. \
CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 60

Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 229

Shauses.

13.4 Appendix D — Counter Terrorism Briefing

The following is an example of a briefing that our Showsec operatives would receive at

an event.

If you come across a suspicious person, object, or vehicle, report it
Immediately to the control room via your supervisor, radio or the telephone number
provided.

What are the suspicious signs that can give a%afjé _

External appearance: is;l / A
e Clothes unsuitable for the time of year (e.é;;}ia heavyc at in st

* Anything protruding in an unusual way under the person's clothir

Suspicious behaviour:

* Nervousness, tension, pi ‘fu\s\e perspiration.

» Walking slowly while gle Fight and left, or runhing in a suspicious manner.
o < i)

How to identify a suspicious vehicle?

¢ Vehicle license plate looks "improvised" or mismatched (different front and back
plates).

* Tax Disc is not present, out of date or registered to another vehicle.

* A vehicle parked suspiciously for a prolonged time in a central place or in a no-
parking area.

* A vehicle is noticeably loaded down.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 61
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 230

What to do if you suspect something?
e Contact control via your supervisor, radio or the phone number provided and give
the as many details as possible about the suspect or the vehicle.
* While speaking to control, try to keep an eye on the suspect or vehicle from a
safe distance.

e Wait for response or police to arrive.

What to do during a terrorist attack?
e Leave the area immediately, moving to an oFeﬁ:p__c‘e\g\)r a protected area.
' iﬁdows\éﬁ‘d vehlcles

* Avoid, as best you can, tall buildings, glasélg:‘_l

e Do not form or join
additional explosive ch;

How to behave if you'ﬂ’nﬂf elf around a suicide bombing or shooting?
e Keep calm and don't pahic
e Keep alert, especially in crowded places.

If you come across a suspicious person, suspicious object or suspicious vehicle — alert

a police officer or call 999.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 62
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 231

Shouss.

13.5 Appendix E - Recruitment

13.5.1 Seiection Process
We take great pride in our recruitment process, constantly being updated to comply with
the stringent Home Office requirements. The department also stays ahead of the game
in respect of legal changes, anti-discrimination rules and minimum wage amendments.
The selection process assesses the candidates:
e Physical ability to carry out the services required;
. Aptltude and demeanor;

Build, Break, OV
o Customer Expergre e

H‘P'

)
o Front of St‘%‘: 3\Barrier

2. Scre 'Ll%ing Process
The applicant will be Wqu@;ﬂ;) to provide an up-to-date information to Showsec
including:
* Details of career history of not less than five years immediately prior to the date
of the application or back to the date of ceasing full time education;
* The names of at least two persons, who may be former employers, from whom a
reference can be obtained. All security staff working at the events will have an
SIA Door Supervisors License; as part of the SIA License application process a

CRB check is undertaken by the SIA. All non-licensed stewards working at the

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 63
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 232

events will be required to allow their details to be submitted to the Police. The
Police will be able to check the details on the Police National Computer (PNC) to
ensure that no criminals are able to work at the events. When workers sign in to
work at the event they will have to show either their SIA License if they are
working as an SIA Security, or a nationally recognised Photo ID to verify their
identity; this is in addition to their Showsec ID Card. Once they have shown this
then they are given an event Security wristband to validate their entry to the
event whilst working.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 64
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 233

13.6 Appendix F - Training

Showsec is committed to providing the highest standards of training and education for
its staff and service partners. The on-going development of all staff is the cornerstone to
Showsec's ethos and has helped us gain Investor in People status. We are committed
to helping people develop to their full potential and confidently fulfil their role within the
company.

13.6.1 Training & Development Centre

Showsec is unique in that it has a dedicated in-hti§&>Iraining and Development

G 5

Centre, with 30 trainers delivering a comprehen?ff'e"range ‘oficourses to create a team
' ﬂ Tand’s

that provides the UK’s highest standard of crowd managem

its clients. v

ecurity services to

&
ﬁ?“trﬁagm‘a s approved t ',:\gehver the SIA Public Space

il

* Supervisors Tramtng
e Operations Executive Training
* Managers Training

¢ Health & Safety Training

We have invested heavily in staff training and development by providing extra
administration support, which helps to increase the rate at which courses are delivered
and widens the choices available to our staff. This has led to the development of an e-

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 65
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 234

Shouss.

learning platform enabling us to deliver some of the content, securely over the Internet.
This has given staff greater access to training and the ability to work at their own pace
when receiving training.

The continuous development of staff through industry related accredited qualifications,
has seen over two thousand academic achievements in the last two years in an array of
subjects ranging from steward qualifications through to foundation degrees in Crowd
Management.

Induction Module onIme Tﬁi§‘-fl‘%1odule introduces the Company and our goals, and

everything from Terminology used at Events to Uniform and Personal Appearance to
Debriefing.

13.6.3.1 Steward Training
Every new Showsec member of staff undergoes a Company Induction Module via the e-
learning online platform (introducing the Company, Health & Safety Policy, Quality
Policy etc.). This is prior to undertaking a further training course, which provides each

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 66
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



==

Page 235

Shousis.

individual, if successful, with the equivalent for the following industry recognised
qualification:

e L2 Award in Door Supervision — Module.1, Working in the Private Security

Industry

¢ Plus further Modular Training
Upon successful completion of the course, the new stewards are closely monitored and
supervised during their initial period of employment, to ensure that they learn the skills
necessary ‘on the job’, and quickly build-up their confidence and knowledge. Further

\nt rvals, or as and when

assessments and training are carried out at r?g !

identified/required. .
13.6.3.2 SIA Train'[gijg

If a Steward would like to work in the security area of our company t}a)) would have to

supply us with a ten-year checkable work record. They will then rec_'__,:"éj}t-he HABC Level

Lo
Standard. Our Training

2 Award in Door Supervisign, Training, this is an ind fry

o
\:{T" :

A dular Trainin

All Showsec workers %ré offered a num eff’ﬁfﬁmodular courses during their first few

weeks of work to enable g;ﬁem with the basic <kills to perform their role to the highest

standard possible. For ei""_r‘ﬁ'{__";ale:

of Bare and SRimunication skills
* Ingress & Egress.
¢ Counter Terrorism

e Health and Safety Level 1

e Front of Stage Pit Barrier

e Working in the Radio Control Room
This ‘in-house’ training enables Showsec to maintain control and keep up the high
standards that we expect of our employees. In addition, it allows us to pass on venue
and client specific information through the training courses.

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 67
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 236

Shouis.

Certain aspects of a stewards or licenced staff role require additional training. We offer

13.6.3.4 Event Specific Training

further modular training for event specific roles, for example:
e Working at the Live Site’s

e Search and Screening at the Live Site's

13.6.4 Supervisor & Team Leader Training

Once potential Team Leaders have gone througkh gorous selection process,

including an interview, they are booked onto our/Iir:

with the online module ‘The Role of an Event Su

the training are: i
e The Qualities of a Good Supervisor
e Leadership and Delegation

¢ Coaching and Motivatiom

e Briefings
Once they've completed thisé!.‘;tj” n thy
that will continue their develogment an ”‘ala ance their technical knowledge.

13.6.4,1 Superwéors Training

All Supervisors working f&g howsec will go through the standard training to become a

supervisor; eﬁtl H bave. \IHeir site-specific training will take place in advance of the

R,
event through the company’s e-learning platform. This will allow the Supervisors to

56
have overview knowledge ﬁg Live Sites as well as a specific understanding of their
role at the events. Where relevant the training will cover:

e The role of a supervisor

e Team behaviour

e Leadership

¢ Decision Making

e Problem Solving

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13 68
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds



Page 237

e Communication skills
e Performance review
e Time management

e Customer Service

e Health & Safety at work

e The protection of premises and property
¢ Electronic security systems

e Law

e Arrest procedures

e Contingency planning

Disaster recovery

CMSP- Finsbury Park 23-10-13
Version 1.3 Steve Reynolds

69



T

Page 238

Shouies.

13.7 Appendix G — Assignment Instructions

General Assignment

Instructions

Event

* Finsbury Park Music Events

Site

Finsbury Park, Endymion Road, London, N4 2DH

Extent of Site

e Showsec will operate in the Perimeter, Entrances,

Internal Crowd Management, Front of Stage Barriers,
Backstage

Access to Site

Showsec staff will enter the site only through.

Only pre-accredited staff will be allowed access to the
event site. B
Showsec staff mus[/ ring“""h_;_ them their company ID
card and thelr $IA Llcense gzwhere applicable) or a

,«7‘ v

Emergency
Procedures

Staff should adhe‘@'fio the( site emergehcy procedures.
These are in the staff handbook publis ﬁ.}by Showsec.
Emergency procedures . will be displ rk(

gate along with exit gate instructions.

Communication

at every exit
o Al staff will receive a brleflng;ét“tﬁg@éﬁ of their shift
« Skt will be provided with a staifRandbook, published by
i:x_‘ ve ation, at the start of their shift.

All'staffawill be allocated t@x aSupervisor who will check in

;’ themj h|east every ho

* “Certain pgsitions will reqwre a radio to communicate with
the controT‘Pbe% Staff who require a radio will be briefed
separately on¥ gse
The control roonT will check in on each radio user at least
every hour and record the contact in the control log.

Welfare " \Hot and Cold beverage facilities are available for the use
. &f staff at various locations across site.

>taff will be provided meal packs to be consumed out of
public view.
Staff are permitted to purchase at their own cost, food
and beverages from the site concessions. These are to
be consumed out of public view.

Vehicles No parking is available to staff
Site vehicles are not for staff to use under any
circumstances

Reporting ¢ All occurrences and incidents must be reported to the

Supervisor in the first instance and then followed up with
a completed incident report form.

Specific Hazards

Specific hazards in the areas of the site will be

CMSP- Finsbury Park
Version 1.3

highlighted at the staff briefing by the Supervisor.
23-10-13
Steve Reynolds

70




Page 239

Position Specific Assignment Instructions

Position Number

Grid Reference

Access Control

Position Description

Radio Required

Search Protocol

Regular Duties

Personality
Competencies

Emergency /
Contingency Duties

Number of staff

Hours to work

Hand over to next
shift?

Static or Patrol (If
Patrol, detail)

CMSP- Finsbury Park
Version 1.3

23-10-13
Steve Reynolds

71




Page 240

AT TN, >

=

Showsec

Regent House | 16 West Walk | Leicester | LE1 7NA
0116 204 3333 | www.Showsec.co.uk

Reg No. 218 7286




Page 241

[LTVE I"IIZITIC)I'I]

FINSBURY PARK
MUSIC EVENTS

Appendix F

Medical
Management Plan

Version 1
October 2013

Live Nation Finsbury Park Music Events — Medical Management Plan V1 -PC 1



[LYVE nnTlon]

Page 242

Contents
Section Sub Element Page
Section
1.0 Overview
1.0 1.1 Event Management 3
1.0 1.2 Medical Responsibilities 4
1.0 1.3 Medical Planning 4
1.0- 1.4 Build and Break Medical Provision 4
2.0 Resources
2.0 2.1 Table of Provision 4
2.0 282 First Aid Post Locations 5
2.0 2%3 Command & Control 5
2.0 2.4 Equipment 5
3.0 Records
3.0 3.1 Patient Report Forms 6
3.0 3.2 RIDDOR Reporting 6
4.0 Major Incident
4.0 4.1 Major Incident 6
Appendices Medical Risk Assessment Matrix provided per

event — not listed here currently




Page 243

Introduction
This document is an appendix of the main Event Management Plan and
should be read in conjunction with that document.

The purpose of this document is to contain information relating to medical
provision and management for the event.

Any queries relating to this document should be directed to:

Paul Cook

Group Head of Health, Safety & Security
Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd

Tel: 020 7009 3333
paul,.cook@livenation.co.uk

11.0 OVERVIEW

1.1 Event Management

The organisers of the event, Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd, have appointed a
management team to manage all elements of the event. A detailed
management flowchart is provided within the Event Management Plan.

For simplicity the principal persons responsible for the management of the
site in relation to infrastructure and maintenance are:

Role Name
Festival Director John Probyn
Festival Manager Hannah Farnham
Site Manager Craig Becker
Health & Safety Manager Paul Cook

Live Nation Finsbury Park Music Events — Medical Management Plan V1 -PC 3



Page 244

1.2 Medical Responsibilities

Role Name
Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd
Medical Liaisorn Paul Cook
Statutory Ambulance Service London Amb“_ll?rt‘;? Service NHS
Statutory Ambulance Service TBC

Liaison Officer

Provision of on
Si‘te Medical Services

Events Medical Services Ltd

1.3 Medical Planning

During the course of planning events, medical planning will take place
between all relevant agencies and companies.
meeting will agree a common working policy to ensure the co-operation

of all parties in the delivery of high quality medical care.

1.4 Build and Break Medical Provision

During the build up and break down periods of the event, Live Nation
(Music) UK Ltd (LN), will ensure suitable and sufficient medical
provision is available for staff working on site as required under the
HASAW Act. Staff will be made aware of on site provision at induction

to the site and site signage.

First Aid Kits and Emergency Eye Wash Stations will be located:

o Site Office
o Safety Team

o Security Entrance gate X1

Live Nation Finsbury Park Music Events — Medical Management Plan V1 -PC

A medical planning



Page 245

2.0 Resources

21 Staffing Levels

All cover levels will be agreed between the respective medical provider and
Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd based on previous assessment and history of the
events. The cover takes into consideration the guidance as provided in
HSG195. Risk assessment tables are appended to this document.

All paramedics will be registered with the Health & Care Professions Council
(HCPC) and all Nurses will be registered with the Nursing & Midwifery
Council (NMC). All doctors will be registered as medical practitioners in their
own particular area of skill with the UK General Medical Council (GMC).

All medical providers will hold appropriate levels of qualifications, with proof of
medical qualification and competencies collated by their respective medical
companies.

All medical provision on-site will be dedicated to the event and not form part
of any core emergency cover for the surrounding area.

2.2 First Aid Post Location

First aid posts will be located strategically around the arena taking into
account access and egress arrangements and event demographic. The
locations will be documented within this plan.

2.3 Command & Control

All medical services will come under one central control facility provided by
Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd. Close joint provider liaison will be maintained
with regular meetings between them and the promoter Live Nation (Music)
UK Ltd. The principal medical provider, Events Medical Services, will
designate the lead medical officer.

Additionally representatives of the medical services will be located in the
Event Control facility on site.

2.4 Equipment
Events Medical Services will provide or arrange for all equipment specific to

medical treatment, including the provision of Advanced Life Support
equipment and drugs.

Live Nation Finsbury Park Music Events — Medical Management Plan V1 -PC 5




Page 246

Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd will provide tented structures; power; lighting;
water; tables and chairs.

13.0 Records

3.1 Patient Report Forms

Events Medical Services wiil be the iead organisation in reiation to the
recording of patient data. This provision is on behalf of the promoter, Live
Nation (Music) UK Ltd. Patient records will be retained by EMS for at least 10
years or at least 3 years beyond the age of 18 years of age in the case of a
child.

3.2 Riddor Reports
Events Medical Services will ensure that any incident that may be reportable

under the Reporting of Injuries, diseases and dangerous occurrence
regulations are advised to the promoters Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd.

4.0 Major Incident

4.1 Major Incident

It is recognised that the potential for a major incident to develop is low, but
the consequences are high. With this in mind, medical planning will take into
account such an eventuality. This is based along existing guidance and
working practice as laid down in current NHS guidance and locally agreed
working practices between all the emergency services. In the absence of any
such guidance the principles, as laid down in current Home Office guidance

will apply.

This document also recognises that in the event of a major incident, the
London Ambulance Service NHS Trust has the executive responsibility to
manage the health aspects of the response as detailed in current guidance.
In the event of a major incident at the event LAS will have executive control
over ALL medical providers on-site.

In the initial stage of any major incident the on site medical teams will initiate
triage and treatment as necessary utilising on site resources and facilities.
The on site medical coordinator will ensure that a full handover is given on
the arrival of LAS commanders who will then assume responsibility for the
incident.

Rendezvous Points

Live Nation Finsbury Park Music Events — Medical Management Plan V1 -PC 6



Page 247

Number Location
RVP 1 To be agreed per event and listed here
RVP 2 To be agreed per event and listed here

Live Nation Finsbury Park Music Events — Medical Management Plan V1 -PC




Page 248



Page 249

[LYVE NnATION

FINSBURY PARK
MUSIC EVENTS

APPENDIX H

| WASTE
MANAGEMENT PLAN

eeeeee
ssssssssssssss



Page 250

£ Ryans

cleaning

Waste Management Plan

FINSBURY PARK MUSIC EVENTS

Introduction

This document provides information in relation to pre-event, concert day(s) and post-event cleaning.
Timescales and teams are based on an event capacity of 45,000 people and will be adjusted in line
with the anticipated attendance. This document will be updated on an event-by-event basis.

Organisation and Management

Overall Manager: Pat Ryan
Duties are to organise, collate all management areas together.

Safety Advisor: Donal Flannery
Duties are to prepare H&S information including Risk Assessments and Method Staements and be
the main point of contact for safety advice in relation to the concerts cleaning operation.

Production Manager: Sinead Cleary
Duties are to organise and deploy cleaning teams to where necessary prior to, during and after
concerts.
2
Concert Day Managers: Sinead Cleary and Gemma Callanan
Duties are to organise and deploy cleaning teams to where necessary during concerts.

Night Shift Managers: Lisa Frankovich and Alan Davis
Duties are to organise and deploy cleaning teams to where necessary during the nights, organise and
supervise night clean up and liaise with waste company ensuring all waste is removed from site.

Office Manager: Aisling Ryan
Duties are to record all wages, agency number and hours, record all cleaning times and problems in
all areas of concert arena and associated areas used by Live Nation.

Complete cleanup after concert Main Manager: Sinead Cleary assisted by Gemma Callanan, Lisa
Frankovich, Alan Davis

Duties are to ensure all areas are left litter free and completed as per deadlines and site
specifications.

LNFPE WMP vi1 2



Page 251

SRyans

cleaning

Build Period

Build day one

Sinead Cleary and 2 operatives will arrive on site to commence organising and planning for the week
ahead and outline any immediate jobs. Sinead will be in communication with production at all times.
1/ Roro, 10/ 1,100ltr bins and 20 / 240Itr bins to be delivered to site and placed by Ryan’s.

Build day two to six

Sinead Cleary and 4 operatives to commence on site duties maintaining Production offices, toilets,
showers and general litter picking of the site as required.

A further 90 / 1,100Itr bins and 180 / 240Itr bins to be delivered to site and placed by Ryan’s.

2 / Roro’s to be delivered to site on build day six and placed by Ryan’s.

Build day seven to nine

Sinead Cleary and 10 operatives will continue with site duties and ensuring all associated areas
including getting dressing rooms / VIP area’s ready. Placements of bins will be completed and all
waste removed to the designated area. 4 / RCV Lorries will arrive on site on build day nine and
placed in their designated positions for the duration of the concert(s).

Concert Day(s)

Sinead Cleary will deploy operatives to the following areas:

External event site / public areas (areas and staffing levels to be agreed through pre-event
planning)

Team 1 - 1 supervisor and 6 operatives will litter pick from 09:00 — 00.00

Team 2 - 1 supervisor and 6 operatives will litter pick from 09:00 — 00.00

Main Entrance: 1 supervisor and 12 operatives will litter pick this area and empty bins at check point
to designated area. '

VIP Nation / Disabled Entrance: 4 operatives will litter pick this area and empty bins at check point
to designated area.

Dressing Rooms / Back Stage: 1 supervisor and 3 operatives will ensure all dressing rooms and
associated areas are litter free and clean at all times, waste will be removed to the designated area.

VIP Nation Area: 1 supervisor and 3 operatives will ensure the VIP areas are litter free and clean at
all times, monitor toilets and waste will be removed to the designated area.

Sponsors Hospitality: 1 supervisor and 4 operatives will ensure the areas are litter free and clean at
all times, monitor toilets and waste will be removed to the designated area.

Bins in Arena: 1 supervisor and 8 operatives will continuously monitor and empty the bins within the
concert arena and remove waste to the designated area.

LNFPE WMP v1 3



Page 252

SRyans

cleaning

Production Area:
2 operatives will ensure production offices, toilets and showers are maintained and waste removed
to the designated area.

Litter Picking in Arena:
2 supervisors and 20 operatives split will litter pick the arena all day ensuring there is no build up of
waste and remove waste to the designated area.

Concessions / Bars:

All concessions / bars will have bins behind and will be continuously monitored by operatives and
waste removed to the designated area.

Concert Day(s) - Night Clean

Night Manager Lisa Frankovich, 4 supervisors and 60 operatives will commence a full clean of the
arena and associated areas. 1 supervisor and 6 operatives will commence cleaning of Dressing
Rooms, production offices, VIP Nation and Sponsors Hospitality. The tractor and trilo will commence
once vehicle curfew is lifted. All bins and waste picked during the night shift will be removed to
designated lorries. Associated roads will be litter picked during the night shift clean (areas to be
agreed through pre-event planning).

Break Period

Break day one
Sinead Cleary and 20 operatives will litter pick and remove all waste to the designated areas.

Break day two to four
Sinead Cleary and 15 operatives will ensure all areas are litter free and waste is removed to the
designated area.

Break day five

Sinead Cleary and 10 operatives will do a final pick and remove waste to designated lorry and do the
final sign off with Live Nation. The Jast remaining waste equipment will be removed from site and
site handed back to the council.

Waste Infrastructure:
3 / 40 yard Skips
200/ 240It Bins

100/ 1100It Bins

4 /RCV Waste Trucks

LNFPE WMP v1 4



Page 253

~
\/anguardia

consulting

Live Nation Events

Finsbury Park, London

Noise Management Plan

VC-101499-NMPO0O
Rev 00

October 2013



Page 254

Live Nation — Finsbury Park
Noise Management Plan

D A
\/anguardia

October 2013 consulting

Contents
lo—Introduction........vvses v mmmm s T T T e 3
2., INoiselllimits s R | e =l 5
3 Noise Management Plan.........cccecieieiviienecneecnrennieensiesssnenns e e T L L 8
ApPendix A / GIOSSArY Of TEIMMIS ....icuiiieieceeee e cteciretet st eeesve e e e esaesesesse e enesesesabessesasesbsessesanessnenes 12
'Vanguardia Consulting Document Control

Document Title: Noise Management Plan Revision: 00

Project Number: VC/101499 Date: October 2013

Document Reference:  VC-101499-NMP00 Author: Warren King

Status: DRAFT Checked: To be checked

Issued To: Live Nation Passed: To be passed

Issue Notes: Issued as draft only and may be subject to change after Local Authority comments & Vanguardia

QA procedures

Vanguardia Consulting

London Office: Southbank Technopark, 80 London Road, London, SE1 6LN
Head Office: 21 Station Road West, Oxted, Surrey, RH8 SEE

Tel: + 44 (0) 1883 718 690

Fax: + 44 (0) 8700 516 196

Professional Assdciations:

) Institute of Acoustics
The Association aof Noise Consultants

' The Audio Engineering Society
Institute of Engineering and Technology

seesmaressansneere

ISO 9001
REGISTERED FIRM

VC-101499-NMPOO| Finsbury Park



Page 255

Live Nation - Finsbury Park IS

Noise Management Plan

October 2013 Vanguardla

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

consulting

Introduction

Vanguardia Consulting has been commissioned by Live Nation to provide a Noise
Management Plan as part of a license application and to assist in the control and monitoring
of sound at music events to be held at Finsbury Park, London in 2014. The proposed dates for
the events have yet to be confirmed.

The proposed events will range from single stage, stand alone concerts to multi stage festivals
over a number of days but no more than five total event days per year. Each event day will
finish by 2300hrs.

The purpose of this document is to describe the sound control and monitoring scheme that
will be put in place to minimise the music noise levels at residential properties. The practical
measures that should be adopted to achieve compliance with noise conditions are described
in Section 3.

It is intended that this is considered a ‘live’ working document which may evolve further with

ongoing liaison between the event promoter and the London Borough of Haringey.

A glossary of acoustic terms is shown in Appendix A.

Consultants’ Experience

Vanguardia Consulting is an independent acoustic consultancy specialising in the field of
sound, noise and acoustics related to entertainment venues. The team of consultants have
many years experience dealing with some of the largest and most innovative sound and
acoustic projects in the UK, including Wembley Stadium, the Millennium Dome, The
Millennium Stadium, Wembley Arena and Earls Court.

The consultants have successfully provided sound management advice, including noise
control, at over 1000 concerts during the past 25 years. These concerts have ranged from
relatively small scale events at green field sites to major events staged at national stadia
providing entertainment for tens of thousands of people.

The company directors of Vanguardia also sat on the UK Noise Council Working Party which
prepared the Code of Practice on Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (1995). They have
also managed Government research projects related to sound and noise aspects of the
entertainment business.

VC-101499-NMPO0O} Finsbury Park
Page | 3



Page 256

Live Nation — Finsbury Park \j

Noise Management Plan

s \/anguardia

consulting

1.9 As well as the provision of sound and acoustic design/management for entertainment venues,
the company deals with the whole range of acoustic, noise and vibration issues and our staff
have presented expert testimony at planning and licensing hearings, magistrates and high

courts, Judicial Reviews and House of Commons and House of Lords Select Committees.

VC-101499-NMPOQO0| Finsbury Park
Page |4



Page 257

~ Live Nation - Finsbury Park ﬁ)

Noise Management Plan
October 2013

\/anguardia

consulting

2

2.1

Noise Limits

The relevant conditions relating to noise levels at residential locations are based on the limits
provided in the established guidance contained in*the Noise Council's Code of Practice on

Environmental Noise Control at Concerts (1995) and are reproduced below:

Sound Limits

An acoustic consultant shall be available to ensure that the Guidance for Control of Sound at

Large Outdoor Events as outlined below is complied with.

Monitoring should be carried out throughout the event and records kept to confirm

compliance with the sound limits.

Permanent monitoring at each location is not required but representative readings must be

taken to demonstrate compliance.

Where complaints are received the nearest monitoring location should be established and in
association with investigation at the complainant’s home the sound limit at the nearest

monitoring location should be checked.
DETAILS OF MONITORING SITES AROUND THE FINSBURY PARK AREA.
Guidance for Control of Sound at Large Outdoor Events

Approved locations representative of the noise sensitive premises likely to experience the

greatest increase in noise levels as a result of events held in Finsbury Park N4.

Location Background Noise Level [Hourly LA90] Notes
19:00-23:00hrs

Taken approx.
mid-way
along park
Seven length.
Sisters 63 dB(A)
Road, N4 Very busy
main road-

traffic
predominates.

Taken mid-
way between
Rt Gloucester
olphus 51 dB(A Drive &
Road, N4 (A Alexandra
Grove.

VC-101499-NMPOO| Finsbury Park

Page | 5



Live Nation — Finsbury Park

Noise Management Plan

October 2013

Page 258

>

\/angu

Runs parallel
to Seven
Sisters Rd-
minimal
traffic-
shielded by
medium rise
flats.

Woodstock
Road, N4

47 dB(A)

(was 43 dB(A))

Taken at
North bend.

Separated
from park by
busy railway
line- rear
bedrooms
face park.

Stapleton
Hal! Road,
N4

41 dB(A)

Taken 30m
East of
junction with
Quermnmore
Rd.

Residential-
minimal
traffic-located
on a hill
overlooking
North side of
park.

Lothair
Road
South, N4

46 dB(A)

Taken 30m
East of
junction with
Alroy Rd.

Paralle! to
Endymion Rd.

Rowley
Gardens,
N4

49 dB(A)

Taken centre
of
“quadrangle”.

On East side
of park & in
middle of high
rise flats.

ardia

consulting

2.2 Therefore, taking the measured background noise levels provided above, the music noise

limits at the locations representative of the nearest noise sensitive properties is as follows:

VC-101499-NMPOQ| Finsbury Park

Page | 6



Page 259

Live Nation — Finsbury Park \j
Noise Management Plan y _ V .
October 2013 an g u aw':g,! ,nag
Background Noise " KR
. Noise Limit
Location Level [Hourly LA90] :
19:00-23:00hrs | (dBLA€q,Smin)
Seven Sisters 63 dB(A) 78 dB(A)
Road, N4
Adolphus Road, 51 dB(A) 66 dB(A)
N4
Woodstock 47 dB(A) 62 dB(A)
Road, N4
Stapleton Hall 41 dB(A) 56 dB(A)
Road, N4
Lothair Road 46 dB(A) 61 dB(A)
South, N4
Rowley 49 dB(A) 64 dB(A)
Gardens, N4

VC-101499-NMPOO] Finsbury Park
/ Page |7



Page 260

Live Nation — Finsbury Park \j

Noise Management Plan

October 2013 Van gu ardia

3

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

consulting

Noise Management Plan

Careful consideration will be given to implementing and exercising a noise control programme
during sound checks and events to control entertainment noise from the venue.

The sound control programme fundamentally follows the procedures that have been
successfully adopted at outdoor concerts and festivals over the past 20 years throughout the
UK and are detailed below:

Site / Sound System Design

Careful consideration will be made to find the most appropriate site layout for each event that

would minimise the noise impact at off-site locations.

Careful and detailed alignment of the sound systems will be ensured to optimise the coverage
throughout the audience areas and balance this against the off-site environmental noise

impact.

The appointed sound system suppliers will be informed of the requirements of noise control
and the location / orientation of their systems. Their contract of hire should also specify that
the overall control of sound levels will be set by the event Promoter and/or their appointed

agent (acoustic consultants).

Pre event information

Vanguardia will set up a direct means of communications with all parties. The event promoter

will provide Vanguardia staff with site radios.
A dedicated radio channel will be provided for Vanguardia consultants.

A letter or newspaper advertisement will be circulated to local residents at least 2 weeks prior
to each event, informing them of the details of the event and including start and finish times.

The advertisement will also include a dedicated telephone number for noise complaints.

A telephone complaints line will be made available for the duration of each event. Should any
noise complaints be received, the local authority will be informed and the complaint will be
investigated. If noise levels are above those specified in the licence conditions, immediate
action would be taken to reduce the levels at the noise source. A complaints log will be
maintained throughout the event detailing addresses of complaints, times and actions.

VC-101499-NMPOO| Finsbury Park
Page |8



Page 261

Live Nation — Finsbury Park \j

Noise Management Plan

October 2013 Vanguardia

3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

consulting

The control communication protocol will be reviewed to ensure effective and responsive
communication channels are established and maintained between all relevant parties

throughout the duration of each event.

Vanguardia will review any other noise sources and work with the promoter and the council to

minimise noise disturbance.

Vanguardia will undertake sound tests prior to each event to determine a correlation between
inside and outside sound levels. The limits set will be agreed with the council’s environmental

health officer and the correlation checked at regular intervals throughout the event.
Permanent noise monitors will be provided at the mixer desk positions of each stage.
All noise meters will comply with the required standards and be calibrated.

The promoter will advise the environmental health department of the likely times of rehearsals
and sound checks, although this is unlikely to be known until very near the production set up.

The promoter will also agree timings for production set up.
Vanguardia will liaise with the Council and comply with their complaints procedure.

The event promoter and Vanguardia will comply with any reasonable instructions given by the

licensing authority.

Vanguardia will provide consultants and technicians to monitor the internal and external noise

levels.

Sound Control Procedures
Sound propagation and pre-event tests

Prior to each event, the production team will carry out short sound checks and as part of this
process, acoustic consultants will undertake sound propagation tests to correlate the music
noise levels at the mixing desk with those observed at the most sensitive sound control
positions. The results of these tests will be used to ‘fine tune’ the sound systems in order to
maximise the containment of music and set an appropriate sound limit at the mixer position.

Sound propagation test times will be agreed with the local authority.

The local authority environmental health officers will be provided access to the results of the

sound propagation tests.

VC-101499-NMPOO] Finsbury Park
Page | 9



Page 262

Live Nation - Finsbury Park >

Noise Management Plan

October 2013 Vangual’dla

3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

3.26

consulting
Sound control within the venue

The music sound levels at the mixing desk positions will be continually monitored in terms of
15 minute and 1 minute Laeq values. The noise limit will be set in 15-minute intervals but the 1-
minute values provide acoustic consultants with immediate information to ensure the limit is
not exceeded. The sound engineers will be continually informed of the position of the music
noise levels and immediate instructions will be issued to them if it appears that the limit may
be exceeded at any point. The Acoustic consultants at the mixer desk positions will be in radio

contact with colleagues at external monitoring positions.

As part of the managerial process, the sound engineer of each artiste appearing at events will
be informed prior to arriving at the mixer of the need to adhere to the sound limits and

instructions issued to them in relation to sound control.

A routine inspection of any peripheral activities associated with events will be carried out to
ensure that any PA systems are turned off and remain off after the advertised finish time of the

event each day.

Sound monitoring outside of the venue

Noise measurements outside of the site will be taken at the approved locations representative
of the nearest noise sensitive premises and at other off-site locations in response to any
complaints that may be received. Action necessary to ensure the noise limit is not exceeded
will be transmitted by radio through to the acoustic consultant team at the mixer positions and

immediate instructions issued to the sound engineers to resolve any potential problems.
Telephone Complaints Line
A telephone complaints line is yet to be confirmed.

A schematic of the control communication protocol is provided on the following page:

VC-101499-NMP00| Finsbury Park
Page | 10



Page 263

Live Nation - Finsbury Park \ﬁ

Noise Management Plan

October 2013 Vanguardia

consulting

Continuous

]

]

]

1

monitoring at the :
i

sound mixer {

,

1

1

Inrations

Site Offices SOUND CONTROL POSITIONS

: i : :
i i i i
i t
P L | ————> ;
1

] ] 1
i Telephone H . Noise monitoring at i

1

i comolaint lines i i control positions and ‘
]
! - : responding to complaints E
gy g g g ] { g oy S e} - i
. Member of local authority staff . Acoustic consultant
. Member of Production staff <—» Two-way radio communications between all staff

Summary Reporting

3.27 A summary report will be produced after each event which will include all the noise level
measurements made at each position. This will be made available to the local authorities.

! . : " VC-101499-NMPOO| Finsbury Park
‘ ° g Page | 11



Page 264

Live Nation — Finsbury Park >

Noise Management Plan

October 2013 | Vangual’dla

AA

A2

A3

A4

consulting

Appendix A / Glossary of Terms

Noise is defined as unwanted sound. The range of audible sound is from 0dB to 140dB,
which is taken to be the threshold of pain. The sound pressure detected by the human ear
covers an extremely wide range. The decibel (dB) is used to condense this range into a
manageable scale by taking the logarithm of the ratio of the sound pressure and a reference
sound pressure.

The frequency response of the ear is usually taken to be about 18Hz (number of oscillations
per second) to 18,000Hz. The ear does not respond equally to different frequencies at the
same level. It is more sensitive in the mid-frequency range than at the lower and higher
frequencies, and because of this, the low and high frequency component of a sound are
reduced in importance by applying a weighting (filtering) circuit to the noise measuring
instrument. The weighting which is most used and which correlates best with the subjective
response to noise is the dB(A) weighting. This is an internationally accepted standard for

noise measurements.

The ear can just distinguish a difference in loudness between two noise sources when there is
a 3dB(A) difference between them. Also when two sound sources of the same noise level are
combined the resultant level is 3dB(A) higher than the single source. When two sounds differ

by 10dB(A) one is said to be twice as loud as thé other.

The subjective response to a noise is dependent not only upon the sound pressure level and
its frequency, but also its intermittency. Various indices have been developed to try and
correlate annoyances with the noise level and its fluctuations. The parameter used for this
measure is Equivalent Continuous
Sound Pressure Level (Lagg). The A-

130-140 Threshoid of pain
weighted sound pressure level of a e o e
Steady sound that has, overa given 110-120 Ships engine room (full pawer)
period, the same energy as the 100-110 Burglar Alarm (1 metre)
fluctuating sound under investigation. L ST LRERET
il 70-80 Average traffic on street corner
It is in effect the energy average level
60-70 Conversational speech
over the specified measurement soeo Typical Busihess offices
period (T) and is the most widely 40-50 Living room - wrban area
used indicator for environmental 30-40 Residential area at night
noise. A few examples of noise of 20530 Bedtoom StEIght
3 o h 10-20 Broadcasting Studio
various levels are given right:
0-10 Threshold of hearing

, ' 5 © VC-101499-NMPQQ| Finsbury Park
i g . . Page | 12



Page 265

>
\/anguardia

consulting

Vanguardia Limited, 21 Station Road West, Oxted, Surrey, RH8 9EL

Tel +44 (0) 1883 718690 Fax +44 (0) 8700 516196 www.vanguardiaconstilting.co.uk
registered in England. 0566 6276



Page 266



Page 267

[LTVE nnTlon]

FINSBURY PARK
MUSIC EVENTS

APPENDIX J

SHOWSTOP
PROCEDURE




Page 268

[LYfve nATION

In the unlikely event that we have to stop the show, the procedures laid down in this
document must apply. All persons who may have a role in this procedure MUST be familiar
with the actions detailed in this document.

IMPORTANT
ALL PERSONS PERMITTED TO STOP THE SHOW WILL HOLD A RED SHOWSTOP
LAMINATE. THESE ARE THE ONLY PERSONS PERMITTED TO STOP A SHOW.

There are two scenarios where the show may have to be stopped; the stop may only be
temporary while a problem is resolved, or may be the first step in an evacuation of the site.
The scenarios are:

Immediate due to risk to life:

1) The show may need to be stopped because of crowd related issues, either
temporarily, or finally. This request will come from the individual pit managers,
crowd spotters or a red showstop laminate holder to the stage manager.

Controlled show stop due to event related incident:

2) The show may need to be stopped on request of Event Management, because of
structural collapse, off-site events, crowd issues, extreme weather conditions or
any other occurrence. If this is the case either EVENT DIRECTOR; EVENT H&S
MANAGER or EVENT CONTROL will contact the stage manager and request
showstop.

Specific instructions for designated individuals are detailed below:
1. Stage Manager
2. House Sound Engineer

3. Guest Sound Engineer

LNFPME Showstop Procedure v1 2



Page 269

[LYve nATION)|

EMERGENCY SHOWSTOP PROCEDURES
STAGE MANAGER

IMMEDIATE SHOWSTOP.

If you are approached by a SHOW STOP LAMINATE holder and requested to stop the
show you must immediately approach the artist on stage and request they stop their
performance advising them that there is a crowd related emergency.

You must then ensure an appropriate message is relayed to the crowd via the emergency
microphone or lead vocal. NB: messages at back of this procedure.

CONTROLLED SHOWSTOP.

If approached by a member of the Event Management Team (Event Director; Event H&S
Manager; Head of Security or Event Control) to stop the performance in a controlled way
due to an on site emergency:

e If time allows ideally stop the show following the specific artist set and make
announcement to the crowd.

o If time does not allow then at a suitable break in the performance (end of a song) you
must approach the artist and stop the performance and then make an announcement to the
crowd v

If you hear the event alert code from Event Control

" “STAFF ANNOUNCEMENT CAN TH T

AMBER TEAM LEADER REPORT.TO EVENT i

E
el % __ CONTROL”

e Listen to your radio
e Maintain radio silence
e Standby for further instructions

If you hear the event alert code from Event Control

Turn to Emergency Channel — Ch 1

Maintain radio silence unless you need to pass an emergency message.

Be prepared to stop the performance and make announcement to crowd.

When advised by Showstop laminate holder or Event Control stop the performance.
Make appropriate announcement to crowd; repeat as necessary until arena cleared.

If the situation is resolved then Event Control will broadcast the following message

All personnel may then stand down unless otherwise instructed. Return to normal radio
channel

LNFPME Showstop Procedure v1 3



Page 270

[LYfve nAaTION

EMERGENCY SHOWSTOP PROCEDURES
HOUSE ENGINEER

If the Stage Manager or Production Manager inform you that an IMMEDIATE showstop is
required:

You should take control of the mixing desk from the guest engineer as necessary.
Ensure that the emergency channel on the desk is turned up.

Ensure that the lead vocal channel is available.

Silence all other channels.

= () DL

If the Stage Manager or Production Manager inform you that there will be a CONTROLLED
showstop:

1. Be ready to take control of mixing desk from the guest engineer as necessary when
indicated by Stage Manager.

2. When showstop initiated by Stage Manager turn up emergency channel.

3. Ensure lead vocal channel is available.

4. Silence all other channels.

If you hear the event alert code from Event Control

il

e Listen to your radio
e Maintain radio silence
e Standby for further instructions

If you hear the event alert code from Event Control

Turn to Emergency Channel — Ch 1

Maintain radio silence unless you need to pass an emergency message.

Be prepared to stop the performance and make announcement to crowd.

When advised by Showstop laminate holder or Event Control stop the performance.
Make announcement to crowd; repeat as necessary until arena cleared.

If the situation is resolved then Event Control will broadcast the following message

All personnel may then stand down unless otherwise instructed. Return to normal radio
channel.

LNFPME Showstop Procedure v1 4



Page 271

[LYve nAaTIoN

EIMERGENCY SHOWSTOP PROCEDURES
GUEST ENGINEER

In the unlikely event of a concern for public safety and the need to stop the show the
following procedure will apply:

You will be asked to hand control of the mixing desk to the house sound engineer as your
artist will be stopping their performance.

IT IS ESSENTIAL THAT YOU DO THIS IMMEDIATELY WITHOUT QUESTION A
PERSON OR PERSONS LIVES MAY DEPEND ON IT!

At this point wait to see if the performance will restan, if not please vacate the arena 'lby the
nearest exit and follow the instructions of stewards for your safety.

LNFPME Showstop Procedure vi 5



Page 272

[LYve nAaTioN

EMERGENCY ANNOUNCEMENTS

In the event of an evacuation:

“DUE TO CIRCUMSTANCES BEYOND OUR CONTROL THE SHOW WILL
HAVE TO BE STOPPED, WILL YOU PLEASE VACATE THE CONCERT
ARENA BY WALKING TO ANY AVAILABLE EXIT AS QUICKLY AND
QUIETLY AS POSSIBLE, FOLLOW THE INSTRUCTIONS OF STEWARDS”

In the event of a temporary stop:

“LADIES AND GENTLEMEN IT IS NECESSARY TO STOP THE SHOW FOR
A FEW MINUTES; WE HOPE TO BE ABLE TO RE-START SHORTLY”

Or:
“LADIES AND GENTLEMEN IT IS NECESSARY TO STOP THE SHOW

BECAUSE OF ......coiievinnnnnnne WE WILL GIVE YOU MORE
INFORMATION AS SOON AS WE CAN”

For front of stage crowd congestion:

“LADIES AND GENTLEMEN, FOR THE SAFETY AND COMFORT OF
THOSE NEAR THE STAGE, ON THE COUNT OF 3 PLEASE TAKE 3 STEPS
BACKWARDS, THANK YOU”

LNFPME Showstop Procedure v1 (3]



Page 273

[LTVE nrlelcm]

FINSBURY PARK
MUSIC EVENTS

APPENDIX L

HEALTH AND SAFETY
SITE RULES




Page 274

Lfve nAaTIoN

HEALTH & SAFETY
INFORMATION AND SITE RULES FOR
CONTRACTORS
ENGAGED IN WORK
FOR

LIVE NATION (Music) UK Ltd.

IMPORTANT
This document is supplementary to Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd standard
terms and conditions of trade which are issued to all contractors and
further copies are available upon request.

LYve naTion




Rules for Contractors (Music)

Page 275

Revised June 2012 LYV € NATION

PC/RS

Health & Safety Policy Statement

Live Nation (UK) 15 committed to ensure the Health, Safety and Welfare of all its Employees.
Contractors, Visitars. and Members of the Public

Health and Safety 1s a prominent and permanent feature of all its aclivities.

It 1s the intention of the Company to reduce accidents at all sttes by the effective management of
Health and Safety.

To help achieve this aim, Live Nation (UK) will provide adequate resources to achieve and maintain
the following

« Machinery, equipment and plant that is safe and without risk to health

» Safe systems of work for all activities

Sufficient information, instruction. training and supervision for employees on all aspects of safety
in the workplace

A healthy and safe work-place and environment with sufficient welfare facilities

In order to discharge their H&S management responsibilties effectively, Senior Management and ali
Managers will make every effort to keep themselves informed and up to date with current and fulure H&S
legisiation

Live Nation (UK) Employees (including Senior Management) must ensure the following:

» That reasonable care is taken to ensure their own H&S and that of any other person who may be
affected by their work.

o That they support Live Nation in achieving and implementing the objectives outlined above
together with following the appropnate control measures

» That all accidents and near misses are reported promptly, whether persons are injured or nol.

All staff are encouraged to make suggestions to their Manager or Health & Safety Advisor for
improving safety at the workplace.

This statement is supported by more detailed safety procedures in the Health and Safety Policy, a hard
copy of which is available for examination at each Live Nation production/premises

The Policy & Procedures Manual has been produced in loose-leaf format to allow for the inclusion of
updates All productons/premises will be informed of updates, which will be available from the Live Nation
Intranet Health & Safety (UK) site

Paul Latham

Chief Operating Officer Live Nation International Music

A
LAl

Effective Date January 2009



Page 276

Rules for Contractors (Music)
Revised June 2012

PC/RS

Lfve nAaTIion

CONTENTS

01

Introduction

02

Basic Regulations

03

Safety Policy

04

Insurance

05

Prior to work commencing

06

Electrical Work

07

Connection to Utilities and other Services

08

Housekeeping

09

Working at Height & Roof Work

10

Fences & Barriers

11

Emergency Services

12

Safety Clothing

13

Fire Precautions & Hot Work

14

Accident Reporting

15

Asbestos

16

Rigging & Suspension of Equipment

17

Noise

18

COSHH

19

Loading / Unloading Vehicles

20

Plant & Mechanical handling




Page 277

Rules for Contractors (Music)

Revised June 2012 LYve nAaTIoN
PC/RS

01 INTRODUCTION

The following rules are made by Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd (hereinafter called the Company and
shall apply to all works carried out at Company premises; venues hired or in use by the Company
(hereinafter called the location) by third parties under contract to the Company. (hereinafter called the
Contractor)

1. All persons engaged by the Contractor at the location shall be acquainted with these rules and
their consent to abide by them shall be an essential condition of their authority to work at the
location. The Company reserve right to stop the work at the Contractors expense in the event of
any violation of these rules. Further guidance will be provided, as required, by Company staff
authorised to order the execution of the work.

2. The Contractor will take all necessary precautions in connection with the works, so as to be
entirely consistent with the Company’s policy: '

¢ To protect the Health & Safety of its employees and any other persons affected
* To conserve the environment
¢ To avoid any damage to the property as a result of its activities

02 BASIC REGULATIONS

1. All work carried out at the location shall be in accordance with:
e Statutory regulations and their amendments
e Company regulations and their amendments
¢ Relevant British and European standards and their amendments
2. The Contractor is responsible for acts and omissions of his employees, agents, sub-contractors
and their employees (hereinafter called his ‘invitees' while at the location and shall ensure that
they comply with these rules.
3. It is essential that the invitees of the Contractor shall read, understand and comply with any
conditions or precautions laid down in these rules or in any order placed by the Company.

03 SAFETY POLICY

1. The H&S at Work Act 1974 requires any company that employs five or more people to write and
distribute a safety policy to staff, stating the Company’s commitment to H&S along with the
organisation and arrangements to carry out the Policy.

2. The Company reserves the right to examine the Contractors and his invitees Safety Policies.

3. The Company will supply, upon request, their own Policy to the Contractor or his Invitees.

04 INSURANCE

1. Contractors and his Invitees must provide evidence to the Company that they have insurance in
place with a reputable Insurer in respect of the following:

e Employers Liability in respect of personal injury or death of any person arising under a
contract of service with the Contractor and/or arising out of an incident occurring during the
course of such persons employment in compliance with the Employer’s Liability (Compulsory
Insurance) Act 1969, minimum limit of Indemnity £10,000,000 GBP

¢ Public Liability in respect of their legal liability for accidental loss or damage to material
property, minimum limit of Indemnity £5,000,000 GBP

2. Proof of insurance must be provided prior to commencement of the work.




Rules for Contractors (Music)
Revised June 2012
PC/RS

Page 278

LYve nAaTIoN

05 PRIOR TO WORK COMMENCING

1.

pPon

oo

A signed copy of the Safe Working Agreement must be provided to the person who placed the
order.

A copy of the Rules for Contractors document must be provided to all Invitees.

All site personnel must familiarise themselves with Emergency Procedures at the location.

All site personnel must sign into the venue/premises. Or wear appropriate accreditation as issued
by the Company. :

All site personnel must abide by any venue/premises specific guidelines.

It is forbidden to drink aicohol or take drugs other than those prescribed by a doctor that
do not affect the capacity of the person to work.

The Company reserve the right to expel from the Location any person who is under the influence
of drugs or alcohol.

06 ELECTRICAL WORK

1.

2.

The Contractor must ensure that all work undertaken is in accordance with BS7671:2008 and the
Electricity at Work Regulations 1989.

Company regulations limit the voltage to a maximum of 110 volts for portable electrical
equipment and temporary installations associated with all work carried out for the Company,
where this is not practicable the electrical equipment/installation must be protected by a Residual
Current Device. (RCD)

All electrical equipment must be isolated when not in use.

All Portable Electrical Equipment must be subject to a regular maintenance regime and the
appropriate Portable Appliance Testing records must be available for inspection if required.

All temporary electrical installations must conform to BS7909:2008.

All temporary electrical works must have an appropriate electrical sign off certificate issued at the
time of works to the Event Health & Safety Manager or in their absence the Site or Production
Manager.

07 CONNECTION TO UTILITIES AND OTHER SERVICES

1.

Connection or disconnection of any electrical, gas, steam, compressed air, water or any other
service by the contractor is only permitted following the written permission of the Company, or by
agreement of the relevant Site Manager.

The Contractor will ensure that appropriate measures are taken to guard against live overhead
cables and services laid underground.

The Contractor will ensure that all invitees are familiar with Clauses 7.1 to 7.2 of this document.

08 HOUSEKEEPING

1.

It is essential that good housekeeping is maintained throughout the period of work, both at the
work area and in and around any temporary structures. The working area shall be kept tidy at all
times, access and emergency exit ways kept clear, and surplus and/or scrap material removed
daily. Cleaning up at the end of the job is not considered sufficient.

The Contractor shall make arrangements for disposal of waste and surplus materials and the
daily disposal, of combustible and other refuse. Such disposal shall be carried out in accordance
with statutory requirements as applicable.

The Contractor shall make arrangements for the storage and removal of any toxic waste. The
arrangements will be in accordance with statutory regulations and Codes of Practice. Only
licensed waste disposal companies shall be used.

The Contractor will ensure that any travel of materials/refuse from the Location shall be
recovered and dealt with as in 8.1, 8.2 and 8.3.

Spillages of oil or chemicals shall be cleaned up immediately in view of the hazards from fire,
slippery surfaces, toxicity etc. Appropriate safety precautions shall be taken during the cleaning
up.

Storage of materials must be authorised by the venue/premises.

The Contractor will ensure that all invitees are familiar with Clauses 8.1, 8.2, 8.3, 8.4,8.5,8.6 of
this document.




Rules for Contractors (Music)
Revised June 2012

PC/RS

Page 279

LYve nAaTion

09 WORKING AT HEIGHT & ROOF WORK

Ensure that access to heights using ladders, scaffolding, edge protection, etc. is undertaken
safely and all access equipment thoroughly checked before use.

Where overhead working is carried out, full regard must be given to the safety of the access to
the working area and of the working area itself. All necessary safeguards shall be maintained to
protect those working or passing beneath the working area, and if necessary, the area below
should be cleared and access to it prevented by substantial barriers including appropriate
warning signs.

Full and appropriate protection must be used in the vicinity of fragile roof coverings/ceilings etc.
and at all exposed edges where a fall may result in injury.

Where there is a risk of head injury beneath a working area (to contractors, Live Nation
employees, visitors or members of the public) the following steps must.be taken in order of
priority listed: -

* Segregate area below

* Prevent access for the duration of the work posing the risk

* Use hard hats for all remaining persons granted access

* The Law requires hard hats to be worn by all persons to whom a risk of head injury

exists during the course of construction work

It is strictly prohibited for any person to climb on makeshift objects, shelving, racking or any other
structure, which is not designated for access purposes. Trestles should only be used as part of a
working platform.

The erection, use and dismantling of scaffolding and mobile access towers will be carried out by
Contractors within the provisions of BS EN 12811-1:2003. The Contractor must regularly update
a scaffold register which will be available for inspection at all times.

All work at height MUST comply with the Work at Height Regulations 2005 — with particular
regard to planning; use of alternative solutions or equipment; appropriate PPE and a rescue plan.
Where multi companies are employed consultation must take place with all parties in advance of
works to ensure clear working arrangements.

10 FENCES & BARRIERS

When carrying out works at an operational location the Contractor will provide his invitees with
safety barriers of a type and size suitable for the work area and bearing a message or symbol
indicating the hazard.

When works are left incomplete and forming a hazard (e.g. trench works which are left open).
Either a safety barrier of a type and size suitable for the work area, or the provision of level street
bridging plates covering the entire area, or a combination of both will be provided by the
Contractor and should be approved by the Company.

During construction work at a location and where no secure fence exists the Contractor will
provide perimeter fencing of a see-through type, of a height and rigidity to deny access by
pedestrians.

11 EMERGENCY SERVICES

The Contractor must obtain and be fully aware of the arrangement on each location to obtain first
aid and fire services in the case of an emergency.

The Contractor is required to provide the statutory first aid requirements for his employees, and
fire extinguishers of an approved type. This is in addition to any provision over and above that
provided by the Company.

Free access to all fire extinguishing and safety equipment shall be maintained at all times.




Rules for Contractors (Music)
Revised June 2012

PC/RS

Page 280

LYve nAaTIoN

12 SAFETY CLOTHING

1. During the course of work whether below, on, or above ground level, the Contractor will ensure
that his invitees, wear safety footwear that conforms to BS1870.

2. The Contractor will ensure that his invitees wear hard hats. Safety hats must comply with the
current British Standards EN397 in designated areas or as deemed necessary by risk
assessment.

3. The Contractor will provide his invitees with correct protective overalls and recommend that they
be worn at all times, if deemed necessary by risk assessment.

4. The Contractor will supply his invitees with correct industrial gloves to be worn as and where
applicable.

5. The Contractor will supply his invitees with correct dust masks, appropriate to the materials being
used or other breathing apparatus as deemed necessary.

6. The Contractor will provide his invitees with correct eye protection goggles or shields to be worn
whenever works at a location or occasion give rise to grit, metal particles etc.

7. The Contractor will supply his invitees with Hi Visibility vests which must be worn at all times
during the build and break periods, and additionally where specified by the Company.

8. The Contractor will advise all other invitees of the provisions of Clauses 12.3 to 12.7 inclusive
and recommend similar measures.

13 FIRE PRECAUTIONS & HOT WORK

1. Fire exits, escape routes, associated signage, and fire defence equipment must be kept free from
obstruction.

2. The venue/premises Smoking Policy must be strictly followed.

3. If required a Live Nation Hot Work Permit must be obtained from the responsible person on site
and completed prior to any Hot Works commencing as appropriate from the Site Manager.

4. The Hot Work Permit conditions must be strictly followed.

5. All flammables such as solvents, paints etc must be stored appropriately.

14 ACCIDENT & NEAR MISS REPORTING

The Contractor shall in addition to any report required by statutory regulations, report
immediately to the Event Health & Safety Manager all accidents or near misses occurring within
the duration of the works which result in injury to persons or damage to property. The Contractor
shall co-operate to the full in any subsequent investigation of the accident or near miss as
required by the Company.

The Contractor shall keep his accident records in accordance with statutory regulations and shall
make these records available to the Company. If the Company so request, the Contractor shall
discuss his accident data with the Company.

15 ASBESTOS

Prior to carrying out any work the premises Asbestos Register must be checked and if the area
has been covered in the register and No Asbestos Discovered (NAD) then work may proceed.

If the register has noted that there is asbestos in the area work must not continue if there is any
potential of disturbing the Asbestos Containing Material (ACM), until the appropriate remedial
action has been taken.

If the work area has not been covered in the asbestos register further investigation, including a
type 3 asbestos survey, if appropriate, must be carried out to ensure that the area is asbestos
free.

The Contractor and his invitees must sign the premises asbestos register form to acknowledge
having consulted the document.

If ACM’s are discovered or suspected during the course of the work all activity must cease, the
area vacated and the responsible person on site informed to allow remedial procedures to be put
in place.




Page 281

Rules for Contractors (Music)

Revised June 2012 L.TV € NATION

PC/RS

16 RIGGING AND SUSPENSION OF EQUIPMENT

1. All work that requires suspension of any equipment from the fabric of a structure, temporary or
permanent, by means of temporary wires, cords, slings, chains or lifting appliances shall be
classed as rigging and shall comply with the LOLER Regulations 1998.

2. Live Nation (Music) UK Ltd reserves the right to inspect all rigging services and to prohibit its use
if considered to be unstable, unsafe, unfit for use or not complying with the appropriate British or
European standard.

3. All rigging operations will be planned and carried out by competent persons. The competent
person must be capable of predicting potential hazards, eliminating potential hazards and
certifying that the rigging is free from defect and suitable in every way for its use.

4. Risk Assessments for all rigging operations must be provided to the Company.

5. When rigging operations are in progress, hard hats must be worn by all personnel and if possible
the area beneath the activity kept clear by the use of signage or barriers as appropriate.

6. A suitable fall protection system must be in use at all times where there is potential of a fall from
height.

7. During rigging operations tools must be secured by a lanyard or other suitable means.

8. Alllifting equipment shall be of sound material and construction and fit for the purpose for which
it is to be used.

9. Only chains designed and approved for load carrying operations shall be used.

10. All lifting accessories will conform to the relevant British and European standards and be fit for
their intended use.

11. All hoisting equipment will be marked with a Safe Working Load.

12. Motorised lifting operations will be planned & carried out by competent personnel.

13. All lifting equipment will have supporting documentation available on site in relation to the
appropriate test and inspection requirements of LOLER Regulations 1998.

17 NOISE

1. Contractors must ensure that they comply with the relevant legislation in respect of the Control of
Noise at Work Regulations 2005.
2. Suitable and sufficient hearing protection must be made available to invitees by their respective

employers.

3. Hearing protection must be worn in areas that are clearly signed as mandatory hearing protection
areas

18 COSHH

1. Contractors will ensure that all substances being used in the course of the activity or work
process they are employed to undertake has the necessary Material Data Sheet and any
associated risk assessment.

2, All substances will be stored in accordance with the manufacturers’ recommendations and not
left in such a way as to cause injury or harm to any person or animal or cause an impact on the
environment.

3. Emergency equipment must be provided and available on site from the Contractor if deemed
necessary by the manufacturers of the substance and by the Contractors own risk assessment




Rules for Contractors (Music)

Page 282

Revised June 2012 LYve nAaTIoN

PC/RS

19 LOADING & UNLOADING VEHICLES

1.

Contractors must ensure that invitees are competent and have been trained appropriately in the
loading and unloading of vehicles to ensure compliance with the manual handling regulations.
The loading and unloading of vehicles must be supervised appropriately and during the reversing
of vehicles or manoeuvring in public areas must have a banksman present directing the
operation.

When unloading and loading vehicies ensure that a safe working area is established and invitees
are visible to others by the use of Hi Visibility vests and sufficient lighting.  This may include the
use of hazard warning lights and or beacons.

Whilst loading or unloading vehicles due regard must be given to emergency exits or routes that
must not be blocked or obstructed at any time.

All vehicles must observe the site speed limit at all times

20 PLANT & MECHANICAL HANDLING EQUIPMENT

1.

Noo

Forklifts and other mechanical handling equipment or plant must only be operated by those
persons and invitees who can demonstrate the appropriate degree of competence by production
of a licence or other recognised certificate of competence.

All plant provided by the Company will only be released to persons who can provide a copy of
the appropriate licence or other recognised certificate of competence which will then be kept on
file by the Company.

All plant must be subject to an appropriate daily safety check prior to use. These must be kept
for audit by statutory bodies and or the Company as appropriate.

The carrying of persons other than the allocated number of manufactured seating positions is
prohibited.

Speed must not exceed the site speed limit or that appropriate to the load being carried.

Loads carried must be within the SWL of the vehicle. This must be displayed on the vehicle.

Any fitted safety device must not be disabled or interfered with, and any failure of a device must
be reported to the appropriate person immediately.

The Company reserves the right to remove any contractor or invitee from site who operates plant
or machinery in a dangerous manner that endangers the safety of others.




Page 283

[LT\/E nnTlon]

FINSBURY PARK
MUSIC EVENTS

Appendix M
Alcohol
Management Plan

IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII




Page 284

e Specialty bars.........ccccoooeeiiiiii e
Bar Operations ............ovieieiiiiie e
Bar Management ...........ccovvvviiiiiiiiiiie e

O e T s T Ve e s S
Control of lllegal Sales ...
Drink and Drugs POIICY ..........cooouiiiiiiieeeccee e
Right to Search ...
RSt A e . oy T e

Fire and EMergencies...........ccccooeeiiiiee i
Hazardous Substances............ccccccoiiiiiiciii e,
Compliance With Licencing Objectives.............c.cccccovviveeennnnenn. PTTS
Protection Of Children From Harm................coooeeeiiiiii s
Prevention of Crime and Disorder.............ccccooovvvieviiiiiiiiiiiiciieeeees
the prevention of public nuisance; ..............ccccceeoviievi i,
o (Y [ 4 o i et e Ty S P g L S
APPENDIX 1: Job Descriptions ...........cccoovvvvviiveiiieiiiiiiciieeeeeeeee e
Job Description LN DPS.........ooooiiiiiii e
Job Description Bar Management.............ccccooieiiiiiniiiiieeeince
APPENDIX 2: Risk ASSESSMENL .........ccooiiiiiiieiiiieececiee e,

LNFPME - Alcohol Management Plan v1



Page 285

Scope

This Alcohol Management Plan has been drafted in support of a licensing application by Live
Nation (LN) for events at Finsbury Park and outlines how the supply of alcohol will be managed
during any LN events under any such licence:

Although initially generic in nature, this plan will be updated for each event to encompass
unfolding information about planned capacities, nature of event and audience, event partners
etc, and its version number changed incrementally to ensure document control.

As one of the leading entertainment companies globally, LN is committed to presenting the best
events and are mindful of their duties in the responsible sale of alcohol.

This plan aims to ensure that events at Finsbury Park are operated responsibly, safely and
within the parameters of the licence, providing an environment for the sensible, controlled
consumption of alcohol.

We are always mindful of our duty of care as a retailer of alcohol and, through appropriate
training we are able to implement initiatives aimed at combating under age and irresponsible
drinking and or promotions.

Bars

Each Bar on site will be referred to by name and number consistent with each event's site
plans.

The intention is to continue to build on the service and quality demonstrated year on year at
LN'’s London events.

Principally there will be two bar types:

* Volume bars that sell beer, cider, wine and premium packaged spirits in paper cups,
PET bottles or cans; and

» Specialty bars selling cocktails, spirits, wine or champagne either in a public space or
within a designated area.

Irrespective of bar type or indeed operator, there is one AMP that all operators abide with and
this compliance will be monitored.

If necessary the DPS will close any third party structure serving alcohol if required, due to any
serious breach of the licensing objectives or if so requested by any licensing official so
empowered to do so under the licensing act.

Page 3 of 17



Page 286

Bar Operations

The bar operations will be controlled by third party operators and overseen by the LN
Designated supervisor.

Appendix 1 contains the job descriptions for all management level roles, however some are
explained further below

Bar Management
Each bar will have a dedicated Bar Manager and team who are conversant with the
requirements and responsibilities for the sale of alcohol and will be given a written designation
of their responsibilities.

They will directly instruct, monitor and support their staff in ensuring the reqwrements of the
Licencing Act are adhered to at all times.

We will ensure that all Bar Managers are personal license holders.

Bar Managers are responsible for briefing all their staff before each trading day following
Appendix 5.

The name and copy of license of each bar manager at each alcohol retail outlet within the
licensed area will be kept by the Bars Office for inspection by Live Nation before and during the
event.

Staff
No staff under 18 will be permitted employ any person under 18 years to sell alcohol.

All bar staff are briefed by the Bar Manager and complete Appendix 3 and Appendix 6. and
these are kept on site for the duration of the event.

All staff will be instructed about the acceptable forms of ID for proof of age and will be fully
aware of our Challenge 21 scheme.

Control of lllegal Sales

LN will inform all event traders and instruct the event security that all trader vehicles will be
searched before entering a site to prevent large quantities of alcohol being brought onto site for
illegal sale.

Bar operations teams will work closely with the site security, police and trading standards to
ensure the best systems of prevention, detection and apprehension are maintained.

Drink and Drugs Policy

LN encourages those employees who drink alcohol outside of working hours to do so in
sensible quantities. The abuse of drugs of any form will not be condoned.

Employees are expected to convey a professional image at all times and to refrain from drinking
alcohol during the working day, including break times.

Page 4 of 17



Page 287

Managers should take responsibility for the welfare of their staff and must undertake to provide
a trusting, confidential and supportive relationship.

Disciplinary action will be taken against any employee who uses, stores or supplies illicit drugs
at the event. The Company may also refer the matter to the police who could bring criminal
proceedings against an employee in these circumstances.

Right to Search

In the interests of security, staff are required to agree, on request from any authorised person
(i.e. Manager or Senior Manager) to a search of their outer clothing, locker, bag, vehicle etc.
Failure to give such permission may result in disciplinary action.

The employee can request that personal searches be carried out in private and that they may
have an employee of the same sex in attendance on such occasions.

By carrying out a search, there is no implied accusation nor is there necessarily suspicion of
dishonesty.

First Aid

All bars will have access to first aid kits and all staff will be advised of the location of the first aid
posts on site.

Fire and Emergencies

In the event of an emergency the bar will be evacuated via the nearest emergency exit. The
nominated person will raise the alarm in accordance with the site arrangements.

No flammable materials will be stored in the bars.

All bars are fitted with fire extinguishers; employees are only to operate the extinguisher if they
consider that it is safe to do so and have been trained. In the event of a fire the preservation of
life takes priority.

Hazardous Substances

All hazardous substances (cleaning chemicals etc) have been identified and material Safety
Data Sheets obtained. Assessments for their use have been undertaken and employees have
been made aware of the health risks associated with their use and the control measures
necessary in accordance with the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 1999
(COSHH).

Personal protective clothing will be provided where appropriate and staff will receive training in
its use.

Page 5 of 17



Page 288

Compliance With Licencing Objectives
Protection Of Children From Harm

LN are committed to ensuring that Alcohol is not sold to anyone under 18 and the use of the
Challenge 21 scheme builds upon the successes Live Nation have had implementing such
schemes at events since 2008.

The Following notice will be posted at the entrance to the festival and at multiple locations on
each bar:

If you are lucky enough to look under 21, it may be that we ask you to prove your age
when entering the festival (under 16's must be accompanied by a parent or guardian) or
when attempting to buy alcohol (The law of the land still applies in the festival grounds!).

Please don't be offended by this request, in fact take it as a compliment!
The ONLY accepted proof of age documents are:

1) Passport (Not a photocopy)

2) Photocard Driving License

3) Proof Of Age Card - The card must be part of the PASS scheme and carry their
hologram.

All volume bars will have an SIA registered steward managing entrance to queuing lanes and
their sole purpose is verify the age of all customers who appear to be under the age of 21.

Bar staff on the front line will also be required to check the id of any customer who appears to
be under 21 and will reminded of this obligation at their daily briefing.

A log will be kept on each bar and by each security person detailing any customers who are
refused service or entry to the queuing lanes as satisfactory ID has been requested but not
been presented.

Prevention of Crime and Disorder
In addition to the action taken as part of the overall Event Management Plan, the bar operations
will draw up plans for the safekeepoing of staff belongings and provide systems of work for the
effective management of cash on site to deter theft.

In addition, refusal of service of alcohol to intoxicated people will be promoted to staff in daily
briefings and monitored by bar security, Bar Managers and the DPS.

the prevention of public nuisance;

Please refer to the Event Management Plan.

Public Safety
Please refer to the Event Management Plan.

Page 6 of 17



Page 289

APPENDIX 1: Job Descriptions

Job Description
Responsible To:

Responsible For

Main Duties

LN DPS
Live Nation

Approval of Bar Alcohol Management Plans and ensuring that the
Licensing Objectives are adhered to

Prevention of crime disorder
Public Safety

Prevention of public nuisance
Protection of children from harm

Agree operational plans with bar operator
Ensure plans are effectively carried out

Dated: 5™ March 2013

Job Description
Responsible To:

Responsible For

Main Duties

Bar Management
LN-DPS

Design and executing agreed Bar Alcohol Management Plans and ensuring
that the Licensing Objectives are adhered to

Prevention of crime disorder
Public Safety

Prevention of public nuisance
Protection of children from harm

Effective management of staff in a bar

Ensure that sales are maximized

Minimize risk of loss of cash or tokens and ensure used tokens are counted
and stored securely

Operate the Challenge 21 scheme and ensure staff are trained briefed

and managed accordingly

Be a personal license holder

Comply with the Alcohol Management Plan

Dated:5" March 2013

Page 7 of 17



“Page 290

APPENDIX 2: Risk Assessment

Location
- HEALTH & SAFETY
AL Risk Assessment
| Activity | Bar Construction through to alcohol supply

Description of Job

All issues relating to above operation

Who is affected by this operation?

Visiting ' Young Pregnant

Employees | x | Contractors x Company x | Public people VA e

= . . Risk (before
E:::;:)S:: c(;fshazards SJecsSiLie Likelihood | Severity ';'asclf[ - Erecautions have

een taken)

Harm during vehicular movement 5 5 25 High
Usage of forklift/telehandler 5 5 25 High
Usage of HGV/Articulated units 5 5 25 High
General build dangers 4 3 12 Medium
Manual handling of building materials | 4 3 12 Medium
Use of tools equipment 4 3 12 Medium
Risk of robbery 2 S 15 Low
Trips and falls due environment, 5 3 15 Medium
cables, equipment 4 5 20 High
Gas usage in supply of alcohol 4 5 20 High
Electrocution due to usage of 5 3 15 Medium
generated power 5 2 10 Medium
Manual handling by bar staff 4 6 24 High
Minor injury during work 4 4 16 Medium

Recommended precautions

Page 8 of 17



Page 291

Compliance with H and S Policy re vehicular movement inc prohibited periods. Briefing for
drivers and staff.

Compliance as at 1). Operatives to be competent and qualified. Escort where necessary.
Compliance as at 1). Operatives to be competent and qualified. Escort where necessary
Inherent dangers can be minimised by compliance to H and S policy consistent use of
Personal Protective equipment.

Awareness and briefing re H and S. Use of competent operatives. Confirmation of manual
handling training from cscs card or similar

Operatives to be briefed re H and S. Tool box talks re specifics. Battery operated electrical
equipment. Mains to be 110v. Tool supply in accordance with PUWER

Implementation of cash plan.

Greatest risks during event period. Walk through to ID hazards and control measures to be
implemented by risk assessment. Staff to be briefed re their duty to remove hazards

Usage has clear and inherent risks. These are massively minimised by modern storage and
control of usage legislation. Use and access will be restricted to Carlsberg technicians.
Power supplied by competent and qualified engineers. Generators to be enclosed by fencing
to restrict access. Cabling to be above head height and protected when at ground level

Staff will only be required to lift medium weight manageable items. Managers to brief staff re
manual handling, sharing loads and use of sack trucks etc. There will be role specific issues
to manage such as carrying wet items from chilled vehicles etc.

First aid points and staff at each bar, this to be communicated to all staff.

All aspects of fire safety will be covered in specific detail in the H and S and Fire Safety plan.
Evacuation plans and fire points etc will be communicated during briefings. The primary issue

Descrip tloc':)z;g:lz;;ises& possible Likelihood Severity Risk Factor Ris:a(::tzgg’r’e&iztrl;?ns

1) Harm during vehicular movement | 1 5 5 Low
2) Usage of forklift/telehandler 1 5 5 Low
Usage of HGV/Articulated units 1 5 5 Low
General build dangers 2 3 6 Low
Manual handling of building materials | 2 3 6 Low
Use of tools equipment 1 3 3 Low
Risk of Robbery 1 5 5 Low
Trips and falls due environment, 2 3 6 Low
cables, equipment

Gas usage in supply of alcohol 1 5 5 Low
Electrocution due to usage of 1 5 5 Low
generated power 2 3 6 Low
Manual handling by bar staff 3 2 6 Low
Minor injury during work 1 6 6 Low
Fire risk 1 4 4 Low

Details of further action required

Ensure Employees read the Risk Assessment. (Employee Read Risk Assessment records to
be retained in Departmental Risk Assessment File)

Review on an annual basis. (Reviewed Assessments to be recorded in the Master Risk
| Asspssment File )

Assessed Position Signe

by d Date

Page 9 of 17



Page 292

Signed Print D
. ate
Line Manager name
. |1 Very : i i 6W
Probability unlikely 2 Unlikely |3 May occur 4 Likely 5 Very likely o
Severity 1 Very minor |2 Minor 3Losttime to |4 Major |5 Single 6 Multiple
inju inju inju

Risk Factor 0-6 Low Risk Factor 7-17 Medium
Risk factor above 6 Risk factor above 12

Improve if possible Further action required
Multiply Probability x Severity to obtain Risk Factor

Page 10 of 17



Page 293

APPENDIX 3: Staff Introduction Letter

Welcome

The following information outlines some do's and dont's for whilst you are onsite at Finsbury
Park. You will be given a more detailed brief and training once you arrive onsite. Please take
time to read all of the information carefully and sign at the bottom. This sheet will need to be
returned with your other documents.

General Information

You will be given éppropriate breaks throughout your shift, it is essential that you return from
any breaks punctually to ensure smooth running on the bars.

Do’s

* Make sure you ask anyone for ID that you believe to be under 21, only accept
recognised forms ID. If there is no ID to prove that they are over 18 years old
refuse service and let your supervisor know. If you’re not sure ask your
supervisor. If you sell alcohol to anyone under 18 you may be fined.

* Sell quickly, we aim to provide an efficient service.

* Be polite, friendly and helpful to all customers, contractors and staff.

* Make sure you wear the correct uniform, black trousers/skirt, comfortable black footwear
socks and provided t-shirt.

* Make sure you wear your wristband at all times.

* Make sure you wear the provided ear plugs at all times during the show.

Don’ts
* Drink on duty, anyone found under the influence will be escorted from site and receive no
pay
* Carry personal possessions, all cash and mobile phones should not be bought onto site.
* Serve anyone you believe to be intoxicated.

If you are unsure about anything please do not hesitate to ask your bar manager or a member
of the bars management team.

| have read and understood all of the information contained within the Staff Introduction Lefter;

PRINT NAME

SIGN

DATE

Page 11 of 17



Page 294

APPENDIX 4: Staff Appointment Letter

Hours of Work

You must provide at least 72 hours notice if you are no longer available to work any of the
agreed shifts.

In the event you are unable to work due to sickness, you must report this with at least 4 hours
notice prior to the start time of your scheduled shift.

Please note — you are expected to be at your nominated bar and ready to commence your
duties by the start time stated above.

Staff Uniform

* All bar staff will be provided with a t-shirt that needs to be worn each day of the event. In
addition, all bar staff are required to wear black trousers/skirt, black footwear and
black socks.

» Please pay particular attention to weather forecasts and wear sun screen if good weather
is forecast or warm clothes for below the t-shirt.

* You will be supplied with hearing protection and this must be worn during all operational
times or as directed by your supervisor on site.

Personal Possessions
The following rules will apply to all bar staff working at all events:

* The organiser will not be held responsible for any loss or damage to any personal
belonging that you bring onto site

» Carrying cigarettes and lighters is permitted, however smoking is only permitted in
designated smoking areas and only during your designated break.

(Please note — organiser reserves the right to search any member of staff at anytime)
Other Rules :

You are required by law to check the age of any customer purchasing alcohol who may be
under 21. The only recognised Identification will be clearly displayed on your bar.

Drinking of alcohol or the use of non-prescription drugs is not permitted on site. Any breach of
this would result in immediate removal from site, and could lead to further disciplinary action
being taken against you.

Upon arrival you will sign in and issued with a wrist band. The wrist band must be worn at all
times and surrendered when signing out at the staff entrance. Wristbands must NEVER be
taken off site.

Please note — a full briefing to include health and safety and site rules will be given on site.
Attendance for this is mandatory.

Please sign one copy of this letter and return to the following address:

In conclusion, we anticipate an extremely successful event and thank you in advance for your
assistance. We also look forward to meeting you.

I confirm | have read and understood the above Terms and Conditions.

PRINT NAME
SIGN
DATE

Page 12 of 17



Page 295

APPENDIX 5: Induction Checklist

Staff Induction Procedure

Please carry out your staff induction in the following order making sure all points are

covered

Mission Statement

Efficient effective sale of drinks - speed of service

Customer Interaction - smile, polite/helpful, no abuse
policy

Team Work

Bar Logistics - roles, product flow

Bar Operations Manager Introduction

Manager/Supervisor/Personal License Holder
Introduction - Protocol

Cashiers

Security

Queuing Lanes

Opening Hours

Drinks Menu & Pricing

Challenge 21

Intoxicated Persons

Wastage

Till Training

Volume multiples

How to process a transaction

Fast Buttons/Department Keys

Location money in till - heads the right way, give coins
out

Concentration on correct change

Mistakes/Refunds

No receipt

Health & Safety

Ear Plugs

Fire Evacuation - how to raise alarm

Fire Extinguisher Location

First Aid Kit

Accident Report Procedure

Hand Washing

Lifting Procedure

Staff Protocol

Theft & Consequences

Drinking on Duty

Staff Uniform

Wristband Importance

Personal Possessions - no cash, search policy, no
mobiles

Name Badges

Page 13 of 17



Page 296

Breaks/Meals - punctuality of breaks/shifts

Smoking/Break Zone

Site Awareness & Walk round

Other Bars

Cash Office

Toilets

Stages

Page 14 of 17



Page 297

APPENDIX 6: Bar Staff Disclaimer

EVENT

DATE

| (Employee Name)

agree and

sign to confirm understanding of the following:

| will at times action Challenge 21 — if the customer does not look older than 21, | will ask
for ‘Proof of Age Identification’. In doing so, | refuse to sell alcohol to anyone unable to
supply adequate ID and assume they are not over 18 years old. | understand that
anything other than refusal is breaching the Licensing Act 2003.

I understand that the only acceptable ‘Proof of Age Identification’ is a valid Photo card
Driving Licence, a valid Passport or a valid Proof of Age ID Card, which has to have the
“PASS” hologram on it.

| understand that | must not serve any persons, even if they are of the legal age if | think
the alcohol being purchased is intended for consumption by someone under the age of
18.

| understand that | must not serve any persons that appear to be intoxicated (drunk).
Equally, | must not serve someone if | think that the alcohol being purchased is intended
for consumption by someone that appears to be intoxicated (drunk).

I have been briefed on the licensing Law and fully understand my responsibilities under
the Licensing Act 2003 and the penalties faced for breach of those responsibilities.

I have been briefed on all products available for sale and how the products are to be
dispensed.

I have been briefed upon the location of the First Aid and Fire Equipment and told which
individuals to notify about injuries. | have been informed that it is my responsibility to
record any injuries.

| have been made fully aware of all Fire Exits; Fire Evacuation Procedures, Fire
Evacuation Points and how to raise the alarm.

| have been made fully aware of Noise at work and been given instructions on the use of
hearing protection.

| have been given instruction and information on Manual Handling.

| have been introduced to the managers and supervisors responsible for members of
staff, the Personal Drinks Licence Holder and security staff.

| have been made fully aware of how to operate the till and token system and been given
information regarding the refusal of counterfeit notes.

| have been made fully aware of the location of hand washing facilities, toilets, rest area
and where to redeem a staff meal voucher.

Page 15 of 17




Page 298

Authorising the Sale of Alcohol at (Bar
Name/Location)
Employee Name: Signed:
Date: Date of Birth:

Manager/Supervisor providing induction:

Signed: Date:

Page 16 of 17



Page 299

APPENDIX 7: Premises Licence

To be inserted.

Page 17 of 17



Page 300



	Agenda
	4 Summary of Procedure
	5 Application for a new Premises Licence at Live Nation, Finsbury Park, Seven Sisters Road, N4 2AB
	Report Documentation- Live Nation
	EMP Part 1
	EMP Part 2
	EMP Part 3


